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Liquidity In time when access to liquidity is very limited we have adequate liquidity for

our business At the end of 2008 we had $1.83 billion in cash and $583 million avail

able under our revolving credit facility We have no significant debt maturities until 2011

We assess four factors in considering how much liquidity we need the outlook for our

business preservation of our credit profile maintenance of adequate liquidity

including for capital expenditures and maintenance of sufficient working capital

Taking those four factors into account we returned $4.056 billion to our stockholders

between November 2007 and the end of 2008 by repurchasing approximately 122 million

of our shares about 48 percent of the shares outstanding when we began the repurchases

Investing in our business During 2008 we invested $672 million in our power plants Of
that amount we invested $497 million in state-of-the-art environmental controls at our

three stations in Maryland to meet the requirements of the Maryland Healthy Air Act by

the end of 2009 As of the end of 2008 we had spent $997 million of the 1.674 billion

cost of the program When we have completed the program by the end of 2009 the

environmental controls will be capable of reducing emissions of sulfur dioxide nitrogen

oxides and mercury by approximately 98 percent 90 percent and 80 percent respectively

for three of our largest coal-fired units

The outlook There has been and will continue to be much talk about the future of energy

including discussions about future sources and climate change Before we as society can

address the future we need to understand the present Some facts

Sources of the electricity generated in the United States

Coal 48 percent

Nuclear percent

Natural gas 22 percent

Hydroelectric percent

Oil percent

Other including biomass solar and wind percent

Sources of greenhouse gases in the United States

Generation of electricity 40 percent

Transportation 34 percent

Natural gas compared to coal as source of greenhouse gases

From extraction to combustion burning natural gas to generate electricity

produces up to 60 percent of the greenhouse gas effect of burning coal to

generate electricity

From extraction to combustion burning liquefied natural gas to generate

electricity produces up to 90 percent of the greenhouse gas effect of

burning coal to generate electricity
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Net Income to Adjusted Net ncome and Adjusted EBITDA

Year Enduig Year Enduig

millions December 31 2008 December 31 2007

Net income 1265 1995

Income from discontinued operations 50 1562

ncome from continuing operations 1215 433

Unreatzed gains and ossos 786 536

Non-recurnng items 88

Adjusted net mcome 517 805

Provision for income taxes

Interest net 119 45

Depreciation and amortization 144 129

Adjusted EBTDA 782 988

Adjusted net income and adjusted EBITDA are non-GAAP financial measures Management and

some members of the investment community utilize adjusted net income and adjusted EBITDA to

measure financial performance on an ongoing basis These measures are not recognized in accor

dance with GAAP and should not be viewed as an alternative to GAAP measures of performance In

evaluating these adjusted measures the reader should be aware that in the future Mirant may incur

expenses similar to the adlustments set forth above
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Notice of Annual Meeting of Stockholders May 2009

The 2009 Annual Meeting of Stockholders of Mirant Corporation will be held at 800 a.m Eastern Daylight

Time on Thursday May 2009 at Mirants corporate headquarters 1155 Perimeter Center West Atlanta GA

30338-5416 for the following purposes

To elect nine members of the Board of Directors nominated by the Board of Directors

To ratify the appointment of KPMG LLP as our independent registered public accountant for 2009

To act upon the stockholder proposal described in the attached Proxy Statement and

To transact such other business as may properly be brought before the meeting and any and all

adjoumments or postponements thereof

In accordance with our Bylaws and action by our Board of Directors stockholders owning Mirant common stock

at the close of business on March 2009 are entitled to attend and vote at the meeting

If you plan to attend the meeting in person please note that you may be asked to present valid picture

identification such as drivers license or passport

The Proxy Statement Annual Report and proxy form are included in this mailing

Even if you plan to attend the meeting please provide us your voting instructions in one of the following ways as

soon as possible

Internet use the Internet address noted on the proxy form and on the previously sent notice to

stockholders

Telephone use the toll-free number on the proxy
form

Mail mark sign and date the proxy form and return in the enclosed postage-paid envelope

By order of the Board of Directors

Julia Houston

Corporate Secretary

March 27 2009

Important Notice Regarding Availability of Proxy Materials for the Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be

held on May 2009 the Proxy Statement and our 2008 Annual Report are available at

httpllwww.mirant.com under Investor Relations then Financial Information then Annual Reports

Directions

From the airport or downtown Atlanta Take 1-85 North to GA 400 North to Exit 5A Dunwoody Turn right

and follow Abernathy Road which becomes Perimeter Center West Turn right at the 3rd light into the

entrance of 1155 Perimeter Center West The parking deck entrance is on the left just past the building

Visitor parking is on the 3rd level entry level of the parking deck

From 1-285 Take Exit 29 Ashford Dunwoody Road going north toward Perimeter Mall Turn left at the

traffic light onto Perimeter Center West Turn left at the 6th traffic light into the entrance of 1155 Perimeter

Center West The parking deck entrance is on the left just past the building Visitor parking is on the

level of the parking deck



General Information

Why am receiving this Proxy Statement

You are receiving this Proxy Statement and proxy card because you own shares of Mirant common stock This

Proxy Statement describes issues on which we would like you to vote at our annual meeting of stockholders It

also gives you information on these issues so that you can make an informed decision The Board of Directors of

Mirant Corporation is soliciting your proxy for the 2009 Annual Meeting of Stockholders and
any adjournments

thereof The meeting will be held at 800 a.m Eastern Daylight Time on Thursday May 2009 at Mirants

corporate headquarters 1155 Perimeter Center West Atlanta GA 30338-54 16 This Proxy Statement and proxy
form initially are being provided to stockholders on or about March 27 2009

What is being voted upon at the meeting

The election of nine directors for
one-year term the ratification of the appointment of KPMG LLP as the

Companys independent registered public accountant for 2009 and stockholder proposal are being voted on at

the meeting We are not aware of any other matters to be presented to the meeting however the holders of the

proxies will vote in their discretion on any other matters properly presented

How does the Board of Directors recommend vote

Our Board of Directors unanimously recommends that you vote

FOR each of the nominees to the Board of Directors

FOR ratification of the appointment of KPMG LLP as our independent registered public accountant for

2009 and

AGAINST the stockholder proposal

How do give voting instructions

You may give your voting instructions by the Internet by telephone by mail or in person at the meeting
Instructions on how to vote are on the proxy form and on the Notice of Internet Availability of Proxy Materials

previously sent to stockholders The proxy committee named on the enclosed proxy form will vote all properly

executed proxies that are delivered pursuant to this solicitation and not subsequently revoked in accordance with

your voting instructions If you hold shares through bank or broker please refer to your proxy card or the

information forwarded by your
bank or broker to see which options are available to you

Can change my vote

Yes you may revoke your proxy by submitting subsequent proxy by voting in person at the meeting or by
written request received by Mirants Corporate Secretary prior to the Annual Meeting

Who is entitled to vote at the meeting

All stockholders of record as of the close of business on the record date of March 2009 may vote On that

date there were 143336554 shares of Mirant Corporation common stock outstanding and entitled to vote Each

share of common stock is entitled to one vote on each matter properly brought before the meeting

How much does each share count

Each share counts as one vote No cumulative voting rights are authorized and dissenters rights are not

applicable to these matters



What happens if sign and return my proxy card but do not provide voting instructions

If you return signed card but do not provide voting instructions your shares will be voted FOR all nine director

nominees FOR the ratification of the appointment of our independent registered public accountant for 2009 and

AGAINST the stockholder proposal

Will my shares be voted if do not vote by using the Internet by telephone or by signing and returning my

proxy card

If you hold your shares directly and not in street name through bank or broker and do not vote your shares

using the Internet by telephone or by signing and returning proxy card then your shares will not be voted and

will not count in deciding the matters presented for stockholder consideration at the Annual Meeting

If your shares are held in street name through bank or broker your
bank or broker may vote your shares under

certain circumstances if you do not provide voting instructions before the Annual Meeting in accordance with

New York Stock Exchange rules that govern the banks and brokers These circumstances include routine

matters such as the election of directors and the ratification of the appointment of our independent registered

public accountant described in this Proxy Statement Thus with respect to these matters if you do not vote your

shares your bank or broker may vote your shares on your
behalf On non-routine matters such as the stockholder

proposal described in this Proxy Statement bank or broker may not cast vote absent specific voting

instructions from you This is referred to as broker non-vote in this Proxy Statement

What constitutes quorum for the meeting

quorum consists of majority of the outstanding shares present or represented by proxy quorum is

necessary to conduct business at the Annual Meeting For the purpose of determining whether or not quorum

exists abstentions and broker non-votes are counted as shares present or represented by proxy

What are the voting requirements for electing members of our Board of Directors

The affirmative vote of plurality of the votes cast is required for the election of directors which means that the

director nominee with the most votes for particular slot is elected for that slot You may vote for or withhold

authority with respect to the election of directors Only votes for or withhold authority are counted in

determining whether plurality has been cast in favor of director

What are the voting requirements for ratification of the appointment of KPMG LLP as our independent

registered public accountant for 2009

The affirmative vote of majority of the shares present and entitled to vote is required for the ratification of the

appointment of KPMG LLP as our independent registered public accountant for 2009 You may vote for

against or abstain with respect to the ratification of the appointment of our independent registered public

accountant Abstentions will have the effect of votes cast against the ratification of the appointment of our

independent registered public accountant

What are the voting requirements for approval of the stockholder proposal

The affirmative vote of majority of the shares present and entitled to vote is required to approve the stockholder

proposal You may vote for against or abstain with respect to the stockholder proposal Abstentions will

have the effect of votes cast against the approval of the stockholder proposal Broker non-votes will have no

effect on the outcome of the vote



What does it mean if get more than one proxy form

You will receive proxy form for each account that you have Please vote proxies for all accounts to ensure that

all
your

shares are voted You may consolidate multiple accounts through our transfer agent Mellon Investor

Services online at www.melloninvestor.com or by calling 866 463-1222

Who pays the expense of soliciting proxies

Mirant
pays

the cost of soliciting proxies The officers or other employees of Mirant or its subsidiaries may
solicit proxies in

person or by telephone electronic transmission or facsimile transmission Such officers or other

employees will not receive any additional compensation for these activities

Will list of stockholders entitled to vote at the meeting be available

In accordance with Delaware law list of stockholders entitled to vote at the meeting will be available at our

corporate headquarters on May 2009 and will be accessible for ten days prior to the meeting between the

hours of 900 a.m and 500 p.m at our corporate headquarters



Item No Election of Directors

Director and Nominee Information

All of the nominees for director currently are directors of Mirant The following table sets forth information

regarding the names ages and business experience of the current directors other directorships held by them and

the length of their service as directors of Mirant Additional biographical information regarding our directors is

available on our website at http//www.mirant.com

Unless otherwise instructed the persons named on the enclosed proxy form will vote each properly executed

proxy
for the election of the nominees outlined below as directors for one-year term ending in 2010 If any

named nominee becomes unavailable for election the Board may substitute another nominee In that event the

proxy would be voted for the substitute nominee

The affirmative vote of plurality of shares present and entitled to vote is required for the election of directors

The director nominee with the most votes for particular slot is elected for that slot

The Board of Directors recommends vote FOR the nine nominees listed below

Name Age
Position and Expenence

Thomas Cason 66 Director and Audit Committee Chairman of Mirant since 2006 Owned and

managed five agricultural equipment dealerships until retirement in December

2006 1991-2006 Former Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

1989-1990 of Baker Hughes Incorporated Controller and Vice President

Finance 1977-1989 of various Baker Hughes subsidiaries After retiring from

Baker Hughes he held various executive management positions with Key

Tronic Incorporated He also held number of auditing positions during his

seven-year career with Arthur Young Company Mr Cason is also director

of Transocean Ltd

Pete Correll 67 Director of Mirant since 2000 Lead Director and Nominating and Governance

Committee Chairman of Mirant since 2006 Chairman 2007- Present of

Atlanta Equity Investors LLC private equity firm that specializes in

recapitalization outright purchases and growth capital investments in middle

markets Retired Chairman of the Board 1993-2006 Chief Executive Officer

1993-2005 and President 1991-2002 of Georgia-Pacific Corporation

manufacturer and distributor of building products pulp and paper Mr Correll

____________________
is also director of Norfolk Southern Corporation and SunTrust Banks Inc

Terry Dallas 58 Director of Mirant since 2006 Former Executive Vice President and Chief

___________________
Financial Officer 2000-2005 of Unocal Corporation

Thomas Johnson 59 Director and Compensation Committee Chairman of Mirant since 2006

Managing Partner 2005- Present of THJ Investments LP private

investment entity Retired Chairman 2000-2005 and President and Chief

Executive Officer 1997-2005 of Chesapeake Corporation specialty

packaging manufacturer Former President and Chief Executive Officer 1989-

2007 of Riverwood International an integrated forest products company He

is also director of Coca-Cola Enterprises Universal Corporation and

__________________
ModusLink Global Solutions Inc

John Miller 62 Director of Mirant since 2006 Former Chief Financial Officer 1998-2001

and Chief Executive Officer and director 2001-2005 of American Ref-Fuel

Company operator of waste-to-energy generation facilities in the northeastern

United States Mr Miller is also director of Highstar Waste Holdings Corp

____________________
Future Fuels LLC and Advanced Disposal Services Inc



Name Age Position and Experience

Edward Muller 57 Chairman President and Chief Executive Officer of Mirant since 2005
Former President and Chief Executive Officer 1993-2000 of Edison Mission

Energy California-based independent power producer Mr Muller is also

director of Transocean Ltd

Robert Murray 63 Director of Mirant since 2006 Former Chairman 2002-2004 and Interim

Chief Executive Officer 2002-2003 of Pantellos Corporation an e-commerce

procurement marketplace for the utility industry and former Chief Financial

Officer 1992-2001 of Public Service Enterprise Group an energy and energy

services company

John Quain 54 Director of Mirant since 2006 Chairman of the Energy and Utility Law
Practice Group 2001-present of Buchanan Ingersoll Rooney law firm

engaged in strategic planning and regulatory consultative services for energy

____________________
and utility companies

William Thacker 63 Director of Mirant since 2006 Former President Chief Executive Officer

Chairman and Advisor to the President and CEO 1992-2002 of Texas

Eastern Products Pipeline Company LLC owner and operator of petroleum

product pipelines in the United States He is also director of Copano Energy
LLC and Kayne Anderson Energy Development Co



Corporate Governance

Board Structure

Our current Board of Directors consists of nine directors who have diverse backgrounds and experience and is

chaired by Edward Muller our President and Chief Executive Officer Mr Muller was elected as Chairman of

the Board President and Chief Executive Officer on September 30 2005 The other individuals listed above were

originally appointed as directors on January 2006 in conjunction with our emergence from bankruptcy All

members of the current Board were re-elected at our 2008 Annual Meeting of Stockholders on May 2008

Each director serves one-year term and is subject to annual election

Pete Correll serves as lead independent director In this role he coordinates the activities of the other

non-management directors serves as chairman of the Nominating and Governance Committee presides over

meetings of the non-management directors and serves as the liaison between the non-management directors and

the Chairman of the Board

The Board of Directors met 13 times in 2008 and the non-management Directors met in executive session four

times in 2008 No director attended fewer than 75% of the total of the Board meetings and the meetings of the

committees upon which he served All directors were present at our 2008 Annual Meeting of Stockholders held

at our corporate headquarters on May 2008

Corporate Governance Guidelines and Committee Charters

In 2006 the Board of Directors approved new Corporate
Governance Guidelines and new charters for the Audit

Compensation and Nominating and Governance Committees that comply with applicable laws and regulations

and the listing standards of the New York Stock Exchange The Corporate Governance Guidelines describe the

qualifications
and role of the Board and outline the responsibilities of the directors They provide that the Board

will conduct an annual evaluation to assess and enhance its effectiveness and the Guidelines direct

non-management directors to meet in executive session at least quarterly with the Companys lead independent

director presiding at these sessions Under the Guidelines directors are expected to attend the Companys Annual

Meeting of Stockholders The Corporate Governance Guidelines and all three committee charters are posted on

our website at http//www.mirant.com Stockholders may obtain copy of the Guidelines and committee charters

by written request to the Corporate Secretary at Mirant Corporation 1155 Perimeter Center West Atlanta GA

30338-5416

Director Independence

The Board has determined that each of the following non-management directors is independent under applicable

New York Stock Exchange listing standards and our Corporate Governance Guidelines Thomas Cason A.D

Pete Correll Terry Dallas Thomas Johnson John Miller Robert Murray John Quain and

William Thacker Each director designated as independent has no material relationship with the Company that

would impair his independence This determination was based upon the recommendation of the Nominating and

Governance Committee and all relevant facts and circumstances appropriate for consideration in the judgment of

the Board As described in the Corporate
Governance Guidelines the Board applies the following standards in

assessing independence

No director can qualify as independent
if he or she has material relationship with the Company either

directly or as partner stockholder or officer of an organization that has relationship with the

Company

director is not independent if

The director is or has been within the last three years an employee of the Company or an

immediate family member of the director is or has been within the last three years an executive

officer of the Company



ii The director or an immediate family member of the director has received during any 12-month

period during the last three years more than $100000 in direct compensation from the Company
other than director and committee fees and pension or other forms of deferred compensation for

prior service provided such compensation is not contingent in any way on continued service

Compensation received by an immediate family member for service as an employee other than an

executive officer is not considered for purposes of this standard

iii The director or an immediate family member is current partner of firm that is the

companys internal or external auditor the director is current employee of such firm

the director has an immediate family member who is current employee of such firm and

who participates in the firms audit assurance or tax compliance but not tax planning practice

or the director or an immediate family member was within the last three years but is no

longer partner or employee of such firm and personally worked on the listed companys audit

within that time

iv The director or an immediate family member of the director is or within the last three years has

been employed as an executive officer of another company where any of the Companys present

executive officers serves or served at the same time on that companys compensation committee

The director is current employee or has an immediate family member who is current executive

officer of another company that has made payments to or received payments from the Company
for property or services in an amount which in any of the last three fiscal years exceeds the

greater of $1 million or 2% of the other companys consolidated
gross annual revenues

vi The director is or in the past three years has been an executive officer of charitable organization

to which the Company made contributions in an amount which in any single fiscal year exceeds

the greater of $1 million or 2% of such charitable organizations consolidated gross annual

revenues

Related Person Transactions

Review and Approval of Related Person Transactions

Our Nominating and Governance Committee is responsible for reviewing and approving any related person
transactions by the Company Mirant legal department has adopted written policies and procedures to track and

assess relationships and transactions to which the Company and our directors and executive officers or their

immediate family members are parties to determine if they have direct or indirect material interest in the

transaction At the first scheduled Nominating and Governance Committee meeting each calendar year
management identifies for the Committee any related person transactions to be entered into for that calendar

year including the proposed aggregate value of such transactions All related person transactions must be

approved by the Nominating and Governance Committee and must be on terms comparable to those that could be

obtained in arms-length dealings with an unrelated third party

Related Person Transactions

There were no reportable transactions between the Company and related
persons in 2008

Stockholder Communications Policy

Stockholders and other interested parties who wish to send communications to our Board of Directors or

independent directors may do so by writing to the Board in care of our Corporate Secretary Mirant Corporation
1155 Perimeter Center West Atlanta GA 30338-54 16 We have also established the following email addresses

to which communications intended for directors may be sent and have provided links to these addresses on our

website directors@niirant.com to the directors as group and independent.directors@mirant.com to the



non-management directors as group The Board has instructed the Corporate Secretary to assist the Board in

reviewing all communications received as follows

Customer vendor or employee complaints will be investigated by management and log of such

complaints will be provided to the Chair of the Nominating and Governance Committee

Communications containing complaints regarding accounting internal control or auditing matters will

be investigated in accordance with the procedures established by the Audit Committee

Solicitations for periodicals or other subscriptions surveys and business solicitations and other similar

communications generally will not be forwarded to the directors

Except as described above the Corporate Secretary will forward written communications addressed to the full

Board to the Chairman of the Board ii written communications addressed to the non-management directors to

the lead independent director and iii written communications addressed to any
individual director or directors

to the individuals to whom the communication is directed However materials that are unduly hostile

threatening illegal or similarly unsuitable generally
will not be forwarded

Committee Membership

The Board of Directors has standing Executive Compensation Nominating and Governance and Audit

Committees Provided below is information about the membership responsibilities and actions of these

committees during 2008

Executive Committee

The Executive Committee is composed of four members Edward Muller Thomas Cason A.D Pete

Correll and Thomas Johnson It was established for the sole purpose of authorizing and approving transactions

and commitments for power fuel emissions and related fuel storage and transportation agreements that exceed

the authority delegated by the Board of Directors to the Chief Executive Officer The Executive Committee did

not meet during 2008

Compensation Committee

The Compensation Committee is composed of three members Thomas Johnson A.D Pete Correll and

William Thacker Mr Johnson serves as the chair of the committee Each member initially was appointed by

the Board of Directors upon our emergence from bankruptcy on January 2006 and reappointed annually each

year
thereafter Upon recommendation of the Nominating and Governance Committee the Board of Directors

determined that each member of the Compensation Committee meets the independence requirements of the New

York Stock Exchange and our Corporate
Governance Guidelines

The Compensation Committee met six times in 2008 and met five times in executive session at those meetings

The Chief Executive Officer the Corporate Secretary the Senior Vice President Administration and the Director

of Compensation and Benefits attend Compensation Committee meetings as representatives of the Company

The Compensation Committee is responsible for establishing and administering the compensation and benefits

programs for our named executive officers The key responsibilities
of the Compensation Committee are

Oversight of compensation philosophy amounts plans and policies

Evaluation of the performance of officers at the level of Senior Vice President and above and approval

of their compensation

Administration of executive compensation plans



Review of management succession plans and

Recommendation of compensation for non-management directors

copy of the Compensation Committee Charter is available on our website at http//www.mirant.com In

addition to outlining the Committees governance and responsibilities the Charter grants the Compensation
Committee the authority to engage independent counsel and other outside advisors

Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider Participation

All members of our Compensation Committee during 2008 were independent directors and none was an

employee or former employee of the Company During 2008 none of our executive officers served on the

compensation committee or board of directors of another entity whose executive officers served on our

Compensation Committee or Board of Directors

Nominating and Governance Committee

The Nominating and Governance Committee is composed of three members A.D Pete Correll Terry
Dallas and John Quain Mr Correll serves as the chair of the committee Each member was appointed by the
Board of Directors on January 2006 and reappointed annually each year thereafter The Board of Directors
determined that each of the members of the Nominating and Governance Committee meets the independence
requirements of the New York Stock Exchange and our Corporate Governance Guidelines The Nominating and
Governance Committee met four times during 2008 and met in executive session in each of those meetings The
key responsibilities of the Nominating and Governance Committee are

Recommendation and implementation of the Corporate Governance Guidelines

Recommendation to the Board of Directors regarding the composition of the Board and the

composition of Board committees

Oversight of Mirants compliance with its Code of Ethics and Business Conduct and review and
discussion with management and the General Counsel of legal and regulatory requirements

compliance matters and material litigation and

Assistance of the Board in identifying qualified individuals to become Board members and
recommendation to the Board regarding the selection of director nominees for election at the annual

meeting of stockholders assessment of director independence and evaluation of Board effectiveness

The Nominating and Governance Committee Charter grants the Committee the authority to engage independent
counsel and other outside advisors Management under the oversight of the Nominating and Governance
Committee is responsible for establishing and maintaining system to ensure compliance with the Corporate
Governance Guidelines and the Code of Ethics and Business conduct copy of the Nominating and Governance
Committee Charter is available on our website at http//www.mirant.com

Director Nomination Process

The Nominating and Governance Committee is responsible for identifying qualified individuals to become Board
members The Nominating and Governance Committee will consider written nominations from stockholders for

director candidates if submitted in accordance with the Companys Bylaws Stockholders making director
nominee recommendation must submit written notice to the Corporate Secretary Mirant Corporation 1155
Perimeter Center West Atlanta GA 30338-54 16 Recommendations submitted for consideration by the

Nominating and Governance Committee in preparation for the 2010 Annual Meeting of Stockholders must be
received by November 27 2010 and must contain the following information the name and address of the

recommending stockholder the name and address of the person to be nominated representation that the
stockholder is holder of Mirants common stock entitled to vote at the meeting statement in support of the

10



stockholders recommendation including description of the candidates qualifications
information

regarding the candidate that would be required to be included in Proxy Statement filed in accordance with the

rules of the Securities and Exchange Commission the SEC and the candidates written signed consent to

serve if elected The Nominating and Governance Committee will evaluate candidates recommended by

stockholders based on the same criteria it uses to evaluate candidates from other sources

The Corporate Governance Guidelines as approved by the Board of Directors and posted on our website set

forth qualifications and criteria for our directors and require that the assessment of potential
candidates include

independence business and professional experience including current public company boards on which

nominee serves ability to devote sufficient time to the affairs of Mirant and characteristics of the current Board

of Directors including diversity age and skills such as financial expertise international experience and

experience in the energy industry The Nominating and Governance Committees process
includes identification

of director candidates and evaluation of the candidates based on the Corporate Governance Guidelines and the

following minimum qualifications

the highest ethics integrity and values

an outstanding personal
and professional reputation

professional experience that adds to the mix of the Board as whole

the ability to exercise independent business judgment

freedom from conflicts of interest

demonstrated leadership skills and

the willingness and ability to devote the time necessary to perform the duties and responsibilities
of

director

The Committees selection process
also provides for engagement of third party search firms interviews with

various members of the Committee the Board and management and an evaluation of each individual in the

context of the Board as whole applying the criteria that it deems appropriate
The final selection of nominees is

made by the Board of Directors

Alternatively stockholders intending to appear at our Annual Meeting of Stockholders in order to nominate

candidate for election at the meeting in cases where the Board of Directors does not intend to nominate the

candidate or where the Nominating and Governance Committee was not required to consider his or her

candidacy must comply with the requirements set forth in Article 11 Section hA of the Companys Bylaws

which may be found on our website at http//www.mirant.com

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee is composed of three members Thomas Cason John Miller and Robert Murray

Mr Cason serves as the chair of the committee Each member of the Audit Committee was appointed by the

Board of Directors on January 2006 and reappointed annually each year thereafter Upon recommendation of

the Nominating and Governance Committee the Board of Directors determined that each member of the Audit

Committee meets the independence requirements of the New York Stock Exchange SEC regulations and our

Corporate Governance Guidelines and ii is financially literate and qualifies as an audit committee financial

expert as defined in the SEC regulations The Board has adopted written charter for the Audit Committee

which is available on our website at http//www.mirant.com

The Audit Committee met five times during 2008 The Audit Committee met in executive session and had

separate private discussions with the independent registered public accountant and the Vice President of Internal

Audit at each regularly scheduled meeting The key responsibilities of the Audit Committee are

Oversight of Mirant financial reporting process and oversight of the quality and integrity of Mirant

financial statements
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Oversight of Mirants relationship with its independent registered public accountant and sole authority
and responsibility to select evaluate and where appropriate replace the independent registered public

accountant which reports directly to the Audit Committee

Pre-approval of all audit and permitted non-audit services to be provided by the independent registered

public accountant as well as the compensation fees and terms for such services

Review of the annual internal audit program major findings and recommendations resulting from
internal audits and oversight of the Vice President of Internal Audit who reports to the Audit

Committee

Review with management and the General Counsel of legal regulatory and compliance matters that

may have material impact on the financial statements or involve concerns regarding accounting or

auditing matters and establishment of procedures related to such concerns and

Review with management and the independent registered public accountant of the policies for

assessing and managing significant risks to the Company

The Audit Committee Charter grants the Audit Committee the authority to engage independent counsel and other
outside advisors Following the consideration of the qualifications of the members of the engagement team and
formal responses from the independent registered public accountant as to its independence staffing plans and
quality controls the Audit Committee selected KPMG LLP as independent registered public accountant for 2009
subject to ratification by the stockholders at the Annual Meeting
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Audit Committee Report

The Audit Committee is responsible
for overseeing the Companys financial reporting process including

supervising Mirant relationship with its independent registered public accountant KPMG LLP which reports

directly to the Committee The Audit Committee assists the Board in its oversight of the quality and integrity

of Mirants financial statements including the financial reporting process
and systems of internal control over

financial reporting ii is directly responsible
for the appointment compensation retention and oversight of the

independent registered public accountant and iii reviews the appointment replacement and compensation of

the Vice President of Internal Audit who reports to the Committee

In discharging its duties and responsibilities the Audit Committee has

reviewed and discussed with management and the independent registered public accountant Mirants

audited financial statements for the year ended December 31 2008

discussed with the independent registered public accountant the matters required to be discussed by

Statement of Auditing Standards No 61 as amended as adopted by the Public Company Accounting

Oversight Board in Rule 3200T

reviewed and discussed with management and the independent registered public accountant

managements assessment of the effectiveness of the Companys internal control over financial

reporting and the independent registered public accountants evaluation of the Companys internal

control over financial reporting

received from the independent registered public accountant formal written statement describing all

relationships with Mirant that might affect its independence as required by applicable requirements
of

the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board regarding the independent accountants

communications with the Audit Committee concerning independence and discussed with the

independent registered public accountant its independence

considered whether the provision of non-audit services is compatible with maintaining the independent

registered public accountants independence and

concluded that the independent registered public accountant is independent
from the Company and its

management

Management under the oversight of the Audit Committee is responsible
for establishing and maintaining

system of internal control over financial reporting and for preparing the Companys financial statements and

reports in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles
in the United States Management

represented to the Committee that the Companys annual financial statements were prepared in accordance with

generally accepted accounting principles in the United States

The independent registered public accountant is responsible for auditing the financial statements in accordance

with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board and expressing an opinion on the

conformity of the Companys annual financial statements to generally accepted accounting principles
in the

United States In addition the independent registered public accountant expresses an opinion on the effectiveness

of the Companys internal control over financial reporting

In reliance on the reviews and discussions noted above the Audit Committee recommended to the Board of

Directors that the audited financial statements be included in Mirants Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year

ended December 31 2008 for filing with the SEC

Submitted on March 27 2009 by the members of the Audit Committee of the Companys Board of Directors

Thomas Cason

John Miller

Robert Murray
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Audit and Non-Audit Fees

Principal Accountant Fees and Services

The following table presents fees for professional audit services and other services rendered by KPMG LLP in

thousands

2008 2007

Audit Fees $5847 $6833

Audit-Related Fees 573 297

Tax Fees
13

Total $6420 $7143

Audit fees and
expenses represent fees billed and expected to be billed for professional services rendered in

connection with audits and reviews of the 2008 and 2007 Mirant Corporation consolidated financial

statements in accordance with standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board audits of

various Mirant subsidiary financial statements required by statute or regulation and consultations on

accounting matters reflected in the financial statements

Audit-related fees represent fees billed for professional services rendered in connection with audits of

Mirants employee benefit plans audits of subsidiaries required by debt covenants document

production in connection with legal subpoenas related to various Mirant litigation matters and our

response to an SEC comment letter related to our 2007 Annual Report on Form 10-K

Tax fees represent fees billed for professional services rendered in connection with tax compliance
consultations related to tax audits and appeals and technical tax advice on rulings from taxing

authorities

Audit Committee Pre-Approval

The Audit Committee has pre-approved all audit services and permitted non-audit services provided by the

independent registered public accountant and the compensation fees and terms for such services The

Committee also has approved an Independent Auditor Policy that requires Audit Committee pie-approval of

audit services provided by the independent registered public accountant and any changes in terms and

compensation resulting from changes in audit scope company structure or other matters The Policy also requires

annual approval by the Audit Committee or its Chairman the independent registered public accountants lead

partner and Mirant Chief Financial Officer or Controller of the compensation and terms of service for any
permitted non-audit services provided by the independent registered public accountant Any proposed non-audit

services exceeding the pre-approved fee levels previously approved by the Audit Committee or its Chairman

require pie-approval by the Audit Committee or its Chairman The Controller reports quarterly to the Audit

Committee on the services performed and fees incurred by the independent registered public accountant for audit

and permitted non-audit services during the prior quarter
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Item No Ratification of Independent Registered Public Accountant

The Audit Committee of the Board appointed KPMG LLP to serve as the Companys independent registered

public accountant for the fiscal year ending December 31 2009 Although not required by our Bylaws the Board

is submitting the appointment
of KPMG LLP to our stockholders for ratification

If this proposal is not ratified at the Annual Meeting the Audit Committee will reconsider its appointment of

KPMG LLP as Mirant independent registered public accountant for 2009

Representatives
of KPMG LLP are expected to be present at the Annual Meeting will have an opportunity to

make statement if they desire to do so and will be available to respond to appropriate questions

The Board of Directors recommends vote FOR ratification of the appointment of KPMG LLP as

independent registered public accountant for 2009 under Item No
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Item No.3 Stockholder Proposal

We expect the following item to be presented by one or more stockholders at the annual meeting Following SEC
rules we are reprinting the proposal and supporting statement as they were submitted to us We take no
responsibility for them On request to the Corporate Secretary at the address listed under the Stockholder
Proposals section of this Proxy Statement we will provide the names addresses and stockholdings of the
sponsors as well as the names addresses and stockholdings of any co-sponsors

Global Warming

WHEREAS

In 2007 the Intergovernmental Panel on Climate Change found that that warming of the climate
system is

unequivocal and that man-made greenhouse gas emissions are now believed with greater than 90 percent
certainty to be the cause

In October 2007 group representing the worlds 150 scientific and engineering academies including the U.S
National Academy of Sciences issued

report urging governments to lower greenhouse gas emissions by
establishing firm and rising price for such emissions and by doubling energy research budgets to accelerate
deployment of cleaner and more efficient technologies

In October 2006 report authored by former chief economist of The World Bank Sir Nicolas Stem estimated
that climate change will cost between 5% and 20% of global domestic product if emissions are not reduced and
that greenhouse gases can be reduced at cost of

approximately 1% of global economic growth The report also
warned that the investment that takes place in the next 10-20

years will have profound effect on the climate in
the second half of this

century and in the next

In 2004 combustion of coal was responsible for
approximately 35% of all greenhouse gas emissions generated

by fossil fuels in the U.S

Seventeen U.S states have established statewide emissions reduction goals and majority of U.S states have
entered into regional initiatives to reduce emissions Two such initiatives are the Western Climate Initiative
six-state collaboration with an emissions reduction goal of 15% below 2005 levels by 2020 and the Regional
Greenhouse Gas Initiative involving nine northeastern states that aim to reduce carbon dioxide emissions from
power plants by 10% between 2009 and 2019 As of September 2007 the U.S Senate is

considering at least
seven proposals calling for national cap-and-trade system to regulate and reduce greenhouse gas emissions

In May 2007 Standard and Poors indicated that
energy efficiency is likely to emerge as major part of the

solution to climate change and warned that the global power system cant do without coal but it also continue
to bum coal in its current form

In July 2007 report Citigroup warned that Prophesies of new wave of Coal-fired generation have vaporized
while clean Coal technologies such as IGCC with carbon capture and Coal-to-Liquids remain decade away ormore and that company productivity/margins are likely to be structurally impaired by new regulatorymandates to reduce greenhouse gas emissions

RESOLVED Shareholders request report by board committee of independent directors on how
the company is

responding to rising regulatory competitive and public pressure to
significantly reduce carbon

dioxide and other emissions from the companys products and operations The report should be provided by
September 2009 at reasonable cost and omit proprietary information
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS STATEMENT IN OPPOSITION OF THE PROPOSAL

The Board of Directors recommends vote AGAINST this proposal under Item No

Mirant principal responsibility is to provide reliable and competitive electricity In doing so Mirant recognizes

the importance of minimizingthe environmental impact of our operations For example we

have underway $1 .674 billion initiative to install by 2010 emissions controls at our Maryland

facilities that will be capable of reducing emissions of sulfur dioxide nitrogen oxides and mercury by

approximately 98% 90% and 80% respectively for three of our largest coal-fired units

participate in the Regional Greenhouse Gas Initiative multi-state effort in the Northeast which calls

for the stabilization of carbon dioxide emissions at current levels from 2009 to 2015 followed by

2.5% reduction each year from 2015 to 2018

participate in the Climate Registry for our California plants

have adopted corporate Principles for Addressing Greenhouse Gases and supported global

approach to reducing emissions of all sources of carbon not just emissions from the electric sector

have supported cap and trade legislation in Congress and

recently joined the Chicago Climate Exchange voluntary greenhouse gas registry reduction and

trading system and have committed to meet annual emissions reduction targets and by 2010 to reduce

our greenhouse gas emissions by 6% below the average
of our 1998 to 2001 levels

Although there is no existing cost-effective technology to reduce emissions of carbon dioxide from power plants

fueled by coal oil or gas we are exploring ways to mitigate emissions by among other things improving the

efficiency of our plants recycling waste products like gypsum and ash and seeking offsets We think that we

have taken reasonable and practical approach to manage carbon dioxide and other emissions and have

estimated and disclosed our existing and future emissions and described our emissions reduction efforts in our

Securities and Exchange Commission filings including our recently filed Annual Report on Form 10-K We

think the proposed report would be largely duplicative of our current disclosure and we do not think that the time

and resources required to produce this report would create additional value for our stockholders

The Board of Directors therefore recommends vote AGAINST this proposal
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Executive Officers

Our executive officers are elected by the Board of Directors annually to hold office until their successors are

elected and qualified The following table sets forth information regarding the names ages titles and business

experience of the current executive officers of Mirant Additional biographical information regarding our

executive officers is available on our website at http//www.mirant.com

Name Age Position and Experience

Edward Muller 57 Chairman President and Chief Executive Officer of Mirant since 2005

President and Chief Executive Officer 1993-2000 of Edison Mission Energy

California-based independent power producer Mr Muller is also director

of Transocean Ltd

Robert Edgell 62 Executive Vice President and Chief Operating Officer of Mirant since 2006

Managing Director 2005 of Private Power International Development PTE

LTD Singapore registered private company engaged in consulting

development and equity investment in private power projects in Asia

Executive Vice President and General Manager Asia-Pacific Division 1996

___________________ 2005 of Edison Mission Energy

James laco Jr 64 Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of Mirant since 2005

Senior Vice President and President Americas Division 19982000 and

Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer 19941998 of Edison

___________________
Mission Energy

Thomas Legro 57 Senior Vice President and Controller of Mirant since 2005 Vice President

Chief Accounting Officer and Corporate Controller National Energy Gas

Transmission Inc subsidiary of Pacific Gas and Electric Inc 20012004
Vice President and Corporate Controller 19942001 Manager of Financial

Planning and Analysis 1992-1993 and Assistant Controller of Edison

__________________
Mission Energy 19901991

Linn Williams 62 Executive Vice President General Counsel and Chief Compliance Officer of

Mirant since 2005 Senior Vice President and President European Division

19982000 and Senior Vice President and General Counsel 19941998 of

___________________
Edison Mission Energy

Mr Edgells title was Executive Vice President and U.S Region Head until the completion of the sales of our

international businesses in 2007
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Executive Compensation

Compensation Discussion and Analysis

The following discussion and analysis describes the philosophy and objectives of our executive compensation

program explains the compensation decision-making process and details the individual components of total

compensation for our named executive officers in 2008 Our 2008 named executive officers are as follows

Edward Muller President and Chief Executive Officer James laco Jr Executive Vice President and

Chief Financial Officer Robert Edgell Executive Vice President and Chief Operating Officer Linn

Williams Executive Vice President General Counsel and Chief Compliance Officer and Thomas Legro

Senior Vice President and Controller

Executive Summary

Set forth below is an overview of the more detailed disclosure included in our Compensation Discussion and

Analysis

There were no material changes to our compensation objectives components and practices from 2007

to 2008

The main objectives of our compensation program are paying for performance aligning our named

executive officers interests with those of our stockholders and attracting and retaining qualified

executives

Our Compensation Committee makes all final compensation decisions regarding our named executive

officers

We target the median level of the market for all elements of compensation with the possibility of above

market short-term incentive and long-term incentive payments for superior performance In some

instances we also may set base salaries above the market median to attract and retain valuable

employees

The Compensation Committee engages compensation consultant to provide expertise on program

design and implementation Our Chief Executive Officer also provides input on compensation

programs and policies and makes recommendations to the Compensation Committee with regard to

compensation for our named executive officers other than himself

We provide the following elements of compensation for our named executive officers base salary

short-term cash incentives long-term equity-based incentives post-termination
benefits and certain

other benefits including perquisite allowances

We have employment agreements
with each of our named executive officers that govern key

compensation terms including minimum base salaries target short-term incentive levels and eligibility

to receive annual equity awards These employment agreements were entered into to attract these

executives to our Company prior to and shortly following our emergence from bankruptcy in January

2006

For 2008 the Compensation Committee assessed the compensation of our named executive officers by

benchmarking them against executive compensation market studies and peer companies

We encourage pay for performance with short-term incentive program that provides for cash

payments on an annual basis to our named executive officers and other employees based on their

individual target bonus percentages
the achievement of financial operational and strategic goals by the

Company and individual performance The 2008 Company performance goals consisted of Adjusted

EBITDA earnings before interest taxes depreciation and amortization as adjusted for certain

non-recurring items which is 2/3 of the calculation and eight operational and strategic goals which is

the remaining 1/3 of the calculation The corporate payout
factor for our short-term incentive program

in 2008 was 107% of target
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We
encourage alignment of our named executive officers interests with those of our stockholders

through the award of equity-based long-term incentive grants In 2008 the value of each award was

granted as one-third stock options and two-thirds restricted stock units that once vested must be held

until termination

Each of our named executive officers is entitled to severance and change in control payments upon
termination

pursuant to the terms of their individual employment agreements The payments generally
are based on multiple of the executive officers base salary and annual short-term incentive For

termination without cause the amounts range from multiple of one time to two times base salary and

short-term incentive For termination resulting from change in control each of our named executive

officers would receive multiple of three times his base salary and annual short-term incentive

All equity grants are made pursuant to our equity grant policy which requires that they be made during

an open trading window following quarterly release of financial results

Compensation Program Philosophy and Objectives

The Compensation Committee determines the philosophy and objectives for our compensation program which

applies to our executive officers In determining total compensation the Compensation Committee focuses on

creating pay for performance culture and strives to ensure that our compensation programs achieve the

following objectives through combination of fixed and variable cash- and equity-based elements

Performance Motivating performance by creating direct link between significant portion of the

compensation that can be earned by each named executive officer and Company performance as

measured against our financial operational and strategic goals as well as the performance of our

common stock

Alignment Aligning our named executive officers interests with those of our stockholders by
fostering stock ownership by our named executive officers and

Retention Providing competitive total compensation package thereby enabling us to attract and
retain qualified executives

Both our short-term cash incentive program and equity-based grants under our long-term incentive program
provide performance-based incentives for our named executive officers Our short-term cash incentive payments
are made at the discretion of the Compensation Committee based on the achievement of quantitative and

qualitative goals by the Company and may be adjusted up or down by the Compensation Committee for

individual performance Long-term equity-based incentive grants are made under our 2005 Omnibus Incentive

Compensation Plan The
purpose of the 2005 Omnibus Incentive Compensation Plan is to provide means

whereby employees atid directors develop sense of proprietorship and personal involvement in our

development and financial success and to encourage them to devote their best efforts to our business thereby

advancing our interests and those of our stockholders The Compensation Committee also has adopted stock

ownership guidelines for our named executive officers and certain other employees to further align their interests

with those of stockholders

Our compensation program recognizes the need to retain our key executive officers by offering total

compensation package that is competitive with the market The Compensation Committee benchmarks

components of executive compensation against several of our peer companies and by reviewing variety of

general survey data on executive compensation as described below under Compensation Assessment Using
General Survey Data and Peer Group Data In structuring our base salary and short-term and long-term
incentive programs we generally target the median level of the market with the possibility of above market

short-term incentive payments and long-term incentive payouts for superior performance In years where the

Company meets or exceeds its goals and objectives high performers may receive total cash compensation
consisting of base salary and short-term incentive ranging from the 60 75th percentile of market We may also

pay above the market median for any element of compensation in order to attract and retain executive talent
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Compensation Consultant

From 2001 to early 2008 the Compensation Committee engaged Hewitt Associates Hewitt to advise the

Committee and provide expertise on compensation strategy and program design In early 2008 the Compensation

Committee engaged Frederic Cook Co Cook to advise the Committee on compensation strategy and

program design Cook provides advice on the design of our compensation programs supplies competitive data

reviews technical provisions of program designs and advises the Committee and management on the impact of

regulatory and legislative changes on the Companys compensation programs The consultant works from time to

time with management at the request of the Compensation Committee in formulating materials and proposals

for consideration by the Committee In such instances the Senior Vice President Administration the Chair of the

Compensation Committee and the consultant work together to determine the nature and scope of the consultants

assignments

Hewitts 2008 services included preparing tally sheets outlining total compensation of our named executive

officers analysis regarding targets for 2008 under the Companys short-term incentive plan the allocation and

economic value of 2008 long-term
incentive grants consultation on 2008 executive base salaries and review of

the Companys 2008 Compensation Discussion and Analysis Cooks 2008 services included analyzing the tally

sheets previously prepared by Hewitt reviewing and recommending changes to our director compensation

program reviewing our long-term
incentive plan design for 2009 and reviewing Compensation Committee

materials prior to Committee meetings representative
of Hewitt Associates attended one Compensation

Committee meeting and representative
of Cook attended three Compensation Committee meetings in 2008

In addition to serving as consultant to the Compensation Committee until March 2008 Hewitt provided and

continues to provide actuarial and consulting services for the Companys pension programs For services

performed in 2008 Hewitt billed the Company $72493 and $237715 for compensation consulting and pension

consulting services respectively Hewitt billed the Companys pension plan $390697 for pension actuarial

services paid out of its trust funds The Compensation Committee has determined that Hewitts pension

administration work and Hewitts and Cooks work with management at the Committees request did not impair

the independence of Hewitt or Cook in their roles as compensation consultants during 2008 The Compensation

Committee determined in its annual review of compensation consultants to engage Cook as the Compensation

Committees compensation consultant for the remainder of 2008 and going forward Cook provides no other

services to the Company beyond executive and board compensation assistance as requested or approved by the

Compensation Committee

Compensation Committee Process

In determining compensation for our named executive officers the Compensation Committee evaluates general

survey data as well as company and individual performance The Committee approves
the compensation

arrangements
of all officers at the level of Senior Vice President and above In conducting its 2008 annual review

of our named executive officers compensation the Committee examined tally sheets prepared by our

compensation consultant at the time Hewitt The tally sheets outlined the comprehensive compensation for each

named executive officer in 2008 including the value of long-term incentive grants and the potential payouts

under various termination scenarios including change of control The Compensation Committee approves any

proposed changes to our compensation policies and programs and reviews those policies and programs annually

in light of our compensation philosophy
and competitive practices Each of the named executive officers has an

employment agreement with the Company described under Elements of Compensation below that specifies

minimum compensation levels that may not be reduced by the Compensation Committee without triggering

certain severance provisions contained within the employment agreement which has affected the compensation

decisions with respect to these named executive officers

Role of Chief Executive Officer and Management

Mr Muller actively participates in Compensation Committee meetings other than executive sessions of the

Committee that include discussions regarding his compensation Mr Muller attended six Compensation
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Committee meetings in 2008 He provides specific recommendations to the Compensation Committee with

regard to equity grants annual short-term incentive awards and merit increases for the named executive officers

other than himself He also provides input on other aspects of our compensation program including plan design
timing and structure of incentive grants and compensation policies The Senior Vice President Administration

also attends all Compensation Committee meetings prepares meeting materials and provides guidance to the

Committee on compensation programs and policies

Compensation Assessment Using General Survey Data and Peer Group Data

In 2006 and 2007 we benchmarked the base salary and short-term and long-term incentives for our named
executive officers against peer comparator group of 55 companies of similar revenue size including certain

industry peers compiled by Hewitt Because the results of the custom peer comparator group survey did not

differ significantly from general survey data for our industry for 2008 the Compensation Committee determined

not to request an extensive peer group data study Rather the Compensation Committee assessed the

compensation of our named executive officers by reviewing variety of general survey data on executive

compensation and analyzing executive compensation information in the proxies of six industry-specific peer

companies selected by the Compensation Committee The general surveys and peer group considered are as

follows

General Surveys on Executive Compensation

Hewitt Associates Executive Compensation Mercer Benchmark Database 2007
Database 2007

Hay Group Executive Compensation Report Towers Perrin General Industry Regression

2007 Database 2007

Industry-Specific Peer Group
AES Corporation Dynegy Inc

Calpine Corporation NRG Energy Inc

Constellation Energy Group Reliant Energy Inc

To ensure that 2008 market data from the surveys were appropriate for our size we regressed the 2008 market
data to $2 billion in revenue which is approximately half the market data revenue scope used in prior years The

regression of market data to $2 billion in revenue was primarily because of our divestiture of assets which
resulted in reduced Company revenue The companies included in the industry-specific peer group were selected

primarily based on their status as merchant generators of electricity with which we compete

We target the median market level in
determining compensation In the section Elements of Compensation below

we describe where components of named executive officer pay vary from the targeted median market level

For 2009 in reviewing bse salary levels the Compensation Committee again assessed the compensation of our

named executive officers by reviewing variety of general survey data on executive compensation and analyzed
executive compensation information in the proxies of the same six industry-specific peer companies The

Compensation Committee supplemented this data with Cooks salary band analysis which provided short and

long-term incentive compensation data based on salary levels

Elements of Compensation

In 2008 as in 2007 our named executive officers compensation consisted of base salary short-term cash

incentives long-term equity incentives benefits and perquisites

Each of the named executive officers has an employment agreement with the Company that is described in the

narrative following the table below entitled Grants of Plan-Based Awards in 2008 Each of these agreements was

approved by the Compensation Committee We utilized employment agreements to attract our named executive
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officers because they were being hired both prior to and shortly following our emergence from bankruptcy in

January 2006 The Compensation Committee concluded that employment agreements were necessary to provide

certainty to our named executive officers particularly with respect to severance benefits and change-in-control

protections

Base Salary

The Committee establishes base salary levels and considers annual salary adjustments for our executive group by

comparison to competitive market levels for their job functions as well as individual performance and internal

pay equity We think that our base salaries are set at competitive rates to attract and retain executive talent As

described above under Compensation Assessment Using General Survey Data and Peer Group Data in 2008 we

assessed the competitiveness of the compensation of our named executive officers by reviewing both general

survey data and peer group data consistent with our objective to pay at the median of market for target

performance Because we replaced most of our existing senior management in conjunction with our emergence

from bankruptcy in January 2006 we thought that it was necessary to pay base salaries ranging from the 50th to

the 75th percentile of market in order to attract the caliber of talent needed to execute demanding business plan

In late 2006 as the Company was in the process
of selling substantial portion of its assets we amended the

named executive officers employment agreements to specify minimum base salary and target bonus level to

ensure retention of these key executives

In 2007 most of our named executive officers base salaries were near the 50th percentile of the market for their

equivalent positions Mr Williams base salary was near the 75th percentile of market for his position In 2008

Messrs Edgell and lacos base salaries were between the 50th and 75th percentile of the market for their

equivalent positions and Messrs Muller Williams and Legro base salaries were near the 75th percentile of the

market for their equivalent positions The increase in relative market position of named executive salaries from

2007 to 2008 was primarily because the 2008 market data was regressed to $2 billion in revenue The regression

in revenue was necessary because the Companys revenue declined significantly from the time the named

executive officers joined Mirant because of the Companys asset sales during that period The lower revenue

scope resulted in lower comparative executive compensation market data in 2008

On February 28 2008 each of our named executive officers received an annual salary increase ranging from 2%

to 6% as provided below

Named Executive Officer 2007 Salary 2008 Salary Percentage Increase

Edward Muller $1100000 $1135000 3%

James laco Jr 470000 486000 3%

Robert Edgell
545000 556000 2%

Linn Williams 470000 486000 3%

Thomas Legro
315000 335000 6%

Small upward adjustments were made in 2008 to our named executive officers base salaries based on individual

performance as well as wish to motivate and retain such executives Generally the companywide compensation

guidelines provide that base salary increases be limited to 3% where the employees base salary is already at or

above market Mr Legros salary was adjusted upward by 6% in order to preserve
internal pay equity with

respect to other Company senior vice presidents Mr Muller provided recommendations on base salary increases

for named executive officers other than himself
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On February 25 2009 after reviewing the compensation market data for each of our named executive officers

and considering the current negative economic conditions the Compensation Committee froze salaries at 2008

levels for all of our named executive officers

Named Executive Officer 2008 Salary 2009 Salary Percentage Increase

EdwardR.MulIer $1135000 $1135000 0%
James laco Jr 486000 486000 0%
Robert Edgell 556000 556000 0%

Linn Williams 486000 486000 0%
Thomas Legro 335000 335000 0%

Short-Term Incentives

As discussed under Compensation Philosophy and Objectives pay for performance is key feature of our

compensation program We have established broad-based short-term cash incentive program in which all of our

named executive officers participate This program is designed to award participants based upon our achievement

of key operational and strategic goals that are established annually by the Compensation Committee The

Compensation Committee also has the discretion to adjust upward or downward the amounts payable under the

program to our named executive officers based on their individual performance

2008 Target Incentive Amounts

Under our short-term indentive plan annual cash bonuses are awarded taking into account an individuals target
bonus percentage percentage of such participants base salary our performance against established financial

operational and strategic goals referred to as the corporate payout factor and individual performance The

target bonus percentages for our named executive officers are set forth in their employment agreements The

target percentages and quivalent dollar amounts in 2008 are shown below The target percentages did not

change compared to 2007

Target Bonus Equivalent Dollar
Named Executive Officer Percentage Amount

Edward Muller 100% $1135000
James laco Jr 65% 315900
Robert Edgell 65% 361400

Linn Williams 65% 315900
Thomas Legro 50% 167500

2008 Performance Goals

The Compensation Committee approves the short-term incentive plan goals at the beginning of each calendar

year after considering managements recommendations In 2008 two-thirds of the corporate payout factor was

dependent on achieving Adjusted EBITDA target We think that Adjusted EBITDA is an appropriate financial

measure because it provides insight into the overall health of our earnings The level of Adjusted EBITDA
necessary to earn 50% iOO% and 200% of the target payout under the short-term incentive plan was set at the

beginning of 2008 taking into consideration our projected Adjusted EBITDA under our 2008 operating plan The

Adjusted EBITDA target amounts were as follows 50% of target $750 million threshold 100% of target

$900 million and 200% of target $1 .025 billion maximum For the Adjusted EBITDA portion of the

corporate payout amounts between the threshold and target and between the target and maximum are based on

interpolated performance between the specified levels

The remaining one-third of the corporate payout factor was based on achieving the following eight operational
and strategic goals and metrics

top quartile safety performance based on recordable injury rates
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top quartile safety performance based on lost time rates

top quartile environmental performance based on number of incidents

87% commercial availability measure that reflects the percentage
of gross margin operating

revenue less cost of fuel electricity and other products that was captured through unit availability

level of contract availability at our California plants of all three must be met to achieve target or

maximum

Pittsburg 92%

Contra Costa 92%

Potrero 86%

on-budget and on-schedule performance at year end of our program to add environmental controls at

our Maryland plants

progress
toward developing our business in California and

resolution of issues associated with the operation of our Potomac River plant

If pre-established
levels of exceptional performance are met with respect to the environmental safety or

commercial and contract availability targets that goal may be counted twice toward the achievement of the

operational
and strategic portion of the corporate payout factor The target amounts for the strategic and

operational goals are as follows 50% of target
achievement of four goals threshold 100% of target

achievement of five goals and 200% of target
achievement of six goals maximum

The short-term incentive plan goals are set at levels deemed by the Compensation Committee with input from

management to be achievable with strong performance by all employees Generally the Committee sets the

minimum target and maximum levels such that the relative difficulty of achieving the target level is consistent

from year to year

2008 Actual Performance and Incentive Award Payouts

Following completion of the annual financial audit process the Compensation Committee assesses our

achievement of the operational and strategic goals and metrics under the short-term incentive plan and makes

award decisions Our 2008 Adjusted EBITDA used for purposes
of the short-term incentive payment calculation

was $782 million Adjusted EBITDA earnings before interest taxes depreciation and amortization as adjusted

for certain non-recurring items is the same measure reported in our 2008 annual earnings press
release In 2008

we achieved goals one three four seven and eight identified above We achieved exceptional performance with

respect to our environmental goal with the result that it was counted twice pursuant to the pre-established 2008

program described above for total of six strategic and operational goals being achieved This overall

performance resulted in corporate payout factor of 107% of target

The short-term incentive payments may be adjusted by the Compensation Committee in its discretion for

individual performance In assessing Mr Mullers individual performance for purposes
of his short-term

incentive payout the Compensation Committee met with him in an executive session in January 2008 to discuss

his individual performance In February 2009 they again met with him in executive session to review his

performance Mr Muller meets with the other named executive officers to assess their performance and makes

recommendation to the Compensation Committee with respect to their individual short-term incentive payouts

For 2008 the Compensation Committee did not make an adjustment to Mr Mullers short-term incentive

payment based on his individual performance and his short-term incentive payment remained the same as it was

in 2007 There was no significant adjustment
for individual performance to the other named executive officers

short-term incentive payouts in 2008 See the 2008 Summary Compensation Table for the actual amounts earned

by our named executive officers under the short-term incentive plan
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2009 Incentive Award Program

Our 2009 short-term incentive goals are based on the same structure utilized in 2008 with an Adjusted EBITDA
goal representing two-thirds of the corporate payout factor and operational and strategic goals comprising the

other one-third The target bonus percentages for our named executive officers have not changed The Adjusted
EBITDA target amounts are as follows 50% of target $740 million threshold 100% of

target $875 million

and 200% of target $1.0 billion maximum The remaining one-third of the corporate payout factor will be

dependent upon achieving the following nine operational and strategic goals

top quartile safety performance based on recordable injury rates

top quartile safety performance based on lost time rates

top quartile environmental performance based on number of incidents

88% commerºial availability

level of contract availability at our California plants that results in revenue contribution of at least

$116 million

on-budget and on-schedule performance at year end of our program to add environmental controls at

our Maryland plants

implementation of solution for ash management at our Maryland plants

progress toward enhancing our business in California and

progress toward enhancing our Kendall cogeneration station

If certain levels of exceptional performance are met with respect to the first four goals above regarding safety
environmental or commercial availability targets that goal may be counted twice toward the achievement of the

operational and strategic portion of the corporate payout factor The Compensation Committee may in its

discretion award partial credit for the partial achievement of goal The target amounts for the strategic and

operational goals are as follows 50% of target achievement of five goals threshold 100% of target

achievement of six goals and 200% of target achievement of seven goals maximum

Long-Term Incentives

All long-term incentive grants are issued under our 2005 Omnibus Incentive Compensation Plan We utilized

stock options and restricted stock units for our 2008 long-term incentive grants to executive officers with

two-thirds of the economic value of the grants delivered as restricted stock units and one-third of the economic

value delivered as stoek options In determining to use such components and in determining the relative

allocation the Committee weighed the effectiveness and the perceived value of such grants by participants

against their associated compensation expense The Committee thinks the current allocation of long-term
incentive grants including the larger weighting of restricted stock units provides both an important retention

incentive for our named executive officers and aligns compensation with maintenance and growth of stockholder

value by requiring that restricted stock units be held by named executive officers until termination The 2008
awards vest ratably over three years and delivery of shares for vested restricted stock units for our named
executive officers is deferred until termination

The Compensation Committee approved the 2008 annual long-term incentive grants on March 2008 The

Compensation Committee approves the economic value dollar-denominated of the equity compensation for

each named executive officer and that economic value is converted on the grant date into the equivalent number
of restricted stock units and stock options based on the allocation outlined above In determining the economic
value of the grants the Committee used the 50th percentile market equivalent economic value for employees at

companies in Hewitts general industry comparator group where long-term incentives are prevalent component
of pay As result of internal equity considerations among our named executive officers the Committee
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approved 2008 long-term incentive grant for Messrs Taco Legro and Williams that was between the 50th and

75th percentile of market for their positions Mr Edgell 2008 long-term incentive grant was slightly below the

50th percentile of market for his position Mr Mullers 2008 long-term incentive grant was determined by

reviewing market data averages of long-term incentives as percentage of salary for his position His 2008 long-

term incentive grant of 300% of base salary was slightly above the average percentage indicated by market data

of 288% of base salary but consistent with prior years grants of 300% of base salary

2008 Restricted Stock Unit Grants

The Compensation Committee utilizes restricted stock units in part because such grants align the executives

incentives with the interests of stockholders Restricted stock units are not transferable and significant portion

of their value derives from increases in our stock price The following chart summarizes the grants that we made

to our named executive officers in 2008 and the alignment of these grants with stockholder returns

Grant Number Grant Date Fair Market Value Market Value

Named Executive Officer Date of Units Value at 12-31-08 at 2-25-09

Edward Muller 3/7/2008 61318 $2269992 $1157071 $829633

James Taco 3/7/2008 17504 647998 330300 $236829

Robert Edgell
3/7/2008 20025 741326 377872 $270938

Linn Williams 3/7/2008 17504 647998 330300 $236829

Thomas Legro 3/7/2008 7360 272467 138883 99581

Grant date fair value is the total amount we will expense for the award in accordance with generally

accepted accounting principles including Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No 123R Share-

Based Payment FAS 23R In accordance with FAS 23R we will record this expense pro rata over the

3-year vesting period This is the amount reported in the Grants of Plan-Based Awards in 2008 table below

The amount reported in the 2008 Summary Compensation Table is pro rata portion of this amount plus

pro rata portion of the fair value of awards made in prior years to the extent the vesting period occurred in

2008

Based on closing market price of our common stock of $18.87 as of December 31 2008

Based on closing market price of our common stock of $13.53 as of February 25 2009 the date the

Compensation Committee met to determine certain compensation for our named executive officers for 2009

2008 Option Grants

The Compensation Committee utilizes stock options in part because such grants align the executives incentives

with the interests of stockholders The options generally are not transferable and have value only to the extent

that our stock price increases over the level at the time of the grant The following chart summarizes the grants

that we made to our named executive officers in 2008 and the relationship of the option exercise price on the

grant date to the Companys stock price on the dates noted

Grant Number Exercise Stock Price Stock Price

Named Executive Officer Date of Options Price at 12-31-08 at 2-25-09

Edward Muller 3/7/2008 130742 $37.02 $18.87 $13.53

James laco 3/7/2008 37322 $37.02 $18.87 $13.53

Robert M.Edgell 3/7/2008 42698 $37.02 $18.87 $13.53

Linn Williams 3/7/2008 37322 $37.02 $18.87 $13.53

Thomas Legro
3/7/2008 15693 $37.02 $18.87 $13.53

Closing market price of our common stock as of December 31 2008

Closing market price of our common stock as of February 25 2009 the date the Compensation Committee

met to determine certain compensation for our named executive officers for 2009

See the Grants of Plan-Based Equity Awards in 2008 table below for information on option and restricted stock

unit grants to our named executive officers in 2008
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2006 Special Bonus Plan and Special Equity Grants

In November 2006 the Compensation Committee approved the implementation of the 2006 Special Bonus Plan

to reward participants for successful completion of our planned business and asset sales announced in July and

August 2006 as well as to provide retention incentive for certain participants Participants in the 2006 Special

Bonus Plan included approximately 125 U.S employees representing 7% of the U.S employee population at

level of Senior Vice President or below who were considered critical to our operation Mr Legro was

participant in the 2006 Special Bonus Plan

Our named executive officers at that time which did not include Mr Legro did not participate in the 2006

Special Bonus Plan In lieu of their participation in the 2006 Special Bonus Plan the Compensation Committee

approved special equity grants to those named executive officers under the 2005 Omnibus Incentive

Compensation Plan to reward them for successful completion of our planned business and asset sales

Both the 2006 Special Bonus Plan awards and the special equity grants to our named executive officers were

structured to vest and become non-forfeitable on June 30 2008 if the following conditions were met by
December 31 2007 the achievement of an established threshold value from the planned sales of our

Philippine and Caribbean businesses and certain U.S natural gas-fired assets and the completion of the

planned sale of our Philippine business and receipt of 65% of the threshold values from the planned sales of the

Caribbean business and the U.S natural gas-fired assets On September 12 2007 the Committee affirmed that

the conditions to vesting other than the passage of time for the 2006 Special Bonus Plan and the special equity

grants had been met Mr Legro received an award pursuant to the 2006 Special Bonus Plan of $1.1 million

consisting of $830000 in cash and the equivalent of $270000 in deferred restricted stock units His cash bonus

award is set forth in the 2008 Summary Compensation Table and the deferred restricted stock units which vested

on June 30 2008 are included in Option Exercises and Stock Vested in 2008 table below

The special equity grants to our named executive officers were structured with an economic value equal to three

times the executives base salary These awards were granted as 50% stock options and 50% restricted stock

units The options expire on November 13 2009 Delivery of shares for the vested restricted stock units is

deferred until employment terminates The option grants for each named executive officer are included in the

table below entitled Outstanding Equity Awards at 2008 Fiscal Year End and the deferred restricted stock units

which vested on June 30 2008 are included in the Option Exercises and Stock Vested in 2008 table below

Benefits

Company benefits available to all of our employees including our named executive officers include health and

welfare dental prescription drugs paid vacation life insurance accidental death and dismemberment short term

disability and long-term disability All employees including our named executive officers also are entitled to

participate in our qualified 401k program pursuant to which we match 75% of the first 6% contributed We
also provide for both 3% quarterly fixed contribution and an annual discretionary profit sharing contribution to

all employees who are not accruing defined benefit pension or who are not subject to collective bargaining

agreement based on our performance against our short-term incentive goals The discretionary contribution for

2008 was 3.28% of base salary and short-term incentive

Senior executives including our named executive officers participate in nonqualified Supplemental Benefit

Savings Plan The Supplemental Benefit Savings Plan is intended to compensate for IRS limitations on

compensation for company matching and profit sharing contributions to qualified 401k plan The

Compensation Committee thinks that this plan is market-competitive

Senior executives including our named executive officers also participate in nonqualified deferred

compensation plan The nonqualified deferred compensation plan allows senior executives to defer certain

amounts of base salary and short-term incentive compensation Please see Impact of Regulatory Requirements
below for discussion of Regulation 409A and its effect on our nonqualified deferred compensation plan
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Perquisites

We have perquisite policy that provides for an annual allowance to each of our named executive officers The

allowance amounts are pre-tax and are fully taxable to our executives For our named executive officers two

tiers of annual perquisite allowance are provided Level $21000 and Level II $18000 Our Chief

Executive Officer receives Level perquisite allowance and each of our other named executive officers

receives the Level II allowance The allowances are paid in monthly increments and are intended to compensate

executives for financial and estate planning income tax return preparation and personal club memberships We

also provide executive physicals to these officers and relocation benefits when necessary
We think these

perquisite levels are competitive in the market while allowing more flexibility in choosing service provider
and

minimizing the administrative burden of such program

Post-Termination Compensation

The post-termination
benefits for our named executive officers are provided

in their individual employment

agreements The terms of those agreements including those related to severance and change in control were

negotiated in conjunction with the hiring of our named executive officers

Severance and Change in Control

All of our named executive officers have employment agreements
that provide specified change in control and

severance benefits These provisions were included because of the prevalence of such programs in the market and

because we thought the protections were necessary to recruit and retain executive talent

In the event Mr Muller is terminated by us without cause he will receive two times his base salary plus two

times his target short-term incentive in addition to certain other benefits further outlined below under Potential

Payments Upon Termination If terminated without cause Mr laco Mr Edgell and Mr Williams each would

receive 1.5 times his base salary plus 1.5 times his target
short-term incentive and Mr Legro would receive one

time his base salary plus one time his target short-term incentive in addition to certain benefits outlined below

under Potential Payments Upon Termination If any of our named executive officers is terminated in conjunction

with change in control he will receive three times his base salary plus three times the higher of his target short-

term incentive or his actual annual short-term incentive for the year preceding
the change in control Termination

of any of our named executive officers without cause or in the event of change in control will normally result in

the immediate vesting of all of his outstanding stock options and restricted stock units See Potential Payments

Upon Termination below for the definition of change in control under our executives award agreements and

further discussion of amounts payable to our named executive officers upon termination See Employment

Agreements in the narrative discussion below the Grants of Plan-Based Awards in 2008 table for description of

the vesting terms of long-term
incentive awards for our named executive officers in the event of termination or

change in control

Restrictive Covenants

All of our employees enter into confidentiality and intellectual property agreements and our named executive

officers are also subject to non-solicitation non-disparagement and non-compete provisions

Impact of Regulatory Requirements

Several regulatory requirements have an impact on certain of our compensation decisions Section 162m of the

Internal Revenue Code of 1986 as amended generally denies publicly traded company federal income tax

deduction for compensation in excess of $1 million paid to certain of its executive officers unless the amount of

such excess is payable based solely upon the attainment of objective performance criteria We have undertaken to

qualify certain components of our incentive compensation to executive officers for the performance exception to

non-deductibility However in appropriate circumstances it may be necessary or appropriate to pay
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compensation or make special incentive or retention awards that do not meet the performance-based exception
and therefore may not be deductible under Section 162m In 2008 $148597 of compensation to our executive

officers was not deductible under the provisions of Section 162m

We account for stock-based compensation under FAS 123R which requires companies to recognize in the

income statement the grant-date fair value of stock options and other equity-based compensation issued to

employees All of the stock-based awards granted in 2008 qualified for equity accounting treatment under FAS
23R We use the Black-Scholes option-pricing model to measure the grant-date fair value of our stock options

Historically for determining the number of stock options to grant to employees we have used smoothed
Black-Scholes volatility rate Our reason for using smoothed volatility rate was that volatility one of the

major inputs in the Black-Scholes calculation can fluctuate greatly on given trading day which can have

unintended consequences for purposes of determining the size of employee option grants For 2008 in order to

add more precision to our grant methodology we began using volatility rate in the Black-Scholes calculation

based on the average volatility of our traded options during the 45 trading days immediately preceding and
inclusive of the grant date in order to eliminate any perception of

subjectivity in determining option award sizes

Equity Grant Policy

The Equity Grant Policy adopted by the Compensation Committee requires that both annual equity grants and

special equity grants must be made during an open trading window which normally follows our quarterly

earnings releases The annual equity awards specifically are to be made at Compensation Committee meeting
scheduled during the first week of the open trading window following the release of our financial results for the

previous fiscal year The Equity Grant Policy applies to any compensatory equity grant made to employees

including our named executive officers The Equity Grant Policy requires that the grant date of any equity award

approved by the Compensation Committee will be the date of the meeting at which the award was approved and

the grant price will be the closing price of our common stock on the New York Stock Exchange on such date All

of our 2008 long-term incentive awards complied with the terms of our Equity Grant Policy

Stock Ownership Guidelines

Stock ownership guidelines approved by the Compensation Committee in November 2006 require that our

named executive officers certain other corporate officers and our Board of Directors own certain levels of our

stock Those levels of ownership must be attained over five years from the date of implementation of the

guidelines or if the individual did not hold the relevant office at that time the date the individual becomes

director or an officer at that level The stock ownership guidelines are set forth below

Position
Multiple of Annual Salary

Chief Executive Officer 500%

Executive Vice President 400%

Senior Vice President 300%

Vice President 100%

Board of Directors 3x annual LTI Grant

Shares counted toward satisfaction of the guidelines outlined above include shares owned outright vested restricted

stock units or restricted shares vested stock options at two-thirds of their value and phantom shares/units As of

March 2009 due to the significant decline in the price of our common stock as result of challenging market

conditions none of our named executive officers had met the share ownership requirements under the guidelines

Generally our named executive officers have until November 2011 to reach these share ownership goals At its

most recent meeting the Compensation Committee discussed our officers current stock ownership levels and the

impact of the recent stock price decline on their compliance with these guidelines The Compensation Committee

plans to continue to monitor the appropriateness of the multiples and the timeline for compliance
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Compensation Committee Report

We have reviewed and discussed with management this Compensation Discussion and Analysis to be filed

pursuant to the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 Based on these reviews and discussions we recommended to

the Board of Directors that the Compensation Discussion and Analysis be included in the Proxy Statement

Submitted on March 27 2009 by the members of the Compensation Committee of the Companys Board of

Directors

Thomas Johnson

Pete Correll

William Thacker
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2008 SUMMARY COMPENSATION TABLE

The following table sets forth information regarding annual compensation for our Chief Executive Officer

Chief Financial Officer and our three other most highly compensated executive officers for 2008 together our

named executive officers

Non-Equity
Stock Option Incentive Plan All Other

Name and Awards Awards Compensation Compensation
Principal Position Salary Total

Edward Muller 2008 1127597 2829047 3258788 1200000 222131 8637563
Chairman President and Chief 2007 1079616 2572928 3537071 1200000 179956 8569571
Executive Officer 2006 1000000 2044445 4138173 1250000 113469 8546087

James Taco Jr 2008 482618 906420 1064031 338100 95456 2886625
Executive Vice President Chief 2007 465925 913383 1242278 335000 82477 3039063
Financial Officer 2006 450000 632928 1265443 360000 94944 2803315

Robert Edgell 2008 534810 997840 1144060 386700 105585 3168995
Executive Vice President and Chief 2007 535828 988714 1326088 386500 96806 3333936

Operating Officer 2006 478846 668955 1336815 400000 263026 3147642

Linn Williams 2008 480748 873087 994938 338100 95400 2782273
Executive Vice President and General 2007 465925 877886 1168700 335000 82242 2929753
Counsel 2006 450000 568698 1132308 360000 120325 2631331

Thomas Legro 2008 330771 292291 198001 1018000 66102 1905165
Senior Vice President and Controller

Mr Legro first became named executive officer in 2008 SEC rules require that only his 2008 compensation be

included in the table

Reflects the dollar amount recognized for financial statement reporting purposes in accordance with FAS 23R for

restricted stock units awarded under the 2005 Omnibus Incentive Compensation Plan in 2006 2007 and 2008

Assumptions used in the calculation of these amounts are included in Stock-Based Compensation in Item

Managements Discussion and Analysis of Results of Operations and Financial Condition in the Companys Annual

Report on Form 10-K filed with the SEC on February 27 2009

Grant Date Fair Value vs Market Value of Stock Awards Due to the decline in the market price of our common stock if

the stock awards for which expense is shown in this column were valued in accordance with the market value of the

Companys common stock as of December 31 2008 or February 25 2009 rather than the FAS 23R expense their

valuations would differ These differences are reflected in the supplemental table below for each named executive officer

as of December 31 2008 and February 25 2009

Value of Stock Awards vs FAS 123R Expense supplemental table

Based on Total FAS 123R Expense Based on 12-31-08 Market Value Based on 2-25-09 Market Value

Fiscal 2008 Prior Fiscal 2008 Prior Fiscal 2008 Prior

Grants Grants Total Grants Grants Total Grants Grants Total

Edward Muller $2269992 $7700173 $9970165 $1157071 $5117299 $6274370 $829633 $3669160 $4498793
James Taco 647998 $2524750 $3172748 330300 $1680543 $2010843 $236829 $1204968 $1441797
RobertM Edgell 741326 $2741534 $3482860 377872 $1813879 $2191751 $270938 $1300571 $1571509

Linn Williams 647998 $2391416 $3039414 330300 $1579268 $1909568 $236829 $1132353 $1369182
Thomas Legro 272467 779374 $1051841 138883 496300 635183 99581 355853 455434

Based on closing stock price of $18.87 on December 31 2008

Based on closing stock price of $13.53 on February 25 2009 the date the Compensation Committee met to determine

certain compensation for our named executive officers for 2009

Reflects total FAS 123R expense that will be incurred over the vesting period of the stock award

For 2008 reflects the dollar amount recognized for financial statement reporting purposes in accordance with FAS 23R
for stock options granted under the 2005 Omnibus Incentive Compensation Plan in 2006 2007 and 2008 Assumptions
used in the calculation of these amounts are included in Stock-Based Compensation in Item Managements
Discussion and Analysis of Results of Operations and Financial Condition in the Companys Annual Report on Form
10-K filed with the SEC on February 27 2009
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Grant Date Fair Value vs Market Value of Option Awards Due to the decline in the market price of our common stock if the

valuation for fiscal 2008 expense for the options for which expense is shown in this column was based on the intrinsic value

of the award calculated as the difference between the value of the option based upon the share price of our common stock as

of the market close on December 31 2008 of $18.87 and February 25 2009 of $13.53 and the option exercise price rather

than the FAS 23R expense reflected in the 2008 Summary Compensation Table all of the options would be out of the

money and have no intrinsic value These amounts are reflected in the supplemental table below for each named executive

officer as of December 31 2008 and February 25 2009

Value of Option Awards vs FAS 123R Expense supplemental table

Intrinsic Intrinsic

Grant Date Total Value of Value of

Share Price Fair Value Options Grant as of Grant as of FY08 Expense

Grant Date at Grant Date per Share Granted 12-31-08 2/25/09 per FAS 123R

Edward Muller... 1/13/2006 $24.64 $10.22 405844 $0 $0 $1036931

2/17/2006 $25.05 $10.38 399202 $0 $0 $1035929

11/13/2006 $28.89 6.08 300000 $0 $0 572852

3/8/2007 $37.71 8.46 96261 $0 $0 271456

3/7/2008 $37.02 9.50 130742 $0 $0 341620

$3258788

James laco 1/13/2006 $24.64 $10.22 121753 $0 $0 311079

2/17/2006 $25.05 $10.38 119760 $0 $0 310777

11/13/2006 $28.89 6.08 140000 $0 $0 267331

3/8/2007 $37.71 8.46 27420 $0 $0 77324

3/7/2008 $37.02 9.50 37322 $0 $0 97520

$1064031

RobertM.Edgell 1/13/2006 $24.64 $10.22 128517 $0 $0 328361

2/17/2006 $25.05 $10.38 126414 $0 $0 328044

11/13/2006 $28.89 6.08 150000 $0 $0 286426

3/8/2007 $37.71 8.46 31795 $0 $0 89662

3/7/2008 $37.02 9.50 42698 $0 $0 111567

$1144060

Linn Williams .. 1/13/2006 $24.64 $10.22 108225 $0 $0 276515

2/17/2006 $25.05 $10.38 106454 $0 $0 276248

11/13/2006 $28.89 6.08 140000 $0 $0 267331

3/8/2007 $37.71 8.46 27420 $0 $0 77324

3/7/2008 $37.02 9.50 37322 $0 $0 97520

994938

Thomas Legro 1/13/2006 $24.64 $10.22 27056 $0 $0 69128

2/17/2006 $25.05 $10.38 26613 $0 $0 69061

3/8/2007 $37.71 8.46 10567 $0 $0 28617

3/7/2008 $37.02 9.50 15693 $0 $0 31195

198001

Option grant date fair value per share is based on Black-Scholes pricing model using assumptions in the

calculation of these amounts included in the audited financial statements contained in our fiscal 2008 annual report

Based on closing stock price of $18.87 on December 31 2008

Based on closing stock price of $13.53 on February 25 2009 the date the Compensation Committee met to

determine certain compensation for our named executive officers for 2009

Reflects values included under the Option Awards column of the 2008 Summary Compensation Table The fiscal

2008 expense in accordance with FAS 123R is generally calculated as follows total options per vesting tranche

multiplied by the option grant date fair value per
share and divided by the number of months for the respective

vesting periods equals expense per month
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Reflects amounts paid for performance under the Companys short-term incentive program Payments for 2008 were

approved by the Companys Compensation Committee at its February 25 2009 meeting and if not deferred by the

named executive officer were paid on March 2009 Mr Legros amount also includes $830000 for the cash portion of

his award under the 2006 Special Bonus Plan See Compensation Discussion and Analysis Performance-Based

Compensation above for further discussion of 2008 performance goals and payments under this program

For 2008 this amount reflects the following for each named executive officer

An annual perquisite allowance for financial and estate planning income tax preparation and personal club

memberships Mr Muller received perquisite allowance of $21000 Messrs laco Edgell Williams and Legro
each received perquisite allowance of $18000

Matching and profit sharing contributions by the Company to each named executive officer under the Companys
401k Plan and Supplemental Benefit Savings Plans The matching contribution under the 401k plan represents

75% of their eligible contributions In 2008 each named executive officer received matching contribution of

$10350 In 2008 each named executive officer received profit sharing contribution to their 401k account in the

amount of $14460 In 2008 contributions were made to the non-qualified Supplemental Benefit Savings Plan of

named executive officers in the following amounts Mr Muller $173999 Mr laco $49219 Mr Edgell

$59210 Mr Williams $49163 and Mr Legro $23034
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GRANTS OF PLAN-BASED AWARDS IN 2008

The following table sets forth information with respect to stock awards granted during fiscal year ended

December 31 2008 to each of our named executive officers and estimated payouts for 2008 under our short-term

incentive program

Estimated Estimated Estimated

Possible Possible Possible

Payouts Payouts Payouts Stock Option
Grant

Under Under Under Awards Awards Grant Date

Non-Equity Non-Equity Non-Equity Number Number Date Fair

Incentive Incentive Incentive of of Exercise Fair Value

Plan Plan Plan Shares Securities or Base Value of of

Awards Awards Awards of Stock Underlying Price of Stock Option

Grant or Units Options Awards Awards Awards

Name Date Threshold Target Maximum $/Sh

Edward Muller 567500 1135000 2270000 ______ ________ ______ _______ _______

3/7/2008
_________ __________ __________

61318
________

37.02 2269992
_______

3/7/2008
_________ __________ __________ _______

130742 37.02
________

1242049

James Taco Jr 157950 315900 631800
_______ _________ ______ ________ _______

3/7/2008
__________ __________ ___________

17504
_________

37.02 647998
_______

___________________
3I7/2008

__________ __________ ___________ _______
37322 37.02

________
354559

Robert Edgell 180700 361400 722800
_______ ________ ______ ________ _______

3/7/2008
_________ __________ __________

20025
_________

37.02 741326
_______

__________________
3fl/20085

_________ __________ __________ _______
42698 37.02

________
405631

Linn Williams 157950 315900 631800
_______ _________ ______ ________ _______

3/7/2008
__________ __________ ___________

17504
_________

37.02 647998
_______

3/7/2008
__________ __________ ___________ _______

37322 37.02
________

354559

Thomas Legro 83750 167500 335000
_______ _________ ______ ________ _______

3/7/2008
__________ __________ ___________

7360
_________

37.02 272467
_______

___________________
3/7/2008

__________ __________ ___________ _______
15693 37.02

________
149084

Represents the total grant date fair value of restricted stock awards granted during 2008 calculated in

accordance with FAS 123R

Represents the total grant date fair value of option awards granted during 2008 calculated in accordance

with FAS 23R using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model

Represents threshold target and maximum level payouts for 2008 under the short-term incentive program

For actual amounts paid under the short-term incentive program for 2008 see Non-Equity Incentive Plan

Compensation under the 2008 Summary Compensation Table above

Restricted stock units were granted on March 2008 under our 2005 Omnibus Incentive Compensation

Plan The restricted stock units vest ratably over three years and delivery of shares is deferred until

termination

Stock options were granted on March 2008 under our 2005 Omnibus Incentive Compensation Plan The

stock options vest ratably over three years
and expire on March 2013

Employment Agreements

Mirant has entered into employment agreements with each of the named executive officers The agreements have

three-year terms and continue through late 2008 or early 2009 After the three year term the agreements are to be

automatically extended in one-year increments unless we give prior notice of termination All of the agreements

have been automatically extended for the first one-year period The compensation payable
under each

employment agreement is discussed below Certain amounts are paid immediately if the employee dies becomes

disabled or is terminated without cause See Potential Payments Upon Termination below for further discussion

of those payments The Board has sole responsibility for administering these agreements
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Edward Muller Employment Agreement

Effective September 30 2005 Mirant entered into an employment agreement with Mr Muller This agreement

provides for compensation and benefits during the three-year term of the agreement with automatic successive

one-year renewals Under the terms of the agreement Mr Mullers initial base salary was $1 million In 2007
Mr Mullers base salary was $1.1 million Effective March 2008 Mr Mullers base salary was increased to

$1.1 35 million In addition Mr Mullers target short-term incentive level during the term of his employment was

to be no less than 100% of his base salary with maximum of two times the target Mr Mullers employment

agreement specifies that long-term incentive grants will be governed by the terms of specific award agreements
Those agreements are discussed below under Stock Award Agreements Mr Mullers long-term incentive grants
for 2008 are set forth above under Grants of Plan-Based Awards in 2008 For description of potential payments
to Mr Muller upon termination or change in control see Post-Termination Compensation under Compensation
Discussion and Analysis above

James laco Jr Employment Agreement

Effective November 2005 Mirant entered into an employment agreement with Mr Eaco The agreement

provides for compensation and benefits during its three-year term with automatic successive one-year renewals
Under the terms of the agreement Mr lacos initial base salary was $450000 In 2007 his base salary was

$470000 Effective March 2008 Mr lacos base salary was increased to $486000 Mr lacos target short-

term incentive level during the term of his employment will be no less than 65% of base salary with maximum
of two times the target Mr lacos employment agreement specifies that long-term incentive grants will be

governed by the terms of specific award agreements Those agreements are discussed below under Stock Award
Agreements Mr laco equity grants for 2008 are set forth above under Grants of Plan-Based Awards in 2008
For description of potential payments to Mr laco upon termination or change in control see Post-

Termination Compensation under Compensation Discussion and Analysis above

Robert Edge/I Employment Agreement

Effective January 2006 Mirant entered into an employment agreement with Mr Edgell The
agreement

provides for compensation and benefits during its three-year term with automatic successive
one-year renewals

Under the terms of the agreement Mr Edgells initial base salary was $500000 In 2007 his base salary was
$545000 Effective March 2008 Mr Edgells base salary was increased to $556000 Mr Edgells target

short-term incentive level during the term of his employment will be no less than 65% of his base salary with

maximum of two times the target Mr Edgells employment agreement specifies that long-term incentive grants
will be governed by the terms of specific award agreements Those agreements are discussed below under Stock

Award Agreements Mr Edgells long-term incentive grants for 2008 are set forth above under Grants of Plan-

Based Awards in 2008 For description of potential payments to Mr Edgell upon termination or change in

control see Post-Termination Compensation under Compensation Discussion and Analysis above

Linn Williams Employment Agreenent

Effective November 2005 Mirant entered into an employment agreement with Mr Williams The agreement

provides for compensation and benefits during its three-year term with automatic successive
one-year renewals

Under the terms of the agreement Mr Williamss initial base salary was $450000 In 2007 his base salary was
$470000 Effective March 2008 Mr Williams base salary was increased to $486000 Mr Williamss target

short-term incentive level during the term of his employment will be no less than 65% of base salary with

maximum of two times the target Mr Williamss employment agreement specifies that long-term incentive

grants will be governed by the terms of specific award agreements Those agreements are discussed below under

Stock Award Agreements Mr Williamss long-term incentive grants for 2008 are set forth above under Grants of
Plan-Based Awards in 2008 For description of potential payments to Mr Williams upon termination or

change in control see Post-Termination Compensation under Compensation Discussion and Analysis above
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Thomas Legro Employment Agreement

Effective December 2005 Mirant entered into an employment agreement with Mr Legro The agreement

provided for compensation and benefits during its three-year term with automatic successive one-year renewals

Under the terms of the agreement Mr Legro initial base salary was $300000 in 2006 In 2007 his base salary

was increased to $315000 In 2008 his base salary was increased to $335000 Mr Legros target short-term

incentive level during the term of his employment will be no less than 50% of base salary with maximum of

two times the target Mr Legros employment agreement specified
that long-term

incentive grants
would be

governed by the terms of specific award agreements Those agreements are discussed below under Stock Award

Agreements Mr Legros long-term incentive grants for 2008 are set forth above under Grants of Plan-Based

Awards in 2008 For description of potential payments to Mr Legro upon termination or change in control

see Post-Termination Compensation under Compensation Discussion and Analysis above

Stock Award Agreements

The 2008 long-term incentive grants of stock options and restricted stock units were made under our 2005

Omnibus Incentive Compensation Plan and the terms of the grants are included in specific award agreements
to

our named executive officers If any dividends or other distributions are paid on the Companys common stock

while the restricted stock units are outstanding the dollar amount or fair value of such distributions with respect

to the number of common shares underlying the units will be converted into additional restricted stock units

based on the fair market value of the common stock on the date of distribution The stock options do not include

any right to receive dividend or distribution amounts on the common stock prior to exercise For further

discussion of the terms of these awards see Long-Term Incentive Grants under the Compensation Discussion

and Analysis above
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OUTSTANDING EQUITY AWARDS AT 2008 FISCAL YEAR-END

The following table sets forth information regarding the unexercised options and unvested restricted stock units

held by our named executive officers as of December 31 2008

_________________________ I__________ _____________ Option Awards Stock Awards

Market

Value of

Number of Number of Shares or

Securities Shares or Units of

Number of Underlying Units of Stock

Securities Unexercised Stock That That Have
Underlying Options Option Option Have Not Not
Unexercised Unvested Exercise Expiration Vested Vested

Name Grant Date Options Vested Price Date

Edward Muller 1/13/2006 304383 101461 24.64 1/13/2016 20292 382910

2/17/2006 299401 99801 2505 2/17/2016 19960 376645

11/13/2006 300000 28.89 11/13/2009

3/8/2007 32087 64174 37.71 3/8/2012 39088 737591

3/7/2008 130742 37.02 3/7/2013 61318 1157071
James laco 1/13/2006 30439 24.64 1/13/2016 6088 114881

2/17/2006 29940 25.05 2/17/2016 5988 112994

11/13/2006 140000 28.89 11/13/2009

3/8/2007 18280 37.71 3/8/2012 11134 210099

3/7/2008 37322 37.02 3/7/2013 17504 330300
Robert Edgell 1/13/2006 96388 32129 24.64 1/13/2016 6426 121259

2/17/2006 94810 31604 25.05 2/17/2016 6321 119277

11/13/2006 150000 28.89 11/13/2009

3/8/2007 10598 21197 37.71 3/8/2012 12911 243631

3/7/2008 42698 37.02 3/7/20 13 20025 377872
Linn Williams 1/13/2006 27057 24.64 1/13/2016 5411 102106

2/17/2006 26614 25.05 2/17/2016 5323 100445

11/13/2006 140000 28.89 11/13/2009

3/8/2007 9140 18280 37.71 3/8/2012 11134 210099

3/7/2008 37322 37.02 3/7/2013 17504 330300
Thomas Legro 1/13/2006 6764 24.64 1/13/2016 1353 25531

2/17/2006 6654 25.05 2/17/2016 1331 25116

3/8/2007 7044 37.71 3/8/2012 4291 80971

3/7/2008 15693 37.02 3/7/2013 7360 138883

Stock options and restricted stock units granted on January 13 2006 and February 17 2006 vest in four

equal installments at months 12 months 24 months and 36 months from January 2006 Stock options
and restricted stock units granted on March 2007 vest ratably over three

years beginning on March
2008 Stock options and restricted stock units granted on March 2008 vest ratably over three

years
beginning on March 2009 Delivery of shares for vested restricted stock units is deferred until

employment terminates The stock options granted on January 13 2006 and February 17 2006 expire 10

years from their grant dates The stock options granted on November 13 2006 expire years from their

grant date The stock options granted on March 2007 and March 2008 expire years from their
grant

dates

Market value is based on Mirants closing stock price on December 31 2008 of $18.87
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OPTION EXERCISES AND STOCK VESTED IN 2008

The following table sets forth information regarding option exercises and restricted stock units that vested during

the fiscal year ended December 31 2008 for our named executive officers

Option Awards Stock Awards

Number of Shares Value Realized Number of Shares

Acquired on on Exercise Acquired on Vesting Value Realized on

Name Exercise Vesting

Edward Muller _____________
111342 4256639

James laco 129398 1620697 41698 1602374

Robert Edgell
44975 1727775

Linn Williams 161008 2101104 40356 1551871

Thomas Legro 43774 687797 13960 537906

Amount reflects the difference between the exercise price of the option and the market price at the time of

exercise

Amount reflects the market value of our common stock on the day the shares vested Shares have vested but

they are not received until termination

2008 NONQUALIFIED DEFERRED COMPENSATION

The following table sets forth information regarding executive contributions company contributions earnings

and account balances for each of the participating named executive officers in the Deferred Compensation Plan

and the Supplemental Benefit Savings Plan which are described below No named executive officer made any

withdrawals or received any distributions during fiscal 2008 from either plan Only Messrs Muller and Williams

participated in the Deferred Compensation Plan in 2008 All named executive officers participated in the

Supplemental Benefit Savings Plan in 2008

Executive Registrant Aggregate Aggregate

Contributions Contributions Earnings Withdrawals Aggregate

in Last FY in Last FY in Last FY Distributions Balance at Last

Name Plan
FYE

Edward Muller Deferred Compensation 292924 179781 5074384

_______________
Supplemental Benefit 173999 17165 4150755

James laco Deferred Compensation

_______________
Supplemental Benefit 49220 4664 1152915

Robert Edge Deferred Compensation

_______________
Supplemental Benefit 59211 5274 13 18205

Linn Williams Deferred Compensation 81834 86611 1294514

______________ Supplemental Benefit 49164 4671 1153685

Thomas Legro Deferred Compensation

______________
Supplemental Benefit 23034 1874 486645

Of the amounts contributed by Messrs Muller and Williams during 2008 $112924 and $48334

respectively are included as compensation under Salary in the 2008 Summary Compensation Table above

and $180000 and $33500 respectively are included as compensation under Non-Equity Incentive Plan

Compensation in the 2008 Summary Compensation Table above

In 2008 the Company made contributions to the non-qualified Supplemental Benefit Savings Plan of

named executive officers in the amounts listed These Company contributions are included as compensation

under All Other Compensation in the 2008 Summary Compensation Table above

Earnings for the Deferred Compensation Plan are based on market performance Earnings for the

Supplemental Benefit Savings Plan are credited with the prime rate of interest
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Of this amount the following amounts were reported as compensation to the executive in the Summary
Compensation Table in prior years Proxy Statements Mr Muller $394295 Mr Williams $134228

Of this amount the following amounts were reported as compensation to the executive in the Summary
Compensation Table in prior years Proxy Statements Mr Muller $223911 Mr laco $61407
Mr Edgell $67335 Mr Williams $61534 Mr Legro information was not previously reported in the

Summary Compensation Table as he did not become named executive officer until 2008

Mirant Corporation Deferred Compensation Plan

The Deferred Compensation Plan is non-qualified plan intended to comply with the requirements of

Section 409A of the Internal Revenue Code Employees may defer up to 100% of base pay and/or short-term

incentive pay less applicable FICA taxes The Plan allows participants to choose among 21 different investment

funds The investment funds are the same funds offered under our 401k plan with two exceptions Because

common collective trusts are not allowed in the Deferred Compensation Plan two fund choices have been

substituted Deferred Compensation Plan participants may change their investment election or transfer balances

amongst the various funds at any time Final distributions from the accounts are made upon termination of

employment with the Company and may be made in lump sum or in annual installments for up to 10 years in

accordance with the participants prior election Distributions to named executive officers will be made no earlier

than six months following their termination of service Early withdrawals from the accounts are not permitted
with the exception of an in-service withdrawal election for future known date set during the annual enrollment

period

Mirant Corporation Supplemental Benefit Savings Plan

The Supplemental Benefit Savings Plan is non-qualified plan intended to compensate executives for IRS

limitations on compensation on Company matching and profit sharing contributions to qualified 401k plan or

to provide parity with respect to Company matching and profit sharing 401k contributions due to executive

deferrals of income pursuant to the Deferred Compensation Plan All amounts credited to the account of

participant are credited with deemed interest at the prime rate as published in the Wall Street Journal

compounded daily Final distributions from the accounts are made upon termination of employment with the

Company and may be made in lump sum or in annual installments for up to 10 years in accordance with the

participants prior election Distributions to named executive officers will be made no earlier than six months

following their termination of service Early withdrawals from the accounts are not permitted

Potential Payments Upon Termination

Each of our named executive officers has an employment agreement that provides for certain severance

payments in the event his employment is terminated without good cause or due to death disability or change in

control The agreements have three-year terms and continue through late 2008 or early 2009 After the three year
term the agreements are to be automatically extended in one-year increments unless we give prior notice of

termination All of the agreements have been automatically extended for the first
one-year period

Termination Without Cause or for Good Reason

Under the agreements the executives receive severance payments in the event of termination without Cause

as defined below failure to renew their contract on competitive terms or termination by the executive

for Good Reason as defined below These severance payments are combination of multiple of the

executives annual salary and multiple of his target short-term incentive in the year in which his employment is

terminated description of the payout multiples for our named executive officers is included under Post

Termination Compensation in Compensation Discussion and Analysis above Unvested stock options and

unvested restricted stock units held by executives will accelerate vest and become exercisable Executives also

will receive pro-rata portion of their target bonus payment under the short-term incentive plan for the
year in
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which they are terminated regardless of Company performance In addition to the payments related to base

salary and short-term incentive the named executive officer will receive the following

An amount equal to two times the Companys annual cost for life and long-term disability insurance

provided to the executive immediately prior to termination Mr Legro will receive an amount equal to

one time the Companys annual cost for life and long-term disability insurance provided to him

immediately prior to termination

An amount equal to two times the sum of the annual matching contribution under the Employee

Savings Plan and Supplemental Benefit Savings Plan for the year immediately preceding the year in

which employment terminates Mr Legro will receive an amount equal to one time the sum of the

annual matching contribution under the Employee Savings Plan and Supplemental Benefit Savings

Plan for the year immediately preceding the year in which employment terminates

An amount equal to the fixed profit sharing and discretionary profit sharing contributions received

under the 401k Plan for the year immediately preceding the year
in which employment terminates

18 months of continued coverage
for medical dental and other group health benefits and plans in effect

on the date of termination Mr Legro will receive 12 months of continued coverage
for medical dental

and other group health benefits and plans in effect on the date of termination and

lump sum amount equal to the cost of months of additional benefit coverage
under the medical

dental and vision plans in which the executive participates on the date of termination not applicable to

Mr Legro

The amounts described in the first three bullet points above will be paid in lump sum on the date months from

separation of service in accordance with Section 409A

Cause is defined in the named executive officers employment agreements as

the conviction of or an agreement to plea of nob contendere to crime involving moral turpitude or

any felony

willful refusal to perform duties as reasonably directed by the Board under the employment agreement

or any other agreement

in carrying out executive duties engagement in conduct that constitutes fraud willful neglect or willful

misconduct which in either case would result in demonstrable harm to the business operations

prospects or reputation of the Company

material violation of the requirements of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 or other federal or state

securities law rule or regulation or

any other material breach of the employment agreement

Good Reason is defined in the named executive officers employment agreements as

reduction by the Company of the amount of the executives then current base salary or the target for his

annual bonus

material diminution in the executives title authority duties or responsibilities or the assignment of

duties to executive which are materially inconsistent with his position

the failure of the Company to obtain in writing the obligation to perform the employment agreement by

any successor to the Company or purchaser of all or substantially all of the assets of the Company

within 15 days alter merger consolidation sale or similar transaction or

following change in control the requirement that the executive move his principal place of business

by more than 50 miles from the previous location without his consent
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Death or Disability

Under their employment agreements the named executive officers or their representatives are entitled to

severance payments upon death or disability In the event that an executives employment is terminated as

result of death or disability he or his representative would receive the following

lump sum payment in an amount equal to his target annual bonus for the
year

of termination prorated for

the number of days that the executive was employed by the Company regardless of Company performance

base salary through the date of termination to the extent not previously paid

to the extent not previously paid the amount of any bonus incentive compensation and other

compensation earned or accrued by the executive as of the date of termination under any compensation
and benefit plans programs or arrangements maintained in force by the Company and

any vacation pay expense reimbursements and other cash entitlements due and owing to the executive

in accordance with Company policy as of the date of termination to the extent not previously paid

Unvested stock options and unvested restricted stock units held by executives will accelerate vest and become

exercisable upon termination as result of death or disability

Termination Following Change in Control

The employment agreements also provide that named executive officers are entitled to certain severance benefits

following change in control of the Company If for up to two years following change in control the named

executive officer is terminated for any reason other than by reason of disability or for Cause as defined above
or if such executive officer terminates his or her employment for Good Reason as defined above then the

named executive officer would receive the following

Payment equal to the sum of three times the named executive officers base salary and ii the higher

of three times the last full-years annual short-term incentive payment or three times the target

annual short-term incentive payment for the year in which termination occurs

multiple of three times th benefits related to life and long-term disability insurance and contributions

under the Employee Savings Plan and Supplemental Benefit Savings Plan outlined above

18 months of continued coverage for medical dental and other group health benefits and plans in effect

at the date of termination and

lump sum amount equal to the cost of 18 months of additional benefit coverage under the medical
dental and vision plans in which the executive participates on the date of termination Mr Legro will

receive lump sum amount equal to the cost of months of additional benefit
coverage under the

medical dental and vision plans in which he participates on the date of termination

The severance generally would be paid in the form of lump sum cash payment In addition in accordance with

the terms of the award agreements for each of the named executive officers unvested stock options and unvested

restricted stock units accelerate vest and become exercisable if they are not replaced upon the change in control

Under the employment agreements change in control would include any of the following events

any person as defined in the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 acquires 50 percent or more of our

voting securities

majority of our Board of Directors is replaced by two-thirds vote

consummation of reorganization merger consolidation sale or other disposition with more than

50% beneficial ownership change or

stockholders approve certain mergers or liquidation or sale of our assets

In the event that
any payments made in connection with change in control would be subjected to the excise tax

imposed by Section 4999 of the Internal Revenue Code we will gross up on an after-tax basis the named

executive officers compensation for all federal state and local income and excise taxes and any penalties and

interest but the
gross up is capped at $7 million for the Chief Executive Officer and at $2 million for all other

named executive officers

42



Potential Payments Upon Termination Table

The table below sets forth potential benefits that each named executive officer would be entitled to receive upon

termination of employment in the situations outlined above These amounts are estimates only and do not

necessarily reflect the actual amounts that would be paid to the named executive officers which would only be

known at the time that they become eligible for payment The amounts shown in the table are the amounts that

could be payable under existing plans and arrangements if the named executive officers employment had

terminated at December 31 2008 including gross-up for certain taxes in the event that any payments made in

connection with change in control were subject to the excise tax imposed by Section 4999 of the Internal

Revenue Code Values for the accelerating vesting of stock option and restricted stock unit grants are based on

our closing price of $18.87 on December 31 2008 The table below does not include amounts to which the

named executive officers would be entitled that are already described in the compensation tables appearing

earlier in this Proxy Statement including the value of equity awards that have already vested and amounts

previously deferred under the Deferred Compensation Plan

POTENTIAL PAYMENTS UPON TERMINATION

Accelerated Accelerated Estimated

Severance Vesting of Vesting of Benefit Tax

Amount Stock Restricted Continuation Gross-Up

Name Options Stock Total

Edward Muller

Change-in-Control
7005000 2654227 559500 4075000 14293727

Good Reason 4540000 2654227 373000 7567227

For Cause

Retirement

Death 1135000 2654227 3789227

Disability 1135000 2654227 3789227

James taco

Change-in-Control
2463000 768274 262600 1195000 4688874

Good Reason 1202850 768274 175000 2146124

For Cause

Retirement

Death 315900 768274 1084174

Disability 315900 768274 1084174

Robert Edgell

Change-in-Control 2827500 862039 287500 1471000 5448039

Good Reason 1376100 862039 191700 2429839

For Cause

Retirement

Death 361400 862039 1223439

Disability
361400 862039 1223439

Linn Williams

Change-in-Control
2463000 742950 243100 1380000 4829050

Good Reason 1202850 742950 162000 2107800

For Cause

Retirement

Death 315900 742950 1058850

Disability
315900 742950 1058850

Thomas Legro

Change-in-Control
1550847 270501 116100 818000 2755448

Good Reason 502500 270501 58100 831101

For Cause

Retirement

Death 167500 270501
438001

Disability 167500 270501
438001

Includes appropriate multiples of base salary and bonus higher of target or actual of prior year as outlined in employment agreements

2007 actual bonus payments made in 2008 are included in the calculations above as they were higher than each executives target

amount

Includes payments in respect of continued health welfare and retirement benefits as outlined in employment agreements

With respect to tax gross-ups we assumed an excise tax rate under 280G of the Internal Revenue Code of 20% and an individual tax rate

of 42.45% 35% federal income tax rate 1.45% Medicare tax rate and 6% state income tax rate
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2008 DIRECTOR COMPENSATION TABLE

In May 2006 the Compensation Committee adopted the 2006 Non-Employee Directors Compensation Plan that

sets forth the annual and supplemental retainers meeting fees and equity compensation payable to the

non-employee directors Pursuant to this plan our non-management directors each receive an annual retainer of

$60000 and are paid $1500 for each Board and committee meeting that they attend The following annual

supplemental retainers also are paid as applicable $20000 for the Audit Committee Chair $10000 for each of

the Compensation and Nominating and Governance Committee Chairs and $20000 for the lead independent
director The directors also received an annual stock award grant which in 2008 consisted of restricted stock

units The total targeted economic value of those grants was $75000 for each director Prior to 2008 the

directors received an annual stock award of restricted stock units and stock options The Company reimburses

directors for their travel and related expenses in connection with attending Board meetings and Board-related

activities as well as for continuing education programs related to their
directorships Our non-management

directors may elect to defer all or part of their annual retainer annual supplemental retainer or meeting fees

pursuant to the Deferred Compensation Plan

For 2009 our non-management directors will no longer receive meeting fees and will receive an annual retainer

of $82500 and an annual stock award grant consisting of restricted stock units with total targeted economic
value of $82500 The annual supplemental retainers described above will remain unchanged

The following table provides 2008 compensation information for each non-management member of our Board of

Directors

Fees

Earned or Stock Option Total

Paid in Awards Awards Compensation
Name Cash

Thomas Cason 108500 76010 26699 211209

A.D Correll 124500 76010 26699 227209

Terry Dallas 87000s 76010 26699 189709

Thomas Johnson 101500 76010 26699 204209
John Miller 87000 76010 26699 189709

Robert Murray 88500 76010 26699 191209

John Quain 91500 76010 26699 194209

William Thacker 93000 76010 26699 195709

Each non-management director received grant of 1929 restricted stock units on May 12 2008 The restricted

stock units vest 100% on May 12 2009 and delivery of the shares for the restricted stock units is deferred until

their
directorship terminates Each restricted stock unit

represents contingent right to receive one share of our
common stock The amounts in the stock award column reflect the dollar amount recognized for fiscal year
ended December 31 2008 in accordance with FAS 123R Pursuant to SEC rules these values are not reduced

by an estimate for the probability of forfeiture Assumptions used in the calculation of these amounts are

included under Stock-Based Compensation in Item Managements Discussion and Analysis of Results qf
Operation and Financial Condition in the Companys Annual Report on Form 10-K filed with the SEC on
February 27 2009 The grant date fair value calculated in accordance with FAS 23R for each restricted stock
unit granted on May 12 2008 was $38.88 for total grant date fair value of $75000 Each non-management
director held 1929 unvested restricted stock units as of December 31 2008

The amounts in the option awards column reflect the dollar amounts recognized under FAS 23R using the
Black-Scholes option-pricing model for option awards granted in years prior to 2008 Pursuant to SEC rules
these values are not reduced by an estimate for the probability of forfeiture Assumptions used in the

calculation of these amounts are included under Stock-Based Compensation in Item Managements
Discussion and Analysis of Results of Operation and Financial Condition in the Companys Annual Report
on Form 10-K filed with the SEC on February 27 2009 Each non-management director held 12023 options
as of December 31 2008

Mr Dallas elected to defer $87000 in fees pursuant to the Deferred Compensation Plan Any earnings under
the Deferred Compensation Plan are at market and are not preferential
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Other Information

Security Ownership of Directors Executive Officers and Certain Beneficial Owners

Except as otherwise indicated the following table shows the beneficial ownership of Mirant common stock as of

March 2009 for each person beneficially owning more than 5% of the outstanding shares of our common

stock ii each director of the Company iii each named executive officer of the Company and iv all of our

directors and executive officers as group Except as otherwise indicated each person listed below has sole

voting and dispositive or shares such powers with his or her spouse with respect to the shares set forth in the

following table The business address of each director and/or executive officer of the Company listed below is

1155 Perimeter Center West Atlanta GA 30338-54 16

Total Beneficial Percentage of

Ownership Shares Owned

Thomas Cason 16156s

Correll 15582i

Terry Dallas 17156s

Robert Edgell
5367066

James laco Jr
311 287

Thomas Johnson 151568

Thomas Legro 4878l

John Miller 1726810

Edward Muller 148488411 1.03%

Robert Murray 1615612

JohnM.Quain 15156

William Thacker 1515614

Linn Williams 30835215

Directors and Executive Officers as Group 13 people 2817796 1.93%

Solus Alternative Asset Management LP 16 8500000 5.93%

Paulson Co Inc 17 18394000 12.83%

Morgan Stanley
18 8209852 5.73%

Bank of America 19 7917390 5.52%

BNP Paribas Arbitrage SA 20 15521297 10.83%

Lessthanl%

Beneficial ownership means the sole or shared power to vote or to direct the voting of security or sole

or shared investment power with respect to security or any
combination thereof This column includes

ownership interests in Mirant common shares non-convertible economic interests and shares individuals

have rights to acquire within 60 days as of March 2009 Vested restricted stock units the delivery of

which is deferred as noted below may not be voted until delivered to the director or executive

Based on an aggregate
of 143336554 shares issued outstanding and entitled to vote as of March 2009

Assumes that all options beneficially owned by the person are exercised for shares of common stock and

includes vested restricted stock units beneficially owned by the person The total number of shares

outstanding used in calculating this percentage assumes that none of the options beneficially owned by other

persons are exercised for shares of common stock and does not include vested restricted stock units

beneficially owned by other persons

Includes outstanding options to purchase 12023 shares which were exercisable within 60 days of March

2009 Also includes 2118 vested restricted stock units delivery of which is deferred until termination of

service from the Board of Directors
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Includes outstanding options to purchase 12023 shares which were exercisable within 60 days of

March 2009 and ii 325 warrants to purchase Mirant Common stock which were granted to former

Mirant stockholders in connection with Mirant emergence from bankruptcy Also includes 2118 vested

restricted stock units delivery of which is deferred until termination of service from the Board of Directors

Includes outstanding options to purchase 12023 shares which were exercisable within 60 days of March

2009 Also includes 3133 vested restricted stock units delivery of which is deferred until termination of

service from the Board of Directors

Represents outstanding options to purchase 440361 shares which were exercisable within 60 days of

March 2009 Also includes 96345 vested restricted stock units delivery of which is deferred until the

earlier of termination or Change in Control

Represents outstanding options to purchase 221960 shares which were exercisable within 60 days of

March 2009 Also includes 89327 vested restricted stock units delivery of which is deferred until the

earlier of termination or Change in Control

Includes outstanding options to purchase 12023 shares which were exercisable within 60 days of March

2009 Also includes 2118 vested restricted stock units delivery of which is deferred until termination of

service from the Board of Directors

Includes outstanding options to purchase 22171 shares which were exercisable within 60 days of March

2009 Also includes 26610 vested restricted stock units delivery of which is deferred until the earlier of

termination or Change in Control

10 Includes outstanding options to purchase 12023 shares which were exercisable within 60 days of March

2009 and ii 43 warrants to purchase Mirant common stock which were granted to former Mirant

stockholders in connection with Mirants emergence from bankruptcy Also includes 2118 vested restricted

stock units delivery of which is deferred until termination of service from the Board of Directors

11 Represents outstanding options to purchase 1212801 shares which were exercisable within 60 days of

March 2009 Also includes 272083 vested restricted stock units delivery of which is deferred until the

earlier of termination or Change in Control

12 Includes outstanding options to purchase 12023 shares which were exercisable within 60 days of March

2009 Also includes 2118 vested restricted stock units delivery of which is deferred until termination of

service from the Board of Directors

13 Includes outstanding options to purchase 12023 shares which were exercisable within 60 days of March

2009 Also includes 2118 vested restricted stock units delivery of which is deferred until termination of

service from the Board of Directors

14 Represents outstanding options to purchase 12023 shares which were exercisable within 60 days of

March 2009 Also includes 3133 vested restricted stock units delivery of which is deferred until

termination of service from the Board of Directors

15 Represents outstanding options to purchase 224392 shares which were exercisable within 60 days of

March 2009 Also includes 83960 vested restricted stock units delivery of which is deferred until the

earlier of termination or Change in Control

16 Solus Alternative Asset Management LP Solus is an investment adviser located at 430 Park Avenue 9th

Floor New York New York 10022 In its role as investment manager Solus possesses shared voting and

dispositive power with regard to all such securities Solus disclaims beneficial ownership of such securities

This information is based on Schedule 13G/A filed with the SEC on February 17 2009 and represents

holdings as of December 312008

17 Paulson Co Inc Paulson is an investment advisor located at 590 Madison Avenue New York New
York 10022 In its role as investment advisor Paulson possesses shared voting and dispositive power with

regard to all such securities This information is based on Schedule 13G filed with the SEC on
November 17 2008 and represents holdings as of November 2008
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18 Morgan Stanley Morgan is holding company located at 1585 Broadway New York New York 10036

In its role as parent holding company or control person
in accordance with 17 CFR 240.1 3d-i iiG

Morgan possesses
sole voting power with respect to 8188071 securities and shared voting power with

respect to 21781 securities and sole dispositive power with regard to all such securities This information is

based on Schedule 13G/A filed with the SEC on February 17 2009 and represents holdings as of

December 31 2008

19 Bank of America BOA is holding company located at 100 North Tryon Street Floor 25 Bank of

America Corporate Center Charlotte North Carolina 28255 In its role as parent holding company or

control person in accordance with 17 CFR 240.1 3d-i iiGBOA possesses
shared voting power with

respect to 7906961 securities and shared dispositive power with regard to 7917390 securities This

information is based on schedule 13G/A filed with the SEC on February 24 2009 and represents holdings

as of December 31 2008

20 BNP Paribas Arbitrage SA BNP is located at 787 Seventh Avenue New York New York 10019 BNP

possesses
sole voting and dispositive power with regard to all such securities This information is based on

schedule 13G/A filed with the SEC on September 17 2008 and represents holdings as of August 12 2008

Codes of Ethics

Mirants Code of Ethics and Business Conduct provides guidance to employees in making lawful and ethical

decisions and applies to officers and employees of Mirant and its subsidiaries and our Board of Directors Mirant

also has adopted Code of Ethics for Senior Financial Officers that applies to our Chief Executive Officer Chief

Financial Officer Treasurer Chief Risk Officer Senior Vice President Tax Controller and Assistant

Controller This Code of Ethics is intended to deter wrongdoing and promote honest and ethical conduct and

compliance
with applicable laws rules and regulations Both the Code of Ethics and Business Conduct and the

Code of Ethics for Senior Financial Officers are available on our website at http//www.mirant.com and are

available in print to any stockholder upon written request to our Corporate Secretary

Section 16a Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance

Section 16a of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 requires Mirant directors and executive officers to file

reports with the SEC showing their holdings of and transactions in Mirant securities It is generally the practice

of the Company to file the forms on behalf of these directors and executive officers All such forms were timely

filed for 2008 except that late Form showing John Millers acquisition and subsequent disposition of 47

shares of Mirant common stock was filed on January 29 2008 Mr Miller received the shares in connection with

the final settlement between the Company and Potomac Electric Power Company which resulted in an additional

distribution of reserved Mirant shares to former debt holders The shares were received on September 2007

and were subsequently sold on January 14 2008

Stockholder Proposals

Stockholder proposals to be considered for inclusion in Mirants proxy materials pursuant to Rule i4a-8 under

the Exchange Act for the 2010 Annual Meeting of Stockholders must be received no later than November 27

2009 Stockholder proposals must be submitted in writing to our Corporate Secretary at Mirant Corporation

1155 Perimeter Center West Atlanta GA 30338-5416 For stockholder proposals that are not included in

Mirants proxy materials to be presented at next years meeting you must comply with the requirements set forth

in Article II Section 11A of our Bylaws Our Bylaws require among other things that our Corporate Secretary

receive the proposal no earlier than the close of business on the 120th day and no later than the close of business

on the 90th day prior to the first anniversary of the prior years Annual Meeting Accordingly for the 2010

Annual Meeting of Stockholders the Corporate Secretary must receive the proposal no earlier than January

2010 and no later than February 2010 The proxy solicited by the Board of Directors for next years meeting

will confer discretionary authority to vote on any proposal that does not meet these requirements
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EXTENT OF INCORPORATION BY REFERENCE OF MATERIALS INCLUDED IN OR
ACCOMPANYING THIS PROXY STATEMENT

This Proxy Statement is being distributed to stockholders as part of larger publication containing other

documents and information of interest to stockholders concerning the Annual Meeting The reports of the Audit

Committee and Compensation Committee shall not be deemed to be filed or incorporated by reference into any
filing with the SEC under or pursuant to the Securities Act of 1933 or the Securities Exchange Act of 1934
unless specifically provided otherwise in such filing

This Proxy Statement is accompanied or preceded by Mirants 2008 Annual Report on Form 10-K The 2008
Annual Report on Form 10-K which includes audited consolidated financial statements and other information

about Mirant is not incorporated in the Proxy Statement is not deemed to be part of the proxy soliciting material
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UNITED STATES
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

Washington D.C 20549

FORM 10-K

E1 ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15d OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the fiscal year ended December 31 2008

or

LI TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15d OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the transition period from to

Commission file number 001-16107

Mirant Corporation
Exact Name of Registrant as Specified in Its Charter

Delaware 20-3538156

State or Other Jurisdiction of I.R.S Employer

Incorporation or Organization
Identification No

1155 Perimeter Center West Suite 100

Atlanta Georgia
30338

Address of Principal Executive Offices Zip Code

678 579 5000

Registrants telephone number including area code

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12b of the Act

Title of Each Class Name of Each Exchange on Which Registered

Common Stock par value $0.01 per share New York Stock Exchange

Series Warrants New York Stock Exchange

Series Warrants New York Stock Exchange

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12g of the Act

None

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is well-known seasoned issuer as defined by Rule 405 of the Securities

Act Yes Lii No

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is not required to file reports pursuant to Section 13 or Section 15d of the

Act LII Yes No

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15d of the

Securities Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to

file such reports and has been subject to such filing requirements
for the past 90 days EI Yes LI No

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquent filers pursuant to Item 405 of Regulation S-K is not contained herein

and will not be contained to the best of the registrants knowledge in definitive roxy or information statements incorporated

by reference in Part III of this Form 10-K or any amendment to this Form 10-K

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is large accelerated filer an accelerated filer non-accelerated filer or

smaller reporting company See the definitions of large accelerated filer accelerated filer and smaller reporting

company in Rule 2b-2 of the Exchange Act

Large Accelerated Filer Accelerated Filer LII

Non-accelerated Filer LI Do not check if smaller reporting company Smaller reporting company LII

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is shell company as defined in Rule 2b-2 of the Act LI Yes Ei No

Aggregate market value of voting stock held by non-affiliates of the registrant was approximately $6974396638 on

June 30 2008 based on $39.15 per share the closing price in the daily composite list for transactions on the New York Stock

Exchange that day

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant has filed all documents and reports required to be filed by Section 12 13

or 15d of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 subsequent to the distribution of securities under plan confirmed by

court Yes LI No

As of February 20 2009 there were 144127672 shares of the registrants Common Stock $0.01 par value per share

outstanding

DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE

Portions of the Registrants proxy statement for the 2009 Annual Meeting of Stockholders are incorporated by reference in

Part III of this Form 10-K to the extent described herein
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Glossary of Certain Defined Terms

APSAAsset Purchase and Sale Agreement dated June 2000 between the Company and Pepco

Bankruptcy CodeUnited States Bankruptcy Code

Bankruptcy CourtUnited States Bankruptcy Court for the Northern District of Texas Fort Worth Division

Baseload Generating UnitsUnits that satisfy minimum baseload requirements of the system and produce

electricity at an essentially constant rate and run continuously

CAIRClean Air Interstate Rule

CAISOCalifornia Independent System Operator

Cal PXCalifornia Power Exchange

CAMRClean Air Mercury Rule

CCX Chicago Climate Exchange

CERCLAFederal Comprehensive Environmental Response Compensation and Liability Act of 1980

Clean Air ActFederal Clean Air Act

Clean Water ActFederal Water Pollution Control Act

C02Carbon dioxide

CompanyOld Mirant prior to January 2006 and New Mirant on or after January 2006

CPUCCalifornia Public Utilities Commission

DWRCalifornia Department of Water Resources

EBITDAEarnings before interest taxes depreciation and amortization

EITFThe Emerging Issues Task Force formed by the Financial Accounting Standards Board

EITF 02-3--EITF Issue No 02-3 Issues Involved in Accounting for Derivative Contracts Held for Trading

Purposes and Contracts Involved in Energy Trading and Risk Management Activities

EOBCalifornia Electricity Oversight Board

EPAUnited States Environmental Protection Agency

EPSEarnings per share

ERISAEmployee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974

FASBFinancial Accounting Standards Board

FERCFederal Energy Regulatory
Commission

FINFASB Interpretation

FIN 39FIN No 39 Offsetting of Amounts Related to Certain Contracts

FIN 45FIN No 45 Guarantors Accounting and Disclosure Requirements for Guarantees Including Indirect

Guarantees of Indebtedness of OthersAn Interpretation of FASB Statements Nos 57 and 107 and Rescission

of FASB Interpretation No 34

FIN 46RFIN No 46R Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities Revised December 2003an

Interpretation of Accounting Research Bulletin No 51

FIN 47FIN No 47 Accounting for Conditional Asset Retirementsan interpretation of FASB Statement

No 143



FIN 48FIN No 48 Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxesan interpretation of FASB Statement

No 109

FSPFASB Staff Position

FSP FAS 132R-1FSP FAS No 132R-i Employers Disclosures about Postretirement Benefit Plan Assets

Revised 2003

FSP FAS 157-2FSP FAS No 157-2 Effective Date of FASB Statement No 157

FSP FAS 157-3FSP FAS No 157-3 Determining the Fair Value of Financial Asset When the Market for
That Asset Is Not Active

FSP FIN 39-1FSP FIN No 39-1 Amendment of FASB Interpretation No 39 FIN 39

GAAPGeneraily accepted accounting principles in the United States

Gross MarginOperating revenue less cost of fuel electricity and other products excluding depreciation and
amortization

Hudson Valley GasHudson Valley Gas Corporation

IBEWInternaijonal Brotherhood of Electrical Workers

InterContinental ExchangeInterContinental Exchange Inc

Intermediate Generating UnitsUnits that meet system requirements that are greater than baseload and less

than peaking

ISOIndependent System Operator

ISO-NEIndependent System Operator-New England

kWKilowatt

LIBORLondon InterBank Offered Rate

LTSALong-term service agreement

MC Asset RecoveryMC Asset Recovery LLC

MDEMaryland Department of the Environment

MirantOld Mirant prior to January 2006 and New Mirant on or after January 2006

Mirant AmericasMirant Americas Inc

Mirant Americas Energy MarketingMirant Americas Energy Marketing LP

Mirant Americas GenerationMirant Americas Generation LLC

Mirant Asia-PacificMirant Asia-Pacific Limited sold by the Company in the second quarter of 2007

Mirant BowlineMirant Bowline LLC

Mirant CanalMirant Canal LLC

Mirant Chalk PointMirant Chalk Point LLC

Mirant DeltaMirant Delta LLC

Mirant Energy TradingMirant Energy Trading LLC

Mirant KendallMirant Kendall LLC

Mirant LovettMirant Lovett LLC
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Mirant MD Ash ManagementMirant MD Ash Management LLC

Mirant Mid-AtlanticMirant Mid-Atlantic LLC and except where the context indicates otherwise its

subsidiaries

Mirant New YorkMirant New York LLC

Mirant North AmericaMirant North America LLC

Mirant NY-GenMirant NY-Gen LLC sold by the Company in the second quarter of 2007

Mirant PagbilaoMirant Pagbilao Corporation sold by the Company in the second quarter of 2007

Mirant Potomac RiverMirant Potomac River LLC

Mirant PotreroMirant Potrero LLC

Mirant Power PurchaseMirant Power Purchase LLC

Mirant ServicesMirant Services LLC

Mirant SualMirant Sual Corporation sold by the Company in the second quarter
of 2007

Mirant Trinidad InvestmentsMirant Trinidad Investments LLC sold by the Company in the third quarter
of

2007

MWMegawatt

MWhMegawatt hour

NAAQSNational ambient air quality standard

NEPOOLNew England Power Pool

NERCNorth American Electric Reliability Council

Net Capacity FactorThe average production as percentage
of the potential net dependable capacity used

over year

New MirantMirant Corporation on or after January 2006

NOLNet operating loss

NOVNotice of violation

NOxNitrogen oxides

NPCCNortheastern Power Coordinating Council

NSRNew source review

NYISOIndependent System Operator
of New York

NYMEXNew York Mercantile Exchange

NYSDECNew York State Department of Environmental Conservation

NYSENew York Stock Exchange

Old MirantMC 2005 LLC known as Mirant Corporation prior to January
2006

Orange and RocklandOrange and Rockland Utilities Inc

OTCOver-the-counter

Ozone SeasonThe period between May and September 30 of each year

Peaking Generating UnitsUnits used to meet demand requirements during the periods of greatest or peak

load on the system
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PepcoPotomac Electric Power Company

Petition DateJuly 14 2003 the date Mirant and certain of its subsidiaries filed voluntary petitions for relief
with the Bankruptcy Court

PGEPacific Gas Electric Company

PJMPJM Interconnection LLC

PlanThe plan of reorganization that was approved in conjunction with the Companys emergence from
bankruptcy protection on January 2006

PPAPower purchase agreement

PUHCAPublic Utility Holding Company Act of 2005

Reserve MarginExcess capacity over peak demand

RFCReliabilityFirst Corporation

RGGIRegional Greenhouse Gas Initiative

RMRReliability-must-run

RTORegional Transmission Organization

SABSEC Staff Accounting Bulletin

SAB 107SAB No 107 Share-Based Payment

SAB ilOSAB No 110 Share-Based Paymentan amendment of SAB No 107

SECU.S Securities and Exchange Commission

Securities ActSecurities Act of 1933 as amended

Series WarrantsWarrants issued on January 2006 with an exercise price of $21.87 and expiration date
of January 32011

Series WarrantsWarrants issued on January 2006 with an exercise price of $20.54 and expiration date of
January 32011

SFASStatement of Financial Accounting Standards

SFAS 5SFAS No Accounting for Contingencies

SFAS 107SFAS No 107 Disclosure about Fair Value of Financial Instruments

SFAS 109SFAS No 109 Accounting for Income Taxes

SFAS 123RSFAS No 123R Share-Based Payment Revised 2004

SFAS 133SFAS No 133 Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities As Amended
SFAS 141RSFAS No 141R Business Combinations Revised 2007

SFAS 142SFAS No 142 Goodwill and Other intangible Assets

SFAS 143SFAS No 143 ccounting for Asset Retirement Obligations

SFAS 144SFAS No 144 ccounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets

SFAS 157SFAS No 157 Fair Value Measurements

SFAS 158SFAS No 158 Employers Accounting for Defined Benefit Pension and Other Post retirement
Plans An Amendment of FASB Statements Nos 87 88 106 and 132R
SFAS 159SFAS No 159 The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Financial

LiabilitiesIncluding an
Amendment of FASB Statement No 115

iv



SFAS 161SFAS No 161 Disclosures about Derivative Instruments and Hedging ActivitiesAn Amendment

of FASB Statement No 133

Shady HillsShady Hills Power Company L.L.C sold by the Company in the second quarter
of 2007

S02Sulfur dioxide

SOP 90-7Statement of Position 90-7 Financial Reporting by Entities in Reorganization Under the Bankruptcy

Code

UWUAUtility Workers Union of America

VaRValue at risk

VIEVariable interest entity

Virginia DEQVirginia Department of Environmental Quality

WECCWestem Electric Coordinating Council

West GeorgiaWest Georgia Generating Company L.L.C sold by the Company in the second quarter
of 2007

WrightsvilleWrightsville Arkansas power generating facility sold by the Company in the third quarter
of

2005



PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK



CAUTIONARY STATEMENT REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING INFORMATION

In addition to historical information the information presented in this Form 10-K includes forward-looking

statements within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933 and Section 21E of the Securities

Exchange Act of 1934 These statements involve known and unknown risks and uncertainties and relate to future

events our future financial performance or our projected business results In some cases one can identify

forward-looking statements by terminology such as may will should expect intend seek plan

think anticipate estimate predict target potential or continue or the negative of these terms or

other comparable terminology

Forward-looking statements are only predictions Actual events or results may differ materially from any

forward-looking statement as result of various factors which include

legislative and regulatory initiatives regarding deregulation regulation or restructuring of the industry

of generating transmitting and distributing electricity the electricity industry changes in state

federal and other regulations affecting the electricity industry including rate and other regulations

changes in or changes in the application of environmental and other laws and regulations to which we

and our subsidiaries and affiliates are or could become subject

failure of our plants to perform as expected including outages for unscheduled maintenance or repair

changes in market conditions including developments in the supply demand volume and pricing of

electricity and other commodities in the energy
markets and the extent and timing of the entry of

additional competition in our markets

continued poor
economic and financial market conditions including impacts on financial institutions

and other current and potential counterparties and negative impacts on liquidity in the power and fuel

markets in which we hedge and transact

increased credit standards margin requirements market volatility or other market conditions that could

increase our obligations to post
collateral beyond amounts that are expected

our inability to access effectively the OTC and exchange-based commodity markets or changes in

commodity market conditions and liquidity which may affect our ability to engage in asset

management proprietary trading and fuel oil management activities as expected or result in material

gains or losses from open positions

deterioration in the financial condition of our counterparties and the failure of counterparties to pay

amounts owed to us or to perform obligations or services due to us beyond collateral posted

hazards customary to the power generation industry and the possibility that we may not have adequate

insurance to cover losses as result of such hazards

price mitigation strategies employed by ISOs or RTOs that reduce our revenue and may result in

failure to compensate our generating units adequately for all of their costs

changes in the rules used to calculate capacity energy and ancillary services payments

legal and political challenges to the rules used to calculate capacity energy and ancillary services

payments in the markets in which we operate

volatility in our gross margin as result of our accounting for derivative financial instruments used in

our asset management proprietary trading and fuel oil management activities and volatility in our cash

flow from operations resulting from working capital requirements including collateral to support our

asset management proprietary trading and fuel oil management activities

our ability to enter into intermediate and long-term contracts to sell power and to obtain adequate

supply and delivery of fuel for our facilities at our required specifications
and on terms and prices

acceptable to us



the inability of our operating subsidiaries to generate sufficient cash flow to support our operations

our ability to borrow additional funds and access capital markets

strikes union activity or labor unrest

weather and other natural phenomena including hurricanes and earthquakes

the cost and availability of emissions allowances

curtailment of operations because of transmission constraints

environmental regulations that restrict our ability or render it uneconomic to operate our business

including regulations related to the emission of C02 and other greenhouse gases

our inability to complete construction of emissions reduction equipment by January 2010 to meet the

requirements of the Maryland Healthy Air Act which may result in reduced unit operations and

reduced cash flows and revenues from operations

our ability to execute our business plan in California including entering into long-term power sales

agreements for new generating facilities at our existing sites and entering into new tolling arrangements
for our existing generating facilities

the ability of lenders under Mirant North Americas revolving credit facility to perform their

obligations

war terrorist activities or the occurrence of catastrophic loss

our consolidated indebtedness and the possibility that we or our subsidiaries may incur additional

indebtedness in the future

restrictions on the ability of our subsidiaries to pay dividends make distributions or otherwise transfer

funds to us including restrictions on Mirant North America contained in its financing agreements and

restrictions on Mirant Mid-Atlantic contained in its leveraged lease documents which may affect our

ability to access the cash flows of those subsidiaries to make debt service and other payments and

the disposition of the pending litigation described in this Form 10-K

Many of these risks uncertainties and assumptions are beyond our ability to control or predict All forward-

looking statements attributable to us or persons acting on our behalf are expressly qualified in their entirety by

cautionary statements contained throughout this report Because of these risks uncertainties and assumptions

you should not place undue reliance on these forward-looking statements Furthermore forward-looking

statements speak only as of the date they are made

Factors that Could Affect Future Performance

We undertake no obligation to update publicly or revise any forward-looking statements to reflect events or

circumstances that may arise after the date of this report

In addition to the discussion of certain risks in Managements Discussion and Analysis of Results of

Operations and Financial Condition and the accompanying Notes to Mirant consolidated financial statements
other factors that could affect our future performance business financial condition or results of operations and
cash flows are set forth in Item 1A Risk Factors

Certain Terms

As used in this
report we us our the Company and Mirant refer to Mirant Corporation and its

subsidiaries unless the context requires otherwise Also as used in this
report we us our the Company

and Mirant refer to Old Mirant prior to January 2006 and to New Mirant on or after January 2006



PART

Item Business

Overview

We are competitive energy company that produces and sells electricity in the United States We own or

lease 10112 MW of net electric generating capacity in the Mid-Atlantic and Northeast regions and in California

We also operate an integrated asset management and energy marketing organization based in Atlanta Georgia

Our customers are principally ISOs RTOs and investor-owned utilities Our generating portfolio is diversified

across fuel types power markets and dispatch types and serves customers located near many major metropolitan

load centers Our total net generating capacity is approximately 30% baseload 58% intermediate and 12%

peaking

Mirant Corporation was incorporated in Delaware on September 23 2005 Pursuant to the Plan for Mirant

and certain of its subsidiaries on January 2006 New Mirant emerged from bankruptcy and acquired

substantially all of the assets of Old Mirant corporation that was formed in Delaware on April 1993 and that

had been named Mirant Corporation prior to January
2006 The Plan provides that New Mirant has no

successor liability for any unassumed obligations of Old Mirant Old Mirant was then renamed and transferred to

trust which is not affiliated with New Mirant

We are focused on the operational performance of our generating facilities generation of cash from

operations and prudent growth of our business

In 2008 we invested $672 million in our generating facilities Much of this amount was invested in

emissions control equipment to comply with the Maryland Healthy Air Act We are installing flue gas

desulphurization FGD emissions controls at our Chalk Point Dickerson and Morgantown coal-

fired units In addition we have installed selective catalytic reduction systems at the Morgantown coal-

fired units and one of the Chalk Point coal-fired units and selective auto catalytic reduction system at

the other Chalk Point coal-fired unit We are installing selective non-catalytic reduction systems at the

three Dickerson coal-fired units Including amounts already spent to date we will invest $1 .674 billion

on emissions reduction controls These controls will be capable of reducing emissions of S02 NOx

and mercury by approximately 98% 90% and 80% respectively for three of our largest coal-fired

units

Our investments in our generating facilities also reflect our targeted maintenance program to ensure

consistent long-term availability of our generating facilities Our equivalent forced outage rate was 8%

in 2008 compared to 10% in 2007 for our Mid-Atlantic baseload coal-fired units excluding our

Potomac River facility

In 2008 we observed significant volatility in commodity prices Our hedging program reduced our

exposure to this volatility and contributed $207 million to our realized gross margin for 2008 In 2008

we generated $677 million of net cash provided by operating activities of our continuing operations

As we generate excess cash from our operations we will invest it in our business but only when it is

prudent to do so Our existing generating facility sites have room to add an additional 7500 MW to

10000 MW of generating capacity
and we continue to consider these opportunities

We will return excess cash to our stockholders when we cannot prudently invest it in our business In

2007 we sold our Philippine and Caribbean businesses six U.S natural gas-fired facilities and Mirant

NY-Gen After transaction costs and repayment of debt the net proceeds to us from dispositions

completed for the year
ended December 31 2007 were approximately $5.07 billion Between

November 2007 and December 2008 we returned approximately $4.056 billion of cash to our

stockholders through purchases of 122 million shares of our common stock including 86 million shares

that were purchased through open market purchases in 2008 for approximately $2.74 billion



The annual quarterly and current reports and any amendments to those reports that we file with or furnish

to the SEC are available free of charge on our website at www.mirant.com as soon as reasonably practicable after

they are electronically filed with or furnished to the SEC General information about us including our Corporate
Governance Guidelines the charters for our Audit Compensation and Nominating and Governance Committees
and our Code of Ethics and Business Conduct can also be found at www.mirant.com We will provide print

copies of these documents to any stockholder upon written
request to Corporate Secretary Mirant Corporation

1155 Perimeter Center West Suite 100 Atlanta Georgia 30338-5416 Information contained on our website is

not incorporated into this Form 10-K

Business Segments

We have four operating segments Mid-Atlantic Northeast California and Other Operations The

Mid-Atlantic segment consists of four generating facilities located in Maryland and Virginia near Washington
D.C The Northeast segment consists of three generating facilities located in Massachusetts and one generating

facility located in New York near New York City The California segment consists of three generating facilities

located in or near San Francisco Other Operations includes proprietary trading and fuel oil management
activities unallocated

corporate overhead interest on debt at Mirant Americas Generation and Mirant North

America and interest income on our invested cash balances For the years ended December 31 2007 and 2006
Other Operations also included gains and losses related to long-term PPA with Pepco the Back-to-Back

Agreement which was terminated pursuant to settlement agreement that became effective in the third quarter
of 2007 See Note 17 to our consolidated financial statements contained elsewhere in this report for further

discussion of the Back-to-Back Agreement

The table below
presents our capacity by region and our Net Capacity Factor for the year ended

December 31 2008

Total Net

Capacity Capacity

Region MW Factor

Mid-Atlantic 5230 33%
Northeast 2535 13%
California 2347 4%

The table below summarizes selected financial information of our continuing operations by business

segment for the year ended December 31 2008 dollars in millions

Operating
Gross IncomeJ

Business Segment Revenues Margin Loss

Mid-Atlantic $2279 72% $1714 81% $1218 91%
Northeast 617 19% 179 8% 23 2%
California 186 6% 127 6% 35 2%
Other Operations 102 3% 103 5% 67 5%
Eliminations

Total $3188 100% $2129 100% $1341 100%

Eliminations are primarily related to intercompany sales of emissions allowances For selected financial

information about our business segments see Note 14 to our consolidated financial statements contained

elsewhere in this report See Item Properties for complete list of our generating facilities

Asset Management

Our commercial operations consist primarily of procuring fuel dispatching electricity hedging the

production and sale of electricity by our generating facilities managing fuel and providing logistical support for



the operation of our facilities for example by procuring transportation for coal We typically sell the electricity

we produce
into the wholesale market at prices in effect at the time we produce it the spot price Spot prices

for electricity are volatile as are prices for fuel and emissions allowances and in order to reduce the risk of that

volatility and achieve more predictable
financial results it is our strategy to enter into hedgesforward sales of

electricity and forward purchases of fuel and emissions allowances to permit us to produce and sell the

electricityfor various time periods In addition given the high correlation between natural gas prices and

electricity prices in the markets in which we operate we enter into forward sales of natural gas to hedge our

exposure to changes in the price of electricity We procure our hedges in OTC transactions or on exchanges

where electricity fuel and emissions allowances are broadly traded or through specific transactions with buyers

and sellers using futures forwards swaps and options We also sell capacity and ancillary services where there

are markets for such products and when it is economic to do so

We use dispatch models to assist us in making daily decisions regarding the quantity and price of the power

our facilities will generate and sell into the markets We bid the energy from our generating facilities into the

day-ahead energy
market and sell ancillary services through the ISO and RTO markets We sell capacity either

bilaterally or through auction processes
in each ISO and RTO in which we participate We work with the ISOs

and RTOs in real time to ensure that our generating facilities are dispatched economically to meet the reliability

needs of the market

At February 10 2009 our aggregate hedge levels based on expected generation
for each period were as

follows

Aggregate Hedge Levels Based on Expected Generation

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013

Power 96% 62% 22% 24% 24%

Fuel 90% 64% 53% 29% 6%

Power

We hedge economically substantial portion of our Mid-Atlantic coal-fired baseload generation and certain

of our Northeast gas
and oil-fired generation through OTC transactions However we generally do not hedge our

intermediate and peaking units for tenors greater than 12 months significant portion of our hedges are

financial swap transactions between Mirant Mid-Atlantic and financial counterparties that are senior unsecured

obligations of such parties and do not require either party to post cash collateral either for initial margin or for

securing exposure as result of changes in power or natural gas prices We also enter into forward sales of

natural gas to hedge our exposure to changes in the price of electricity

While OTC transactions make up substantial portion of our economic hedge portfolio at times we sell

non-standard structured products to customers Additionally our California facilities operate under contracted

capacity and RMR contracts

Fuel

We enter into contracts of varying terms to secure appropriate quantities of fuel that meet the varying

specifications
of our generating facilities For our coal-fired generating facilities we purchase coal from variety

of suppliers
under contracts with terms of varying lengths some of which extend to 2013 For our oil-fired units

we typically purchase fuel from limited number of suppliers under contracts with terms of varying lengths

Our coal supply comes primarily from the Central Appalachian and Northern Appalachian coal regions

Most of our coal is delivered by rail except for portion of our coal deliveries at our Morgantown station which

is received by barge at our unloading facility that became operational in the third quarter
of 2008 The barge



unloader enables us to receive coal from international locations as well We monitor coal supply and delivery

logistics carefully and despite occasional interruptions of scheduled deliveries to date we have managed to

avoid any significant detrimental effects on our operations We typically maintain target level of coal inventory
at our coal-fired facilities for this purpose Interruptions of scheduled deliveries can result from variety of

disruptions including coal supplier operational issues rail system disruptions or severe weather

Emissions

Our commercial operations manage the acquisition and use of emissions allowances for our generating
facilities Primarily as result of the pollution control equipment we are installing to comply with the

requirements of the Maryland Healthy Air Act we have significant excess S02 and NOx emissions allowances

for future periods We plan to continue to maintain some S02 and NOx emissions allowances in excess of what

we need to support our expected generation in case our actual generation exceeds our current forecasts for future

periods and for possible future additions of generating capacity During the fourth
quarter of 2007 we began

program to sell excess S02 and NOx emissions allowances under certain market conditions At December 31
2008 the estimated fair value of our excess S02 and NOx emissions allowances exceeded the carrying value

recorded on our consolidated balance sheet by approximately $63 million

In September 2008 we joined the CCX which is voluntary greenhouse gas registry reduction and trading

system As part of the agreement for membership in CCX we have committed to meet annual emissions

reduction targets and by 2010 to reduce our greenhouse gas emissions by six percent below the average of our

1998 to 2001 levels We expect to satisfy our reduction targets primarily through previously implemented

generating unit retirements and capacity factor reductions

Mid-Atlantic Region

We own or lease four generating facilities in the Mid-Atlantic region with total net generating capacity of

5230 MW Our Mid-Atlantic region had combined 2008 Net Capacity Factor of 33%

The following table presents the details of our Mid-Atlantic generating facilities

Total Net

Generating

Capacity NERC
Facility MW Primary Fuel Type Dispatch Type Location Region

Natural Intermediate

Chalk Point 2413 Gas/Coal/Oil Baseload/Peaking Maryland RFC
Natural Gas

Dickerson 849 CoalJOil Baseload/Peaking Maryland RFC

Morgantown 1486 Coal/Oil
Baseload/Peaking Maryland RFC

Baseload/

Potomac River 482 Coal Intermediate Virginia RFC

Total Mid-Atlantic 5230

The Chalk Point facility is our largest generating facility It consists of two coal-fired baseload units two
dual-fueled oil and gas intermediate units and two oil-fired and five dual-fueled oil and gas peaking units Our

next largest facility is the Morgantown facility It consists of two coal-fired baseload units and six oil-fired

peaking units The Dickerson facility has three coal-fired baseload units and one oil-fired and two dual-fueled

oil and gas peaking units The Potomac River facility has three coal-fired baseload units and two coal-fired

intermediate units

In July 2008 the City of Alexandria Virginia in which the Potomac River
generating facility is located

and Mirant Potomac River entered into an agreement containing certain terms that were included in proposed



comprehensive state operating permit for the Potomac River generating facility issued by the Virginia DEQ that

month Under that agreement Mirant Potomac River committed to spend $34 million over several years to

reduce particulate emissions The $34 million was placed in escrow and is included in funds on deposit and other

noncurrent assets in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets and in our estimated capital expenditures

presented in Item Managements Discussion and Analysis of Results of Operations and Financial Condition

Overview See Note 17 to our consolidated financial statements contained elsewhere in this report for more

detailed discussion on the Potomac River Settlement

Prior to the issuance of the comprehensive state operating permit in July 2008 the Potomac River

generating facility operated under state operating permit issued June 2007 that significantly restricted the

facilitys operations by imposing stringent limits on its S02 emissions and constraining unit operations so that no

more than three of the facilitys five units could operate at one time In compliance with the comprehensive

permit in 2008 we merged the stacks for units and into one stack at the Potomac River generating facility

and in January 2009 we merged the stacks for units and into one stack With the completion
of the stack

combinations the pennit issued in July 2008 will not constrain operations of the Potomac River generating

facility below historical operations and will allow operation of all five units at one time Certain provisions of

Virginias air emissions regulations adopted to implement the CAIR however could constrain the facilitys

operations as described below in Environmental Regulation- Virginia CAIR Implementation

Northeast Region

We own generating facilities in the Northeast region with total net generating capacity of 2535 MW Our

Northeast region had combined 2008 Net Capacity Factor of 13% The Northeast region is comprised of our

facilities located in Massachusetts and New York Generation is sold from our Northeast facilities through

combination of bilateral contracts spot market transactions and structured transactions

The following table presents the details of our facilities in the Northeast Region

Total Net

Generating

Capacity
NERC

Facility MW Primary Fuel Type Dispatch Type Location Region

Intermediate

Bowline 1139 Natural Gas/Oil Peaking New York NPCC

Canal 1126 Natural Gas/Oil Intermediate Massachusetts NPCC

Baseload

Kendall
256 Natural Gas/Oil Peaking Massachusetts NPCC

Marthas Vineyard
14 Diesel Peaking Massachusetts NPCC

Total Northeast Region 2535

The Bowline facility is dual-fueled natural gas and oil facility comprised of two intermediate/peaking units

The capacity energy
and ancillary services from our Bowline generating facility are sold into the bilateral markets and

into the markets administered by the NYISO For discussion of the NYISO see Regulatory Environment below

The Canal facility consists of one oil-fired intermediate unit and one dual-fueled oil and gas intermediate

unit The Kendall facility consists of one combined cycle dual-fueled oil and gas baseload unit two 1300

pound steam boilers and one simple cycle jet engine peaking unit The Marthas Vineyard facility consists of five

diesel peaking
units The capacity energy and ancillary services from our Massachusetts generating units are

sold into the NEPOOL bilateral markets and into the markets administered by the ISO-NE For discussion of

the NEPOOL and the ISO-NE see Regulatory Environment below The Kendall facility also has long-term

agreements under which it sells steam resulting from electricity production or is reimbursed for production costs

when called upon to provide steam under the agreements



The Canal facility is located in the lower Southeastern Massachusetts SEMA area in ISO-NE ISO-NE
has previously determined that at times it is necessary for the Canal facility to operate to meet local reliability

criteria for SEMA when it was not economic for the Canal facility to operate based upon prevailing market

prices When the Canal facility operates to meet local reliability criteria we are compensated at the price we bid

into the ISO-NE rather than at the lower market price

ISO-NE and NSTAR recently developed plan to upgrade the SEMA transmission system that will reduce

the local reliability need for the Canal facility These transmission upgrades are scheduled for completion in

September 2009 Once these upgrades are completed we expect that the need for the Canal facility to operate for

reliability will be reduced As such the gross margin from our Canal facility may decrease significantly

compared to that generating facilitys gross margin for recent years

On June 11 2003 Mirant New York Mirant Lovett and the State of New York entered into consent

decree the 2003 Consent Decree governing the future of the Lovett facilitys two coal-fired units units and

Pursuant to the 2003 Consent Decree as amended on May 10 2007 we discontinued operation of unit as of

May 2007 and unit on April 19 2008 In addition we discontinued operation as of May 2007 of unit

dual-fueled unit natural gas and oil the only other operating unit at the facility because it was uneconomic to

run the unit We have substantially completed the demolition of the Lovett facility

California

We own three generating facilities in California with total net generating capacity of 2347 MW Our
California facilities had combined 2008 Net Capacity Factor of 4% The following table presents the details of

our California facilities

Total Net

Generating
Capacity NERC

Facility MW Primary Fuel Type Dispatch Type Location Region

Contra Costa 674 Natural Gas Intermediate California WECC

Pittsburg 1311 Natural Gas Intermediate California WECC
Natural Intermediate/

Potrero 362 Gas/Diesel Peaking California WECC

Total California 2347

The Contra Costa and Pittsburg facilities are located in Contra Costa County and the Potrero facility is

located in the City of San Francisco The Contra Costa facility consists of two gas-fired intermediate units and
the Pittsburg facility consists of three gas-fired intermediate units The Potrero facility consists of one gas-fired

intermediate unit and three diesel peaking units Through the end of 2006 the majority of our California units

were subject to RMR arrangements with the CAISO These agreements are described further under Regulatory
Environment below Pittsburg unit and Contra Costa unit were not subject to an RMR arrangement and thus

functioned solely as merchant facilities in the CAISO In 2006 we either sold the output of Pittsburg unit and
Contra Costa unit into the market through bilateral transactions with utilities and other merchant generators or

dispatched the units in the CAISO clearing markets

On July 28 2006 we signed two tolling agreements with PGE to provide electricity from all our natural

gas-fired units in service at Contra Costa and Pittsburg including Contra Costa unit and Pittsburg unit The

agreements are for 100% of the capacity from these units The contracts have varying tenors for each unit

covering from one to five years and include capacity of 1985 MW for 2008 and 2009 1303 MW for 2010 and
674 MW for 2011 We receive monthly capacity payments with bonuses and/or penalties based on guaranteed
heat rate and availability tolerances As result of these contracts the Contra Costa and Pittsburg units are no

longer subject to the RMR agreements
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All of our Potrero units continue to be subject to RMR arrangements through 2009 and annually thereafter

based upon the CAISO local reliability requirements

Our generating facilities in California depend almost entirely on payments they receive to operate in support

of system reliability The energy capacity and ancillary services markets as currently constituted will not

support the capital expenditures necessary to repower or reconstruct our facilities to make them commercially

viable in merchant market In order to obtain the necessary capital support for repowering or reconstructing our

facilities we will need to obtain contract with creditworthy buyer Absent that our generating facilities in

California will be commercially viable only as long as they are necessary for reliability

Other Operations

In addition to selling the electricity we produce and buying the fuel and emissions allowances we need to

produce electricity asset management we buy and sell some electricity fuel and emissions allowances as part

of our proprietary trading and fuel oil management activities

We engage in proprietary trading to gain information about the markets to support our asset management

and to take advantage of selected opportunities that we identify from time to time We enter into fuel oil

management activities to hedge economically the fair value of our physical fuel oil inventories and to optimize

the approximately three and one half million barrels of storage capacity that we own or lease

Proprietary trading and fuel oil management activities together typically comprise less than 10% of our

realized gross margin All of our commercial activities are governed by comprehensive Risk Management

Policy which includes limits on the size of positions and VaR for our proprietary trading and fuel oil

management activities For 2008 our average daily VaR for these activities was approximately $2 million

Competitive Environment

The power generating industry is capital intensive and highly competitive Our competitors include

regulated utilities merchant energy companies financial institutions and other companies including companies

owned by hedge funds and private equity funds For discussion of competitive factors and the effects of

seasonality on our business see Item 1A Risk Factors Coal-fired generation natural gas-fired generation and

nuclear generation currently account for approximately 48% 22% and 19% respectively of the electricity

produced in the United States Hydroelectric and other energy sources account for the remaining 11% of

electricity produced

The recent economic downturn and programs to reduce the demand for electricity have resulted in

decrease in the rate at which the long-term demand for electricity is forecasted to grow Given the substantial

time necessary to permit and construct new power plants the process to add generating capacity must begin years

in advance of anticipated growth in demand number of ISOs and RTOs including those in markets in which

we operate have implemented capacity markets as way to encourage construction of additional generation but

it is not clear whether and when independent power producers will be sufficiently incented to build this required

new generation The costs to construct new generation facilities have been rising and there is substantial

environmental opposition to building either coal-fired or nuclear plants

There are several proposed upgrades to the transmission systems in the markets in which we operate that

could mitigate the need for additional generating capacity To the extent that these upgrades are completed

prices for electricity and capacity could be lower than they might otherwise be

The average
market price for the types of coal that we use was approximately 107% higher in the year ended

December 31 2008 than in 2007 Global demand for coal to generate electricity has been significant factor

influencing domestic prices for the types
of coal that we use At the same time the prices for power and natural
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gas were extremely volatile increasing during the first half of 2008 and decreasing during the second half of

2008 Fluctuations in natural gas prices have significant effect on the price of power especially in the PJM
market where the marginal price for power is often set by gas-fired units In 2008 as compared to 2007 the

energy gross margin earned from our baseload coal units was negatively affected by contracting dark spreads
the difference between the price received for electricity generated compared to the market price of the coal

required to produce the electricity In the fourth quarter of 2008 and in early 2009 the
average market price for

the types of coal that we use declined from the highs observed earlier in 2008 However the average market price
for power also declined during the same period

Climate change concerns have led to significant legislative and regulatory efforts at the state and federal

level to limit greenhouse gas emissions including C02 The costs of compliance with such efforts could affect

our ability to compete in the markets in which we operate especially with our coal-fired generating facilities

Regulatory Environment

The electricity industry is subject to extensive regulation at the federal state and local levels At the federal

level the FERC has exclusive jurisdiction under the Federal Power Act over sales of electricity at wholesale and

the transmission of electricity in interstate commerce Each of our subsidiaries that owns generating facility

selling at wholesale or that markets electricity at wholesale is public utility subject to the FERCs jurisdiction

under the Federal Power Act These subsidiaries must comply with certain FERC reporting requirements and

FERC-approved market rules and they are subject to FERC oversight of
mergers and acquisitions the disposition

of facilities under the FERCs jurisdiction and the issuance of securities

The FERC has authorized our subsidiaries that constitute public utilities under the Federal Power Act to sell

wholesale energy capacity and certain ancillary services at market-based rates The majority of the output of the

generating facilities owned by our subsidiaries is sold pursuant to this market-based rate authorization although
certain of our facilities sell their output under cost-based RMR agreements for which separate rate authorization

was granted by the FERC as explained below The FERC could revoke or limit our market-based rate authority
if it determined that we possess insufficiently mitigated market power in regional electricity market Under the

Natural Gas Act our subsidiary that sells natural gas for resale is deemed by the FERC to have blanket certificate

authority to undertake these sales at market-based rates

The FERC requires that our public utility subsidiaries with market-based rate authority and our subsidiary
with blanket certificate authority adhere to general rules against market manipulation as well as certain market

behavior rules and codes of conduct If any of our subsidiaries were found to have engaged in market

manipulation the FERC has the authority to impose civil penalty of up to $1 million per day per violation In

addition to the civil penalties if any of our subsidiaries were to engage in market manipulation or violate the

market behavior rules or codes of conduct the FERC could require disgorgement of profits or revoke the

subsidiarys market-based rate authority or blanket certificate authority If the FERC were to revoke market-

based rate authority our affected public utility subsidiary would have to file cost-based rate schedule for all or

some of its sales of electricity at wholesale

Our facilities
operate in markets administered by ISOs and RTOs In areas where ISOs or RIOs control the

regional transmission systems market participants have access to broader geographic markets than in regions
without ISOs and RIOs ISOs and RTOs

operate day-ahead and real-time
energy and ancillary services markets

typically governed by FERC-approved tariffs and market rules Some ISOs and RTOs also operate capacity
markets Changes to the applicable tariffs and market rules may be requested by the ISO or RTO or by other

interested persons including market participants and state regulatory agencies and such proposed changes if

approved by the FERC could have significant effect on our operations and financial results Although

participation in ISOs and RTOs by public utilities that own transmission has been and is expected to continue to

be voluntary the majority of such public utilities in Massachusetts New York the Mid-Atlantic and California

have joined the applicable ISO and RIO
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Our subsidiaries owning generating facilities have made such filings and received such orders as are

necessary to obtain exempt wholesale generator status under the PUHCA and the FERCs regulations thereunder

Provided all of our subsidiaries owning generating facilities continue to be exempt wholesale generators or are

qualifying facilities under the Public Utility Regulatory Policies Act of 1978 we and our intermediate holding

companies owning direct or indirect interests in those subsidiaries will remain exempt from the accounting

record retention or reporting requirements that PUHCA imposes on holding companies

State and local regulatory authorities historically have overseen the distribution and sale of electricity at

retail to the ultimate end user as well as the siting permitting and construction of generating and transmission

facilities Our existing generating facilities are subject to variety of state and local regulations including

regulations regarding the environment health and safety and maintenance and expansion of the facilities

Mid-Atlantic Region Our Mid-Atlantic facilities sell electricity into the markets operated by PJM We

have access to the PJM transmission system pursuant to PJMs Open Access Transmission Tariff PJM operates

the PJM Interchange Energy Market which is the regions spot market for wholesale electricity provides

ancillary services for its transmission customers performs
transmission planning for the region and economically

dispatches generating facilities PJM administers day-ahead
and real-time single clearing price markets and

calculates electricity prices based on locational marginal pricing model locational marginal pricing model

determines price for energy at each node in particular zone taking into account the limitations on transmission

of electricity and losses involved in transmitting energy into the zone resulting in higher zonal price when less

expensive energy cannot be imported from another zone Generation owners in PJM are subject to mitigation

which limits the prices that they may receive under certain specified conditions

Load-serving entities within PJM are required to have adequate sources of generating capacity Our

facilities located in the Mid-Atlantic region that sell electricity into the PJM market participate in the reliability

pricing model the RPM forward capacity
market The PJM RPM capacity auctions are designed to provide

forward prices for capacity that are intended to ensure that adequate resources are in place to meet the regions

demand requirements PJM has conducted five PJM RPM capacity auctions and we began receiving payments in

June 2007 as result of the first auction The FERCs orders approving and implementing the PJM RPM capacity

auctions have been appealed to the United States Court of Appeals for the District of Columbia Circuit the DC

Circuit We cannot predict what if any effect the appeal process
will have on the RPM forward capacity

market and the capacity payments that we have received or expect to receive from that market

The results of the PJM RPM capacity auctions for the delivery area where our facilities are located were as

follows

Resource Clearing Price

Auction Date Capacity Period per MW-day

April 2007 June 2007 to May 31 2008 $188.54

July 2007 June 12008 to May 31 2009 $210.11

October 2007 June 2009 to May 31 2010 $237.33

January2008 June l2OlOtoMay3l2011 $174.29

May2008 June 12011 toMay3l2012 $110.00

Since 2008 annual auctions have been conducted to procure capacity three years prior to each delivery

period The first annual auction took place in May 2008 for the provision of capacity from June 2011 to

May 31 2012

On December 12 2008 PJM filed with the FERC to revise elements of the RPM forward capacity market

PJM intends to implement these changes in time for the May 2009 annual auction for the provision of capacity

from June 2012 to May 31 2013 We filed an opposition to the proposed changes with the FERC On

February 2009 PJM and coalition of PJM customers the PJM Load Group as well as several state
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commissions filed settlement agreement with the FERC that would materially modify several provisions of the

December 12 2008 filing to the detriment of suppliers in the RPM capacity auction Under the FERCs rules and

regulations any party to contested proceeding may unilaterally file settlement in that proceeding with the

FERC We filed comments opposing the settlement At this time we do not know if the FERC will
accept reject

or modify PJMs proposed changes to the RPM forward capacity market submitted in both the December 12
2008 filing and February 2009 settlement filing Therefore we cannot predict what effect if any these

changes will have on the May 2009 PJM RPM auction

Northeast Region Our Bowline facility participates in market controlled by the NYISO The NYISO
provides statewide transmission service under single tariff and interfaces with neighboring market control

areas To account for transmission congestion and losses the NYISO calculates energy prices using locational

marginal pricing model The NYISO also administers spot market for energy as well as markets for installed

capacity and services that are ancillary to transmission service such as operating reserves and regulation service

which balances resources with load The NYISOs locational capacity market rules use demand curve

mechanism to determine for every month the required amount of installed
capacity as well as installed capacity

prices to be paid for three locational zones New York City Long Island and Rest of State Our facility operates
in the Rest of State locational zone

Our Canal Kendall and Marthas Vineyard facilities participate in market administered by ISO-NE
Mirant Energy Trading is member of NEPOOL which is voluntary association of electric utilities and other

market participants in Connecticut Maine Massachusetts New Hampshire Rhode Island and Vermont and
which functions as an advisory organization to ISO-NE The FERC approved ISO-NE as the RTO for the New
England region making ISO-NE responsible for market rule filings at the FERC in addition to its responsibilities

for the operation of transmission systems and for the administration and settlement of the wholesale electric

energy capacity and ancillary services markets ISO-NE utilizes locational marginal pricing model similar to

the model used in PJM and NYISO

On March 2006 settlement proposal was filed with the FERC among ISO-NE and multiple market

participants for forward capacity market the FCM under which annual capacity auctions would be

conducted for supply three years in advance of provision The settlement provided for four-year transition

period during which capacity suppliers receive set price for their capacity commencing on December 2006
with price escalators through May 31 2010 Beginning December 2006 our generating facilities began
receiving capacity revenues under the FCM transition period During the FCM transition period we received or
will receive capacity revenues between $3.05 per kW- month and $4.10 per kW-month The first auction took

place in February 2008 for the period June 2010 to May 31 2011 The clearing price was $4.50 per

kW-month which was the price floor established as part of the FCM settlement Our generating facilities will

receive $4.25 per kW-month based on our pro-rata amount of the generating capacity that was sold in the

auction The next auction was held in December 2008 for the period June 2011 to May 31 2012 and the

clearing price was $3.60
per kW-month Our generating facilities will receive $3.12 per kW-month based on our

pro-rata amount of the generating capacity that was sold in the auction In March 2008 the FERCs orders

approving and implementing the FCM were affirmed by the DC Circuit however the DC Circuit reversed

portion of the FERCs orders regarding the rights of non-settling party to challenge the FCM charges through
future proceedings initiated at the FERC On January 15 2009 the FERC issued an order on remand directing
the settling parties to revise the applicable standard of review to be consistent with the DC Circuits decision We
do not expect that the DC Circuits reversal of this element of the FCM or the FERCs actions on remand will

have an effect on the FCM and the capacity payments we receive under the FCM

Ca4fornia Our California facilities are located inside the CAISOs control area The CAISO schedules

transmission transactions arranges for necessary ancillary services and administers real-time balancing energy
market Most sales in California are pursuant to bilateral contracts but significant percentage of electrical

energy is sold in the real-time market The CAISO does not operate forward market like those described for

PJM and other eastern markets nor does it currently operate capacity market
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The CAISO has proposed changes to its market design to mirror more closely the eastern markets but not

including capacity market Although the CAISO has delayed the market redesign several times it now expects

to fully implement it in 2009 The CPUC has begun proceeding to develop together with the CAISO

wholesale capacity market FERC approval would be required for any such capacity
market to become effective

We cannot at this time predict the outcome of the CPUC proceeding or the timing or structure of wholesale

capacity market in California

Mirant Potrero is party to PPA with PGE that from 2006 through 2012 allows PGE to dispatch and

purchase the output of our Potrero units that have been designated RMR units which for 2009 includes all of the

Potrero units Under the PPA through 2008 PGE paid us charges equivalent to the rates we charged during 2004

when the units were designated as RMR units reduced by $1.4 million for each year since 2004 For 2009 through

2012 the charges for the units that are then subject to the PPA will be determined annually by the FERC pursuant to

the cost-based formula rates set forth in the RMR agreement On December 2008 the FERC issued an order

approving the charges for the Potrero units for 2009 and 2010 The approved PPA charges for 2009 and 2010 are

expected to result in approximately
the same level of gross margin for Mirant Potrero as it recognized for 2008

Environmental Regulation

Our business is subject to extensive environmental regulation by federal state and local authorities We

must comply with applicable laws and regulations and obtain and comply with the terms of government issued

permits Our costs of complying with environmental laws regulations and permits are substantial including

significant environmental capital expenditures See Item Managements Discussion and Analysis of Results

of Operations and Financial ConditionCapital Expenditures and Capital Resources for additional information

We expect that available cash and future cash flows from operations will be sufficient to fund these capital

expenditures

Air Emissions Regulations

Our most significant
environmental requirements generally fall under the Clean Air Act regional initiatives

and similar state laws Under the Clean Air Act we are required to comply with broad range
of mandates

concerning air emissions operating practices and pollution control equipment Most of our facilities are located

in or near metropolitan areas including New York City Boston San Francisco and Washington D.C which are

classified by the EPA as not achieving certain NAAQS non-attainment areas As result of the classification

of each of these areas as non-attainment area our operations are subject to more stringent air pollution

requirements than those applicable to plants located elsewhere Various states where we have facilities also have

other air quality laws and regulations with increasingly stringent limitations and requirements that will affect us

in future years
In the future we expect increased regulation of our air emissions Significant air regulatory

programs to which we are subject are described below

Clean Air Interstate Rule CAIR In 2005 the EPA promulgated the CAIR which established in the

eastern United States SO2 and NOx cap-and-allowance trading programs applicable directly to states and

indirectly to generating facilities These cap-and-trade programs were to be implemented in two phases with the

first phase going into effect in 2009 for NOx and 2010 for SO2 and more stringent caps going into effect in 2015

Various parties appealed the EPAs adoption of the CAIR and on July 11 2008 the DC Circuit in State of North

Carolina Environmental Protection Agency issued an opinion that would have vacated the CAIR Various

parties filed requests for rehearing with the DC Circuit and on December 23 2008 the DC Circuit issued

second opinion in which it granted rehearing only to the extent that it remanded the case to the EPA without

vacating the CAIR Accordingly the CAIR will remain effective until it is replaced by rule consistent with the

DC Circuits opinions

Maryland Healthy Air Act The Maryland Healthy Air Act was enacted in April 2006 and requires

reductions in SO2 NOx and mercury emissions from large coal-fired power facilities The state law also requires
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Maryland to join the RGGI which is discussed below The Maryland Healthy Air Act prohibits power facilities

from purchasing emissions allowances instead of installing emissions control equipment We are installing FGD
emissions controls at our Chalk Point Dickerson and Morgantown coal-fired units In addition we have installed

selective catalytic reduction systems at the Morgantown coal-fired units and one of the Chalk Point coal-fired

units and selective auto catalytic reduction system at the other Chalk Point coal-fired unit We are installing

selective non-catalytic reduction systems at the three Dickerson coal-fired units These controls will be capable
of reducing emissions of S02 NOx and mercury by approximately 98% 90% and 80% respectively for three of

our largest coal-fired units

The Maryland Healthy Air Act imposes mass limits for emissions of NOx in 2009 with further reductions

in 2012 including sublimits during the Ozone Season and ii emissions of S02 in 2010 with further reductions

in 2013 The Maryland Healthy Air Act also imposes restrictions on emissions of mercury beginning in 2010

with further reductions in 2013 The control equipment we have installed or are installing to meet Maryland state

standards will allow our Maryland facilities to comply with all of the requirements of the Maryland Healthy

Air Act and the first phase of the CAIR without having to purchase emissions allowances

Including amounts already spent to date we expect to incur total capital expenditures of $1 .674 billion to

comply with the requirements for S02 NOx and mercury emissions under the Maryland Healthy Air Act On
July 30 2007 our subsidiaries Mirant Mid-Atlantic and Mirant Chalk Point entered into an agreement with

Stone Webster Inc for engineering procurement and construction services relating to the installation of the

FGD systems described above The expected cost under the agreement is approximately $1.13 billion and is

part of the $1 .674 billion of capital expenditures that we expect to incur to comply with the Maryland Healthy

Air Act We will have planned outages in 2009 to complete the installation of the FGD control systems During
those outages we also will perform routine maintenance activities As of December 31 2008 we have paid

approximately $997 million of the $1 .674 billion for capital expenditures related to the Maryland Healthy Air

Act For the year ended December 31 2008 we paid $683 million for capital expenditures excluding capitalized

interest of which $497 million related to the Maryland Healthy Air Act We expect that available cash and future

cash flows from operations will be sufficient to fund the remaining capital expenditures

Clean Air Mercury Rule CAMR In 2005 the EPA issued the CAMR which would have limited total

annual mercury emissions from coal-fired power plants across the United States through two-phased cap-and-

trade program In February 2008 the DC Circuit vacated the CAMR and the EPAs decision to delist coal- and

oil-fired electric utility steam generating units from sources regulated under section 112 of the Clean Air Act
The EPA and the Utility Air Regulatory Group sought review of the DC Circuits decision by the United States

Supreme Court In February 2009 the EPA filed to withdraw its petition for review stating that it intends to

promulgate alternative regulations to address mercury emissions and the United States Supreme Court

subsequently denied the petition for review As result of the DC Circuit decision mercury emissions from coal-

and oil-fired generating facilities are now subject to Section 112 of the Clean Air Act which authorizes the EPA
to develop standards for the installation of maximum achievable control technology MACT to reduce

emissions of Hazardous Air Pollutants including mercury While the EPA has the authority to develop MACT
standards for mercury it has not yet promulgated such standards We expect many of our coal-fired facilities to

emit less mercury as result of the SO2 and NOx controls that have been or soon will be installed

NSR Enforcement Initiative In 2001 the EPA requested information concerning some of our facilities in

Maryland and Virginia covering time period that pre-dates our acquisition or lease of those facilities in

December 2000 We responded fully to this request Under the APSA Pepco is responsible for fines and

penalties arising from any violation associated with operations prior to our subsidiaries acquisition or lease of

the facilities If violation is determined to have occurred at any of the facilities our subsidiary owning or

leasing the facilities may be responsible for the cost of purchasing and installing emissions control equipment
the cost of which may be material Our subsidiaries owning or leasing the Chalk Point Dickerson and

Morgantown facilities in Maryland are installing variety of emissions control equipment at those facilities to

comply with the Maryland Healthy Air Act but that equipment may not include all of the pollution control

equipment that could be required if violation of the EPAs NSR regulations is determined to have occurred at
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one or more of those facilities If such violation is determined to have occurred after our subsidiaries acquired

or leased the facilities or if occurring prior to the acquisition or lease is determined to constitute continuing

violation our subsidiary owning or leasing the facility at issue could also be subject to fines and penalties by the

state or federal government for the period after its acquisition or lease of the facility the cost of which may be

material although applicable bankruptcy law may bar such liability for periods prior to January 2006 when

the Plan became effective for us and our subsidiaries that own or lease these facilities

Massachusetts CAIR Implementation The Commonwealth of Massachusetts Department of Environmental

Protection MADEP promulgated regulations to take effect in 2009 to reduce NOx emissions from certain

generating facilities The Massachusetts regulations will require our Canal and Kendall generating facilities during

the Ozone Season to reduce their emissions of NOx or utilize emissions allowances in amounts greater than they

utilized prior to 2009

New York CAIR Implementation The NYSDEC promulgated regulations implementing the S02 and NOx

emissions reductions required by the federal CAIR beginning in 2009 Those regulations will limit NOx emissions

through both an annual cap-and-trade program and through seasonal cap-and-trade program during the Ozone

Season which will require our Bowline generating facility to reduce its emissions of NOx by running less or

increasing its utilization of emissions allowances The regulations also provide for an SO2 emissions program

beginning in 2010 that will mandate increased utilization of federal SO2 allowances for every ton of S02 emitted

Virginia CAIR Implementation In April 2006 Virginia enacted legislation that among other things granted

the Virginia State Air Pollution Control Board the discretion to prohibit electric generating facilities located in

non-attainment area from purchasing S02 and NOx allowances to achieve compliance under the CAIR In the

fourth quarter
of 2007 the Virginia State Air Pollution Control Board approved regulations that it interprets as

prohibiting the trading of S02 and NOx allowances by facilities in non-attainment areas to satisfy the requirements

of the CAIR as implemented by Virginia Our Potomac River facility is located in non-attainment area for ozone

Thus this Virginia regulation effectively caps our SO2 and NOx emissions at amounts equal to the allowances

allocated to the facility Mirant Potomac River has appealed these regulations in Virginia state court In July 2008

the Virginia state court issued ruling dismissing our appeal which ruling we have appealed We have also

petitioned
the EPA to reconsider and the United States Court of Appeals for the Fourth Circuit the Fourth

Circuit to review the EPAs final rule approving Virginias CAIR program

New York Consent Decree In 2000 the State of New York issued an NOV to the previous owner of our

Lovett facility alleging NSR violations associated with the operation of that facility prior to its acquisition by us To

resolve the issues raised by the State of New York on June 11 2003 Mirant New York Mirant Lovett and the State

of New York entered into the 2003 Consent Decree Under the 2003 Consent Decree Mirant Lovett had three

options install emissions controls on Lovetts two coal-fired units units and shut down unit and

convert unit to natural gas or shut down unit in 2008 and unit in 2007 We concluded that the installation

of the required emissions controls was uneconomic We also concluded that operating
unit on natural gas was

uneconomic

On May 10 2007 Mirant Lovett entered into an amendment to the 2003 Consent Decree with the State of New

York that switched the deadlines for shutting down units and so that the deadline for compliance by unit was

extended until April 30 2008 and the deadline for unit was shortened We discontinued operation of unit as of

May 2007 In addition we discontinued operation of unit because it was uneconomic to run the unit We shut

down unit on April 19 2008 and have substantially completed the demolition of the Lovett facility

State Regulation of Greenhouse Gases including the RGGI Concern over climate change has led to

significant legislative and regulatory efforts at the state and federal level to limit greenhouse gas
emissions One

such effort is the RGGI multi-state initiative in the Northeast outlining cap-and-trade program to reduce CO2

emissions from units of 25 MW or greater The RGGI program calls for signatory states to stabilize CO2 emissions

to current levels from 2009 to 2015 followed by 2.5% reduction each year from 2015 to 2018 Regulations to

implement the RGGI have now been approved in each of Maryland Massachusetts and New York
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In 2009 we expect to produce approximately 16.6 million tons of C02 at our Maryland Massachusetts and

New York generating facilities The RGGI regulations require those facilities to obtain allowances to emit C02
beginning in 2009 No allowances were granted to existing sources of such emissions Instead allowances have

been made available for such facilities only by purchase through periodic auctions conducted quarterly or

through subsequent purchase from party that holds allowances sold through quarterly auction
process The

Maryland regulations implementing the RGGI also provide that if the allowance clearing price exceeds $7

adjusted by changes in the consumer price index since 2005 per ton of C02 in the auctions of allowances that

occur during the first three years Maryland will withhold the remainder of that years allowances from sale in

any future auction during that calendar year and make those allowances available by direct sale to generators in

Maryland In this scenario between zero and 50% of Marylands allowances allocated for sale in that year may
be made available for purchase by such generators Any such allowances made available for each generator to

purchase at $7 per ton as adjusted will be in proportion to each generators annual average heat input during the

period 2003 through 2005 as compared to the total
average input for all affected Maryland generators in

existence at that time

The first auction of allowances by the RGGI states was held on September 25 2008 The clearing price for

the approximately 12.5 million allowances sold in the auction was $3.07 per ton The second auction took place
in December 2008 and the clearing price for the approximately 31.5 million allowances sold was $3.38 per ton

The allowances sold in these auctions can be used for compliance in any of the RGGI states Further auctions

will occur on quarterly basis through 2011

We are continuing to evaluate our options to comply with the RGGI but its implementation in Maryland
Massachusetts and New York could have material adverse effect upon our operations and our operating costs

depending upon the availability and cost of emissions allowances and the extent to which such costs may be

offset by higher market prices to recover increases in operating costs caused by the RGGI

In California emissions of greenhouse gases are governed by the Global Warming Solutions Act AB 32
which requires that greenhouse gas emissions be reduced to 1990 levels by 2020 AB 32 also requires the

California Air Resources Board to develop by January 2009 greenhouse gas reduction plan for all industrial

sectors In December 2008 the California Air Resource Board approved plan for implementing AB 32 The

plan contemplates cap-and-trade program beginning in 2012 AB32 and any plans rules and programs

approved to implement AB 32 could have material adverse effect on how we operate our California facilities

and the costs of operating the facilities

In August 2008 Massachusetts also adopted the Global Warming Solutions Act the Climate Protection

Act which establishes program to reduce greenhouse gas emissions significantly over the next 40 years

Under the Climate Protection Act the MADEP is to establish reporting and verification system for statewide

greenhouse gas emissions including emissions from generating facilities producing all electricity consumed in

Massachusetts and to determine what the states greenhouse gas emissions level was in 1990 The Massachusetts

Executive Office of Energy and Environmental Affairs MAEEA is then to establish statewide greenhouse gas
emissions limits effective beginning in 2020 that will reduce such emissions from the 1990 levels by range of

10% to 25% beginning in 2020 with the reduction
increasing to 80% below 1990 levels by 2050 In setting these

limits the MAEEA is to consider the potential costs and benefits of various reduction measures including

emissions limits for electric generating facilities and may consider the use of market-based compliance
mechanisms violation of the emissions limits established under the Climate Protection Act may result in

civil penalty of up to $25000 per day Implementation of the Climate Protection Act could have material

adverse effect on how we operate our Massachusetts facilities and the costs of operating those facilities

Federal Regulation of Greenhouse Gases Various bills have been proposed in Congress to govern CO2
emissions from generating facilities Also in light of the United States Supreme Court ruling in Massachusetts

EPA that greenhouse gases fit within the Clean Air Acts definition of air pollutant the EPA may also

promulgate regulations regarding the emission of greenhouse gases Congress or the EPA will likely take action
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to regulate C02 within the next several years The final form of such regulation will be influenced by political

and economic factors and is uncertain at this time Current proposals include cap-and-trade system
that would

require us to purchase allowances for the C02 emitted by our generating facilities While we expect that market

prices for electricity would increase following such regulation
and would allow us to recover most of the cost of

these allowances we cannot predict with any certainty the actual increases in costs such regulation could impose

upon us or our ability to recover such cost increases through higher market rates for electricity and these

regulations could have material adverse effect on our consolidated statements of operations financial position

or cash flows We expect to produce approximately 18.3 million tons of C02 at all of our generating facilities in

2009

Water Regulations

We are required under the Clean Water Act to comply with intake and discharge requirements requirements

for technological controls and operating practices To discharge water we generally need permits required by the

Clean Water Act Such permits typically are subject to review every
five years As with air quality regulations

federal and state water regulations are expected to impose additional and more stringent requirements or

limitations in the future This is particularly the case for regulatory requirements governing cooling water intake

structures which are subject to regulation under section 316b of the Clean Water Act the 316

regulations 2007 decision by the United States Court of Appeals for the Second Circuit the Second

Circuit in Riverkeeper Inc et al EPA in which the court remanded to the EPA for reconsideration numerous

provisions of the EPAs section 316b regulations for existing power plants has created substantial uncertainty

about exactly what technologies or other measures will be needed to satisfy section 316b requirements in the

future and when any new requirements will be imposed That decision by the Second Circuit is under review by

the United States Supreme Court

Endangered Species Acts Mirant Deltas use of water from the Sacramento-San Joaquin Delta at its

Contra Costa and Pittsburg generating facilities potentially affects certain fish species protected under the Federal

Endangered Species Act and the California Endangered Species Act Mirant Delta therefore must maintain

authorization under both statutes to engage in operations that could result in take of i.e cause harm to fish of

the protected species In January and February 2006 Mirant Delta received correspondence from the United

States Fish and Wildlife Service and the Army Corps of Engineers expressing the view that the Federal

Endangered Species Act take authorization for the Contra Costa and Pittsburg facilities was no longer in effect as

result of changed circumstances Mirant Delta disagreed with the agencies characterization of its take

authorization as no longer being in effect In late October 2007 Mirant Delta received correspondence from the

United States Fish and Wildlife Service the National Marine Fisheries Service and the Army Corps of Engineers

clarifying that Mirant Delta continued to be authorized to take four species of fish protected under the Federal

Endangered Species Act The agencies have initiated process that will review the environmental effects of

Mirant Deltas water usage including effects on the protected species of fish That process
could lead to changes

in the manner in which Mirant Delta can use river water for the operation of the Contra Costa and Pittsburg

generating facilities

Mirant and Mirant Delta received two letters one dated September 27 2007 sent on behalf of the Coalition

for Sustainable Delta four water districts and an individual and the second dated October 16 2007 sent on

behalf of San Francisco Baykeeper collectively with the parties sending the September 27 2007 letter the

Noticing Parties providing notice that the Noticing Parties intend to file suit alleging that Mirant Delta has

violated and continues to violate the Federal Endangered Species Act through the operation of its Contra Costa

and Pittsburg generating facilities The Noticing Parties contend that the facilities use of water drawn from the

Sacramento-San Joaquin Delta for cooling purposes results in harm to four species of fish listed as endangered

species The Noticing Parties assert that Mirant Deltas authorizations to take i.e cause harm to those species

biological opinions and incidental take statements issued by the National Marine Fisheries Service on

October 17 2002 for three of the fish species and the United States Fish and Wildlife Service on November

2002 for the fourth fish species have been violated by Mirant Delta Therefore the notifying parties assert that
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the authorizations for the effects on the four fish species caused by the operation of the Contra Costa and

Pittsburg generating facilities are no longer applicable Following receipt of these letters in late October 2007
Mirant Delta received correspondence from the United States Fish and Wildlife Service the National Marine

Fisheries Service and the Army Corps of Engineers clarifying that Mirant Delta continued to be authorized to

take the four species of fish protected under the Federal Endangered Species Act The agencies have initiated

process that will review the environmental effects of Mirant Deltas water usage including effects on the

protected species of fish That process could lead to changes in the manner in which Mirant Delta can use river

water for the operation of the Contra Costa and Pittsburg generating facilities In subsequent letter the

Coalition for Sustainable Delta also alleged violations of the National Environmental Policy Act and the

California Endangered Species Act associated with the operation of Mirant Deltas facilities Mirant Delta

disputes the allegations made by the Noticing Parties No lawsuits have been filed to date and San Francisco

Baykeeper on February 2008 withdrew its notice of intent to sue

Additionally in September 2007 Mirant Delta signed an amendment to Memorandum of Agreement with

the California Department of Fish and Game The amendment requires Mirant Delta to initiate monitoring of the

effects on fish of the operations of the Contra Costa and Pittsburg generating facilities to prepare an

environmental impact report and to submit within 24 months an application for new permit authorizing Mirant

Delta to take the protected fish species affected by the operation of its facilities The amendment extends Mirant

Deltas authorization for take of fish species protected under the California Endangered Species Act until the

California Department of Fish and Game completes its consideration of the application for the new permit

Pot rero National Pollution Discharge Elimination System Permit On June 2006 Bayview-Hunters
Point Community Advocates and Communities for Better Environment filed petition challenging the issuance

of the National Pollution Discharge Elimination System NPDES permit for our Potrero facility On
February 2007 Bayview-Hunters Point Community Advocates and Communities for Better Environment

filed another petition with
request to amend their initial petition On March 21 2007 the California State Water

Resources Control Board notified the parties that petitioners requested that as of March 19 2007 the two

petitions be moved from active status to abeyance Those petitions currently remain in abeyance Additionally
on June 15 2007 Bayview-Hunters Point Community Advocates and Conmiunities for Better Environment

and San Francisco Baykeeper filed third petition requesting that the NPDES permits for Potrero and Mirant

Deltas Pittsburg facility be reopened The State Water Resources Control Board denied that petition on
November 27 2007

Kendall NPDES and Surface Water Discharge Permit On September 26 2006 the EPA issued to Mirant

Kendall an NPDES renewal permit for the Kendall generating facility The same permit was concurrently issued

by the MADEP as state Surface Water Discharge Permit SWD Permit and was accompanied by MADEPs
earlier issued water quality certificate under section 401 of the Clean Water Act The new permits impose new
temperature limits at various points in the Charles River an extensive temperature water quality and biological

monitoring program and requirement to develop and install barrier net system to reduce fish impingement and
entrainment The provisions regulating the thermal discharge could cause substantial curtailments of the

operations of the Kendall facility Mirant Kendall has appealed the permits in three proceedings appeal of the

NPDES permit to the EPAs Environmental Appeals Board appeal of the SWD Permit to the MADEP and

appeal of the water quality certification to the MADEP The effect of the permits has been stayed pending the

outcome of these appeals The two appeals to the MADEP have been stayed pending the outcome of the appeal
to the Environmental Appeals Board On September 28 2007 the Environmental Appeals Board stayed the

appeal proceedings until April 18 2008 in order for the EPA to address the sections of the permit that are

affected by the EPAs suspension of the 316b regulations as result of the 2007 decision by the Second Circuit

in Riverkeeper Inc et al EPA Subsequent orders by the Environmental Appeals Board have extended that

stay to March 2009 On March 2008 the EPA and the MADEP issued draft permit modification to address

the 316b provisions of the permit that would require modifications to the intake structure for the Kendall

generating facility to add fine and coarse mesh barrier exclusion technologies and to install mechanism to

sweep organisms away from the intake structure through an induced water flow On May 2008 Mirant
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Kendall submitted comments on the draft permit modification objecting to the new requirements On

December 19 2008 the EPA and the MADEP issued final permit modifications to address the 316b

regulations Those final permit modifications did not substantially modify the requirements proposed in the draft

modifications and on February 2009 Mirant Kendall filed an appeal of those modifications While the appeals

are pending the effect of any contested permit provisions will be stayed and the Kendall generating facility will

continue to operate under its current NPDES permit We are unable to predict the outcome of these proceedings

Canal NPDES and SWD Permit On August 2008 the EPA issued to Mirant Canal an NPDES renewal

permit for the Canal generating facility The same permit was concurrently issued by MADEP as state SWD

Permit and was accompanied by MADEP earlier water quality certificate under section 401 of the Clean Water

Act The new permit imposes requirement on Mirant Canal to install closed cycle cooling or an alternative

technology that will reduce the entrainment of marine organisms by the Canal generating facility to levels

equivalent to what would be achieved by closed cycle cooling Mirant Canal appealed the NPDES permit to the

EPAs Environmental Appeals Board and appealed the surface water discharge and the water quality certificate

to the MADEP On December 2008 the EPA requested stay to the appeal proceedings until June 2009 and

withdrew provisions related to the closed cycle cooling requirements The EPA has re-noticed these provisions as

draft conditions for additional public comment Mirant Canal filed comments on January 29 2009 stating that

installing closed cycle cooling at the Canal generating facility was not justified and that without some cost-

recovery
mechanism the cost would make continued operation of the facility uneconomic While the appeals of

the renewal permit are pending the effect of any contested permit provisions is stayed and the Canal generating

facility will continue to operate under its current NPDES permit We cannot predict the outcome of this

proceeding

NPDES and State Pollutant Discharge Elimination System Permit Renewals In addition to the

proceedings
described above in Kendall NPDES and Surface Water Discharge Permit and Canal NPDES and

SWD Permit related to the renewal of the NPDES permit for the Kendall and Canal facilities proceedings are

currently pending for renewal of the NPDES permits for the Dickerson and Morgantown facilities leased by

Mirant Mid-Atlantic the Chalk Point facility owned by Mirant Chalk Point three ash sites in Maryland owned

by Mirant MD Ash Management the Potomac River facility owned by Mirant Potomac River the Contra Costa

and Pittsburg facilities owned by Mirant Delta and the Potrero facility owned by Mirant Potrero proceeding is

also pending for renewal of the State Pollutant Discharge Elimination System SPDES permit for the Bowline

facility owned by Mirant Bowline

In general the EPA and the state agencies responsible for implementing the provisions of the Clean Water

Act applicable to the intake of water and discharge of effluent by electric generating facilities have been making

the requirements imposed upon such facilities more stringent over time For example with respect to the Potrero

facility the California Regional Water Quality Control Board has previously stated its intent not to renew the

facilitys NPDES permit unless Mirant Potrero can demonstrate that the operation of the facility does not

adversely affect the San Francisco Bay With respect to each of these permit renewal proceedings the permit

renewal proceeding could take years to resolve and the agency or agencies involved could impose requirements

upon the Mirant entity owning the facility that require significant capital expenditures limit the times at which

the facility can operate or increase operations and maintenance costs materially

Wastes Hazardous Materials and Contamination

Our facilities are subject to laws and regulations governing waste management The Federal Resource

Conservation and Recovery Act of 1976 and many analogous state laws contains comprehensive requirements

for the handling of solid and hazardous wastes The generation of electricity produces non-hazardous and

hazardous materials and we incur substantial costs to store and dispose of waste materials The EPA and the

states in which we operate coal-fired units may develop new regulations that impose additional requirements on

facilities that store or dispose of materials remaining after the combustion of fossil fuels including types of coal

ash If so we may be required to change the current waste management practices at some facilities and incur

additional costs
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In November 2008 the MDE promulgated new regulations to govern the handling storage recycling and

disposal of coal combustion byproducts in Maryland We have challenged portions of these new regulations in

state court because they do not provide adequate time for effectuating the required changes to our facilities and

they are unclear in many respects

Additionally CERCLA also known as the Superfund law establishes federal framework for dealing with

the cleanup of contaminated sites Many states have enacted similar state superfund statutes as well as other laws

imposing obligations to investigate and clean up contamination Our Contra Costa Pittsburg and Potrero

facilities have areas of soil and groundwater contamination subject to CERCLA and the California Health and

Safety Code In 1998 prior to our acquisition of those facilities from PGE consultants for PGE conducted

soil and groundwater investigations at those facilities which revealed contamination The consultants conducting

the investigation estimated the aggregate cleanup costs at those facilities could be as much as $60 million

Pursuant to the terms of the Purchase and Sale Agreement with PGE PGE has responsibility for the

containment or capping of all soil and groundwater contamination and the disposition of up to 60000 cubic yards

of contaminated soil from the Potrero generating facility and the remediation of any groundwater or solid

contamination identified by PGEs consultants in 1998 at the Contra Costa and Pittsburg generating facilities

before those facilities were purchased in 1999 by our subsidiaries Pursuant to our requests PGE has disposed

of 807 cubic yards of contaminated soil from the Potrero generating facility We are not aware of soil or

groundwater conditions for which we expect remediation costs to be material that are not the responsibility of

other parties
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Employees

At December 31 2008 we employed 1661 people which included approximately 1146 employees at our

generating facilities 62 employees at our regional offices and 453 employees at our corporate headquarters in

Atlanta Georgia The following details the employees subject to collective bargaining agreements

Number of Contract

Employees Expiration

Union Location Covered Date

Mid-Atlantic Region

IBEW Local 1900 Maryland and Virginia 530 6/1/2010

Northeast Region

IBEW Local 5031 New York 49 4/30/2013

UWUA Local 3692 Cambridge

Massachusetts 34 2/28/2009

UWUA Local 480 Sandwich Massachusetts 46 6/1/2011

California

IBEW Local 1245 California 118 10/31/2013

Total
777

Our previous contract with Local 503 expired on June 2008 After reaching an impasse in negotiations with Local 503

on January 28 2009 we unilaterally implemented the terms of our final offer to the union Bargaining unit employees

have continued to work under the terms imposed by us without disruption

We are currently in negotiations with Local 369 on new agreements

To mitigate and reduce the risk of disruption during labor negotiations we engage in contingency planning

for operation of our generating facilities to the extent possible during an adverse collective action by one or more

of our unions
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Item 1A Risk Factors

The following are factors that could affect our future performance

Our revenues are unpredictable because most of our facilities operate without long-term power sales

agreements and our revenues and results of operations depend on market and competitive forces that are

beyond our control

We sell capacity energy and ancillary services from our generating facilities into competitive power
markets on short-term fixed price basis or through power sales agreements Since mid-2007 our revenues from

selling capacity have become significant part of our overall revenues Except for our Potrero facility we are not

guaranteed recovery of our costs or any return on our capital investments through mandated rates The market for

wholesale electric energy and energy services reflects various market conditions beyond our control including

the balance of supply and demand our competitors marginal and long run costs of production and the effect of

market regulation Being concentrated in few geographic markets results in concentrated exposure to those

markets especially PJM The price for which we can sell our output may fluctuate on day-to-day basis and our

ability to transact may be affected by the overall liquidity in the markets in which we operate The markets in

which we compete remain subject to one or more forms of regulation that limit our ability to raise prices during

periods of shortage to the degree that would occur in fully deregulated market and may thereby limit our ability

to recover costs and an adequate return on our investment Our revenues and results of operations are influenced

by factors that are beyond our control including

the failure of market regulators to develop and maintain efficient mechanisms to compensate merchant

generators for the value of providing capacity needed to meet demand

actions by regulators ISOs RTOs and other bodies that may prevent capacity and energy prices from

rising to the level necessary for recovery of our costs our investment and an adequate return on our

investment

legal and political challenges to the rules used to calculate capacity payments in the markets in which

we operate

the possibility that the appellate court considering the pending appeal of the FERCs rulings that

approved the RPM provisions of PJMs tariff does not affirm the FERCs approval of those provisions

resulting in modifications to the capacity payments made under that tariff in the future and possibly

refunds for past periods

the ability of wholesale purchasers of power to make timely payment for
energy or capacity which

may be adversely affected by factors such as retail rate caps refusals by regulators to allow utilities to

recover fully their wholesale power costs and investments through rates catastrophic losses and losses

from investments by utilities in unregulated businesses

increases in prevailing market prices for fuel oil coal natural gas and emissions allowances that may
not be reflected in prices we receive for sales of energy

increases in supplies as result of actions of our current competitors or new market entrants including

the development of new generating facilities or alternative
energy sources that may be able to produce

electricity less expensively than our generating facilities and improvements in transmission that allow

additional supply to reach our markets

decreases in energy consumption resulting from demand-side management programs such as automated

demand response which may alter the amount and timing of consumer energy use

the competitive advantages of certain competitors including continued operation of older power plants

in strategic locations after recovery of historic capital costs from ratepayers
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existing or future regulation of our markets by the FERC ISOs and RTOs including any price

limitations and other mechanisms to address some of the price volatility or illiquidity in these markets

or the physical stability of the system

regulatory policies of state agencies that affect the willingness of our customers to enter into long-term

contracts generally and contracts for capacity in particular

changes in the rate of growth in electricity usage as result of such factors as national and regional

economic conditions and implementation of conservation programs

seasonal variations in energy and gas prices and capacity payments and

seasonal fluctuations in weather in particular abnormal weather conditions

In addition unlike most other commodities electric energy can only be stored on very limited basis and

generally must be produced at the time of use As result the wholesale power markets are subject to substantial

price fluctuations over relatively short periods of time and can be unpredictable

The global financial crisis may have an effect on our business andfinancial condition in ways that we

currently cannot predict

The continued credit crisis and related turmoil in the global financial system has had and may continue to

have an effect on our business and our financial condition For example in October 2008 Lehman Commercial

Paper Inc subsidiary of Lehman Brothers Holdings Inc and lender under the senior secured revolving

credit facility of our subsidiary Mirant North America filed for bankruptcy As result of the Lehman

Commercial Paper Inc bankruptcy we expect that the total availability under our senior secured revolving credit

facility has decreased from $800 million to $755 million assuming that Lehman Commercial Paper Inc does

not honor its $45 million commitment While we do not expect that the Lehman Commercial Paper Inc

bankruptcy will have material adverse effect on Mirant the credit crisis could negatively affect availability

under the Mirant North America senior secured revolving credit facility if other lenders under such facility are

forced to file for bankruptcy or are otherwise unable to perform their obligations Absent significant

non-performance of lenders under the existing Mirant North America senior secured revolving credit facility we

think that we have sufficient liquidity for future operations including potential working capital requirements

and capital expenditures as discussed in Item Managements Discussion and Analysis of Results of

Operations and Financial ConditionLiquidity and Capital Resources However in the event of significant

non-performance of lenders under the existing Mirant North America senior secured revolving credit facility the

credit crisis could have negative effect on our ability to obtain new lines of credit if financial institutions are

unwilling or unable to enter into new revolving credit facilities

In addition to the potential effect on our liquidity that could arise from the global financial crisis the crisis

could have negative effect on the markets in which we sell power purchase fuel and perform other trading and

marketing activities In recent years global financial institutions have been active participants in such markets As

such financial institutions consolidate and operate under more restrictive capital constraints in response to the

financial crisis there could be less liquidity in the energy and commodity markets which could have negative

effect on our ability to hedge and transact with creditworthy counterparties In addition we are exposed to credit

risk resulting from the possibility that loss may occur from the failure of counterparty to perform according to

the terms of contractual arrangement with us Deterioration in the financial condition of our counterparties as

result of the global financial crisis and the resulting failure to pay amounts owed to us or to perform obligations or

services owed to us beyond collateral posted could have negative effect on our business and financial condition

Because of the current market design in California our generating facilities may have limited life unless we

make significant capital expenditures to increase their commercial and environmental performance

Our generating facilities in California depend almost entirely on payments in support of system reliability

The energy market as currently constituted will not justify the capital expenditures necessary to repower or
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reconstruct our facilities to make them commercially viable in merchant market If commercially reasonable

capacity market were to be instituted by the CAISO or we could obtain contract with creditworthy buyer it is

possible that we could justify investing the
necessary capital to repower or reconstruct our facilities Absent that

our generating facilities will be commercially viable only as long as they are necessary for reliability

Changes in commodity prices may negatively affect our financial results by increasing the cost ofproducing

power or lowering the price at which we are able to sell our power

Our generating business is subject to changes in power prices and fuel costs and these commodity prices are

influenced by many factors outside our control including weather market liquidity transmission and

transportation inefficiencies availability of competitively priced alternative energy sources demand for energy

commodities production of natural gas crude oil and coal natural disasters wars embargoes and other

catastrophic events and federal state and environmental regulation and legislation Significant fluctuations in

commodity prices may affect our financial results and financial position by increasing the cost of producing

power and decreasing the amounts we receive from the sale of power Specifically significant fluctuations in the

price of coal may affect the financial position of the coal suppliers with which we have contracted In addition

significant fluctuations in the price of natural gas may cause significant fluctuations in the price of electricity

Our use of derivative financwl instruments in our asset management activities will not fully protect us from

fluctuations in commodity prices and our risk management policy cannot eliminate the risks associated with

these activities

We engage in asset management activities related to sales of electricity and purchases of fuel The income

and losses from these activities are recorded as operating revenues and fuel costs We may use forward contracts

and other derivative financial instruments to manage market risk and
exposure to volatility in prices of

electricity coal natural gas emissions and oil We cannot provide assurance that these strategies will be

successful in managing our price risks or that they will not result in net losses to us as result of future volatility

in electricity fuel and emissions markets Actual power prices and fuel costs may differ from our expectations

Our asset management activities include natural gas derivative financial instruments that we use to hedge

power prices for our baseload generation The effectiveness of these hedges is dependent upon the correlation

between power and natural gas prices in the markets where we operate If those prices are not sufficiently

correlated our financial results and financial position could be adversely affected

Additionally we expect to have an open position in the market within our established guidelines resulting

from the management of our portfolio To the extent open positions exist fluctuating commodity prices can

affect our financial results and financial position either favorably or unfavorably Furthermore the risk

management procedures we have in place may not always be followed or may not always work as planned
Unauthorized hedging and related activities by our employees could result in significant penalties and financial

losses As result of these and other factors we cannot predict the outcome that risk management decisions may
have on our business operating results or financial position Although management devotes considerable

attention to these issues their outcome is uncertain

We are exposed to the risk offuel andfuel transportation cost increases and volatility and interruption in fuel

supply because our facilities generally do not have long-term agreements for the supply of natural gas coal and oiL

Although we attempt to purchase fuel based on our expected fuel requirements we still face the risks of

supply interruptions and fuel price volatility Our cost of fuel may not reflect changes in energy and fuel prices in

part because we must pre-purchase inventories of coal and oil for reliability and dispatch requirements and thus

the price of fuel may have been determined at an earlier date than the price of energy generated from it The price

we can obtain from the sale of energy may not rise at the same rate or may not rise at all to match rise in fuel

costs This may have material adverse effect on our financial performance The volatility of fuel prices could

adversely affect our financial results and operations

26



The average
market price for the types of coal that we use was approximately 107% higher in the year ended

December 31 2008 than in 2007 Global demand for coal to generate electricity has been significant factor

influencing domestic prices for the types of coal that we use At the same time the prices for power and natural

gas were extremely volatile increasing during the first half of 2008 and decreasing during the second half of

2008 Fluctuations in natural
gas prices have significant effect on the price of power especially in the PJM

market where the marginal price for power is often set by gas-fired units In 2008 as compared to 2007 the

energy gross margin earned from our baseload coal units was negatively affected by contracting dark spreads

the difference between the price received for electricity generated compared to the market price of the coal

required to produce the electricity In the fourth quarter of 2008 and in early 2009 the average market price for

the types
of coal that we use declined from the highs observed earlier in 2008 However the average market price

for power also declined during the same period

We enter into contracts of varying terms to secure appropriate quantities of fuel that meet the varying

specifications
of our generating facilities For our coal-fired generating facilities we purchase coal from variety

of suppliers under contracts with terms of varying lengths some of which extend to 2013

Our asset management proprietary trading and fuel oil management activities may increase the volatility of

our quarterly and annualfinancwl results

We engage in asset management activities to hedge economically our exposure to market risk with respect

to electricity sales from our generating facilities fuel used by those facilities and emissions

allowances We generally attempt to balance our fixed-price purchases and sales commitments in terms of

contract volumes and the timing of performance and delivery obligations through the use of financial and

physical derivative financial instruments We also use derivative financial instruments with respect to our limited

proprietary trading and fuel oil management activities through which we attempt to achieve incremental returns

by transacting where we have specific market expertise Derivatives from our asset management proprietary

trading and fuel oil management activities are recorded on our balance sheet at fair value pursuant to SFAS 133

None of our derivatives recorded at fair value are designated as hedges under SFAS 133 and changes in their fair

values are therefore recognized currently in earnings as unrealized gains or losses As result our financial

resultsincluding gross margin operating income and balance sheet ratioswill at times be volatile and

subject to fluctuations in value primarily because of changes in forward electricity and fuel prices For more

detailed discussion of the accounting treatment of our asset management proprietary trading and fuel oil

management activities see Note to our consolidated financial statements contained elsewhere in this report

Operation of our generating facilities involves risks that may have material adverse effect on our cash flows

and results of operations

The operation of our generating facilities involves various operating risks including but not limited to

the output
and efficiency levels at which those generating facilities perform

interruptions in fuel supply and quality of available fuel

disruptions in the delivery of electricity

adverse zoning

breakdowns or equipment failures whether result of age or otherwise

restrictions on emissions

violations of our permit requirements or changes in the terms of or revocation of permits

releases of pollutants and hazardous substances to air soil surface water or groundwater

ability to transport and dispose of coal ash at reasonable prices

shortages of equipment or spare parts

labor disputes
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operator errors

curtailment of operations because of transmission constraints

failures in the electricity transmission system which may cause large energy blackouts

implementation of unproven technologies in connection with environmental improvements and

catastrophic events such as fires explosions floods earthquakes hurricanes or other similar

occurrences

If our facilities experience unplanned outages we may be required to procure replacement power in the

open market to satisfy contractual commitments If we should lack adequate liquidity to post margin and

collateral requirements we may be exposed to significant losses and may miss significant opportunities and we

may have increased exposure to the volatility of spot markets

decrease in or the elimination of the revenues generated by our facilities or an increase in the costs of

operating such facilities could materially affect our cash flows and results of operations including cash flows

available to us to make payments on our debt or our other obligations

Our operating results are subject to quarterly and seasonal fluctuations

Our operating results have fluctuated in the past and are likely to continue to do so in the future as result of

number of factors including seasonal variations in demand and fuel prices

We compete to sell energy capacity and ancillary services in the wholesale power markets against some

competitors that enjoy competitive advantages including the ability to recover fixed costs through rate-base

mechanisms and lower cost of capital

Regulated utilities in the wholesale markets generally enjoy lower cost of capital than we do and often are

able to recover fixed costs through regulated retail rates including in many cases the costs of generation

allowing them to build buy and upgrade generating facilities without relying exclusively on market clearing

prices to recover their iivestments The competitive advantages of such participants could adversely affect our

ability to compete effectively and could have an adverse impact on the revenues generated by our facilities

Our business and activities are subject to extensive environmental requirements and could be adversely

affected by such requirements including future changes to them

Our business is subject to extensive environmental regulations promulgated by federal state and local

authorities which among other things restrict the discharge of pollutants into the air water and soil and also

govern
the use of water from adjacent waterways Such laws and regulations frequently require us to obtain

permits and remain in continuous compliance with the conditions established by those permits To comply with

these legal requirements and the terms of our permits we must spend significant sums on environmental

monitoring pollution control equipment and emissions allowances If we were to fail to comply with these

requirements we could be subject to civil or criminal liability injunctive relief and the imposition of liens or

fines We may be required to shut down facilities including ash sites if we are unable to comply with the

requirements or if we determine the expenditures required to comply are uneconomic

From time to time we may not be able to obtain
necessary environmental regulatory approvals Such

approvals could be delayed or subject to onerous conditions If there is delay in obtaining environmental

regulatory approval or if onerous conditions are imposed the operation of our generating facilities or ash sites or

the sale of electricity to third parties could be prevented or become subject to additional costs Such delays or

onerous conditions could have material adverse effect on our financial performance and condition In addition

environmental laws particularly with respect to air emissions wastewater discharge and cooling water systems
are generally becoming more stringent which may require us to make additional facility upgrades or restrict our

operations
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Increased public concern and growing political pressure
related to global warming have resulted in

significant increases in the regulation of greenhouse gases including C02 at the state level Future local state

and federal regulation of greenhouse gases is likely to create substantial environmental costs for us in the form of

taxes or purchases of emissions allowances Many of the states where we own generating facilities including

California Maryland Massachusetts and New York have recently committed or expressed an intent to commit

to mandatory reductions in statewide C02 emissions through regional cap-and-trade program Maryland

Massachusetts and New York have already joined the RGGI which required all allowances to be purchased

initially through an auction process the first of which took place in September 2008 Auctions such as those

mandated by the RGGI may decrease the amount of available allowances and substantially increase emissions

allowance prices Because our generating
facilities emit C02 these regulations and similar future laws may

significantly increase our operating costs

Certain environmental laws including CERCLA and comparable state laws impose strict and in many

circumstances joint and several liability for costs of remediating contamination in soil groundwater and

elsewhere Some of our facilities have areas with known soil and/or groundwater contamination Releases of

hazardous substances at our generating facilities or at locations where we dispose of or in the past disposed of

hazardous substances and other waste could require us to spend significant sums to remediate contamination

regardless of whether we caused such contamination The discovery of significant contamination at our

generating facilities at disposal sites we currently use or have used or at other locations for which we may be

liable or the failure or inability of parties contractually responsible to us for contamination to respond when

claims or obligations regarding such contamination arise could have material adverse effect on our financial

performance and condition

Major environmental construction projects planned by 2010 at our Mid-Atlantic coal facilities may not meet

their anticipated schedule which would restrict these units from running at their maximum economic levels

If the operating constraints were sufficiently severe Mirant Mid-Atlantic may not have sufficient cash flow to

permit it to make distributions or if more severe to meet its obligations

Under the Maryland Healthy Air Act we are required to reduce annual emissions below certain levels by

January 2010 The levels established do not allow for the use of emissions allowances to meet the mandated

levels To meet these requirements we are installing pollution control equipment on all of our Maryland coal-

fired units We may not have completed installation of or be able to operate this pollution control equipment by

January 2010 because of number of factors including

adverse weather conditions

unanticipated cost increases

engineering problems

construction problems

failure or delays in obtaining necessary permits and approvals

shortages of equipment materials or skilled labor

unscheduled delays in delivery of materials and equipment and

work stoppages

Any of these factors may significantly increase the estimated costs of our environmental construction

projects or result in loss of cash flows from operations because of reduced unit operations

The expected decommissioning and/or site remediation obligations of certain of our generating facilities may

negatively affect our cash flows

We expect that certain of our generating facilities and related properties
will become subject to

decommissioning and/or site remediation obligations that may require material expenditures Furthermore laws
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and regulations may change to impose material additional decommissioning and remediation obligations on us in

the future If we are required to make material expenditures to decommission or remediate one or more of our

facilities such obligations will affect our cash flows and may adversely affect our ability to make payments on

our obligations

Our consolidated indebtedness could adversely affect our ability to raise additional capital to fund our

operations limit our ability to react to changes in the economy or our industry and prevent us from meeting or

refinancing our obligations

As of December 31 2008 our consolidated indebtedness was $2.676 billion In addition the present value

of lease payments under the Mirant Mid-Atlantic leveraged leases is approximately $1.0 billion assuming 10%
discount rate and the termination value of the Mirant Mid-Atlantic leveraged leases is $1.4 billion Our leverage

and obligations under the leveraged leases could have important consequences including the following it

may limit our ability to obtain additional debt or equity financing for working capital capital expenditures debt

service requirements acquisitions and general corporate or other purposes substantial portion of our cash

flows from operations must be dedicated to the payment of principal and interest on our indebtedness and will

not be available for other purposes including our operations capital expenditures and future business

opportunities the debt service requirements of our indebtedness could make it more difficult for us to satisfy

or refinance our financial obligations certain of our borrowings including borrowings under our senior

secured credit facilities are at variable rates of interest exposing us to the risk of increased interest rates it

may limit our ability to adjust to changing market conditions and place us at competitive disadvantage

compared with our competitors that have less debt and are not burdened by such obligations and restrictions and

we may be more vulnerable in downturn in general economic conditions or in our business and we may be

unable to carry out capital expenditures that are important to our long-term growth or necessary to comply with

environmental regulations

Mirant Corporation and its subsidiaries that are holding companies including Mirant Americas Generation

and Mirant North America may not have access to suffkien cash to meet their obligations if their

subsidiaries in particular Mirant Mid-Atlantic are unable to make distributions

We and certain of our subsidiaries including Mirant Americas Generation and Mirant North America are

holding companies and as result we are dependent upon dividends distributions and other payments from our

operating subsidiaries to generate the funds necessary to meet our obligations The ability of certain of our

subsidiaries to pay dividends and distributions is restricted under the terms of their debt or other agreements In

particular significant portion of cash from our operations is generated by the power generating facilities of

Mirant Mid-Atlantic Under the Mirant Mid-Atlantic leveraged leases Mirant Mid-Atlantic is subject to

covenant that restricts its right to make distributions to its immediate parent Mirant North America In turn

Mirant North America is subject to covenants that restrict its ability to make distributions to its parent Mirant

Americas Generation The ability of Mirant North America and Mirant Mid-Atlantic to satisfy the criteria set

forth in their respective debt covenants in the future could be impaired by factors which negatively affect their

financial performance including interruptions in operation or curtailment of operations to comply with

environmental restrictions significant capital and other expenditures and adverse conditions in the power and

fuel markets Further the Mirant North America senior notes and senior secured credit facilities include financial

covenants that will exclude from the calculation the financial results of any subsidiary that is unable to make

distributions or dividends at the time of such calculation Thus the inability of Mirant Mid-Atlantic to make

distributions to Mirant North America under the leveraged lease transaction would have material adverse effect

on the calculation of the financial covenants under the senior notes and senior secured credit facilities of Mirant

North America including the leverage and interest
coverage maintenance covenants under its senior credit

facility

The obligations of Mirant Corporation and its holding company subsidiaries including the indebtedness of

Mirant Americas Generation and Mirant North America are effectively subordinated to the obligations or
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indebtedness of their respective subsidiaries including the Mirant Mid-Atlantic leveraged leases See Item

Managements Discussion and Analysis Liquidity and Capital Resources for discussion of restrictions on

the ability of Mirant North America to make distributions to its parent Mirant Americas Generation

We may be unable to generate sufficient liquidity to servke our debt and to post required amounts of cash

collateral necessary to hedge market risk effectively

Our ability to pay principal and interest on our debt depends on our future operating performance If our

cash flows and capital resources are insufficient to allow us to make scheduled payments on our debt we may

have to reduce or delay capital expenditures sell assets seek additional capital restructure or refinance There

can be no assurance that the terms of our debt will allow these alternative measures that the financial markets

will be available to us on acceptable terms or that such measures would satisfy our scheduled debt service

obligations

We seek to manage the risks associated with the volatility in the price at which we sell power produced by

our generating facilities and in the prices of fuel emissions allowances and other inputs required to produce such

power by entering into hedging transactions These asset management activities may require us to post
collateral

either in the form of cash or letters of credit As of December 31 2008 we had approximately $111 million of

posted cash collateral and $301 million of letters of credit outstanding primarily to support our asset management

activities debt service and rent reserve requirements and other commercial arrangements See Note 10 to our

consolidated financial statements contained elsewhere in this report for further information on our posted cash

collateral and letters of credit While we seek to structure transactions in way that reduces our potential

liquidity needs for collateral we may be unable to execute our hedging strategy successfully if we are unable to

post the amount of collateral required to enter into and support hedging contracts

We are an active participant in energy exchange and clearing markets These markets require per contract

initial margin to be posted regardless of the credit quality of the participant The initial margins are determined

by the exchanges through the use of proprietary models that rely on variety of inputs and factors including

market conditions We have limited notice of any changes to the margin rates Consequently we are exposed to

changes in the per
unit margin rates required by the exchanges and could be required to post additional collateral

on short notice

Our business is subject to complex government regulations Changes in these regulations or their

administration by legislatures state and federal regulatory agencies or other bodies may affect the costs of

operating our facilities or our ability to operate our facilities Such costs in turn may negatively affect our

results of operations and financial condition

We are subject to regulation by the FERC regarding the terms and conditions of wholesale service and rates

as well as by state agencies regarding physical aspects of our generating facilities The majority of our generation

is sold at market prices under market-based rate authority granted by the FERC If certain conditions are not met

the FERC has the authority to withhold or rescind market-based rate authority and require sales to be made based

on cost-of-service rates loss of our market-based rate authority could have materially negative impact on our

generating business

Even where market-based rate authority has been granted the FERC may impose various forms of market

mitigation measures including price caps and operating restrictions where it determines that potential market

power might exist and that the public interest requires such potential
market power to be mitigated In addition to

direct regulation by the FERC most of our facilities are subject to rules and terms of participation imposed and

administered by various ISOs and RTOs Although these entities are themselves ultimately regulated by the

FERC they can impose rules restrictions and terms of service that are quasi-regulatory in nature and can have

material adverse impact on our business For example ISOs and RTOs may impose bidding and scheduling rules

both to curb the potential
exercise of market power and to ensure market functions Such actions may materially

affect our ability to sell and the price we receive for our energy capacity and ancillary services
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To conduct our business we must obtain and periodically renew licenses permits and approvals for our

facilities These licenses permits and approvals can be in addition to any required environmental permits No
assurance can be provided that we will be able to obtain and comply with all necessary licenses permits and

approvals for these facilities If we cannot comply with all applicable regulations our business results of

operations and financial condition could be adversely affected

We cannot predict whether the federal or state legislatures will adopt legislation relating to the restructuring

of the energy industry There are proposals in many jurisdictions that would either roll back or advance the

movement toward competitive markets for the supply of electricity at both the wholesale and retail levels In

addition any future legislation favoring large vertically integrated utilities and concentration of ownership of

such utilities could affect our ability to compete successfully and our business and results of operations could be

adversely affected We cannot provide assurance that the introductions of new laws or other future regulatory

developments will not have material adverse impact on our business operations or financial condition

Changes in technology may sign ficantly affect our generating business by making our generating facilities

less competitive

We generate electricity using fossil fuels at large central facilities This method results in economies of scale

and lower costs than newer technologies such as fuel cells microturbines windmills and photovoltaic solar cells

It is possible that advances in those technologies will reduce their costs to levels that are equal to or below that of

most central station electricity production which could have material adverse effect on our results of

operations

Terrorist attacks future wars or risk of war may adversely affect our results of operations our ability to raise

capital or our future growth

As power generators we face heightened risk of an act of terrorism either direct act against one of our

generating facilities or an inability to operate as result of systemic damage resulting from an act against the

transmission and distribution infrastructure that is used to transport our power If such an attack were to occur
our business results of operations and financial condition could be materially adversely affected In addition

such an attack could affect our ability to service our indebtedness our ability to raise capital and our future

growth opportunities

Our operations are subject to hazards customary to the power generating industry We may not have adequate
insurance to cover all of these hazards

Our operations are subject to many hazards associated with the power generating industry which may
expose us to significant liabilities for which we may not have adequate insurance coverage Power generation

involves hazardous activities including acquiring transporting and unloading fuel operating large pieces of

rotating equipment and delivering electricity to transmission and distribution systems In addition to natural risks

such as earthquake flood storm surge lightning hurricane and wind hazards such as fire explosion collapse

and machinery failure are inherent risks in our operations These hazards can cause significant injury to

personnel or loss of life severe damage to and destruction of property plant and equipment contamination of or

damage to the environment and suspension of operations The occurrence of any one of these events may result

in our being named as defendant in lawsuits asserting claims for substantial damages environmental cleanup

costs personal injury and fines and/or penalties We maintain an amount of insurance protection that we consider

adequate but we cannot assure that our insurance will be sufficient or effective under all circumstances and

against all hazards or liabilities to which we may be subject successful claim for which we are not fully

insured could have material adverse effect on our financial results and our financial condition
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We are currently involved in significant litigation that if decided adversely to us could materially adversely

affect our results of operations and profitability

We are currently involved in various litigation matters which are described in more detail in this

Form 10-K We intend to defend vigorously against those claims that we are unable to settle but the results of

this litigation cannot be determined Adverse outcomes for us in this litigation could require significant

expenditures by us and could have material adverse effect on our results of operations and profitability

Item lB Unresolved Staff Comments

None
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Item Properfies

The properties below were owned or leased as of December 31 2008 Our leasehold or ownership interest is

100% for each property

2008

Total Net Capacity

Generating Facilities Location Dispatch Type Primary Fuel MW1 Factor

Mid-Atlantic Region
Chalk Point Maryland Intermediate/Baseloadl Natural

Peaking Gas/Coal/Oil 2413 21%
Dickerson Maryland Baseload/Peaking Natural

Gas/Coal/Oil 849 37%

Morgantown Maryland Baseload/Peaking Coal/Oil 1486 53%

Potomac River Virginia Intermediate/Baseload Coal 482 19%

Total Mid-Atlantic 5230 33%

Northeast Region

Canal Massachusetts Intermediate Natural Gas/Oil 1126 17%
Kendall Massachusetts Baseload/Peaking Natural Gas/Oil 256 39%
Marthas Vineyard Massachusetts Peaking Diesel 14 3%
Bowline New York Intermediate/Peaking Natural Gas/Oil 1139 2%

Total Northeast 2535 13%

California

Contra Costa California Intermediate Natural Gas 674 3%

Pittsburg California Intermediate Natural Gas 1311 2%
Potrero California Intermediate/Peaking Natural Gas/Diesel 362 17%

Total California 2347 4%

Total Operations 10112 21%

Total MW amounts reflect nominal net summer capacity for 2008

We also own an oil pipeline which is approximately 51.5 miles long and serves the Chalk Point and

Morgantown generating facilities

Item Legal Proceedings

See Note 16 to our consolidated financial statements contained elsewhere in this report for discussion of the

material legal proceedings to which we are party

Item Submission of Matters to Vote of Security Holders

None
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PART II

Item Market for Registrants Common Equity Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of

Equity Securities

Common Stock

All shares of Old Mirants common stock were cancelled on January 2006 and 276.5 million shares of

New Mirant common stock were distributed to holders of unsecured claims and equity securities In addition we

reserved 23.5 million shares for unresolved claims of which approximately 850000 shares had not yet been

distributed as of December 31 2008 New Mirant is authorized to issue 1.5 billion shares of common stock

having par value of $.0l per share and 100 million shares of preferred stock having par value of $01 per

share On January 2006 New Mirant also issued Series Warrants and Series Warrants expiring January

2011 which entitled their holders to purchase as of that date an aggregate
of 35.3 million and 17.6

million shares of common stock respectively The exercise price of the Series Warrants and Series Warrants

is $21.87 and $20.54 per share respectively There were approximately 26.9 million Series Warrants and

7.1 million Series Warrants outstanding at December 31 2008

All of the New Mirant common stock was issued in accordance with Section 1145 of the Bankruptcy Code

and we received no proceeds from such issuance The issuance of shares of New Mirant common stock was

exempt from the registration requirements of the Securities Act as amended and equivalent provisions of state

securities laws in reliance upon Section 1145a of the Bankruptcy Code

Our common stock is currently traded on the NYSE under the ticker symbol MIR We have submitted to

the NYSE our 2008 annual certificate from our Chief Executive Officer certifying that he is not aware of any

violation by the Company of NYSE corporate governance listing standards The closing price of our stock on

December 31 2008 was $18.87 The following table sets forth the high and low prices for our common stock as

reported by the NYSE for the periods indicated

Price Range of Common Stock

Quarter High Low

2007

First $41.70 $30.41

Second $49.00 $39.61

Third $44.20 $34.77

Fourth $44.61 $36.20

2008

First $39.53 $33.75

Second $42.21 $36.08

Third $39.20 $17.32

Fourth $20.28 $11.99

Holders

As of January 31 2009 there were approximately 58770 record holders of our common stock par
value

$.01 per share

Dividends

We have not paid or declared any cash dividends on our common stock in the last two fiscal years
and we

do not anticipate paying any quarterly cash dividends in the foreseeable future
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Return of Cash

On November 2007 we announced that we planned to return total of $4.6 billion of excess cash to our

stockholders based on four factors the outlook for the business preserving our credit profile

maintaining adequate liquidity including for capital expenditures and maintaining sufficient working

capital On September 22 2008 we announced that we had returned $3.856 billion of cash to our stockholders

and suspended our program to return excess cash to our stockholders based on our evaluation of the four factors

that were set out upon commencement of the share repurchase program On November 2008 we announced

that we were resuming our program of returning excess cash to our stockholders and would purchase an

additional $200 million of shares through open market purchases This $200 million was completed in the fourth

quarter of 2008 and was in addition to the previous $3.856 billion of cash returned to our stockholders

On November 2007 we announced that the first stage of the cash distribution would be

accomplished through an accelerated share repurchase program for $1 billion plus open market

purchases for up to an additional $1 billion In the fourth quarter of 2007 we repurchased 26.66 million

shares of common stock for $1 billion through the accelerated share repurchase program

On February 29 2008 we announced that we had decided to return the remaining $2.6 billion of cash

through open market purchases of common stock but that we would continue to evaluate the most

efficient method to return the cash to stockholders

On May 15 2008 the accelerated share repurchase program was completed and we received an

additional 682387 shares resulting in total of 27.34 million shares purchased The final price of

shares repurchased under the accelerated share repurchase program was $36.57 per share which was

determined based on discount to the volume weighted average trading price of our common stock

over the period of the accelerated share repurchase program

Between November 2007 and December 2008 we returned approximately $4.056 billion of cash to our

stockholders through purchases of 122 million shares of our common stock including 86 million shares that were

purchased through open market purchases in 2008 for approximately $2.74 billion We have repurchased

approximately 48% of the 256 million basic shares that we had outstanding when the program began in

November 2007

Share Repurchases

The following table sets forth information regarding repurchases by us of our common shares on the NYSE
during the three-month period ended December 31 2008

Approximate dollar

Total number of value of shares that

Average shares purchased may yet be

Shares price paid as part of publicly purchased under
Period repurchased per share announced plans the plans

in millions in millions in millions

Oct 2008Oct 31 2008

Nov 2008Nov 30 2008 10.46 $16.57 10.46 $26.71

Dec 12008Dec 31 2008 1.48 $18.04 1.48

Total 11.94 11.94
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Securities Authorized for Issuance under Equity Compensation Plans

The following table sets forth the compensation plans under which our equity securities were authorized for

issuance as of December 31 2008

Number of securities remaining

available for future issuance

under equity compensation

Number of securities to Weighted average plans excluding securities to

he issued upon exercise exercise price of be issued upon exercise of

of outstanding options outstanding options outstanding options warrants

Plan category warrants and rights warrants and rights and rights

in millions in millions

Equity compensation plans approved by

security holders 6.3 $29.46 12.3

Equity compensation plans not approved

by security holders N/A N/A N/A

Total 6.3 $29.46 12.3

Our 2005 Omnibus Incentive Plan for certain employees and directors of Mirant became effective on

January 2006 and is deemed to have been approved by our stockholders by virtue of its approval under the Plan

Stock Performance Graph

The performance graph below is being provided as furnished and not filed as permitted by 17 Code of

Federal Regulations 229.201e in this Form 10-K and compares the cumulative total stockholder return on our

common stock with the Standard Poors 500 Index the Standard Poors Multi-Utility Index and the

Standard Poors Independent Power Producers and Energy Traders Index since the re-issuance of our common

stock in connection with our emergence from bankruptcy on January 2006 Our stock was re-listed on the

NYSE on January II 2006 Because all of Old Mirants outstanding common stock was cancelled upon

emergence from bankruptcy stock performance prior to 2006 does not provide meaningful comparison for

current stockholders and thus has not been provided The graph assumes that $100 was invested on January

2006 in our common stock and each of the above indices and that all dividends are reinvested The stockholder

return shown below may not be indicative of future performance

COMPARISON OF CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN

$200

1/11/06 12/31/06 12131/07 12/31/08

Mirant CorporationDSP 500 Index

SP 500 MultI-Utilities

OSP 500 Independent Power Producers Energy Traders
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Indexed Returns

Year Ended

Company Index 12/31/2006 12/3112007 12/31/2008

Mirant $126.38 $156.04 $75.54

SP500Index $111.69 $117.82 $74.23

SP 500 Multi-Utilities Index $115.41 $127.95 $96.80

SP 500 Independent Power Producers Energy Traders $125.03 $157.71 $48.70

Total Return to Stockholders

Includes reinvestment of dividends

Annual Return Percentage

Year Ended

Company/Index 12/31/2006 12/31/2007 12/31/2008

Mirant 26.38% 23.47% 51.59%
SP 500 Index 11.69% 5.49% 37.00%
SP 500 Multi-Utilities Index 15.41% 10.86% 24.34%
SP 500 Independent Power Producers Energy Traders 25.03% 26.13% 69.1 2%
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Item Selected Financial Data

The following discussion should be read in conjunction with our consolidated financial statements and the

notes thereto which are included elsewhere in this Form 10-K The following tables present our selected

consolidated financial information which is derived from our consolidated financial statements

Years Ended December 31

2008 2007 2006 2005 2004

in millions except per share data

Statements of Operations Data

Operating revenues $3188 $2019 $3087 2620 $3231

Income loss from continuing operations 1215 433 1752 1385

Income loss from discontinued operations
50 1562 112 93 467

Cumulative effect of changes in accounting principles
15

Net income loss 1265 1995 1864 1307 476

Basic EPS per common share from continuing operations
6.53 1.72 6.15 N/A N/A

Our Statement of Operations Data for each year reflects the volatility caused by unrealized gains and losses

related to derivative financial instruments used to hedge electricity and fuel economically Changes in the fair

value and settlements of derivative financial instruments used to hedge electricity economically are reflected in

operating revenue and changes in the fair value and settlements of derivative financial instruments used to hedge

fuel economically are reflected in cost of fuel electricity and other products in the accompanying consolidated

statements of operations Changes in the fair value and settlements of derivative financial instruments for

proprietary trading and fuel oil management activities are recorded on net basis as operating revenue in the

accompanying consolidated statements of operations See Note to our consolidated financial statements

contained elsewhere in this report for additional information

Years Ended December 31

2008 2007 2006 2005 2004

in millions

Unrealized gains losses included in operating revenues $840 $564 $757 $92 $176

Unrealized losses gains included in cost of fuel electricity and other

products
28 JZ

Total
$786 $536 $655 $16 $168

Our Statement of Operations Data for the year ended December 31 2007 reflects gains on sales of

discontinued operations as discussed in Note 11 to our consolidated financial statements contained elsewhere in

this report EPS information for years prior to 2006 has not been presented because the information is not

relevant in any material respect for users of our financial statements See Note 13 to our consolidated financial

statements contained elsewhere in this report for additional information Our Statement of Operations Data for

the year ended December 31 2006 reflects significant income tax benefits as discussed in Note to our

consolidated financial statements contained elsewhere in this report

Our Statement of Operations Data for the year ended December 31 2005 reflects the effects of accounting

for the Plan confirmed on December 2005 During our bankruptcy proceedings our consolidated financial

statements were prepared in accordance with SOP 90-7 Our Statement of Operations Data for the year
ended

December 31 2004 does not include interest expense on debt that was subject to compromise subsequent to the

Petition Date and includes goodwill impairment losses of $582 million
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The consolidated Balance Sheet Data for years 2006 2005 and 2004 segregates pre-petition liabilities

subject to compromise from those liabilities that were not subject to compromise

Years Ended December 31

2008 2007 2006 2005 2004

in millions

Balance Sheet Data

Total assets $10688 $10538 $12845 $14364 $11926

Total long-term debt 2676 3095 3275 2582 38

Liabilities subject to compromise 18 18 9164
Stockholders equity deficit 3762 5310 4443 3856 $l318

The debt of Mirant Americas Generation that was reinstated in 2005 is included in liabilities subject to

compromise for 2004 In 2005 we recorded the effects of the Plan As result liabilities subject to compromise
at December 31 2005 and 2006 only reflect the liabilities of our New York entities that remained in bankruptcy

at that time Total assets for all periods reflect our election in 2008 to discontinue the net presentation of assets

subject to master netting agreements upon adoption of FSP FIN 39-1
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Item Managements Discussion and Analysis of Results of Operations and Financial Condition

This section is intended to provide the reader with information that will assist in understanding our financial

statements the changes in those financial statements from year to year
and the primary factors contributing to

those changes The following discussion should be read in conjunction with our consolidated financial statements

and the notes accompanying those financial statements

Overview

We are competitive energy company that produces and sells electricity in the United States We own or

lease 10112 MW of net electric generating capacity in the Mid-Atlantic and Northeast regions and in California

We also operate an integrated asset management and energy marketing organization based in Atlanta Georgia

Share Repurchases

Between November 2007 and December 2008 we returned approximately $4056 billion of cash to our

stockholders through purchases of 122 million shares of our common stock including 86 million shares that were

purchased through open market purchases
in 2008 for approximately $2.74 billion We have repurchased

approximately 48% of the 256 million basic shares that we had outstanding when the program began in

November 2007 See Note 13 to our consolidated financial statements contained elsewhere in this report for

additional information related to our share repurchases

Hedging Activities

We hedge economically substantial portion of our Mid-Atlantic coal-fired baseload generation and certain

of our Northeast gas
and oil-fired generation through OTC transactions However we generally do not hedge our

intermediate and peaking units for tenors greater than 12 months significant portion of our hedges are

financial swap transactions between Mirant Mid-Atlantic and financial counterparties that are senior unsecured

obligations of such parties and do not require either party to post cash collateral either for initial margin or for

securing exposure as result of changes in power or natural gas prices At February 10 2009 our aggregate

hedge levels based on expected generation
for each period were as follows

Aggregate Hedge Levels Based on Expected Generation

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013

Power 96% 62% 22% 24% 24%

Fuel 90% 64% 53% 29% 6%

Capital Expenditures and Capital Resources

Including amounts already spent to date we expect to incur total capital expenditures of $1 .674 billion to comply

with the limitations on S02 NOx and mercury emissions under the Maryland Healthy Air Act As of December 31

2008 we have paid approximately $997 million for capital expenditures
related to the Maryland Healthy Air Act For

the year ended December 31 2008 we paid $683 millionfor capital expenditures excluding capitalized interest of

which $497 million related to the Maryland Healthy Air Act The following table details the expected timing of

payments for our estimated capital expenditures excluding capitalized interest for 2009 and 2010 in millions

2009 2010

Maryland Healthy Air Act $490 $187

Other environmental
33 33

Maintenance
162 132

Construction

Other

Total
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We expect that available cash and future cash flows from operations will be sufficient to fund these capital

expenditures

Consolidated Financial Performance

We reported net income of $l.265 billion $1995 billion and $l.864 billion for the
years ended

December 31 2008 2007 and 2006 respectively The change in net income is detailed as follows in millions

Years Ended December 31

Increase/ Increase/

2008 2007 Decrease 2007 2006 Decrease

Realized gross margin $1343 $1643 300 $1643 $1281 362
Unrealized gross margin 786 536 1322 536 655 1191
Total gross margin 2129 1107 1022 1107 1936 829

Operating Expenses

Operations and maintenance 683 707 24 707 592 115

Depreciation and amortization 144 129 15 129 137

Impairment losses 175 175 175 119 56
Gain on sales of assets net 39 45 45 49

Total operating expenses 788 966 178 966 799 167

Operating income 1341 141 1200 141 1.137 996
Total other expense income net 124 299 423 299 99 398
Income from continuing operations before

reorganization items net and income taxes 1217 440 777 440 1038 598
Reorganization items net 164 162

Provision benefit for income taxes 550 559

Income from continuing operations 1215 433 782 433 1752 1319
Income from discontinued operations 50 1562 1512 1562 112 1450

Net income $1265 $1995 730 $1995 $1864 131

The following discussion includes non-GAAP financial measures because we present our consolidated

financial performance in terms of gross margin Gross margin is our operating revenue less cost of fuel

electricity and other products and excludes depreciation and amortization We present gross margin excluding

depreciation and amortization and realized gross margin separately from unrealized
gross margin in order to be

consistent with how we manage our business Therefore it may not be possible to compare our non-GAAP
financial measures with those of other companies which also

present similarnon-GAAP financial measures We
encourage our investors to review our consolidated financial statements and other publicly filed reports in their

entirety and not to rely on single financial measure

Commodity Prices

The prices for power natural gas and fuel oil were extremely volatile during 2008 For the year ended

December 31 2008 we recognized unrealized gains of $786 million We are generally economically neutral for

that portion of the portfolio that we have hedged because our realized gross margin will reflect the contractual

prices of our power and fuel contracts

Our coal supply comes primarily from the Central Appalachian and Northern Appalachian coal regions The

average market price for the types of coal that we use was approximately 107% higher in the year ended

December 31 2008 than in the same period in 2007 Global demand for coal to generate electricity was

significant factor influencing domestic prices for the types of coal that we use Coal prices in other regions did

not increase as dramatically however switching the
types of coal that we use would require significant capital

expenditures and increases in transportation costs As result of the increases in market prices the
energy gross

margin earned from our baseload coal units was negatively affected by contracting dark spreads the difference
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between the price received for electricity generated compared to the market price of the coal required to produce

the electricity In the fourth quarter of 2008 and in early 2009 the average
market price for the types of coal that

we use declined from the highs observed earlier in 2008 However the average
market price for power also

declined during the same period We enter into contracts of varying terms to secure appropriate quantities
of fuel

that meet the varying specifications of our generating
facilities For our coal-fired generating facilities we

purchase coal from variety of suppliers under contracts with terms of varying lengths some of which extend to

2013 Most of our coal contracts are not required to be recorded at fair value under SFAS 133 As such these

contracts are not included in derivative contract assets and liabilities in the accompanying consolidated balance

sheets As of December 31 2008 the net fair value of these long-term coal agreements was approximately $38

million

Results of Operations

The following discussion of our performance
is organized by reportable segment which is consistent with

the way we manage our business

In the tables below the Mid-Atlantic region
includes our Chalk Point Dickerson Morgantown and Potomac

River facilities The Northeast region includes our Bowline Canal Kendall Lovett shutdown on April 19 2008

and Marthas Vineyard facilities The California region includes our Contra Costa Pittsburg and Potrero

facilities Other Operations includes proprietary trading and fuel oil management activities unallocated corporate

overhead interest on debt at Mirant Americas Generation and Mirant North America and interest on our invested

cash balances For the years
ended December 31 2007 and 2006 Other Operations

also includes gains and losses

related to the Back-to-Back Agreement with Pepco which was terminated pursuant to settlement agreement

that became effective in the third quarter of 2007 See Note 17 to our consolidated financial statements contained

elsewhere in this report for further discussion of the Pepco Settlement Agreement

Operating Statistics

The following table summarizes Net Capacity Factor by region for the years ended December 31 2008

2007 and 2006

Years Ended December 31

Increase/

2008 2007 Decrease 2007 2006 Decrease

Mid-Atlantic
33% 37% 4% 37% 36% 1%

Northeast
13% 22% 9% 22% 18% 4%

California
4% 4% 6% 2%

Total
21% 25% 4% 25% 24% 1%
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The following table summarizes power generation volumes by region for the
years ended December 31

2008 2007 and 2006 in gigawatt hours

Years Ended
Increase

Years Ended
IncreaseDecember 31

Increase Decrease
December 31

Increase Decrease
2008 2007 Decrease 2007 2006 Decrease

Mid-Atlantic

Baseload 14350 15390 1040 7% 15390 15662 272 2%
Intermediate 489 1105 616 56% 1105 736 369 50%
Peaking 160 337 177 53% 337 210 127 60%

Total Mid-Atlantic 14999 16832 1833 1% 16832 16608 224 1%

Northeast

Baseload 1131 2691 1560 58% 2691 2757 66 2%
Intermediate 1919 2814 895 32% 2814 1896 918 48%
Peaking

15 10 67%
Total Northeast 3055 5510 2455 45% 5510 4668 842 18%

California

Intermediate 868 804 64 8% 804 1102 298 27%
Peaking 21 18 17% 18 34 16 47%

Total California 889 822 67 8% 822 1136 314 28%
Total Mirant 18943 23164 4221 18% 23164 22412 752 3%

The decrease in power generation volumes for the year ended December 31 2008 as compared to the year
ended December 31 2007 is primarily the result of the following

decrease in Mid-Atlantic as result of contracting dark spreads lower demand and second quarter
2008 planned outages to allow for the installation of emissions control equipment as part of our

compliance with the Maryland Healthy Air Act

decrease in Northeast as result of higher fuel prices at times making it uneconomic for certain units

to generate the shutdown of units and of the Lovett
generating facility in April 2007 and the

shutdown of unit of the Lovett generating facility in April 2008

The increase in power generation volumes for the year ended December 31 2007 as compared to the year
ended December 31 2006 is

primarily the result of the following

an increase in Mid-Atlantic intermediate and peaking generation volumes as result of favorable

spreads between the cost of oil used to generate one MWh of electricity and the market value of the

electricity generated oil conversion spreads in 2007 as compared to 2006

an increase in Northeast intermediate generation as result of increased demand in 2007

Through the end of 2006 the majority of our California units were subject to RMR arrangements with the
CAISO Since that time all of our natural gas-fired units in service at Contra Costa and Pittsburg operate under

tolling agreements with PGE for 100% of the capacity from these units All of the Potrero units continue to be

subject to RMR arrangements Therefore changes in power generation volumes from those facilities which can
be caused by weather planned outages or other factors do not generally affect our gross margin
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2008 versus 2007

Gross Margin Overview

The following table details realized and unrealized gross margin by operating segments in millions

Years Ended December 31

2008 2007

Realized Unrealized Total Realized Unrealized Total

Mid-Atlantic $1038 $676 $1714 $1084 $479 605

Northeast 189 10 179 280 43 237

California 127 127 135 135

Other Operations
17 120 103 126 14 112

Eliminations
18 18

Total $1343 $786 $2129 $1643 $536 $1107

Gross margin for the years ended December 31 2008 and 2007 is further detailed as follows in millions

Year Ended December 31 2008

Mid- Other

Atlantic Northeast California Operations Eliminations Total

Energy
517 73 $l7 583

Contracted and capacity
340 90 123

553

Realized value of hedges
181 26 207

Total realized gross margin 1038 189 127 17 1343

Unrealized gross margin 676 10 120 786

Total gross margin $1714 $179 $127 $103 $6 $2129

Year Ended December 31 2007

Mid-
Other

Atlantic Northeast California Operations Eliminations Total

Energy
686 $128 $109 $18 944

Contracted and capacity
196 87 132 17 432

Realized value of hedges
202 65

267

Total realized gross margin 1084 280 135 126 18 1643

Unrealized gross margin 479 43 14 536

Total gross margin 605 $237 $135 $112 $18 $1107

Energy represents gross margin from the generation of electricity fuel sales and purchases at market

prices fuel handling steam sales and our proprietary trading and fuel oil management activities

Contracted and capacity represents gross margin received from capacity sold in ISO and RTO

administered capacity markets through RMR contracts through tolling agreements and from ancillary

services For the year
ended December 31 2007 contracted and capacity also included the Back-to-Back

Agreement which was terminated on August 10 2007 See Note 17 to our consolidated financial statements

contained elsewhere in this report for further discussion of the Pepco Settlement Agreement

Realized value of hedges represents
the actual margin upon the settlement of our power and fuel

hedging contracts and the difference between market prices and contract costs for our coal supply contracts

Power hedging contracts include sales of both power and natural gas used to hedge power prices as well as

hedges to capture the incremental value related to the geographic location of our physical assets
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Unrealized gross margin represents the net unrealized gain or loss on our derivative contracts that are

recorded as derivative contract assets and liabilities on our consolidated balance sheets including the

reversal of unrealized gains and losses recognized in prior periods and changes in value for future periods

Our gross margin for the year ended December 31 2008 was $2.1 29 billion as compared to $1.1 07 billion

for the same period in 2007 The increase in gross margin which includes net unrealized gains and losses from
our hedging activities was principally result of the following

An increase of $1 .322 billion in unrealized
gross margin was comprised of the following

unrealized gains of $786 million in 2008 which include $460 million net increase in the value of

hedge contracts for future periods primarily related to changes in forward power and natural gas prices

in 2008 and $326 million from the settlement of power and fuel contracts during the period for which
net unrealized losses had been recorded in prior periods and

unrealized losses of $536 million in 2007 which include $438 million from the settlement of power
and fuel contracts during the period for which net unrealized gains had been recorded in prior periods
and $98 million net decrease in the value of hedge contracts for future periods primarily related to

increases in forward power prices in 2007

decrease of $300 million in realized gross margin primarily attributable to

decrease in energy of $361 million as result of an increase in fuel prices lower generation volumes
and decrease in the contribution of proprietary trading and fuel oil management activities partially

offset by an increase in power prices and decrease in the cost of emissions allowances

decrease of $60 million in realized value of hedges as result of decrease in the settlement value of

power hedges reduced by an increase in the amount by which market prices for coal exceeded the

contract prices for the coal that we purchased under our long-term agreements partially offset by

an increase in contracted and capacity of $121 million primarily resulting from full year of PJM RPM
capacity payments in 2008 in the Mid-Atlantic The contracted and capacity gross margin for 2007 includes

refund to us of $36 million for
payments made under the Back-to-Back Agreement for periods after May 31

2006 as result of the Pepco Settlement Agreement becoming fully effective in August 2007

Mid-Atlantic

Our Mid-Atlantic segment which accounts for approximately 50% of our net generating capacity includes

four generating facilities with total net generating capacity of 5230 MW
The following tables summarize the results of operations of our Mid-Atlantic segment in millions

Years Ended December 31
Increase/

2008 2007 Decrease

Realized gross margin $1038 $1084 46
Unrealized gross margin 676 479 1155

Total gross margin 1714 605 1109

Operating Expenses

Operations and maintenance 412 360 52

Depreciation and amortization 92 81 11

Gain on sales of assets net

Total operating expenses 496 441 55

Operating income
1218 164 1.054

Total other expense income net

Income from continuing operations before reorganization items

net and income taxes $1217 169 $1048
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Gross Margin

Years Ended December 31
Increase/

2008 2007 Decrease

Energy
517 686 169

Contracted and capacity
340 196 144

Realized value of hedges
181 202 21

Total realized gross margin 1038 1084 46

Unrealized gross margin
676 479 1155

Total gross margin $1714 605 $1109

The decrease of $46 million in realized gross margin was principally
result of the following

decrease of $169 million in energy primarily as result of substantial increase in the price of coal

partially offset by an increase in power prices and decrease in the cost of emissions allowances The

decrease in energy also includes $13 million lower of cost or market fuel oil inventory adjustment

recognized in the fourth quarter of 2008 In addition generation volumes decreased 11% as result of

contracting dark spreads lower demand that resulted in less generation from our intermediate and

peaking facilities and second quarter 2008 planned outages to allow for the installation of emissions

control equipment as part of our compliance with the Maryland Healthy Air Act

decrease of $21 million in realized value of hedges primarily as result of decrease in the

settlement value of power hedges In 2008 the average market prices for power exceeded the

settlement value of power contracts In 2007 the settlement value of power contracts exceeded market

prices The decrease in power hedges was partially offset by an increase in the amount by which

market prices for coal exceeded the contract prices for the coal that we purchased under our long-term

agreements partially offset by

an increase of $144 million in contracted and capacity primarily related to higher capacity revenues for

2008 as result of the commencement of the PJM RPM capacity market in June 2007

The increase of $1.1 55 billion in unrealized gross margin was comprised of the following

unrealized gains of $676 million in 2008 which include $399 million net increase in the value of

hedge contracts for future periods primarily related to changes in forward power and natural gas prices

in 2008 and an increase of $277 million from power and fuel contracts that settled during the period for

which net unrealized losses had been recorded in prior periods and

unrealized losses of $479 million in 2007 which include $270 million from the settlement of power

and fuel contracts during the period for which net unrealized gains had been recorded in prior periods

and $209 million net decrease in the value of hedge contracts for future periods primarily related to

increases in forward power prices in 2007

Operating Expenses

The increase of $55 million in operating expenses is primarily result of the following

an increase of $52 million in operations and maintenance expense which includes

an increase of $29 million related to the timing of our planned outages
and an increase in labor

and chemical costs related to our pollution control equipment and

$23 million in increased allocated corporate overhead costs With the completion
of several

dispositions by Mirant in the second and third quarters of 2007 and the shutdown of units and

of the Lovett generating facility in the second quarter of 2007 Mirant Mid-Atlantic received
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greater allocation of Mirants corporate overhead costs in the year ended December 31 2008 than

in the same period in 2007

an increase of $11 million in depreciation and amortization
expense related to pollution control

equipment placed in service as part of our compliance with the Maryland Healthy Air Act partially

offset by

an increase of $8 million in gain on sales of assets net primarily as result of the sales of emissions

allowances in 2008

Northeast

Our Northeast segment is comprised of our three generating facilities located in Massachusetts and one

generating facility located in New York with total net generating capacity of 2535 MW
The following tables summarize the results of operations of our Northeast segment in millions

Years Ended December 31
Increase/

2008 2007 Decrease

Realized gross margin $189 $280 91
Unrealized gross margin 10 43 33

Total
gross margin 179 237 58

Operating Expenses

Operations and maintenance 167 179 12
Depreciation and amortization 19 25

Impainnent losses
175 175

Gain on sales of assets net 30 49 19

Total operating expenses 156 330 174
Operating income loss 23 93 116
Total other income net .1

Income loss from continuing operations before reorganization

items net and income taxes $24 $110

Gross Margin

Years Ended December 31
Increasel

2008 2007 Decrease

Energy 73 $128 $55
Contracted and capacity 90 87

Realized value of hedges 26 65 39
Total realized

gross margin 189 280 91
Unrealized gross margin _2

Total gross margin $179 $237 $58

The decrease of $91 million in realized gross margin was principally result of the following

decrease of $55 million in energy primarily as result of the shutdown of the Lovett facility lower

generation volumes and increased fuel costs partially offset by higher power prices and

decrease of $39 million in realized value of hedges for our generation output as result of decrease
in the amount by which the settlement value of power contracts exceeded market prices and lower

volumes hedged in 2008 partially offset by an increase in the settlement value of fuel contracts
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The increase of $33 million in unrealized gross margin was comprised of unrealized losses of $10 million in

2008 compared to $43 million in 2007 The unrealized losses were related to the settlement of power and fuel

contracts during the period for which net unrealized gains had been recorded in prior periods and decreases in

value associated with forward power and fuel contracts for future periods primarily as result of increases in

forward power prices

Operating Expenses

The decrease of $174 million in operating expenses was principally the result of the following

decrease of $175 million as result of the impairment loss on our Lovett facility recognized in the

second quarter of 2007 See Note to our consolidated financial statements contained elsewhere in this

report for additional information related to this impairment

decrease of $12 million in operations and maintenance expense primarily
related to the Lovett

facility which includes decrease of $33 million in operating costs partially offset by $17 million of

shutdown costs at the Lovett facility incurred in 2008 See Note to our consolidated financial

statements contained elsewhere in this report for additional information related to the shutdown of the

Lovett facility and

decrease of $19 million in gain on sales of assets In 2008 subsidiaries in our Northeast segment

recognized gain of $30 million of which $24 million related to emissions allowances sold to third

parties In 2007 subsidiaries in our Northeast segment recognized gain of $49 million which includes

$14 million gain on the sale of certain ancillary equipment included in the sale of the six U.S natural

gas-fired
facilities and $33 million gain on the sales of emissions allowances of which $11 million

related to emissions allowances sold to Mirant Mid-Atlantic that are eliminated in our consolidated

statement of operations

California

Our California segment consists of the Contra Costa Pittsburg and Potrero facilities with total net

generating capacity of 2347 MW

The following tables summarize the results of operations of our California segment in millions

Years Ended December 31 Increase

2008 2007 Decrease

Realized gross margin
$127 $135

Unrealized gross margin

Total gross margin

Operating Expenses

Operations
and maintenance

76 74

Depreciation
and amortization

23 13 10

Gain on sales of assets net

Total operating expenses
92 85

Operating income
35 50 15

Total other expense income net

Income from continuing operations
before reorganization items

net and income taxes
$34 $21
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Gross Margin

Years Ended December 31
Increase/

2008 2007 Decrease

Energy $4 $3 $1
Contracted and capacity 123 132

Total realized gross margin 127 135

Unrealized
gross margin

Total
gross margin $127 $135 $8

The decrease of $9 million in contracted and capacity includes $3 million lower of cost or market fuel oil

inventory adjustment recognized in the fourth quarter of 2008 and extended outages at unit of the Potrero

generating facility in the first quarter of 2008

Operating Expenses

The increase of $7 million in operating expenses was principally the result of higher development costs and

higher depreciation expense in 2008 partially offset by lower maintenance
expenses and an increase in gains on

sales of assets net primarily as result of the sales of emissions allowances in 2008

Other Operations

Other Operations includes proprietary trading and fuel oil management activities unallocated corporate
overhead interest on debt at Mirant Americas Generation and Mirant North America and interest income on our
invested cash balances For the year ended December 31 2007 Other Operations also included gains and losses

related to the Back-to-Back Agreement which was terminated pursuant to settlement that became effective in

the third quarter of 2007 See Pepco Litigation in Note 17 to our consolidated financial statements contained
elsewhere in this report for further discussion of the Back-to-Back Agreement

The following tables summarize the results of operations of our Other Operations segment in millions

Years Ended December 31
tncrease/

2008 2007 Decrease

Realized gross margin $l7 126 $143
Unrealized

gross margin 120 14 134

Total
gross margin 103 112

Operating Expenses

Operations and maintenance 28 94 66
Depreciation and amortization 10 10

Gain on sales of assets net

Total operating expenses 36 99 63
Operating income 67 13 54
Total other

expense income net 123 282 405

Income loss from continuing operations before reorganization

items net and income taxes $56 $295 $351
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Gross Margin

Years Ended December 31

______________________________
Increase/

2008 2007 Decrease

Energy
$17 $109 $126

Contracted and capacity
17 17

Total realized gross margin 17 126 143

Unrealized gross margin
120 14 134

Total gross margin
$103 $112 $9

The decrease of $143 million in realized gross margin was principally
result of the following

decrease of $126 million in energy comprised of $83 million decrease from fuel oil management

activities $37 million lower of cost or market fuel oil inventory adjustment recognized
in the fourth

quarter of 2008 and $6 million decrease from proprietary trading activities The significant decrease

in the contribution from fuel oil management activities primarily
relates to the timing of the settlement

of contracts used to hedge the fair value of fuel oil inventory compared to the timing of the use or sale

of the fuel oil and

decrease of $17 million in contracted and capacity resulting from the termination of the Back-to-Back

Agreement in the third quarter of 2007 See Note 17 to our consolidated financial statements contained

elsewhere in this report for additional information related to the Pepco Settlement Agreement

The increase of $134 million in unrealized gross margin was comprised of the following

unrealized gains of $120 million in 2008 which include $65 million net increase in the value of

contracts for future periods primarily
related to changes in forward power prices in 2008 and an

increase of $55 million from power and fuel contracts that settled during the period for which net

unrealized losses had been recorded in prior periods
and

unrealized losses of $14 million in 2007 including

$102 million of unrealized losses related to proprietary trading and fuel oil management activities

which include $115 million from the settlement of power and fuel contracts during the year for

which unrealized gains had been recorded in prior periods
and $13 million net increase in value

associated with contracts for future periods partially offset by

$88 million of unrealized gains on the Back-to-Back Agreement and related hedges The

Back-to-Back Agreement was terminated in the third quarter
of 2007

Operating Expenses

The decrease of $63 million in operating expenses was primarily result of decrease of $66 million in

operations and maintenance expense which include

decrease of $32 million resulting from the 2007 increase in our estimated obligation to MC Asset

Recovery under the Plan See Note 16 to our consolidated financial statements contained elsewhere in

this report
for additional information related to MC Asset Recovery

decrease of $26 million related to corporate
overhead costs included in Other Operations in 2007 but

allocated across Mirants operating segments in 2008

decrease of $16 million related to the 2007 bonus plan for dispositions

decrease of $9 million related to litigation contingencies partially offset by

an increase of $27 million related to decrease in curtailment gains on pension and postretirement

benefits reflected as reduction of operations
and maintenance expense
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Other Expense Income Net

Other
expense income net decreased $405 million primarily as result of the following

decrease in other net of $348 million which includes gain of $341 million in 2007
resulting from

the termination of the Back-to-Back Agreement and gain of $2 million for the refund of excess
proceeds from the sales of shares distributed to Pepco both as result of the Pepco Settlement

Agreement becoming fully effective See Note 17 to our consolidated financial statements contained
elsewhere in this report for additional information related to the Pepco Settlement Agreement

decrease of $130 million in interest income primarily related to lower average cash balances and
lower interest rates on invested cash partially offset by

decrease of $73 million in interest
expense related to lower debt

outstanding and higher interest

capitalized on construction projects in 2008

Other Significant Consolidated Statements of Operations Comparison

Discontinued Operations

For the
year ended December 31 2008 income from discontinued operations was $50 million and included

insurance recoveries related to the Sual generating facility outages that occurred prior to the sale

For the
year ended December 31 2007 income from discontinued operations was $1 .562 billion and

included

pre-tax gain of $2.003 billion on the sale of the Philippine business pre-tax gain of $63 million on
the sale of the Caribbean business reduction to the previous impairment of six U.S natural gas-fired
facilities of $30 million and gain of $8 million on the sale of Mirant NY-Gen partially offset by

an income tax provision of $704 million related to the sale of the Philippine business and

operating results for the discontinued operations

See Note 11 to our consolidated financial statements contained elsewhere in this report for additional
information related to the dispositions and discontinued operations

2007 versus 2006

Gross Margin Overview

The following table details realized and unrealized gross margin by operating segment in millions

Years Ended December 31

2007
2006

Realized Unrealized Total Realized Unrealized Total

Mid-Atlantic $1084 $479 605 834 $484 $1318
Northeast 280 43 237 286 61 347
California

135 135 112 115

OtherOperations 126 14 112 11 107 118
Eliminations

18 18 38 38

Total $1643 $536 $1107 $1281 $655 $1936
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Gross margin for the years ended December 31 2007 and 2006 is further detailed as follows in millions

Year Ended December 31 2007

Mid- Other

Atlantic Northeast California Operations Eliminations Total

Energy
686 $128 $109 $18 944

Contracted and capacity
196 87 132 17 432

Realized value of hedges 202 65
267

Total realized gross margin 1084 280 135 126 18 1643

Unrealized gross margin 479 43 14 536

Total Gross Margin 605 $237 $135 $112 $18 $1107

Year Ended December 31 2006

Mid- Other

Atlantic Northeast California Operations Eliminations Total

Energy
532 $117 14 71 $38 772

Contracted and capacity
39 44 101 60 124

Realized value of hedges
263 125

385

Total realized gross margin 834 286 112 11 38 1281

Unrealized gross margin 484 61 107 655

Total Gross Margin $1318 $347 $115 $118 $38 $1936

Energy represents gross margin from the generation of electricity fuel sales and purchases at market

prices fuel handling steam sales and our proprietary trading and fuel oil management activities

Contracted and capacity represents gross margin received from capacity sold in ISO and RTO

administered capacity markets through RMR contracts through tolling agreements and from ancillary

services For the years ended December 31 2007 and 2006 contracted and capacity also included the

Back-to-Back Agreement which was terminated on August 10 2007 See Note 17 to our consolidated

financial statements contained elsewhere in this report for further discussion of the Pepco Settlement

Agreement

Realized value of hedges represents the actual margin upon the settlement of our power and fuel

hedging contracts and the difference between market prices and contract costs for our coal supply contracts

Power hedging contracts include sales of both power and natural gas
used to hedge power prices as well as

hedges to capture
the incremental value related to the geographic

location of our physical assets

Unrealized gross margin represents the net unrealized gain or loss on our derivative contracts that are

recorded as derivative contract assets and liabilities on our consolidated balance sheets including the

reversal of unrealized gains and losses recognized in prior periods and changes in value for future periods

Our gross margin for the year
ended December 31 2007 was $1 107 billion as compared to $1 .936 billion

for the same period in 2006 The decrease in gross margin which includes net unrealized gains and losses from

our hedging activities was principally result of the following

decrease of $1.19 billion in unrealized gross margin was comprised of the following

unrealized losses of $536 million in 2007 which include $438 million from the settlement of power

and fuel contracts during the period for which net unrealized gains had been recorded in prior periods

and $98 million net decrease in the value of hedge contracts for future periods primarily
related to

increases in forward power prices in 2007 and

unrealized gains of $655 million in 2006 which include $433 million net increase in the value of

hedge contracts for future periods primarily related to decreases in forward power prices in 2006 and

$222 million from the settlement of power and fuel contracts during the period for which net unrealized

losses had been recorded in prior periods
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An increase of $362 million in realized
gross margin primarily attributable to

an increase in contracted and capacity of $308 million which includes the refund by Pepco of

$36 million of payments made to it under the Back-to-Back Agreement for periods after May 31 2006
as result of the Settlement Agreement with Pepco becoming fully effective in August 2007

an increase in energy of $172 million as result of an increase in power prices decrease in emissions

prices slightly higher generation volumes and the settlement of favorable fuel oil management
positions partially offset by

decrease of $118 million in incremental realized value of hedges

Mid-Atlantic

Our Mid-Atlantic segment which accounts for approximately half of our net generating capacity includes
four generating facilities with total net generating capacity of 5230 MW

The following tables summarize the results of operations of our Mid-Atlantic segment in millions

Years Ended December 31
Increase

2007 2006 Decrease

Realized gross margin $1084 834 250
Unrealized gross margin 479 484 963
Total gross margin 605 1318 713
Operating Expenses

Operations and maintenance 360 333 27

Depreciation and amortization 81 74
Gain on sales of assets net

Total operating expenses 441 400 41

Operating income
164 918 754

Total other expense income net

Income from continuing operations before
reorganization items

net and income taxes 169 922 $753

Gross Margin

Years Ended December 31
Increase

2007 2006 Decrease

Energy 686 532 154
Contracted and capacity 196 39 157
Realized value of hedges 202 263 61

Total realized
gross margin 1084 834 250

Unrealized
gross margin 479 484 963

Total gross margin 605 $1318 $713

The increase of $250 million in realized gross margin was principally result of the
following

an increase of $154 million in energy primarily because of an increase in power prices decrease in

emissions prices and slightly higher generation volumes

an increase of $157 million in contracted and capacity related to higher capacity revenues from the
PJM RPM which became effective in June 2007 See Item Regulatory Environment for further

discussion of RPM and
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decrease of $61 million in realized value of hedges of our generation output primarily as result of

decrease in the amount by which the settlement value of power contracts exceeded market prices

The decrease of $963 million in unrealized gross margin was comprised of the following

unrealized losses of $479 million in 2007 which include $270 million from the settlement of power

and fuel contracts during the period for which net unrealized gains had been recorded in prior periods

and $209 million net decrease in the value of hedge contracts for future periods primarily related to

increases in forward power prices in 2007 and

unrealized gains of $484 million in 2006 which include $312 million net increase in the value of

hedge contracts for future periods primarily as result of decreases in forward power prices in 2006

and $172 million from the settlement of power and fuel contracts during the year for which net

unrealized losses had been recorded in prior periods particularly during the high energy prices of late

2005

Operating Expenses

Operating expenses
increased $41 million primarily as result of the following

an increase of $27 million in operations and maintenance expense of which $18 million was related to

higher maintenance performed in conjunction with planned outages for the installation of pollution

control equipment and $8 million related to increased corporate overhead allocations as result of the

dispositions in 2007

an increase of $7 million in depreciation and amortization expense primarily related to equipment to

improve environmental performance and

decrease of $7 million in gain on sales of assets net primarily related to gain of $6 million on the

sale of building in 2006

Northeast

Our Northeast segment is comprised of our facilities located in Massachusetts and New York with total net

generating capacity of 2535 MW

The following tables summarize the results of operations of our Northeast segment in millions

Years Ended December 31 tncrease/

2007 2006 Decrease

Realized gross margin
$280 $286

Unrealized gross margin 43 61 104

Total gross margin
237 347 110

Operating Expenses

Operations and maintenance
179 116 63

Depreciation
and amortization

25 25

Impairment losses
175 118 57

Gain on sales of assets net __ 46

Total operating expenses
330 213 117

Operating income loss 93 134 227

Total other expense income net
16

Income loss from continuing operations before

reorganization items net and income taxes $86 $125 $21l
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Gross Margin

Years Ended December 31
Increasel

2007 2006 Decrease

Energy $128 $117 11

Contracted and capacity 87 44 43
Realized value of hedges 65 125 60

Total realized gross margin 280 286

Unrealized
gross margin 43 61 104

Total gross margin $237 $347 $llO

The decrease of $6 million in realized gross margin was principally result of the following

decrease of $60 million in realized value of hedges of our generation output primarily as result of

decrease in the amount by which the settlement value of power contracts exceeded market prices

an increase of $43 million in contracted and capacity from the implementation of the new FCM in the

ISO-NE See Item Regulatory Environment for further information on the implementation of the

new FCM and

an increase of $11 million in energy primarily because of an increase in power prices and higher

generation volumes

The decrease of $104 million in unrealized gross margin was comprised of the following

unrealized losses of $43 million in 2007 which include $57 million from the settlement of power and

fuel contracts during the period for which unrealized gains had been recorded in prior periods partially

offset by $14 million net increase in the value of hedge contracts for future periods primarily related

to decreases in forward power prices in 2007 and

unrealized gains of $61 million in 2006 which include $50 million net increase in the value of hedge
contracts for future periods primarily related to decreases in forward power prices in 2006 and $11

million from the settlement of power and fuel contracts during the year for which unrealized losses had

been recorded in prior periods particularly during the high energy prices of late 2005

Operating Expenses

Operating expenses increased $1 17 million primarily as result of the following

an increase of $63 million in operations and maintenance which included

an increase of $71 million in 2007 which represents that portion of the 2006 New York property
tax settlement that reduced operating expenses for 2006 but which related to prior periods See

Note 17 to our consolidated financial statements contained elsewhere in this
report for further

discussion and

decrease of $6 million related to decrease in maintenance costs primarily as result of the

shutdown of Lovett units and in 2007 and repairs on Lovett unit in 2006

an increase of $57 million in impainnent losses In 2007 we recorded an impairment loss of

$175 million on our Lovett facility In 2006 we recorded an impairment loss of $118 million on the

Bowline unit suspended construction project See Note to our consolidated financial statements

contained elsewhere in this report for additional information related to these impairments
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California

Our California segment consists of the Contra Costa Pittsburg and Potrero facilities with total net

generating capacity of 2347 MW

The following tables summarize the results of operations of our California segment in millions

Years Ended December 31
______________________________ Increase

2007 2006 Decrease

Realized gross margin $135 $112 23

Unrealized gross margin

Total gross margin

Operating Expenses

Operations and maintenance
74 63 11

Depreciation and amortization
13 13

Gain on sales of assets net

Total operating expenses
85 76

Operating income _.2 __
Total other expense income net 34 29

Income from continuing operations before reorganization items

net and income taxes $55 $73 $18

Gross Margin

Years Ended December 31
tncrease/

2007 2006 Decrease

Energy
14 $11

Contracted and capacity
132 101 31

Realized value of hedges

Total realized gross margin
135 112 23

Unrealized gross margin

Total gross margin $135 $115 $20

The increase in our contracted and capacity gross margin and decrease in our energy gross margin were

primarily result of the commencement of new tolling agreement in the first quarter of 2007 at our Contra

Costa and Pittsburg facilities See Item Business Segments for additional information regarding the tolling

agreement

Operating Expenses

The increase of $9 million in operating expenses includes an increase of $11 million in operations and

maintenance expense in 2007 resulting from higher maintenance costs related to outages
and $5 million

property tax settlement in 2006

Other Expense Income Net

The decrease of $29 million in other expense income net is primarily
result of gain of $26 million in

2006 related to the transfer of Contra Costa unit to PGE See California Settlement in Note 17 to our

consolidated financial statements contained elsewhere in this report for further discussion
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Other Operations

Other Operations includes proprietary trading fuel oil management and gains and losses related to the

Back-to-Back Agreement which was terminated pursuant to settlement that became effective in the third

quarter of 2007 See Pepco Litigation in Note 17 to our consolidated financial statements contained elsewhere

in this report for further discussion of the Back-to-Back Agreement Other Operations also includes unallocated

corporate overhead interest on debt at Mirant Americas Generation and Mirant North America and interest

income on our invested cash balances

The following tables summarize the results of operations of our Other Operations segment in millions

Years Ended December 31
Increasel

2007 2006 Decrease

Realized gross margin 126 11 $115
Unrealized gross margin 14 107 121
Total gross margin 112 118

Operating Expenses

Operations and maintenance 94 80 14

Depreciation and amortization 10 25 15
Impairment losses

Gain on sales of assets net 40 35

Total operating expenses 99 66 33

Operating income 13 52 39
Total other expense income net 282 128 410
Income loss from continuing operations before

reorganization items net and income taxes $295 $76 371

Gross Margin

Years Ended December 31
Increase/

2007 2006 Decrease

Energy $109 71 38

Contracted and capacity 17 60 77

Total realized gross margin 126 11 115

Unrealized gross margin 14 107 121
Total

gross margin $112 $118 $6
The increase of $115 million in realized

gross margin was principally result of the following

an increase of $77 million in contracted and capacity related to decrease in realized losses on the

Back-to-Back Agreement and the related hedges of this contract and as result of the Settlement

Agreement with Pepco becoming fully effective in August 2007 the refund by Pepco of $36 million of

payments made to it under the Back-to-Back Agreement for periods after May 31 2006 and

an increase of $38 million in energy related to our proprietary trading and fuel oil management
activities as favorable positions entered into prior to 2007 were settled in the current period

The decrease of $121 million in unrealized gross margin was comprised of the following

unrealized losses in 2007 of $14 million including

unrealized losses on proprietary trading and fuel oil management activities of $102 million which

include $115 million from the settlement of power and fuel contracts during the period for which
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unrealized gains had been recorded in prior periods and $13 million net increase in value

associated with contracts for future periods partially offset by

unrealized gains on the Back-to-Back Agreement and related hedges of $88 million primarily as

result of an increase in forward value related to the prices for forward capacity in PJM and the

resulting decrease in the fair value of the liability of that agreement

unrealized gains in 2006 of $107 million which include unrealized gains on proprietary trading and

fuel oil management activities of $61 million and unrealized gains on the Back-to-Back Agreement of

$46 million

Operating Expenses

Operating expenses increased $33 million primarily as result of the following

decrease of $35 million in gain on sales of assets net primarily as result of the 2006 gain on the sale

of our remaining claims in the Enron bankruptcy

an increase of $14 million in operations and maintenance expense primarily as result of the

following

an increase of $35 million related to the accrual for costs of MC Asset Recovery that we are

required to pay under the terms of the Plan See Note 16 to our consolidated financial statements

contained elsewhere in this report for further discussion

an increase of $27 million related to an increase in incentive compensation including bonus plan

established in connection with the disposition in 2007 of certain businesses and assets

an increase of $9 million in litigation contingency accruals partially offset by

decrease related to curtailment gain of $32 million resulting from an amendment to our

postretirement
benefits plan

decrease of $19 million in bankruptcy related charges and prepetition disputes and

decrease of $15 million in depreciation expense as result of the complete depreciation of certain

computer equipment

Other Expense Income Net

Other expense income net decreased $410 million primarily as result of the following

gain of $341 million resulting from the termination of the Back-to-Back Agreement

an increase of $126 million in interest income related to increased cash balances as result of the

proceeds from dispositions completed in 2007 partially offset by

decrease in gain on sales of investments which included gain of $54 million in 2006 from the sale

of portion of our investment in InterContinental Exchange and $19 million on the sale of our two

NYMEX seats and shares

Other Significant Consolidated Statements of Operations Comparison

Provision Benefit for Income Taxes

The provision for income taxes increased by $559 million for the year ended December 31 2007 compared

to 2006 primarily as result of the $552 million benefit in 2006 related to the release of the valuation allowance
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pertaining to deferred tax assets previously recorded The 2006 benefit included the estimated value of the NOLs
that were used to offset the 2007 taxable gain resulting from the sale of the Philippine business

Discontinued Operations

For the year ended December 31 2007 we reported net income from discontinued operations of $1562
billion which includes the reclassification of the results of operations related to the dispositions Income from

discontinued operations increased $1 .450 billion for the year ended December 31 2007 as compared to 2006

primarily as result of the following

an increase of $2.479 billion in gain on sales of assets which included

an increase of $2003 billion as result of the sale of the Philippine business in 2007

an increase of $63 million as result of the gain on the sale of the Caribbean business in 2007

an increase of $405 million as result of the impairments recorded on six U.S natural gas-fired

facilities For the year ended December 31 2006 we recorded total impairments of $375 million

For the year ended December 31 2007 we recorded reduction to the impairment of $30 million

and

an increase of $8 million as result of the sale of NY-Gen in 2007

2007 gain of $24 million related to the agreement for Wrightsville transmission credits See Note 11

to our consolidated financial statements contained elsewhere in this report for additional information

on the Wrightsville transmission credits

an increase in the provision for income taxes of $793 million primarily related to the sale of the

Philippine business and

decrease of $260 million in income from discontinued operations because of the completion of the

dispositions which occurred in the second and third quarters of 2007

See Note 11 to our consolidated financial statements contained elsewhere in this report for additional

information related to discontinued operations

Reorganization Items net

Reorganization items net for the years ended December 31 2007 and 2006 are comprised of the following

in millions

Years Ended December 31

Increase
2007 2006 Decrease

Gain on the New York property tax settlement $163 $163

Professional fees and administrative expense

Interest income net

Total $2 $164 $162

Under the terms of the New York property tax settlement in February 2007 we received refunds totaling

approximately $163 million for 1995 through 2003 and paid unpaid but accrued taxes of approximately $1 15

million for 2003 through 2006 See Note 17 to our consolidated financial statements contained elsewhere in this

report for additional information
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Liquidity and Capital Resources

Sources of Funds and Capital Structure

The principal sources of liquidity for our future operations and capital expenditures are expected to be

existing cash on hand and cash flows from the operations
of our subsidiaries letters of credit issued or

borrowings made under Mirant North Americas senior secured revolving credit facility and letters of credit

issued under Mirant North Americas senior secured term loan

The table below sets forth total cash cash equivalents
and availability under credit facilities of Mirant

Corporation and its subsidiaries in millions

At December 31

2008 2007

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Mirant Corporation
$1469 $4232

Mirant Americas Generation

Mirant North America
229 455

Mirant Mid-Atlantic
125 242

Other
31

Total cash and cash equivalents
1831 4961

Less Cash restricted and reserved for other purposes
15

Total available cash and cash equivalents
1829 4946

Available under credit facilities
583 710

Total cash cash equivalents and credit facilities availability
$2412 $5656

We consider all short-term investments with an original maturity of three months or less to be cash

equivalents At December 31 2008 except for amounts held in bank accounts to cover upcoming payables all of

our cash and cash equivalents were invested in AAA-rated U.S Treasury money market funds

Available under credit facilities at December 31 2008 reflects $45 million reduction as result of the

expectation that Lehman Commercial Paper Inc which filed for bankruptcy in October 2008 will not honor its

$45 million commitment under the Mirant North America senior secured revolving credit facility See Item IA

Risk Factors for description of risks related to the lenders under our credit facility
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We and certain of our subsidiaries including Mirant Americas Generation and Mirant North America are

holding companies The chart below is summary representation of our capital structure and is not complete

corporate organizational chart

Mirant Corporation

Mirant Americas

Mirant Americas Generation

$535 million of 8.3% senior notes due 2011

$450 million of 8.5% senior notes due 2021

$400 million of 9.125% senior notes due 2031

Mirant North America

$850 million of 7.375% senior notes due 2013

Revolving credit and term loan facilities comprised of

-Revolving credit facility with $172 million letters of credit issued

as of December 31 2008

-Term loan facility $415 million
outstanding including $122 million

of letters of credit issued as of December 31 2008

Mirant California Massachusetts and Mirant Mid-Atlantic

New York subsidiaries

Mirant Mid-Atlantic
leveraged leases

Guarantors of Mirant North Americas credit

facilities and senior notes

Except for existing cash on hand and in the case of Mirant North America borrowings and letters of credit

under its credit facilities the Mirant Corporation Mirant Americas Generation and Mirant North America

holding companies are dependent for liquidity on the distributions and dividends of their subsidiaries

significant portion of cash from our operations is generated by the power generation facilities of Mirant

Mid-Atlantic Under the Mirant Mid-Atlantic leveraged leases Mirant Mid-Atlantic is subject to covenant that

restricts its right to make distributions to Mirant North America Mirant Mid-Atlantics ability to satisfy the

criteria set by that covenant in the future could be impaired by factors which negatively affect its financial

performance including interruptions in operation or curtailment of operations to comply with environmental

restrictions significant capital and other expenditures and adverse conditions in the power and fuel markets

Mirant North America is an intermediate holding company that is subsidiary of Mirant Americas
Generation and the parent of its indirect subsidiaries including Mirant Mid-Atlantic Mirant North America
incurred certain indebtedness pursuant to its senior notes and senior secured credit facilities secured by the assets

of Mirant North America and its subsidiaries other than Mirant Mid-Atlantic and Mirant Energy Trading The
indebtedness of Mirant North America includes certain covenants typical in such notes and credit facilities

including restrictions on dividends distributions and other restricted payments Further the notes and senior

secured credit facilities include financial covenants that exclude from the calculation the financial results of any
subsidiary that is unable to make distributions or dividends at the time of such calculation Thus the inability of

Mirant Mid-Atlantic to make distributions to Mirant North America under the leveraged lease transaction would
have material adverse effect on the calculation of the financial covenants under the senior notes and senior

secured credit facilities of Mirant North America including the leverage and interest
coverage maintenance

covenants under its senior credit facility

The ability of Mirant Americas Generation to pay its obligations is dependent on the receipt of dividends

from Mirant North America capital contributions from Mirant Corporation and its ability to refinance all or

portion of those obligations as they become due
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Maintaining sufficient liquidity
in our business is crucial in order to mitigate the risk of future financial

distress to us Accordingly we plan on prospective basis for the expected liquidity requirements of our business

considering the factors listed below

expected expenditures with respect to maintenance activities and capital improvements and related

outages

expected collateral posted in support
of our business

effects of market price volatility on the amount of collateral posted for economic hedge transactions

and risk management transactions

effects of market price volatility on fuel pre-payment requirements

seasonal and intra-month working capital requirements

the development of new generating facilities and

debt service obligations

Our operating cash flows may be affected by among other things
demand for electricity the

difference between the cost of fuel used to generate electricity and the market value of the electricity generated

commodity prices including prices for electricity emissions allowances natural gas coal and oil the

cost of ordinary course operations
and maintenance expenses planned and unplanned outages terms with

trade creditors and cash requirements for capital expenditures relating to certain facilities including those

necessary to comply with environmental regulations

As noted above the ability of Mirant North America and its subsidiary Mirant Mid-Atlantic to make

distributions and pay
dividends is restricted under the terms of their debt agreements and leveraged lease

documentation respectively At December 31 2008 Mirant North America had distributed to its parent Mirant

Americas Generation all available cash that was permitted to be distributed under the terms of its debt

agreements leaving $354 million at Mirant North America and its subsidiaries Of this amount $125 million was

held by Mirant Mid-Atlantic which as of December 31 2008 met the tests under the leveraged lease

documentation permitting it to make distributions to Mirant North America While Mirant North America is in

compliance with its financial covenants as of December 31 2008 it is restricted from making distributions

because of the free cash flow requirements under the restricted payment test of its senior credit facility The

primary factor lowering the free cash flow calculation in the restricted payment test is the significant capital

expenditure program of Mirant Mid-Atlantic to install emissions controls at its Chalk Point Dickerson and

Morgantown coal-fired units to comply with the Maryland Healthy Air Act Except for permitted distributions to

cover interest payable on Mirant Americas Generations senior notes the $3.883 billion of net assets of Mirant

North America and its subsidiaries were restricted from distribution from Mirant North America to its parent

Mirant Americas Generation as of December 31 2008 Notwithstanding such restriction we think that we have

sufficient liquidity for our future operations capital expenditures and debt service obligations from existing cash

on hand including $1.469 billion at Mirant Corporation expected cash flows from the operations of our

subsidiaries and ability to issue letters of credit or make borrowings under the Mirant North America senior

credit facilities

Uses of Funds

Our requirements for liquidity and capital resources other than for the day-to-day operation of our

generating facilities are significantly influenced by the following activities capital expenditures debt

service and payments under the Mirant Mid-Atlantic leveraged leases collateral required for our asset

management and proprietary trading and fuel oil management activities the development of new generating

facilities and return of cash to stockholders

Return of Cash to Stockholders Since November 2007 we have returned $4.056 billion of excess cash to

our stockholders through repurchases of our common stock including $2.74 billion in 2008 See Overview in this

Item for further discussion of our share repurchases
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Capital Expenditures Capital expenditures excluding capitalized interest were $683 million $560 million

and $133 million for the years ended December 31 2008 2007 and 2006 respectively Our capital expenditures

excluding capitalized interest for 2009 and 2010 are expected to be
approximately $754 million and $422

million respectively This forecast does not assume any construction of new generating units during the forecast

period Instead the current capital expenditure program which is expected to be funded by cash on hand and

operating cash flow focuses on efficiency safety reliability and compliance with existing environmental laws

and obligations under consent decrees to which we are party including capital expenditures made to comply
with the limitations for S02 NOx and mercury emissions under the Maryland Healthy Air Act For more
detailed discussion of environmental expenditures we expect to incur in the future see Item Business

Debt Service At December 31 2008 we had $2.676 billion of long-term debt with expected interest

payments of approximately $199 million for 2009 See Note to our consolidated financial statements contained

elsewhere in this report for additional information

Under the terms of its senior secured term facility Mirant North America is required to use 50% of its free

cash flow for each fiscal year less amounts paid to Mirant Americas Generation for the
purpose of paying

interest on the Mirant Americas Generation senior notes to pay down its senior secured term loan in addition to

its scheduled amortization of $5 million
per year The percentage of free cash flow that Mirant North America is

required to use to pay down its senior secured term loan may be reduced to 25% upon the achievement of net
debt to EBITDA ratio of less than 21 At December 31 2008 Mirant North Americas net debt to EBITDA ratio

was less than 21 As such it was required to use 25% of its free cash flow to pay down its senior secured term
loan We estimate this prepayment which will be made during the first quarter of 2009 to be $37 million

Mirant Mid-Atlantk Operating Leases Mirant Mid-Atlantic leases the Dickerson and Morgantown
baseload units and associated property through 2029 and 2034 respectively Mirant Mid-Atlantic has an option
to extend the leases Any extensions of the respective leases would be for less than 75% of the economic useful

life of the facility as measured from the beginning of the original lease term through the end of the proposed

remaining lease term We are accounting for these leases as operating leases While there is variability in the

scheduled payment amounts over the lease term we recognize rent expense for these leases on straight-line

basis in accordance with the applicable accounting literature Rent expense under the Mirant Mid-Atlantic leases
was $96 million for the years ended December 31 2008 2007 and 2006 As of December 31 2008 the total

notional minimum lease payments for the
remaining term of the leases aggregated approximately $2 billion and

the aggregate termination value for the leases was approximately $1.4 billion and generally decreases over time
In addition Mirant Mid-Atlantic is required to post rent reserves in an aggregate amount equal to the greater of
the next six months rent 50% of the next 12 months rent or $75 million

Cash Collateral and Letters of Credit In order to sell power and purchase fuel in the forward markets and

perform other
energy trading and marketing activities we often are required to provide trade credit support to our

counterparties or make deposits with brokers In addition we often are required to provide cash collateral or
letters of credit to access the transmission grid to participate in power pools to fund debt service and rent

reserves and for other operating activities Trade credit support includes cash collateral letters of credit and
financial guarantees In the event that we default the counterparty can draw on letter of credit or apply cash
collateral held to satisfy the existing amounts outstanding under an open contract As of December 31 2008 we
had approximately $1 11 million of posted cash collateral and $301 million of letters of credit outstanding

primarily to support our asset management activities debt service and rent reserve requirements and other

commercial arrangements Our liquidity requirements are highly dependent on the level of our hedging activities

forward prices for energy emissions allowances and fuel commodity market volatility and credit terms with

third parties See Note 10 to our consolidated financial statements contained elsewhere in this report for

additional information
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The following table summarizes at December 31 2008 and 2007 for our continuing operations cash

collateral posted with counterparties and brokers letters of credit issued and surety bonds in millions

At December 31

2008 2007

Cash collateral postedenergy trading and marketing
67 96

Cash collateral postedother operating activities 44 14

Letters of creditenergy trading and marketing
76 100

Letters of creditdebt service and rent reserves 101 78

Letters of creditother operating activities
124 112

Surety bondsenergy trading and marketing
25

Total
$437 $400

Debt Obligations Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements and Contractual Obligations

Our debt obligations off-balance sheet arrangements and contractual obligations as of December 31 2008

are as follows in millions

Debt Obligations Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements and

Contractual Obligations by Year

Total 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 Years

Long-term debt $4471 245 $210 717 $162 $1351 $1786

Mirant Mid-Atlantic operating leases 2013 142 140 134 132 138 1327

Other operating leases 57 21

Fuel commitments 1254 374 335 314 196 35

Maryland Healthy Air Act 677 490 187

Other 336 186 41 32 22 15 40

Total payments $8808 $1446 $922 $1204 $517 $1545 $3174

Our contractual obligations table does not include our derivative obligations which are discussed in Note

to our consolidated financial statements contained elsewhere in this report and our asset retirement obligations

which are discussed in Note to our consolidated financial statements contained elsewhere in this report

Long-term debt includes the current portion of long-term
debt and long-term debt on our consolidated

balance sheets Long-term debt also includes estimated interest on debt Interest on our variable interest debt is

based on the U.S Dollar LIBOR curve as of December 31 2008

Operating leases are off-balance sheet arrangements These amounts primarily relate to our minimum lease

payments associated with our lease of the Dickerson and Morgantown baseload units at our Mid-Atlantic

facilities

Fuel commitments primarily relate to long-term coal agreements and related transportation agreements

Maryland Healthy Air Act commitments reflect the remaining capital expenditures that we expect to incur

to comply with the limitations for S02 NOx and mercury emissions under the Maryland Healthy Air Act

Other represents open purchase orders less invoices received related to open purchase orders for general

procurement
of products and services purchased in the ordinary course of business These include construction

maintenance and labor activities at our generating facilities Other also includes our LTSA associated with the

maintenance of turbines at our Kendall facility limestone supply and transportation agreements our estimated pension

and other postretirement benefit funding obligations deferred compensation plans FIN 48 liabilities and miscellaneous

long-term liabilities which are included in other noncurrent liabilities on the consolidated balance sheet
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Cash Flows

The changes in our cash flows are detailed as follows in millions

Years Ended December 31

tncrease/ Increase
2008 2007 Decrease 2007 2006 Decrease

Cash and cash equivalents beginning of period 4961 1385 3576 1385 $1551 166
Net cash provided by operating activities

Continuing operations 677 786 109 786 137 649

Discontinued operations 50 178 128 178 432 254
Net cash provided by used in investing activities

Continuing operations 719 524 195 524 529
Discontinued operations 25 5281 5256 5281 163 5444

Net cash provided by used in financing

activities

Continuing operations 3163 1477 1686 1477 758 719
Discontinued operations 669 669 669 181 850

Effect of exchange rate changes

Cash and cash equivalents end of period 1831 4961 $3130 4961 $1385 $3576

2008 versus 2007

Continuing Operations

Operating Activities Our cash provided by operating activities is affected by seasonality changes in

energy prices and fluctuations in our working capital requirements Net cash provided by operating activities

from continuing operations decreased $109 million for the year ended December 31 2008 compared to the same

period in 2007 primarily as result of the following

decrease in realized
gross margin of $242 million in 2008 compared to the same period in 2007

excluding the non-cash change in lower of cost or market inventory adjustments of $58 million of

which $54 million was recognized in the fourth quarter of 2008 See Results of Operations for

additional discussion of our performance in 2008 compared to the same period in 2007

an increase in cash used of $80 million related to changes in net accounts receivable accounts payable

and accrued liabilities and other changes in working capital in 2008 compared to 2007 primarily as

result of increases in power prices in 2008 and the net refund of $48 million related to New York

property tax settlement in 2007 The increase in cash used is net of $47 million of cash provided by
net increase in collateral that we received from counterparties in 2008

decrease in cash provided of $70 million related to the Pepco Settlement Agreement becoming fully

effective in 2007 which is included in other assets in our consolidated statements of cash flows Pepco

repaid $70 million in 2007 for an advance payment made in 2006 under the Pepco Settlement

Agreement

decrease in cash provided of $74 million for interest net reflecting lower interest income as result

of lower interest rates on invested cash as well as lower cash balances as result of share repurchases

partially offset by lower interest expense from lower outstanding debt and higher capitalized interest

and

an increase in cash used of $23 million related to additional contributions to our pension plans in 2008

as compared to 2007
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The increases in cash used by and decreases in cash provided by operating activities are partially
offset by

the following

decrease in cash used of $173 million because of changes in funds on deposit In 2008 we had net

cash collateral returned to us of $104 million primarily
related to the cash collateral account to support

issuance of letters of credit under the Mirant North America senior secured term loan In 2007 we

posted an additional $70 million of cash collateral

decrease in cash used of $124 million for inventories primarily as result of the reduction of fuel

inventory levels

decrease in operations and maintenance expense
of $46 million excluding non-cash decrease in

curtailment gains on pension and postretirement
benefits of $27 million and other non-cash items and

decrease in cash used of $37 million for settlement of bankruptcy related claims and expenses

Investing Activities Net cash used in investing activities from continuing operations increased by $195

million for the year
ended December 31 2008 compared to the same period in 2007 This difference was

primarily result of the following

an increase in cash used of $143 million for capital expenditures including capitalized interest of $20

million for projects under construction primarily
related to our environmental capital expenditures

for

our Maryland generating facilities

an increase in cash used of $37 million primarily related to $34 million placed in an escrow account in

September 2008 to satisfy the conditions of Mirant Potomac Rivers settlement agreement with the

City of Alexandria and

decrease of $15 million in proceeds from the sales of assets in 2008 as compared to 2007 In 2008

we received $42 million of proceeds from the sale of assets primarily from the sale of emissions

allowances In 2007 we received $57 million of proceeds from the sale of assets which included

approximately $30 million from the sale of ancillary equipment included in the sale of the six U.S

natural gas-fired facilities

Financing Activities Net cash used in financing activities from continuing operations increased by $1 .686

billion for the year
ended December 31 2008 compared to the same period in 2007 This difference was

primarily result of the following

an increase in cash used of $1.453 billion for share repurchases See Note 13 to our consolidated

financial statements contained elsewhere in this report for additional information on share repurchases

an increase in cash used of $240 million for repayments and purchases of long-term debt primarily as

result of the retirement of Mirant Americas Generation senior notes due in 2011 of $276 million in

2008 and $39 million in 2007 partially offset by

an increase of $7 million in proceeds from the exercise of stock options in 2008 as compared to 2007

Discontinued Operations

Operating Activities In 2008 net cash provided by operating activities from discontinued operations was

primarily result of $41 million of business interruption insurance recoveries related to the outages
of the Sual

generating facility and $7 million from the sale of transmission credits from our previously owned Wrightsville

facility In 2007 net cash provided by operating
activities from discontinued operations included cash flows from

the Philippine and Caribbean businesses six U.S natural gas-fired facilities and Mirant NY-Gen
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Investing Activities Net cash provided by investing activities from discontinued operations was $25
million for the

year ended December 31 2008 compared to $5.28 billion for the same period in 2007 This

difference was primarily result of the following

2007 results included the $5.410 billion in proceeds from the sale of our Caribbean business in the third

quarter of 2007 and our Philippine business and six U.S natural gas-fired facilities in the second

quarter of 2007 partially offset by

decrease in cash used of $65 million that related to the cash and cash equivalents balance that was
included in the assets sold as part of the Philippine business in 2007

decrease in cash used of $47 million that related to the cash and cash equivalents balance that was
included in the assets sold as part of the Caribbean business in 2007

decrease in cash used of $20 million primarily related to capital expenditures incurred in 2007 at our

Caribbean business prior to its disposition and

2008 results included $25 million in insurance recoveries related to repairs to the Sual generating

facility and the Swinging Bridge facility of Mirant NY-Gen

Financing Activities In 2007 net cash used in financing activities was $669 million and primarily related

to the repayment of $700 million of long-term debt of our Philippine business $83 million related to West

Georgia and $14 million related to our Caribbean business These payments were partially offset by decrease in

debt service reserves of $125 million

2007 versus 2006

Continuing Operations

Operating Activities Our cash provided by operating activities is affected by seasonal ity changes in

energy prices and fluctuations in our working capital requirements Net cash provided by operating activities

from continuing operations increased $649 million for the year ended December 31 2007 compared to 2006
primarily as result of the following

an increase in realized gross margin of $289 million for the year ended December 2007 compared
to 2006 excluding the non-cash change in lower of cost or market inventory adjustments of $73
million See Results of Operations for additional discussion of our performance in 2007 compared to

2006

an increase of $761 million resulting from reduction in bankruptcy related claims and expenses In

2007 we paid $17 million in claims payable for the New York entities $32 million related to MC
Asset Recovery and $4 million related to other Mirant claims In 2006 we paid $1804 billion of

bankruptcy claims of which $814 million was reflected in cash from operations

an increase of $140 million related to the Settlement Agreement with Pepco becoming fully effective in

the third quarter of 2007 Pepco repaid $70 million in 2007 for an advance payment made in the third

quarter of 2006 under the Settlement Agreement These amounts are included in other assets in the

consolidated statements of cash flows

an increase of $155 million related to increases in net interest income as result of higher cash

balances
resulting from the dispositions completed in 2007

an increase from the receipt in 2007 of net refund of $48 million related to the New York property tax

settlement which is included in receivables net in the consolidated statements of cash flows and

an increase of $12 million primarily related to changes in our fuel oil and emissions inventories In

2007 fuel inventory increased $88 million and emissions inventory decreased $15 million In 2006
fuel inventory increased $38 million and emissions inventory increased $50 million
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The increases in operating activities were partially offset by the following

decrease of $516 million as result of changes in posted collateral levels which are included in funds

on deposit in the consolidated statements of cash flows For the year ended December 31 2007 we

posted an additional $70 million of cash collateral primarily to support energy marketing activities The

change in collateral for the year ended December 31 2006 provided source of cash of $446 million

primarily because of decrease in cash collateral to support energy marketing activities of

$592 million and reduction of $56 million in cash collateral posted in connection with the Mirant

Mid-Atlantic lease upon posting $75 million of letters of credit These amounts were partially offset by

use of cash as result of the deposit of $200 million into cash collateral account to support the

issuance of letters of credit

decrease of $77 million resulting from an increase in operations and maintenance expenses See

results of operations for additional discussion

decrease of $60 million primarily as result of the return in 2007 of deposits previously posted by

our counterparties which is included in accounts payable and accrued liabilities in the consolidated

statements of cash flows

decrease of $65 million relating to changes in net accounts receivable and accounts payable in 2007

compared to 2006 and

decrease of $38 million related to all other changes in operating assets and liabilities

Investing Activities Net cash used in investing activities from continuing operations increased by $529

million for the year
ended December 31 2007 compared to 2006 This difference was primarily result of the

following

an increase of $449 million in capital expenditures including capitalized interest of $22 million

primarily because of our environmental capital expenditures for our Mid-Atlantic generating facilities

and

decrease in proceeds from the sales of assets and investments of $86 million In 2007 we received

proceeds from the sale of assets of $57 million which included approximately $30 million from the

sale of ancillary equipment included in the sale of the six U.S natural gas-fired facilities and $22

million from the sale of equipment from the Bowline unit suspended construction project In 2006

we received $143 million from the sale of assets which included $45 million from the sale of our

remaining bankruptcy claims against Enron and its subsidiaries and $58 million from the sale of

portion of our investment in InterContinental Exchange

Financing Activities Net cash used in financing activities from continuing operations increased by $719

million for the year ended December 31 2007 compared to 2006 This difference was primarily result of the

following

decrease in proceeds from the issuance of long-term debt of $2.0 17 billion Proceeds from the

issuance of long-term debt in 2006 included $850 million from the Mirant North America senior notes

offering $700 million from the Mirant North America senior secured term loan and $465 million

drawn on the Mirant North America senior secured revolving credit facility

decrease in the repayments
of long-term debt of $1 .285 billion which includes $990 million of

principal payments for debt settled under the Plan in 2006 In 2007 we paid $138 million on the Mirant

North America senior secured term loan and repurchased $39 million of the Mirant Americas

Generation 8.3% senior notes due in 2011 In 2006 we repaid $465 million on the Mirant North

America senior secured revolving credit facility and $990 million of principal payments for debt settled

under the Plan in 2006

decrease in debt issuance costs of $51 million In 2006 we paid $51 million in debt issuance costs

associated with Mirant North Americas debt offering senior secured term loan and secured revolving

credit facility and
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an increase of $47 million used for stock repurchases In 2007 stock repurchases included

26.66 million shares of Mirant common stock for $1 billion under the accelerated share repurchase

program 8.27 million shares of Mirant common stock under the open market share repurchase program
for approximately $316 million of which $17 million had not yet been paid as of December 31 2007
and approximately 245000 shares of Mirant common stock in odd lot buybacks for approximately $9

million In 2006 we repurchased 43 million shares of our common stock for $1 .228 billion pursuant to

tender offer in 2006 and 1.18 million shares for approximately $32 million under the share repurchase

program

Discontinued Operations

Operating Activities Net cash provided by operating activities from discontinued operations decreased by
$254 million for the year ended December 31 2007 compared to 2006 In 2006 operating activities included

cash flows from the Philippine and Caribbean businesses and six U.S natural gas-fired facilities for the entire

year In 2007 operating activities included all the discontinued businesses and facilities through their respective
dates of sale

Investing Activities Net cash provided by investing activities from discontinued operations increased by
$5444 billion for the year ended December 31 2007 compared to 2006 This difference was primarily result

of the following

an increase of $5 .410 billion in proceeds from the sale of assets and investments primarily from the

sale of our Philippine and Caribbean businesses and six U.S natural gas-fired facilities in the second

and third quarters of 2007

decrease of $65 million in cash that was included in the assets sold as part of the Philippine business

decrease of $47 million in cash that was included in the assets sold as part of the Caribbean business

an increase related to the purchases in 2006 of the remaining 5.15% ownership in Mirant Sual for

$35 million and the remaining 4.26% interest in Mirant Pagbilao for $40 million and

an increase as result of funding in 2006 of $24 million in accordance with the terms and conditions of

stockholder loan agreement for the construction and installation of new generating units at Point

Lisas Trinidad

Financing Activities Net cash used in financing activities from discontinued operations increased by $850
million for the year ended December 31 2007 compared to 2006 This difference was primarily result of the

following

decrease of $78 million in repayments of long-term debt In 2007 we repaid $70 million related to

our Philippine business $83 million related to West Georgia and $14 million related to our Caribbean

business In 2006 we repaid $551 million related to our Philippine business $268 million related to

our Caribbean business $56 million related to West Georgia and $2 million related to Zeeland

decrease of $981 million in proceeds from the issuance of long-term debt primarily from the issuance

of $700 million by Mirant Asia-Pacific $100 million by Mirant Trinidad Investments and $180 million

by Mirant JPSCO Finance Ltd in 2006

decrease in debt issuance costs of $40 million primarily related to the Philippines and

decrease in the release of cash deposited in debt service reserves of $10 million
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Critical Accounting Estimates

The accounting policies
described below are considered critical to obtaining an understanding of our

consolidated financial statements because their application requires significant estimates and judgments by

management in preparing our consolidated financial statements Managements estimates and judgments are

inherently uncertain and may differ significantly from actual results achieved Management considers an

accounting estimate to be critical if the following conditions apply

the estimate requires significant assumptions and

changes in the estimate could have material effect on our consolidated results of operations or

financial condition or

if different estimates that could have been selected had been used there could be material effect on

our consolidated results of operations or financial condition

We have discussed the selection and application of these accounting estimates with the Audit Committee of

the Board of Directors and our independent auditors It is managements view that the current assumptions and

other considerations used to estimate amounts reflected in our consolidated financial statements are appropriate

However actual results can differ significantly from those estimates under different assumptions and conditions

The sections below contain information about our most critical accounting estimates as well as the effects of

hypothetical changes in the material assumptions used to develop the estimates

Revenue Recognition and Accounting for Energy Trading and Marketing Activities

Nature of Estimates Required We utilize two comprehensive accounting models an accrual model and

fair value model in reporting our consolidated financial position and results of operations We determine the

appropriate model for our operations based on applicable accounting standards

The accrual model is used to account for our revenues from the sale of energy capacity and ancillary

services We recognize revenue when earned and collection is probable as result of electricity delivered to

customers pursuant to contractual commitments that specify volume price and delivery requirements Sales of

energy are based on economic dispatch or they may be as-ordered by an ISO or RIO based on member

participation agreements but without an underlying contractual commitment ISO and RIO revenues and

revenues for sales of energy
based on economic-dispatch are recorded on the basis of MWh delivered at the

relevant day-ahead or real-time prices

The fair value model is used to measure fair value on recurring basis for derivative energy contracts that

hedge economically our electricity generating facilities or that are used in our proprietary trading and fuel oil

management activities We use variety of derivative financial instruments such as futures forwards swaps and

option contracts in the management of our business Such derivative financial instruments have varying terms

and durations or tenors which range from few days to number of years depending on the instrument

Pursuant to SFAS 133 derivative financial instruments are reflected in our financial statements at fair value

with changes in fair value recognized currently in earnings unless they qualify for scope exception

Management considers fair value techniques and valuation adjustments related to credit and liquidity to be

critical accounting estimates These estimates are considered significant because they are highly susceptible to

change from period to period and are dependent on many subjective factors The fair value of derivative financial

instruments is included in derivative contract assets and liabilities in our consolidated balance sheets

Transactions that are not accounted for using the fair value model under SFAS 133 are either not derivatives or

qualify for scope exception and are accounted for under accrual accounting With the adoption of SFAS 157 on

January 2008 we no longer defer unobservable inception gains and losses which are transacted at different

prices between the bid price and the ask price

Key Assumptions and Approach Used Determining the fair value of our derivatives is based largely on

observable quoted prices from exchanges and independent brokers in active markets Our view is that these
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prices represent the best available information for valuation purposes For most delivery locations and tenors

where we have positions we receive multiple independent broker price quotes If no active market exists we
estimate the fair value of certain derivative financial instruments using price extrapolation interpolation and

other quantitative methods Fair value estimates involve uncertainties and matters of significant judgment Our

techniques for fair value estimation include assumptions for market prices correlation and volatility The degree

of estimation increases for longer duration contracts contracts with multiple pricing features option contracts

and off-hub delivery points Note to our consolidated financial statements contained elsewhere in this report

explains the fair value hierarchy Our assets and liabilities classified as Level in the fair value hierarchy

represent approximately of our total assets and less than of our total liabilities measured at fair value at

December 31 2008

The fair value of derivative contract assets and liabilities in our consolidated balance sheets is also affected

by our assumptions as to time value credit risk and nonperformance risk The nominal value of the contracts is

discounted using forward interest rate curve based on LIBOR In addition the fair value of our derivative

contract assets is reduced to reflect the estimated default risk of counterparties on their contractual obligations to

us The default risk of our counterparties for significant portion of our overall net position is measured based on

published spreads on credit default swaps The fair value of our derivative contract liabilities is reduced to reflect

our estimated risk of default on our contractual obligations to counterparties The credit risk reflected in the fair

value of our derivative contract assets and the nonperformance risk reflected in the fair value of our derivative

contract liabilities are calculated with consideration of our master netting agreements with counterparties and our

exposure is reduced by cash collateral posted to us against these obligations

Effect ifDifferent Assumptions Used The amounts recorded as revenue or cost of fuel electricity and

other products change as estimates are revised to reflect actual results and changes in market conditions or other

factors many of which are beyond our control Because we use derivative financial instruments and have not

elected cash flow or fair value hedge accounting under SFAS 133 certain components of our financial

statements including gross margin operating income and balance sheet ratios are at times volatile and subject to

fluctuations in value primarily as result of changes in energy and fuel prices Significant negative changes in

fair value could require us to post additional collateral either in the form of cash or letters of credit Because the

fair value measurements of our material assets and liabilities are based on observable market information there is

not significant range
of values around the fair value estimate For our derivative financial instruments that are

measured at fair value using quantitative pricing models significant change in estimate could affect our results

of operations and cash flows at the time contracts are ultimately settled See Item 7A Quantitative and

Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk for further sensitivities in our assumptions used to calculate fair

value See Note to our consolidated financial statements contained elsewhere in this report for further

information on derivative financial instruments related to energy trading and marketing activities

Long-Lived Assets

Estimated Useful Lives

Nature of Estimates Required The estimated useful lives of our long-lived assets are used to compute

depreciation expense determine the carrying value of asset retirement obligations and estimate expected future

cash flows attributable to an asset for the purposes of impairment testing Estimated useful lives are based in

part on the assumption that we provide an appropriate level of capital expenditures while the assets are still in

operation Without these continued capital expenditures the useful lives of these assets could decrease

significantly

Key Assumptions and Approach Used Estimated useful lives are the mechanism by which we allocate the

cost of long-lived assets over the assets service period We perform depreciation studies periodically to update

changes in estimated useful lives The actual useful life of an asset could be affected by changes in estimated or

actual commodity prices environmental regulations various legal factors competitive forces and our liquidity

and ability to sustain required maintenance expenditures and satisfy asset retirement obligations We use
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composite depreciation for groups
of similar assets and establish an average useful life for each group of related

assets In accordance with SFAS 144 we cease depreciation on long-lived assets classified as held for sale Also

we may revise the remaining useful life of an asset held and used subject to impairment testing See Note to our

consolidated financial statements contained elsewhere in this report for additional information related to our

property plant and equipment

Effect Different Assumptions Used The determination of estimated useful lives is dependent on

subjective factors such as expected market conditions commodity prices and anticipated capital expenditures

Since composite depreciation rates are used the actual useful life of particular asset may differ materially from

the useful life estimated for the related group of assets 10% increase in the weighted average useful lives of

our facilities would result in $15 million decrease in annual depreciation expense 10% decrease in the

weighted average useful lives of our facilities would result in $14 million increase in annual depreciation

expense In the event the useful lives of significant assets were found to be shorter than originally estimated

depreciation expense may increase liabilities recognized for future asset retirement obligations may be

insufficient and impairments in the carrying value of tangible and intangible assets may result

Asset Retirement Obligations

Nature of Estimates Required We account for asset retirement obligations under SFAS 143 and FIN 47

SFAS 143 and FIN 47 require an entity to recognize the fair value of liability for conditional and unconditional

asset retirement obligations in the period in which they are incurred Retirement obligations associated with long-

lived assets included within the scope of SFAS 143 and FIN 47 are those obligations for which requirement

exists under enacted laws statutes and written or oral contracts including obligations arising under the doctrine

of promissory estoppel Asset retirement obligations are estimated using the estimated current cost to satisfy the

retirement obligation increased for inflation through the expected period of retirement and discounted back to

present value at our credit-adjusted risk free rate We have identified certain asset retirement obligations within

our power generating operations and have noncurrent liability of $40 million recorded as of December 31

2008 These asset retirement obligations are primarily related to asbestos abatement at some of our generating

facilities the removal of oil storage tanks equipment on leased property and environmental obligations related to

the closing of ash disposal sites In the third quarter of 2008 we revised our current cost assumption for asbestos

abatement at our generating facilities based on the actual costs we have incurred as part
of the decommissioning

of the Lovett facility The revision resulted in an increase to our asset retirement obligation of approximately $2

million

Key Assumptions and Approach Used The fair value of liabilities associated with the initial recognition of

asset retirement obligations is estimated by applying present
value calculation to current engineering

cost

estimates of satisfying the obligations Significant inputs to the present value calculation include current cost

estimates estimated asset retirement dates and appropriate
discount rates Where appropriate multiple cost and

or retirement scenarios have been probability weighted

Effect if Different Assumptions Used We update
liabilities associated with asset retirement obligations as

significant assumptions change or as relevant new information becomes available 1% increase in our rate of

inflation would result in an approximate $5 million increase to the asset retirement obligation recorded on our

balance sheet as of December 31 2008 and 1% increase or decrease in our discount rate would result in an

approximate $4 million change

Asset Impairments

Nature of Estimates Required We evaluate our long-lived assets including intangible assets for

impairment in accordance with applicable accounting guidance The amount of an impairment charge is

calculated as the excess of the assets carrying value over its fair value which generally represents the discounted

expected future cash flows attributable to the asset or in the case of assets we expect to sell at fair value less

costs to sell
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SFAS 144 requires management to recognize an impairment charge if the sum of the undiscounted expected

future cash flows from long-lived asset or definite-lived intangible asset is less than the carrying value of that

asset We evaluate our long-lived assets property plant and equipment and definite-lived intangible assets for

impairment whenever indicators of impairment exist or when we commit to sell the asset These evaluations of

long-lived assets and definite-lived intangible assets may result from significant decreases in the market price of

an asset significant adverse change in the extent or manner in which an asset is being used or in its physical

condition significant adverse change in legal factors or in the business climate that could affect the value of an

asset as well as other economic or operational analyses If the carrying amount is not recoverable an impairment

charge is recorded

Key Assumptions and Approach Used The determination of an impairment is two-step process the first

of which involves comparing the undiscounted cash flows to the carrying value of the asset If the carrying value

exceeds the undiscounted cash flows the fair value of the asset must be calculated on discounted basis The fair

value of an asset is the price that would be received from sale of the asset in an orderly transaction between

market participants at the measurement date Quoted market prices in active markets are the best evidence of fair

value and are used as the basis for the measurement when available In the absence of quoted prices for identical

or similar assets fair value is estimated using various internal and external valuation methods These methods

include discounted cash flow analyses and reviewing available information on comparable transactions The

determination of fair value requires management to apply judgment in estimating future energy prices

environmental and maintenance expenditures and other cash flows Our estimates of the fair value of the assets

include significant assumptions about the timing of future cash flows remaining useful lives and the selection of

discount rate that reflects the risk inherent in future cash flows

Year Ended December 31 2008

Background

We have goodwill recorded at our Mirant Mid-Atlantic registrant on standalone basis which is eliminated

upon consolidation at Mirant Corporation In accordance with SFAS 142 we are required to test the goodwill

balance at Mirant Mid-Atlantic at least annually We performed the goodwill assessment at October 31 2008
which by policy is our annual testing date In conducting step one of the goodwill impairment analysis for

Mirant Mid-Atlantic we noted that the carrying value exceeded the calculated fair value of Mirant Mid-Atlantic

indicating that step two of the goodwill impairment analysis was required Based on the results of the step one

goodwill impairment analysis we were required to test Mirant Mid-Atlantics long-lived assets for impairment

under SFAS 144 before completion of the step two test for goodwill as required under SFAS 142 As result of

the SFAS 144 assessment we determined that no further analysis was needed as of December 31 2008 as the

undiscounted cash flows exceeded the carrying value for all asset groups reviewed by significant amount for

each asset group tested since the useful lives of the assets extend up to an additional 30 years For additional

information on the assumptions and results of the analysis see discussion below

SFAS 144 Assumptions and Results

Our SFAS 144 assessment of the Mirant Mid-Atlantic generating facilities in the fourth quarter of 2008

included assumptions about future electricity and fuel prices future capacity payments under the PJM RPM the

future costs of carbon under the RGGI and subsequent federal cap-and-trade program and future capital

expenditure requirements Our assumptions related to future electricity and fuel prices were based on observable

market prices to the extent available and long-term prices derived from proprietary fundamental market

modeling We assumed decline in the longterm price of coal from market prices observable as of the valuation

date Our long-term capacity prices are based on the assumption that the PJM RPM capacity market would

continue consistent with the current structure with expected increases in revenue as result of further declines in

reserve margins for periods beyond those for which auctions have already been completed The costs of carbon

under the RGGI were based on the September 2008 auction results escalating annually for periods beyond 2009
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We also assumed that federal carbon cap-and-trade program would be instituted in the next several years that

will replace the RGGI Capital expenditures include those costs necessary to complete the installation of

pollution control equipment to comply with the limitations for S02 NO and mercury emissions under the

Maryland Healthy Air Act and expenditures to maintain the operational performance of the generating facilities

throughout their estimated useful lives

For purposes
of impairment testing long-lived asset or assets must be grouped at the lowest level of

independent identifiable cash flows Each generating facility was determined to be its own group The leasehold

improvements for each leased generating facility were determined to be their own group for impairment testing

purposes

Year Ended December 31 2007

As result of entering into an amendment to the 2003 Consent Decree that switched the deadlines for

shutting down units and and an agreement with the Town of Stony Point that set the 2007 and 2008 assessed

value for property tax purposes
for the Lovett facility we tested the recoverability of the Lovett facility under

SFAS 144 in the second quarter
of 2007 See Item Business for additional information on the 2003 Consent

Decree Our estimate of cash flows related to our impairment analysis of our Lovett generating facility involved

considering scenarios for the future expected operation of the Lovett facility The most likely scenario considered

was the shutdown of unit by April 30 2008 according to the amended 2003 Consent Decree We also

considered scenario that assumed operations utilizing coal as the primary fuel source through 2012 to allow

the Lovett facility to continue to contribute to the reliability of the electric system of the State of New York As

result of the analysis we recorded an impairment of long-lived assets of $175 million in the second quarter of

2007 to reduce the carrying value of the Lovett facility to its estimated fair value

Year Ended December 31 2006

In 2006 our assessment of the Bowline unit suspended construction project resulted in the conclusion that

the Bowline project as configured and permitted was not economically viable As result of this conclusion

we determined the estimated value of the equipment and project termination liabilities The carrying value of the

development and construction costs for Bowline unit exceeded the estimated undiscounted cash flows from the

abandonment of the project We recorded an impairment of $120 million which is reflected in impairment losses

on the consolidated statements of operations for the year ended December 31 2006

Effect if Different Assumptions Used The estimates and assumptions used to determine whether an

impairment
exists are subject to high degree of uncertainty The estimated fair value of an asset would change

if different estimates and assumptions were used in our applied valuation techniques including estimated

undiscounted cash flows discount rates and remaining useful lives for assets held and used If actual results are

not consistent with the assumptions used in estimating future cash flows and asset fair values we may be

exposed to additional losses that could be material to our results of operations

See Note to our consolidated financial statements contained elsewhere in this report for additional

information on impairments

Pension and Other Postretirement Benefit Plans

Nature of Estimates Required We provide pension and other postretirement benefits to certain union and

non-union employees The benefit costs associated with the pension and other postretirement benefit plans are

developed from actuarial valuations The key assumptions inherent in the actuarial valuations include the

discount rate the expected long-term rate of return on pension plan assets and the medical care cost trend rate

used for other postretirement healthcare benefits The assumptions used are subject to significant judgment and

changes in the assumptions used may have material effect on our future benefit costs
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Key Assumptions and Approach Used The discount rates used as of December 31 2008 and 2007 were

determined based on individual bond matching models comprised of portfolios of high quality corporate bonds

with projected cash flows and maturity dates reflecting the time horizon during which the benefits are expected

to be paid The changes in the discount rate from period to period were the result of changes in the long-term

interest rates

The weighted average discount rates used for measuring year-end pension benefit obligations and other

postretirement benefit obligations as of their respective measurement dates were as follows

Other Postretirement

Pension Plans Benefit Plans

2008 2007 2008 2007

Benefit obligation 5.40% 6.12% 5.37% 6.06%

The weighted average discount rates used for our pension benefit cost and other postretirement benefit costs

during each year are shown below

Other Postretirement

Pension Plans Benefit Plans

Years Ended Years Ended
December 31 December 31

2008 2007 2006 2008 2007 2006

Benefit costs 6.12% 5.66% 5.36% 6.06% 5.66% 5.36%

In determining the long-term rate of return on our pension plan assets we evaluate current and historic

market factors including inflation and interest rates We also evaluate the portfolio by estimating the expected

return on the asset mix Our target investment allocation of our pension plan assets is 70% equity securities and

30% fixed income securities Based on these factors our long-term expected return on plan assets was 8.50% as

of December 31 2008 and 2007

The medical care cost trend rate used for other postretirement healthcare benefits is the assumed long-term

growth of medical costs and is based on costs observed in the prior years

Effect if Different Assumptions Used The assumptions used in determining our benefit cost are subject to

significant judgment and could result in material changes to our consolidated financial statements if different

assumptions were used

Pension Plans

The following table sunimarizes the sensitivity of our projected benefit obligation and pension benefit cost

to changes in the discount rate and expected long-term rate of return on pension assets

Effect on projected

benefit obligation at Effect on
December 31 2008 2009 expense

in millions

Increase in discount ratei% $36.9 $2.1
Decrease in discount ratei% 45.6 4.8

Increase in expected long-term rate of return1% N/A $2.6
Decrease in expected long-term rate of returni N/A 2.6
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Other Postretirement Benefits

The following table summarizes the sensitivity of our projected benefit obligation and other postretirement

benefit cost to changes in the discount rate for our other postretirement benefits

Effect on projected

benefit obligation at Effect on

December 31 2008 2009 expense

in millions

Increase in discount ratel% $7.8 $0.8

Decrease in discount rate1% 9.7 0.9

An annual increase or decrease in the assumed medical care cost trend rate of 1% would correspondingly

increase or decrease the aggregate of the service and interest cost components of the annual postretirement

benefit cost in 2008 by an inconsequential amount

Stock-Based Compensation

Nature of Estimates Required We account for stock-based compensation through the recognition in the

statement of operations of the grant-date fair value of stock options and other equity-based compensation issued

to employees and directors We consider the assumptions inherent in our valuation and calculation of

compensation expense
critical to our consolidated financial statements because the underlying assumptions are

subject to significant judgment and the resulting compensation expense may be material to our results of

operations

Key Assumptions and Approach Used The Black-Scholes option-pricing model was used to measure the

grant-date fair value of the stock options The Black-Scholes model requires certain assumptions concerning

implied volatility dividend yield expected term and grant price These assumptions have significant effect on

the options fair value The expected term and expected volatility often have the most effect on the fair value of

the option The inputs to the Black-Scholes model that we used for the years ended December 31 2008 and 2007

are detailed below

2008 2007

Weighted Weighted

Range Average Range Average

Expected volatility
31-43% 31.2% 15-28% 19.9%

Expected dividends

Expected term

Service condition awards 3.5 years
3.5 years

2.7 3.5 years 3.48 years

Performance condition awards

Risk-free rate 2.1 2.9% 2.1% 4.7% 4%

We use our own implied volatility from our traded options in accordance with SAB 107 Additionally we

assume there will be no dividends paid over the expected term of the awards As result of our lack of exercise

history the simplified method for estimating expected term has been used in accordance with SAB 107 to the

extent applicable In accordance with SAB 110 the simplified method can continue to be applied to stock option

grants after December 31 2007 We plan to continue applying the simplified method in estimating the expected

term of future stock option grants until we have sufficient exercise history The grant price used in the Black

Scholes option pricing model is the NYSE closing price of our common stock on the day of grant The risk-free

rate for periods within the contractual term of the stock option is based on the U.S Treasury yield curve in effect

at the time of the grant

We have determined that all of the awards granted in 2008 and 2007 qualify for equity accounting

treatment Equity accounting treatment requires awards to be measured at the grant-date fair value with

compensation expense recognized over the awards requisite service period with no subsequent re-measurement
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Compensation cost has been adjusted based on estimated forfeitures During the
year ended December 31 2008

we recognized approximately $26 million of compensation expense related to stock options restricted shares and

restricted stock units

Effect if Different Assumptions Used As result of the uncertainty complexity and judgment involved in

the valuation of stock options the assumptions related to accounting for share-based payments could result in

material changes to our consolidated financial statements if different assumptions were used 10% increase in

the volatility assumption for our valuation of stock options would have resulted in an increase of $4 million in

recognized compensation expense for the year ended December 31 2008 1% decrease in the forfeiture rate

would result in change of less than $1 million in the recognized compensation expense for the year ended

December 31 2008 Generally as the expected term expected volatility and risk-free rate increase the options
fair value increases as result of greater upside potential of the stock However as the expected dividend yield

increases the options fair value may decrease as option holders typically do not receive dividends

See Note to our consolidated financial statements contained elsewhere in this report for additional

information on stock-based compensation

Income Taxes and Deferred Tax Asset Valuation Allowance

Nature of Estimates Required We currently record tax provision for state and federal income taxes

including any alternative minimum tax as applicable We also recognize deferred tax assets and liabilities based

on the difference between the balance sheet carrying amounts and the tax basis of the assets and liabilities We
must assess the likelihood that our deferred tax assets will be recoverable based on expected future taxable

income To the extent that we determine it is more likely than not greater than 50% that some portion or all of

the deferred tax assets will not be realized we must establish valuation allowance See Note to our

consolidated financial statements contained elsewhere in this report for additional information regarding our

deferred tax assets and the application of our NOLs

Key Assumptions and Approach Used Income taxes are accounted for under the asset and liability

method Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences attributable to

differences between the financial statement carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their respective

tax bases and operating loss and tax credit carry forwards Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using

enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in the
years in which those temporary differences are

expected to be recovered or settled The effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities of change in tax rates is

recognized in income in the period that includes the enactment date

Objective positive evidence is necessary to support conclusion that valuation allowance is not needed for

all or portion of deferred tax assets when significant negative evidence exists Because of the high degree of

volatility that existed in 2008 in the electricity and commodity markets in which we participate and the likelihood

that economic events outside of our control may affect significantly such markets in the foreseeable future we
think that the realization of future taxable income sufficient to utilize existing deferred tax assets cannot be

anticipated with the degree of confidence
necessary to release the valuation allowance against such assets at this

time We evaluate this position quarterly and make our judgment based on the facts and circumstances at that

time We think that future sources of taxable income reversing temporary differences and implemented tax

planning strategies will be sufficient to realize deferred tax assets for which no valuation allowance has been

established

As of December 31 2008 our deferred tax assets reduced by the valuation allowance are completely offset

by our deferred tax liabilities portion of our NOLs approximately $341 million is attributable to tax

deductions primarily related to transactions arising during the period that we were in bankruptcy The recognition

of the tax benefit of these bankruptcy period tax deductions either through realization or reduction of the

valuation allowance will be an increase to additional paid-in-capital in stockholders equity These NOLs will be
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the last utilized for financial reporting purposes Additionally our valuation allowance includes $35 million

relating to the tax effects of other comprehensive income items primarily
related to employee benefits These

other comprehensive income items will be reduced in the event that the valuation allowance is no longer

required

Under FIN 48 we must reflect in our income tax provision the full benefit of all positions that will be taken

in our income tax returns except to the extent that such positions are uncertain and fall below the recognition

requirements of FIN 48 In the event that we determine that tax position meets the uncertainty criteria of FIN

48 an additional liability or an adjustment to our NOLs determined under the measurement criteria of FIN 48

will result This liability or adjustment is referred to as an unrecognized tax benefit We periodically reassess the

tax positions reflected in our tax returns for open years based on the latest information available and determine

whether any portion of the tax benefits reflected therein should be treated as unrecognized The amount of the

unrecognized tax benefit requires management to make significant assumptions about the expected outcomes of

certain tax positions
included in our filed or yet to be filed tax returns

Effect if Different Assumptions Used We are subject to an annual limitation on the use of pre bankruptcy

emergence NOLs against current and future year taxable income in accordance with Internal Revenue Code

382l6 This limitation includes the effect of net unrealized built-in gains If post bankruptcy ownership

change within the meaning of Internal Revenue Code 382 as amended occurs we will be required to

determine new annual limitation that will apply to the use of all pre ownership change NOLs against taxable

income arising in periods subsequent to the ownership change As result of changes in our stock ownership

including our repurchases of shares of our common stock since July 11 2006 and the exercise of significant

number of warrants for our common stock during 2008 we experienced an ownership change within the

meaning of Internal Revenue Code 382 as amended in the third quarter of 2008 Our annual limitation on the

amount of taxable income that can be offset by our then existing NOLs has been redetermined as of the date of

that ownership change We do not expect that the ability to offset future taxable income with existing NOLs

under the redetermined annual limitation will be significantly different from our ability to do so under the annual

limitation prior to the ownership change that occurred in the third quarter of 2008 However if the Company

experiences another ownership change after December 31 2008 at or near the Companys recent stock price

levels the redetermined annual limitation could be significantly lower and could result in the payment of cash

taxes above the amount currently estimated for 2009 The additional cash taxes could range
from $0 to $150

million depending on the timing of the additional ownership change if any Beginning in 2010 tax planning

strategies including the election to amortize over five years the cost of our pollution
control equipment installed

pursuant to the Maryland Healthy Air Act would be available to reduce additional cash taxes

We continue to be under audit for multiple years by taxing authorities in various jurisdictions
Considerable

judgment is required to determine the tax treatment of particular
items that involve interpretations of complex tax

laws tax liability has been recorded for certain filing positions
with respect to which the outcome is uncertain

and the effect is estimable Such liabilities are based on judgment and it can take many years between the time

the liability is recorded and the related filing position is no longer subject to question

Loss Contingencies

Nature of Estimates Required We record loss contingencies when it is probable
that liability has been

incurred and the amount can be reasonably estimated We consider loss contingency estimates to be critical

accounting estimates because they entail significant judgment regarding probabilities
and ranges of exposure and

the ultimate outcome of the proceedings is unknown and could have material adverse effect on our results of

operations financial condition and cash flows We currently have loss contingencies related to litigation

environmental matters tax matters and others

Key Assumptions and Approach Used The determination of loss contingency requires significant

judgment as to the expected outcome of each contingency in future periods In making the determination as to

potential losses and probability of loss we consider all available positive and negative evidence including the
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expected outcome of potential litigation We record our best estimate of loss or the low end of our range if no
estimate is better than another estimate within range of estimates when the loss is considered probable As
additional information becomes available we reassess the potential liability related to the contingency and revise

our estimates En our evaluation of legal matters management holds discussions with applicable legal counsel
and relies on analysis of case law and legal precedents

Effect if Different Assumptions Used Revisions in our estimates of potential liabilities could materially
affect our results of operations and the ultimate resolution may be materially different from the estimates that we
make

Litigation

See Note 16 to our consolidated financial statements contained elsewhere in this report for further

information related to our legal proceedings

We are currently involved in certain legal proceedings We estimate the
range of liability through

discussions with applicable legal counsel and analysis of case law and legal precedents We record our best
estimate of loss or the low end of our range if no estimate is better than another estimate within

range of

estimates when the loss is considered probable As additional information becomes available we reassess the

potential liability related to our pending litigation and revise our estimates Revisions in our estimates of the

potential liability could materially affect our results of operations and the ultimate resolution may be materially
different from the estimates that we make
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Item 7A Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk

Fair Value Measurements

We are exposed to market risks associated with commodity prices interest rates and credit risk We adopted

SFAS 157 on January 2008 which affected our valuation presentation and disclosure of derivative financial

instruments used to mitigate our commodity price risk See Note to our consolidated financial statements

contained elsewhere in this report for further information on the adoption of SFAS 157 We also adopted FSP

FIN 39-1 on January 2008 and elected to discontinue the net presentation of assets and liabilities subject to

master netting agreements See Note to our consolidated financial statements contained elsewhere in this report

for further information on the adoption of FSP FIN 39-1 The election to present our derivative contract assets

and liabilities on gross basis does not affect our credit risk or value at risk at December 31 2008

The estimated net fair value of our derivative contract assets and liabilities was net asset of $655 million at

December 31 2008 The following table provides summary of the factors affecting the change in fair value of

the derivative contract asset and liability accounts for the year
ended December 31 2008 in millions

Fair value of portfolio of assets and liabilities at January 2008 net $129

Gains recognized in the period net

New contracts and other changes in fair value2 583

Roll off of previous values3 326

Purchases issuances and settlements4 125

Fair value of portfolio of assets and liabilities at December 31 2008 net 655

Reflects our portfolio of derivative contract assets and liabilities at December 2007 adjusted for day one net gain of

$1 million recognized upon adoption of SFAS 157 on January 2008

The fair value as of the end of each quarterly reporting period of contracts entered into during each quarterly reporting

period and the gains or losses attributable to contracts that existed as of the beginning of each quarterly reporting period

and were still held at the end of each quarterly reporting period

The fair value as of the beginning of each quarterly reporting period of contracts that settled during each quarterly

reporting period

Denotes cash settlements during each quarterly reporting period of contracts that existed at the beginning of each

quarterly reporting period

The table above does not include long-term
coal agreements that are not required to be recorded at fair value

under SFAS 133 As such these contracts are not included in derivative contract assets and liabilities in the

accompanying consolidated balance sheets As of December 31 2008 these coal agreements had an estimated

net fair value of approximately $38 million which includes credit reserve of $18 million for the estimated

default risk of our coal suppliers See Long-Term Coal Agreement Risk for further discussion later in this

section

As discussed in Note to our consolidated financial statements contained elsewhere in this report we did

not elect the fair value option for any financial instruments under SFAS 159 However we do transact using

derivative financial instruments which are required to be recorded at fair value under SFAS 133 in our

consolidated balance sheets

Commodity Price Risk

In connection with our business of generating electricity we are exposed to energy commodity price risk

associated with the acquisition
of fuel needed to generate electricity the price of electricity produced and sold

and the fair value of our fuel inventories portion of our fuel requirements is purchased in the spot market and
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portion of the electricity we produce is sold in the spot market In addition the open positions in our proprietary

trading and fuel oil management activities expose us to risks associated with changes in energy commodity

prices

As result our financial performance varies depending on changes in the prices of
energy and energy-

related commodities See Critical Accounting Estimates for discussion of the accounting treatment for asset

management proprietary trading and fuel oil management activities

The financial performance of our business of generating electricity is influenced by the difference between

the variable cost of converting fuel such as natural gas oil or coal into electricity and the revenue we receive

from the sale of that electricity The difference between the cost of specific fuel used to generate one MWh of

electricity and the market value of the electricity generated is commonly referred to as the conversion spread
Absent the effects of our derivative contract activities the operating margins that we realize are equal to the

difference between the aggregate conversion spread and the cost of operating the facilities that produce the

electricity sold

Conversion spreads are dependent on variety of factors that influence the cost of fuel and the sales price of

the electricity generated over the longer term including conversion spreads of other generating facilities in the

regions in which we operate facility outages weather and general economic conditions As result of these

influences the cost of fuel and electricity prices do not always change in the same magnitude or direction which

results in conversion spreads for particular generating facility widening or narrowing or becoming negative

over any given period

Through our asset management activities we enter into variety of exchange-traded and OTC
energy and

energy-related derivative financial instruments such as forward contracts futures contracts option contracts and

financial swap agreements to manage our exposure to commodity price risks and changes in conversion spreads

These contracts have varying terms and durations which range from few days to years depending on the

instrument Our proprietary trading activities also utilize similarcontracts in markets where we have physical

presence to attempt to generate incremental gross margin Our fuel oil management activities use derivative

financial instruments to hedge economically the fair value of our physical fuel oil inventories and to optimize the

approximately three and one half million barrels of storage capacity that we own or lease

Derivative
energy contracts that are required to be reflected at fair value are presented as derivative contract

assets and liabilities in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets The net changes in their fair market values

are recognized in income in the period of change The determination of fair value considers various factors

including closing exchange or OTC market price quotations time value credit quality liquidity and volatility

factors underlying options See Item Critical Accounting Estimates for the accounting treatment of asset

management proprietary trading and fuel oil management activities

Counterparty Credit Risk

The valuation of our derivative contract assets is affected by the default risk of the counterparties with

which we transact We recognized reserve which is reflected as reduction of our derivative contract assets

related to counterparty credit risk of $52 million and $4 million at December 31 2008 and 2007 respectively

We have historically calculated the credit reserve for all of our derivative contract assets considering our

current exposure net of the effect of credit enhancements and potential loss exposure from the financial

commitments in our risk management portfolio and applied historical default probabilities using current credit

ratings of our counterparties In accordance with SPAS 157 we calculate the credit reserve through consideration

of observable market inputs when available In the third quarter of 2008 we changed the methodology used to

calculate our credit reserve for our non-collateralized power hedges entered into by Mirant Mid-Atlantic with our

major trading partners which represents 78% of our net notional position at December 31 2008 These

transactions are senior unsecured obligations of Mirant Mid-Atlantic and the counterparties and do not require
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either party to post cash collateral for initial margin or for securing exposure as result of changes in power or

natural gas prices Commencing in the third quarter
of 2008 we began to calculate credit reserve using

published spreads on credit default swaps applied to our current exposure
and potential loss exposure from the

financial commitments in our risk management portfolio We apply similarapproach to calculate the fair value

of our coal contracts that are not included in derivative contract assets and liabilities in the consolidated balance

sheets and which also do not require either party to post
cash collateral for initial margin or for securing exposure

as result of changes in coal prices We do not however transact in credit default swaps or any other credit

derivative The change in our methodology resulted in an increase to our credit reserve at December 31 2008 of

approximately $47 million on our derivative contract assets An increase of 10% in the spread of credit default

swaps of our major trading partners for our non-collateralized power hedges entered into by Mirant Mid-Atlantic

would result in an increase of $5 million in our credit reserve as of December 31 2008 An increase of 10% in

the spread of credit default swaps of our coal suppliers would result in an increase of $2 million in our $18

million credit reserve of our long-term coal agreements
that are not included in derivative contract assets and

liabilities in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets as of December 31 2008

The default risk for the remainder of the portfolio is generally offset by cash collateral or other credit

enhancements For the remainder of our risk management portfolio we will continue to use published historical

default probabilities to calculate credit reserve applied to our current exposure net of the effect of credit

enhancements and potential loss exposure from the financial commitments Potential loss exposure
is calculated

as our current exposure plus calculated five-day value at risk An increase in counterparty credit risk could

affect the ability of our counterparties to deliver on their obligations to us As result we may require our

counterparties to post additional collateral or provide other credit enhancements downgrade of one notch in

the average credit rating of our counterparties in this portion of the portfolio would result in an increase of $1

million in our credit reserve as of December 31 2008

Once we have delivered physical commodity or have financially settledthe credit risk we are subject to

collection risk Collection risk is similar to credit risk and collection risk is accounted for when we establish our

provision for uncollectible accounts We manage this risk using the same techniques and processes
used in credit

risk discussed above

Mirant Credit Risk

In valuing our derivative contract liabilities we apply valuation adjustment for non-performance which is

based on the probability of our default We determine this non-performance adjustment value by multiplying our

liability exposure including outstanding balances for realized transactions unrealized transactions and the effect

of credit enhancements by the one year probability of our default based on our current credit rating The one year

probability of default rate considers the tenor of our portfolio and the correlation of default between

counterparties within our industry The non-performance adjustment related to our credit risk at December 31

2008 was immaterial downgrade of one notch in our credit rating would have an immaterial effect on our

consolidated statement of operations as of December 31 2008

Broker Quotes

In determining the fair value of our derivative contract assets and liabilities we use third-party
market

pricing where available We consider active markets to be those in which transactions for the asset or liability

occur in sufficient frequency and volume to provide pricing
information on an ongoing basis Note to our

consolidated financial statements contained elsewhere in this report explains the fair value hierarchy Our

transactions in Level of the fair value hierarchy primarily
consist of natural gas

and crude oil futures traded on

the NYMEX and swaps cleared against NYMEX prices
For these transactions we use the unadjusted published

settled prices on the valuation date Our transactions in Level of the fair value hierarchy typically include

non-exchange-traded derivatives such as OTC forwards swaps and options We value these transactions using

quotes from independent brokers or other widely-accepted valuation methodologies Transactions are classified
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in Level if substantially all greater than 90% of the fair value can be corroborated using observable market

inputs such as transactable broker quotes In accordance with the exit price objective under SFAS 157 the fair

value of our derivative contract assets and liabilities is determined using bid prices for our assets and ask prices
for liabilities The

quotes that we obtain from brokers are non-binding in nature but are from brokers that

typically transact in the market being quoted and are based on their knowledge of market transactions on the

valuation date We typically obtain multiple broker quotes on the valuation date for each delivery location that

extend for the tenor of our underlying contracts The number of quotes that we can obtain depends on the relative

liquidity of the delivery location on the valuation date If multiple broker quotes are received for contract we
use an average of the quoted bid or ask prices If only one broker quote is received for delivery location and it

cannot be validated through other external sources we will assign the quote to lower level within the fair value

hierarchy In some instances we may combine broker quotes for liquid delivery hub with broker quotes for the

price spread between the liquid delivery hub and the delivery location under the contract We also may apply

interpolation techniques to value monthly strips if broker quotes are only available on seasonal or annual basis

We perform validation procedures on the broker
quotes at least on monthly basis The validation procedures

include reviewing the quotes for accuracy and comparing them to our internal price curves In certain instances
we may discard broker quote if it is clear outlier and multiple other quotes are obtained At December 31
2008 we obtained broker quotes for 100% of our delivery locations classified in Level of the fair value

hierarchy

Inactive markets are considered to be those markets with few transactions non-current pricing or prices that

vary over time or among market makers Our transactions in Level of the fair value hierarchy may involve

transactions whereby observable market data such as broker quotes are not available for substantially all of the

tenor of the contract or we are only able to obtain indicative broker quotes that cannot be corroborated by
observable market data In such cases we may apply valuation techniques such as extrapolation to determine fair

value Proprietary models may also be used to determine the fair value of certain of our derivative contract assets

and liabilities that may be structured or otherwise tailored The degree of estimation increases for longer duration

contracts contracts with multiple pricing features option contracts and off-hub
delivery points Our techniques

for fair value estimation include assumptions for market prices correlation and volatility Our assets and
liabilities classified as Level in the fair value hierarchy represent approximately 1% of our total assets and less

than 1% of our total liabilities measured at fair value at December 31 2008

Value at Risk

Our Risk Management Policy limits our trading to certain products and contains limits and restrictions

related to our asset management proprietary trading and fuel oil management activities

We manage the price risk associated with asset management activities through variety of methods Our
Risk Management Policy requires that asset management activities are restricted to only those activities that are

risk-reducing We ensure compliance with this restriction at the transactional level by testing each individual

transaction executed relative to the overall asset position

We also use VaR to measure the market price risk of our energy asset portfolio as result of potential

changes in market prices VaR is statistical model that provides an estimate of potential loss We calculate VaR
based on the parametric variance/covariance approach utilizing 95% confidence interval and one-day holding

period on rolling 24-month forward looking period Additionally we estimate correlation based on historical

commodity price changes Volatilities are based on combination of historical price changes and implied market

rates

VaR is calculated quarterly on an asset management portfolio comprised of mark-to-market and non
mark-to-market energy assets and liabilities including generating facilities and bilateral physical and financial

transactions Asset management VaR levels are substantially reduced as result of our decision to hedge actively
in the forward markets the commodity price risk related to the expected generation and fuel usage of our

generating facilities See Item Commercial Operations for discussion of our hedging strategies
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The following table summarizes year-end average high and low VaR for our asset management portfolio

in millions

For the Years Ended

December 31

2008 2007

Asset Management VaR

Year-end
$14 $20

Average
$18 $29

High
$21 $40

Low $14 $20

The asset management VaR declined for the year
ended December 31 2008 as compared to the year ended

December 31 2007 primarily as result of increased hedging activity against our underlying generating

facilities

We calculate VaR daily on portfolios consisting of mark-to-market and non mark-to-market bilateral

physical and financial transactions related to our proprietary trading activities and fuel oil management

operations

The following table summarizes year-end average high and low VaR for our proprietary trading and fuel

oil management operations in millions

For the Years Ended

December 31

2008 2007

Proprietary Trading and Fuel Oil Management VaR

Year-end $1 $2

Average
$2 $3

High
$4 $5

Low $1 $1

Because of inherent limitations of statistical measures such as VaR and the seasonality of changes in market

prices the VaR calculation may not reflect the full extent of our commodity price risk exposure on our cash

flows and liquidity Additionally actual changes in the fair value of mark-to-market energy assets and liabilities

could differ from the calculated VaR and such changes could have material effect on our financial results

Interest Rate Risk

Fair Value Measurement

We are also subject to interest rate risk when determining the fair value of our derivative contract assets and

liabilities The nominal value of our derivative contract assets and liabilities is also discounted to account for

time value using LIBOR forward interest rate curve based on the tenor of our transactions An increase of 100

basis points in the average LIBOR rate would result in decrease of $6 million to our derivative contract assets

and decrease of $5 million to our derivative contract liabilities at December 31 2008

Debt

Our debt that is subject to variable interest rates consists of the Mirant North America senior secured term

loan and senior secured revolving credit facility Assuming both are fully drawn the amount subject to variable

interest rates is approximately $1.2 billion 1% per annum increase in the average market rate would result in

an increase in our annual interest expense of approximately $12 million
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Credit Joncenfration Risk

We also monitor credit concentration risk on both an individual basis and group counterparty basis The

following table highlights the credit quality and the balance sheet settlement
exposures related to these activities

as of December 31 2008 dollars in millions

Exposure Exposure
Before Credit Net of of Net

CoHateral1 Collateral2 Collateral Exposure

Credit Rating Equivalent

Investment grade

Financial institutions $553 $20 $533 73%
Energy companies 232 73 159 22%
Other

Non-investment grade

Financial institutions

Energy companies

Other

No external ratings

Internally-rated investment grade 37 37 5%
Internally-rated non-investment grade

Not internally rated

Total

The table excludes amounts related to contracts classified as normal purchases/normal sales and non-derivative

contractual commitments that are not recorded in our consolidated balance sheets except for any related accounts

receivable Such contractual commitments contain credit and economic risk if cóunterparty does riot perform

Collateral includes cash and letters of credit offset by any cash collateral posted by us to counterparty which is in

excess of the amount currently owed to that counterparty

Long-Term Coal Agreement Risk

As noted above the credit concentration table excludes amounts related to contracts classified as normal

purchases/normal sales including our long-term coal agreements We have non-performance risk associated with

these agreements There is risk that our coal suppliers may not provide the contractual quantities on the dates

specified within the agreements or the deliveries may be carried over to future periods If our coal suppliers do

not perform in accordance with the agreements we may have to procure coal in the market to meet our needs or

power in the market to meet our obligations In addition number of the coal suppliers do not currently have an
investment grade credit rating and accordingly we may have limited recourse to collect damages in the event of

default by supplier We seek to mitigate this risk through diversification of coal suppliers and through

guarantees and other collateral arrangements when available Despite this there can be no assurance that these

efforts will be successfi4 in mitigating credit risk from coal suppliers Non-performance by our coal suppliers
could have material adverse effect on our future results of operations financial condition and cash flows
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Item Financial Statements and Supplementwy Data

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors and Stockholders

Mirant Corporation and subsidiaries

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Mirant Corporation and subsidiaries the

Company as of December 31 2008 and 2007 and the related consolidated statements of operations

stockholders equity deficit comprehensive income and cash flows for each of the years in the three-year

period ended December 31 2008 We also have audited the Companys internal control over financial reporting

as of December 31 2008 based on criteria established in internal Control Integrated Framework issued by the

Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission COSO The Companys management

is responsible for these consolidated financial statements for maintaining effective internal control over financial

reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting included in

Managements Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting included within Item 9A Our responsibility

is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements and an opinion on the Companys internal

control over financial reporting based on our audits

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight

Board United States Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable

assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement and whether effective internal

control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects Our audits of the consolidated financial

statements included examining on test basis evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial

statements assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management and

evaluating the overall financial statement presentation Our audit of internal control over financial reporting

included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting assessing the risk that material

weakness exists and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on

the assessed risk Our audits also included performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the

circumstances We believe that our audits provide reasonable basis for our opinions

companys internal control over financial reporting is process designed to provide reasonable assurance

regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in

accordance with generally accepted accounting principles companys internal control over financial reporting

includes those policies and procedures that pertain to the maintenance of records that in reasonable detail

accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company provide reasonable

assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance

with generally accepted accounting principles and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made

only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company and provide reasonable

assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition use or disposition of the

companys assets that could have material effect on the financial statements

Because of its inherent limitations internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect

misstatements Also projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that

controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions or that the degree of compliance with the

policies or procedures may deteriorate

In our opinion the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly in all material respects

the financial position of Mirant Corporation and subsidiaries as of December 31 2008 and 2007 and the results

of their operations and their cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended December 31 2008

in conformity with United States generally accepted accounting principles Also in our opinion the Company

maintained in all material respects effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31 2008

based on criteria established in Internal ControlIntegrated Framework issued by COSO
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As discussed in Note to the consolidated financial statements the Company adopted Statement of

Financial Accounting Standards No 157 Fair Value Measurements the measurement provisions of Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards No 158 Employers Accounting for Defined Benefit and Other Postretirement

Plans and FASB Staff Position FIN 39-1 Amendment of FASB Interpretation No 39 in 2008 As discussed in

Note to the consolidated financial statements the Company adopted FASB Interpretation No 48 Accounting
for Uncertainty in Income Taxes in 2007

Is KPMG LLP

Atlanta Georgia

February 26 2009
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MIRANT CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

For the Years Ended December 31

2008 2007 2006

in millions except per share data

Operating revenues including unrealized gains losses of $840 million $564

million and $757 million respectively
$3188 $2019 $3087

Cost of fuel electricity and other products including unrealized gains losses

of $54 million $28 million and $102 million respectively 1059 912 1151

Gross Margin excluding depreciation and amortization 2129 1107 1936

Operating Expenses

Operations and maintenance
683 707 592

Depreciation and amortization
144 129 137

Impairment losses
175 119

Gain on sales of assets net
39 45 49

Total operating expenses

788 966 799

Operating Income
1341 141 1137

Other Expense Income net

Interest expense

189 247 289

Interest income
70 202 76

Gain on sales of investments net
76

Other net ______
344

Total other expense income net
124 299 99

Income From Continuing Operations Before Reorganization Items Net and

Income Taxes
1217 440 1038

Reorganization items net
164

Provision benefit for income taxes
550

Income From Continuing Operations
1215 433 1752

Income From Discontinued Operations net
50 1562 112

Net Income
$1265 $1995 $1864

Basic EPS
Basic EPS from continuing operations

6.53 1.72 6.15

Basic EPS from discontinued operations
0.27 6.20 i39

Basic EPS
$6.80 7.92 6.54

Diluted EPS
Diluted EPS from continuing operations

6.11 1.56 5.90

Diluted EPS from discontinued operations
0.25 5.64 0.38

Diluted EPS
6.36 7.20 $6.28

Weighted average shares outstanding
186 252 285

Effect of dilutive securities

13 25 12

Weighted average shares outstanding assuming dilution
199 277 297

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements
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MIRANT CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

At December 31

2008 2007

in millionsASSETS
Current Assets

Cash and cash equivalents
1831 4961

Funds on deposit
204 304

Receivables net

761 589
Derivative contract assets

2582 687
Inventories

238 357
Prepaid expenses

142

Total current assets

5748 7040
Property Plant and Equipment net

3215 2590
Noncurrent Assets

Intangible assets net
196 206

Derivative contract assets
585 153

Deferred income taxes
565 240

Prepaid rent
258 234

Other

Total noncurrent assets

1725 908
Total Assets

$10688 $10538

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS EQUITY
Current Liabilities

Current portion of long-term debt
46 142

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities

894 718
Derivative contract liabilities

2268 709
Deferred income taxes

565 240
Other

11 12

Total current liabilities

3784 1821
Noncurrent Liabilities

Long-term debt

2630 2953Derivative contract liabilities

244 261
Asset retirenient obligations

40 44Pension and other postretirement obligations
148 101

Other
80 48

Total noncurrent liabilities

3142 3407
Commitments and Contingencies

Stockholders Equity

Preferred stock par value $01 per share authorized 100000000 shares no shares issued at December 31
2008 and 2007

Common stock par value $01 per share authorized 1.5 billion shares issued 310666240 and
301196073 at December 31 2008 and 2007 respectively and outstanding 144629446 shares and
221811972 at December 31 2008 and 2007 respectively

Treasury stock at cost 166036794 shares and 79384101 shares at December 31 2008 and 2007
respectively

5330 2586Additional paid-in capital
11401 11357Accumulated deficit

2222 3486Accumulated other comprehensive income loss 90 22
Total stockholders equity

3762 5310
Total Liabilities and Stockholders Equity $10688 $10538

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements
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MIRANT CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS EQUITY DEFICIT

Accumulated

Additional Other

Common Treasury Paid-In Accumulated Comprehensive

Stock Stock Capital
Deficit Income Loss

in millions

Balance.December3l2005
$11298 $7462 17

Net income
1864

Share repurchases
1261

Stock-based compensation
17

Exercise of warrants

Other comprehensive loss

25

Adoption of SFAS 158 net of tax
10

BalanceDecember3l2006
1261 11317 5598 18

Net income
1995

Share repurchases
1325

Stock-based compensation
29

Exercises of stock options and warrants
II

Adoption of FIN 48
117

Other comprehensive income
40

BalanceDecelflber3l2007
2586 11357 3486 22

Net income
1265

Share repurchases
2744

Stock-based compensation
26

Exercises of stock options
and warrants

18

Adoption of SFAS 157

SFAS 158 measurement date transition

Other comprehensive loss

111

Balance December 31 2008 $3 $5330 $1 $2222 $90

MIRANT CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

For the Years Ended

December 31

2008 2007 2006

in millions

Net Income
$1265 $1995 $1864

Other comprehensive income loss net of tax

Cumulative translation adjustment

Unrealized losses on available-for-sale securities
27

Pension and other postretirement
benefits

111 36

Other comprehensive income loss net of tax
111 40 25

Total Comprehensive Income
$1154 $2035 $1839

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements
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MIRANT CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

For the Years Ended
December 31

2008 2007 2006

in millionsCash Flows from Operating Activities

Net income

1265 1995 1864Income from discontinued operations
50 1562 112

Income from continuing operations
1215 433 1752

Adjustments to reconcile net income from continuing operations to net cash provided by operating
activities

Depreciation and amortization
148 139 147Impairment losses

175 119Gain on sales of assets and investments net 39 45 125Derivative contract activities net

786 536 655Deferred income taxes

552Stock-based compensation
25 25 17Non-cash gain on property tax settlement

71Postretirement benefits curtailment gain 32Settlement of the Back-to-Back Agreement with Pepco 341Lower of cost or masket inventory adjustment
65 80Other net

33Changes in operating assets and liabilities

Receivables net

213 184 152Funds on deposit
104 69 456Inventories

77 89Other assets

29 57 80Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
220 128 218Settlement of claims payable
16 53 814Other liabilities

63 26 51
Total adjustments

538 353 1615
Net cash provided by operating activities of continuing operations 677 786 137Net cash provided by operating activities of discontinued operations 50 178 432
Net cash provided by operating activities

727 964 569
Cash Flows from Investing Activities

Capital expenditures
731 588 139Proceeds from the sales of assets and other investments

42 57 143Restricted deposit payments and other
30

Net cash provided by used in investing activities of continuing operations 719 524Net cash provided by used in investing activities of discontinued operations 25 5281 163
Net cash provided by used in investing activities 694 4757 158

Cash Flows from Financing Activities

Share repurchases

2761 1308 1261Proceeds from issuance of long-term debt

2017Repayments and purchases of long-term debt
420 180 475Proceeds from exercises of stock options and warrants

18 11Settlement of debt under the Plan

99JDebt issuance costs

51
Net cash used in financing activities of continuing operations 3163 1477 758Net cash provided by used in financing activities of discontinued operations 669 181
Net cash used in financing activities

3163 2146 577
Effect of Exchange Rate Changes on Cash and Cash Equivalents
Net Increase Decrease in Cash and Cash Equivalents 3130 3576 166Cash and Cash Equivalents beginning of period

4961 1139 1068Plus Cash and Cash Equivalents in Assets Held for Sale beginning of period 246 483Less Cash and Cash Equivalents in Assets Held for Sale end of period
246

Cash and Cash Equivalents end of period
1831 4961 1139

Supplemental Cash Flow Disclosures

Cash paid for interest net of amounts capitalized
175 346 372Cash paid for income taxes net of refunds received

33 165Cash paid for claims and professional fees from bankruptcy 17 63 1908

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements
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MIRANT CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31 2008 2007 and 2006

Description of Business and Organization

Mirant is competitive energy company that produces and sells electricity in the United States The

Company owns or leases 10112 MW of net electric generating capacity in the Mid-Atlantic and Northeast

regions and in California Mirant also operates an integrated asset management and energy marketing

organization
based in Atlanta Georgia

Mirant Corporation was incorporated in Delaware on September 23 2005 Pursuant to the Plan for Mirant

and certain of its subsidiaries on January 2006 New Mirant emerged from bankruptcy and acquired

substantially all of the assets of Old Mirant corporation that was formed in Delaware on April 1993 and that

had been named Mirant Corporation prior to January 2006 The Plan provides
that New Mirant has no

successor liability for any unassumed obligations of Old Mirant Old Mirant was then renamed and transferred to

trust which is not affiliated with New Mirant

In the third quarter of 2006 the Company commenced separate auction processes
to sell its Philippine

2203 MW and Caribbean 1050 MW businesses and six U.S natural gas-fired facilities totaling 3619 MW

consisting of the Zeeland West Georgia Shady Hills Sugar Creek Bosque and Apex facilities On May 2007

the Company completed the sale of the six U.S natural gas-fired
facilities On June 22 2007 the Company

completed the sale of its Philippine business On August 2007 the Company completed the sale of its

Caribbean business In addition on May 2007 the Company completed the sale of Mirant NY-Gen 121 MW
After transaction costs and repayment of debt the net proceeds to Mirant from dispositions completed in the year

ended December 31 2007 were approximately $5.07 billion See Note for additional information regarding

the accounting for these businesses and facilities as discontinued operations

On November 2007 Mirant announced that it planned to return total of $4.6 billion of excess cash to its

stockholders based on four factors the outlook for the business preserving the Companys credit profile

maintaining adequate liquidity including for capital expenditures and maintaining sufficient working

capital On September 22 2008 Mirant announced that it had returned $3.856 billion of cash to its stockholders

through purchases of 110 million shares of its common stock and suspended its program to return excess cash to

its stockholders based on the Companys evaluation of the four factors that were set out upon commencement of

the share repurchase program On November 2008 Mirant announced that it was resuming its program of

returning excess cash to its stockholders and would purchase an additional $200 million of shares through open

market purchases This $200 million was completed in the fourth quarter of 2008 and was in addition to the

previous $3.856 billion of cash returned to stockholders Between November 2007 and December 2008 Mirant

returned approximately $4.056 billion of cash to its stockholders through purchases
of 122 million shares of its

common stock including 86 million shares that were purchased through open market purchases in 2008 for

approximately $2.74 billion Mirant has repurchased approximately 48% of the 256 million basic shares that it

had outstanding when the program began in November 2007 See Note 13 for further discussion of the share

repurchases

Accounting and Reporting Policies

Basis of Presentation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements of Mirant and its wholly-owned subsidiaries have been

prepared in accordance with GAAP
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The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Mirant and its wholly-owned
and controlled majority-owned subsidiaries as well as VIE in which Mirant has an interest and is the primary
beneficiary The financial statements have been prepared from records maintained by Mirant and its subsidiaries
in their respective countries of operation All significant intercompany accounts and transactions have been
eliminated in consolidation As of December 31 2008 substantially all of Mirants subsidiaries are wholly-
owned and located in the United States The Companys obligations to MC Asset Recovery result in its treatment
as VIE in which Mirant is the primary beneficiary as defined in FIN 46R The entity therefore is included in

the Companys consolidated financial statements See Note 16 for further discussion of MC Asset Recovery

All amounts are presented in U.S dollars unless otherwise noted In accordance with SFAS 144 the results

of operations of the Companys businesses and facilities that have been disposed of and have met the criteria for

such classification have been reclassified to discontinued operations Certain prior period amounts have been
reclassified to conform to the current year financial statement presentation

Use of Estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to

make number of estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities disclosures
of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial statements and the reported amounts of
revenues and

expenses during the period Actual results could differ from those estimates Mirants significant
estimates include

determining the fair value of certain derivative contracts

estimating future taxable income in evaluating its deferred tax asset valuation allowance

estimating the useful lives of long-lived assets

determining the value of asset retirement obligations

estimating future cash flows in determining impairments of long-lived assets and definite-lived

intangible assets

estimating the expected return on plan assets discount rates and other actuarial assumptions used in

estimating pension and other postretirement benefit plan liabilities

estimating losses to be recorded for contingent liabilities and

estimating certain assumptions used in the grant date fair value of stock options

Revenue Recognition

Mirant recognizes revenue from the sale of
energy when earned and collection is probable Some sales of

energy are based on economic dispatch or as-ordered by an ISO or RTO based on member participation
agreements but without an underlying contractual commitment ISO and RTO revenues and revenues from sales

of energy based on economic-dispatch are recorded on the basis of MWh delivered at the relevant day-ahead or
real-time prices In accordance with EITF 02-3 physical transactions or revenues from the sale of generated
electricity to ISOs and RTOs are recorded on gross basis in the consolidated statement of operations Financial
transactions or the buying and selling of energy for trading purposes are recorded on net basis in the

consolidated statement of operations When long-term electric power agreement conveys to the buyer of the

electric power the right to use the generating capacity of Mirants facility that agreement is evaluated to

determine if it is lease of the generating facility rather than sale of electric power Operating lease revenue for

the Companys generating facilities is normally recorded as capacity revenue and included in operating revenues
in the consolidated statements of operations Capacity revenue also consists of revenue received from an ISO or
RTO based on auction results or negotiated contract prices for making installed generation capacity available to

meet system reliability requirements
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Cost of Fuel Electricity and Other Products

Cost of fuel electricity and other products on the Companys consolidated statements of operations
includes

the costs of goods produced and sold and services rendered during reporting period purchased emissions

allowances for S02 and NOx and the settlements of and changes in fair value of derivative financial instruments

used to hedge fuel economically Cost of fuel electricity and other products
excludes depreciation and

amortization Gross margin is total operating revenues less cost of fuel electricity and other products

Derivative Financial Instruments

Derivative financial instruments are recorded in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets at fair value

as either derivative contract assets or liabilities and changes in fair value are recognized currently in earnings

unless the Company elects to apply fair value or cash flow hedge accounting based on meeting specific criteria in

SFAS 133 For the years
ended December 31 2008 2007 and 2006 the Company did not have any

derivative

financial instruments that it had designated as fair value or cash flow hedges for accounting purposes Mirants

derivative financial instruments are categorized by the Company based on the business objective the instrument

is expected to achieve asset management proprietary trading or fuel oil management All derivative financial

instruments are recorded at fair value except for certain transactions that qualify for the normal purchases or

normal sales exclusion under SFAS 133 and therefore qualify for the use of accrual accounting

As the Companys derivative financial instruments have not been designated as hedges for accounting

purposes changes in such instruments fair values are recognized immediately in earnings For asset

management activities changes in fair value of electricity derivative financial instruments are reflected in

operating revenue and changes in fair value of fuel derivative financial instruments are reflected in cost of fuel

electricity and other products in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations Changes in the fair

value and settlements of derivative financial instruments for proprietary trading and fuel oil management

activities are recorded on net basis as operating revenue in the accompanying consolidated statements of

operations

Concentration of Revenues

In 2008 2007 and 2006 Mirant earned significant portion of its operating revenue and gross margin from

the PJM energy market where its Mirant Mid-Atlantic generating facilities are located Mirant Mid-Atlantics

revenues and gross margin as percentage
of Mirants total revenues and gross margin from continuing

operations are as follows

Years Ended December 31

2008 2007 2006

Operating revenues
72% 56% 62%

Gross margin
81% 55% 68%

Coal Supplier Concentration Risk

The Company procures most of its coal supply from small number of strategic suppliers In order to

mitigate the risk of non-performance the Company manages its concentration levels to individual suppliers and

mines At December 31 2008 two of the Companys coal suppliers together represented approximately 50% of

the Companys expected coal purchases for 2009

Concentration of Labor Subject to Collective Bargaining Agreements

At December 31 2008 approximately 47% of Mirant employees are subject to collective bargaining

agreements of which 68% are subject to the collective bargaining agreement in the Mid-Atlantic region
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Cash and Cash Equivalents

Mirant considers all short-term investments with an original maturity of three months or less to be cash

equivalents At December 31 2008 except for amounts held in bank accounts to cover current payables all of
the Companys cash and cash equivalents were invested in AAA-rated U.S Treasury money market funds

Restricted Cash

Restricted cash is included in current and noncurrent assets as funds on deposit and other noncurrent assets

in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets At December 31 2008 current and noncurrent funds on
deposit were $204 million and $48 million respectively At December 31 2007 current and noncurrent funds on
deposit were $304 million and $7 million respectively Restricted cash includes deposits with brokers and cash
collateral posted with third parties to support the Companys commodity positions as well as $122 million and
$200 million deposits as of December 31 2008 and 2007 respectively by Mirant North America posted under
its senior secured term loan to support the issuance of letters of credit

inventories

Inventories consist primarily of fuel oil coal materials and supplies and purchased emissions allowances
Inventory is generally stated at the lower of cost or market value Fuel stock is removed from the inventory
account as it is used in the production of electricity Materials and supplies are removed from the inventory
account when they are used for repairs maintenance or capital projects Purchased emissions allowances cost is

computed on an average cost basis Purchased emissions allowances are removed from
inventory and charged to

cost of fuel electricity and other products in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations as they are
utilized against emissions volumes that exceed the allowances granted to the Company by the EPA

Inventories at December 31 2008 and 2007 consisted ofin millions

At December 31

2008 2007

Fuel stock

Fuel oil
$113 $242

Coal
43 38

Other

Materials and supplies 63 67
Purchased emissions allowances

10

Total inventories $2 $357

In 2008 the Company recognized lower of cost or market
inventory adjustments of $65 million including

$54 million in the fourth quarter of 2008 as result of decrease in fuel oil prices

Granted Emissions Allowances

Included in
property plant and equipment are emissions allowances granted by the EPA that were

projected to be required to offset physical emissions and emissions allowances granted by the EPA that were
projected to be in excess of those required to offset physical emissions related to generating facilities owned by
the Company These emissions allowances were recorded at fair value at the date of the acquisition of the facility
and are depreciated on straight-line basis over the estimated useful life of the respective generating facility and
are charged to depreciation and amortization expense in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations

Included in other intangible assets are emissions allowances related to the Dickerson and Morgantown
generating facilities leased by the Company Emissions allowances related to leased generating facilities are
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recorded at fair value at the commencement of the lease These emissions allowances are amortized on straight-

line basis over the term of the lease for leased generating facilities and are charged to depreciation and

amortization expense
in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations

As result of the capital expenditures Mirant is incurring to comply with the requirements of the Maryland

Healthy Air Act the Company anticipates that it will have significant excess S02 and NOx emissions allowances

in future periods The Company plans to continue to maintain some S02 and NOx emissions allowances in

excess of expected generation in case its actual generation exceeds its current forecasts for future periods and for

possible future additions of generating capacity During the fourth quarter of 2007 the Company began

program to sell excess S02 and NOx emissions allowances dependent upon market conditions

Property Plant and Equipment

Property plant and equipment are recorded at cost which includes materials labor associated payroll-

related and overhead costs and the cost of financing construction The cost of routine maintenance and repairs

such as inspections and corrosion removal and the replacement of minor items of property are charged to

expense as incurred Certain expenditures
incurred during major maintenance outage of generating facility are

capitalized including the replacement of major component parts and labor and overhead incurred to install the

parts Depreciation of the recorded cost of depreciable property plant and equipment is determined using

primarily composite rates Leasehold improvements are depreciated over the shorter of the expected
life of the

related equipment or the lease term Upon the retirement or sale of property plant and equipment the cost of

such assets and the related accumulated depreciation are removed from the consolidated balance sheets No gain

or loss is recognized for ordinary retirements in the normal course of business since the composite depreciation

rates used by Mirant take into account the effect of interim retirements

Capitalization of Interest Cost

Mirant capitalizes
interest on projects during their construction period The Company determines which debt

instruments represent
reasonable measure of the cost of financing construction in terms of interest costs

incurred that otherwise could have been avoided These debt instruments and associated interest costs are

included in the calculation of the weighted average interest rate used for determining the capitalization rate Once

project is placed in service capitalized interest as component of the total cost of the construction is

amortized over the estimated useful life of the asset constructed For the years
ended December 31 2008 2007

and 2006 the Company incurred the following interest costs in millions

Years Ended December 31

2008 2007 2006

Total interest costs
$237 $272 $298

Capitalized and included in property plant and equipment net 48 25

Interest expense

The amounts of capitalized
interest above include interest accrued For the years ended December 31 2008

2007 and 2006 cash paid for interest was $223 million $374 million and $378 million respectively of which

$48 million $28 million and $6 million respectively was capitalized

Development Costs

Mirant capitalizes project development costs for generating
facilities once it is probable that the project will

be completed These costs include professional fees permits and other third party costs directly associated with

the development of new project The capitalized costs are depreciated over the life of the asset or charged to

operating expense if the completion of the project is no longer probable Project development costs are expensed

when incurred until the probable threshold is met
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Operating Leases

Mirant leases various assets under non-cancelable leasing arrangements including generating facilities

office space and other equipment The rent expense associated with leases that qualify as operating leases is

recognized on straight-line basis over the lease term within operations and maintenance expense in the
consolidated statements of operations The Companys most significant operating leases are Mirant

Mid-Atlantics leases of the Dickerson and Morgantown baseload units which expire in 2029 and 2034
respectively Mirant has an option to extend these leases Any extensions of the respective leases would be for

less than 75% of the economic useful life of the facility as measured from the beginning of the original lease

term through the end of the proposed remaining lease term As of December 31 2008 the total notional

minimum lease payments for the remaining terms of the leases of the Dickerson and Morgantown baseload units

aggregated approximately $2.0 billion The capital expenditures associated with the leased units of Dickerson
and Morgantown are included as leasehold improvements in property plant and equipment on the accompanying
consolidated balance sheets Payments made under the terms of the lease agreement in excess of the amount of
lease expense recognized are recorded as prepaid rent in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets Prepaid
rent attributable to periods beyond one year is included in noncurrent assets

Intangible Assets

Intangible assets relate primarily to trading rights development rights and emissions allowances Intangible
assets with definite useful lives are amortized on straight-line basis to their estimated residual values over their

respective useful lives
ranging up to 40

years

Investments

During the
year ended December 31 2006 the Company completed the sales of investments described

below The related gains are recorded in gain on sales of investments net in the consolidated statements of

operations

Equity Investment in InterContinental Exchange The Company sold its remaining investment in

InterContinental Exchange for $58 million and realized gain of $54 million

NYMEX Seats The Company sold its investment of two seats and shares on the NYMEX for $20 million
and recognized gain of $19 million

Debt Issuance Costs

Debt issuance costs are capitalized and amortized as interest expense on basis that approximates the

effective interest method over the term of the related debt

Income Taxes and Deferred Tax Asset Valuation Allowance

Income taxes are accounted for under the asset and liability method Deferred tax assets and liabilities are

recognized for the future tax consequences attributable to differences between the financial statement carrying
amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases and operating loss and tax credit

carry
forwards Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable
income in the years in which those temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled The effect on
deferred tax assets and liabilities of change in tax rates is recognized in income in the period that includes the

enactment date

SFAS 109 requires that valuation allowance be established when it is more-likely-than-not that all or
portion of deferred tax asset will not be realized The ultimate realization of deferred tax assets is dependent
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upon the generation of future taxable income during the periods in which those temporary differences are

deductible In making this determination management considers all available positive and negative evidence

affecting specific deferred tax assets including the Companys past
and anticipated future performance the

reversal of deferred tax liabilities and the implementation
of tax planning strategies

Objective positive evidence is necessary to support conclusion that valuation allowance is not needed for

all or portion
of deferred tax assets when significant negative evidence exists The Company thinks that future

sources of taxable income reversing temporary
differences and implemented tax planning strategies will be

sufficient to realize deferred tax assets for which no valuation allowance has been established portion of the

Companys NOLs approximately $341 million is attributable to excess tax deductions primarily
related to

bankruptcy transactions The recognition of the tax benefit of these excess tax deductions either through

realization or reduction of the valuation allowance will be an increase to additional paid-in-capital in

stockholders equity
These NOLs will be the last utilized for financial reporting purposes Additionally the

Companys valuation allowance includes $35 million relating to the tax effects of other comprehensive income

items primarily related to employee benefits These other comprehensive income items will be reduced in the

event that the valuation allowance is no longer required

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

Mirant evaluates long-lived assets such as property plant and equipment and purchased intangible assets

subject to amortization for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying

amount of the asset may not be recoverable Such evaluations are performed in accordance with SFAS 144

Recoverability of assets to be held and used is measured by comparison of the carrying amount of an asset to

the estimated undiscounted future cash flows expected to be generated by the asset If the carrying amount of an

asset exceeds its estimated undiscounted future cash flows an impairment charge is recognized as the amount by

which the carrying amount of the asset exceeds its fair value Assets to be disposed of are separately presented in

the accompanying consolidated balance sheets and are reported at the lower of the carrying amount or fair value

less costs to sell and are not depreciated The assets and liabilities of disposal group
classified as held for sale

are presented separately in the appropriate asset and liability sections of the accompanying consolidated balance

sheets

Earnings per Share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing net income applicable to common stockholders by the

weighted average
number of common shares outstanding Diluted earnings per

share is computed using the

weighted average
number of shares of common stock and dilutive potential common shares including common

shares from warrants restricted stock shares restricted stock units and stock options using the treasury stock

method

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

SFAS 107 requires the disclosure of the fair value of all financial instruments that are not otherwise

recorded at fair value in the financial statements At December 31 2008 and 2007 financial instruments recorded

at contractual amounts that approximate
fair value include cash and cash equivalents

funds on deposit customer

accounts receivable notes receivable and accounts payable
and accrued liabilities The fair values of such items

are not materially sensitive to shifts in market interest rates because of the short term to maturity of these

instruments The fair value of the Companys long-term
debt is estimated using quoted market prices when

available

Recently Adopted Accounting Standards

SFAS 157 On September 15 2006 the FASB issued SFAS 157 which established framework for

measuring fair value under GAAP and expanded its disclosure about fair value measurement SFAS 157 required
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companies to disclose the fair value of their financial instruments according to fair value hierarchy i.e Levels
and as defined Additionally companies are required to provide enhanced disclosure regarding fair value

measurements in the Level
category including reconciliation of the beginning and ending balances separately

for each major category of assets and liabilities accounted for at fair value SFAS 157 was effective at the

beginning of the first fiscal year after November 15 2007 Mirant adopted the provisions of SFAS 157 on
January 2008 for financial instruments and nonfinancial assets and liabilities recognized or disclosed at fair

value in the financial statements on recurring basis

SFAS 157 clarified that fair value should be measured at the exit price which is the price to sell an asset or
transfer liability The exit price may or may not equal the transaction price and the exit price objective applies
regardless of companys intent or ability to sell the asset or transfer the liability at the measurement date The
Company historically measured fair value using the approximate mid-point of the bid and ask prices Upon
adoption of SFAS 157 the Company began measuring fair value based on the bid or ask price from independent
broker quotes for its derivative contract assets and liabilities in accordance with the exit price objective

SFAS 157 also clarified that non-performance risk including an issuers credit standing should be
considered when measuring liabilities at fair value precludes the use of block discount when measuring
instruments traded in an actively quoted market at fair value and requires costs relating to acquiring
instruments carried at fair value to be recognized as expense when incurred SFAS 157 requires that fair value
measurement reflect the assumptions market participants would use in pricing an asset or liability based on the
best available information

SFAS 157 nullified portion of the guidance in EITF 02-3 Under EITF 02-3 the transaction price
presumption prohibited recognition of day one gain or loss at the inception of derivative contract unless the

fair value of that derivative was substantially based on quoted prices or valuation
process incorporating

observable inputs Day one gains or losses on transactions that had been deferred under EITF 02-3 were
recognized in the period that valuation inputs became observable or when the contract performed

The provisions of SFAS 157 are applied prospectively except for the initial effect on three specific items
changes in fair value measurements of existing derivative financial instruments measured initially using the

transaction price presumption under EITF 02-3 existing hybrid financial instruments measured initially at

fair value using the transaction price and blockage factor discounts Adjustments to these items required
under SFAS 157 are recorded as transition adjustment to beginning retained earnings in the year of adoption
Upon adoption of SFAS 157 the Company recognized gain of approximately $1 million as cumulative-effect

adjustment to accumulated deficit on January 2008 The cumulative-effect adjustment relates entirely to the

recognition of inception gains and losses formerly deferred under EITF 02-3 See Note for further discussion of
SFAS 157

FSP FAS 157-3 On October 10 2008 the FASB issued FSP FAS 157-3 which clarifies the application of
SFAS 157 in determining the fair value of financial asset when the market for that asset is not active FSP FAS
157-3 provides clarity in

determining the fair value of financial asset in dislocated market including the use
of internal

assumptions when relevant observable market inputs do not exist Additionally it clarified that the use
of broker

quotes in market that is not active may not be the best indication of fair value and that the nature of
the quote should also be considered in the fair value measurement FSP FAS 157-3 is effective immediately
including with respect to prior periods for which financial statements have not been issued The Company
adopted FSP FAS 157-3 effective September 30 2008 The adoption of FSP FAS 157-3 did not affect the

Companys statements of operations financial position or cash flows

SFAS 159 On February 15 2007 the FASB issued SFAS 159 which permitted an entity to measure many
financial instruments and certain other items at fair value by electing fair value option Once elected the fair

value option may be applied on an instrument by instrument basis is irrevocable and is applied only to entire

instruments SFAS 159 also requires companies with trading and available-for-sale securities to report the
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unrealized gains and losses for which the fair value option has been elected within earnings for the period

presented SFAS 159 was effective at the beginning of the first fiscal year after November 15 2007 The

Company adopted SFAS 159 on January
2008 The adoption of SFAS 159 did not affect the Companys

statements of operations
financial position or cash flows because the Company did not elect the fair value option

for any of its financial instruments

FSP F/N 39-1 On April 30 2007 the FASB issued FSP FIN 39-1 which amended FIN 39 to indicate

that the following fair value amounts could be offset against each other if certain conditions of FIN 39 are

otherwise met those recognized for derivative financial instruments executed with the same counterparty

under master netting arrangement
and those recognized for the right to reclaim cash collateral receivable

or the obligation to return cash collateral payable arising from the same master netting arrangement as the

derivative instruments In addition reporting entity is not precluded from offsetting the derivative financial

instruments if it determines that the amount recognized upon payment or receipt of cash collateral is not fair

value amount FSP FIN 39-1 was effective at the beginning of the first fiscal year
after November 15 2007 In

March 2008 the FASB issued SFAS 161 which upon adoption requires the presentation of disclosures for

derivative and hedging activities on gross basis In SFAS 161 the FASB expressed the view that disclosing the

fair value amounts of derivative instruments on gross
basis provides better information about how companies

are managing risks As result the Company reevaluated its policy related to the net presentation of the

derivative contract assets and liabilities and related receivables and payables subject to master netting

agreements The Company elected to discontinue the net presentation of assets and liabilities subject to master

netting agreements upon adoption of FSP FIN 39-1 on January 2008 As required by FSP FIN 39-1 amounts at

December 31 2007 are also presented on gross basis in the consolidated balance sheet for consistent

presentation As result total assets and total liabilities as of December 31 2007 both increased by 1.086

billion The change to gross presentation had no effect on net income earnings per share or stockholders equity

The following table sets forth the amounts as previously reported and the currently reported amounts at

December 31 2007 in millions

December 31 2007 December 31 2007

as previously Adjustment for as currently

reported gross presentation reported

Receivables net $297 $292 $589

Derivative contract assets current 173 514 687

Derivative contract assets noncurrent 30 123 153

Deferred income taxes noncurrent 83 157 240

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $426 $292 $718

Derivative contract liabilities current 196 513 709

Deferred income taxes current 83 157 240

Derivative contract liabilities noncurrent 137 124 261

At December 31 2008 the Company had approximately $1 million of cash collateral posted with

counterparties under master netting agreements
that was included in funds on deposit on the consolidated balance

sheet In addition approximately $20 million of cash collateral payable to counterparties under master netting

agreements was included in accounts payable and accrued liabilities on the consolidated balance sheet

SAB 110 On December 21 2007 the SEC issued SAB 110 which amended SAB 107 to allow for the

continued use of the simplified method to estimate the expected term in valuing stock options beyond

December 31 2007 The simplified method can only be applied to certain types of stock options for which

sufficient exercise history is not available The Company adopted SAB 110 on January 2008 and will continue

to use the simplified method until it has sufficient exercise history

SFAS 158 On September 29 2006 the FASB issued SFAS 158 which includes the requirement to

measure postretirement plan assets and benefit obligations as of the date of the employers fiscal year-end
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statement This requirement is effective for fiscal years ending after December 15 2008 The Company used

September 30 measurement date in 2007 and prior years and transitioned to fiscal year-end measurement date

at December 31 2008 Mirant elected to use the alternative transition method under SFAS 158 This election

resulted in an increase to accumulated deficit of approximately $2 million in 2008 that
represents approximately

one quarter of the annual net periodic benefit cost recognized in 2008

New Accounting Standards Not Yet Adopted at December 31 2008

In December 2007 the FASB issued SFAS 141R which requires an acquirer to recognize the assets

acquired the liabilities assumed and any noncontrolling interest in the acquiree at their acquisition-date fair

values SFAS 141R also requires disclosure of information
necessary for investors and other users to evaluate

and understand the nature and financial effect of the business combination Additionally SFAS l4lR requires
that acquisition-related costs be expensed as incurred The provisions of SFAS 141R became effective for

acquisitions completed on or after January 2009 however the income tax considerations included in SFAS
141 were effective as of that date for all acquisitions regardless of the acquisition date The Company adopted
SFAS l4lR on January 2009 The adoption of SFAS 141R had no effect on the Companys statements of

operations financial position or cash flows

On February 12 2008 the FASB issued FSP FAS 157-2 which defers the effective date of SFAS 157 for

one year
for certain nonfinancial assets and nonfinancial liabilities with the exception of those assets and

liabilities that are recognized or disclosed on recurring basis at least annually The Companys non-recurring
nonfinancial assets and liabilities that could be measured at fair value in the Companys financial statements
include long-lived asset impairments and the initial recognition of asset retirement obligations The Company
adopted FSP FAS 157-2 on January 2009 and the adoption had no effect on the Companys statements of

operations financial position or cash flows The Company will incorporate the recognition and disclosure

provisions of SFAS 157 for fair value measurements for
non-recurring nonfinancial assets and liabilities in future

filings

On March 19 2008 the FASB issued SFAS 161 which amends SFAS 133 to enhance the required
disclosures for derivative instruments and hedging activities The Company utilizes derivative financial

instruments to manage its
exposure to commodity price risks and changes in conversion spreads and for its

proprietary trading and fuel oil management activities The Company adopted SFAS 161 on January 2009 and

expects to modify the presentation of the quantitative information included in its note disclosures in order to

differentiate among asset management proprietary trading and fuel oil management activities and their effect on
the Companys financial statements in the Companys Form lO-Q for the first

quarter of 2009

On December 30 2008 the FASB issued FSP FAS 132R-1 which requires enhanced disclosures about plan
assets of an employers defined benefit pension or other postretirement plan FSP FAS 132R-l will require
additional information on how the fair value of plan assets is measured including reconciliation of beginning
and ending balances for Level inputs and the valuation techniques used to measure fair value FSP FAS 132R-l
is effective for fiscal years ending after December 15 2009 The Company will adopt FSP FAS 132R-1 for its

defined benefit and other postretirement plans disclosures in its Form 10-K for the year ended December 31
2009 The Company is currently evaluating the potential effect of adopting FSP FAS 32R- on its disclosures in

the Companys consolidated financial statements
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Accounts Receivable and Notes Receivable

Receivables consisted of the following at December 31 2008 and 2007 in millions

At December 31

2008 2007

Customer accounts
$751 $542

Notes receivable
13

Other
18 64

Less allowance for uncollectible accounts
14

Total receivables
771 605

Less long-term receivables included in other long-term assets 10 16

Total current receivables
$761 $589

Financial Instruments

Derivative Financial Instruments

The Company through its asset management activities enters into variety of exchange-traded and OTC

energy and energy-related derivative financial instruments such as forward contracts futures contracts option

contracts and financial swap agreements to manage exposure to commodity price risks and changes in conversion

spreads These contracts have varying terms and durations which range from few days to years depending on

the instrument The Companys proprietary trading activities also utilize similarcontracts in markets where the

Company has physical presence
to attempt to generate

incremental gross margin

Adoption of SFAS 157

Effective January 2008 the Company adopted SFAS 157 as discussed in Note which among other

things requires enhanced disclosures about assets and liabilities carried at fair value SFAS 157 clarifies that fair

value should be measured at the exit price which is the price to sell an asset or transfer liability In applying the

exit price objective upon adoption
of SFAS 157 the Company measures fair value based on the bid or ask price

from independent broker quotes for its derivative contract assets and liabilities

Derivative financial instruments are recorded at their estimated fair value in the Companys accompanying

consolidated balance sheets as derivative contract assets and liabilities except for certain transactions that qualify

for the normal purchases or normal sales exception election that allows for accrual accounting treatment As

defined in SFAS 157 fair value is the price that would be received from the sale of an asset or paid to transfer

liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date The Company utilizes

certain assumptions that market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability including assumptions

about risk and/or the risks inherent in the inputs to the valuation technique These inputs can be readily

observable market-corroborated or generally unobservable The Company utilizes valuation techniques that

attempt to maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs The

determination of the fair values considers various factors including closing exchange or OTC market price

quotations
time value credit quality liquidity and volatility factors underlying options and contracts The fair

value of certain derivative financial instruments is estimated using pricing
models based on contracts with similar

terms and risks Modeling techniques assume market correlation and volatility such as using the prices of one

delivery point to calculate the price of the contracts different delivery point The nominal value of the

transaction is discounted using LIBOR forward interest rate curve In addition by applying credit reserve

which is calculated based on credit default swaps or published default probabilities for the actual and potential

asset value the fair value of Mirants derivative financial instruments reflects the risk that the counterparties to

these contracts may default on the obligations Likewise by applying reserve for non-performance which is

calculated based on the probability
of Mirant defaulting Mirant adjusts its derivative contract liabilities to reflect

the price at which potential market participant would be willing to assume Mirants liabilities
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Changes in the fair value and settlements of derivative financial instruments used to hedge electricity

economically are reflected in operating revenue and changes in the fair value and settlements of derivative

financial instruments used to hedge fuel
economically are reflected in cost of fuel electricity and other products

in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations Changes in the fair value and settlements of

derivative financial instruments for proprietary trading and fuel oil management activities are recorded on net

basis as operating revenue in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations As of December 31 2008
the Company does not have any derivative financial instruments for which hedge accounting as defined by
SFAS 133 has been elected

Fair Value Hierarchy

Based on the observability of the inputs used in the valuation
techniques for fair value measurement the

Company is required to classify recorded fair value measurements according to the fair value hierarchy The fair

value hierarchy ranks the quality and reliability of the information used to determine fair values The hierarchy
gives the highest priority to unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities Level
measurement and the lowest priority to unobservable inputs Level measurement The fair value measurement
inputs Mirant uses vary from readily observable prices for exchange-traded instruments to price curves that

cannot be validated through external pricing sources Mirants financial assets and liabilities carried at fair value
in the financial statements are classified in three categories based on the inputs used The high-level guidelines
described below are used to determine the appropriate classification of inputs within the fair value hierarchy

Level inputsUnadjusted quoted prices available in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that

the Company has the ability to access and transact upon as of the reporting date Active markets are those in

which transactions for the asset or liability occur in sufficient
frequency and volume to provide pricing

information on an ongoing basis Level primarily consists of natural gas and crude oil futures traded on
the NYMEX and swaps cleared against NYMEX prices

Level inputsPricing inputs other than quoted prices in active markets included in Level which are
either directly or indirectly observable as of the reported date Level includes those financial instruments
that are valued using quotes from independent brokers or other valuation methodologies These include

widely-accepted methodologies that consider various assumptions including quoted forward prices for

commodities time value volatility factors and current market and contractual prices for the underlying
instruments as well as other relevant economic measures Substantially all of these assumptions are

observable in the marketplace throughout the full term of the instrument can be derived from observable
data or are supported by observable levels at which transactions are executed in the marketplace
Instruments in this category include

non-exchange-traded derivatives such as OTC forwards swaps and
options

Level inputsPricing inputs that are generally less observable than those from objective sources These

inputs may be used with internally developed methodologies or methodologies utilizing significant inputs
that represent managements best estimate of fair value Level instruments include those that may be more
structured or otherwise tailored Inputs such as assumptions for market prices supply and demand market

data correlation and volatility are used for modeling with internally developed methodologies or

methodologies utilizing significant inputs that represent managements best estimate of fair value At each
balance sheet date the Company performs an analysis of all instruments subject to SFAS 157 and includes
in Level all those whose fair value is based on significant unobservable inputs

In certain cases the inputs used to measure fair value may fall into different levels of the fair value

hierarchy In such cases the level in the fair value hierarchy within which the fair value measurement in its

entirety falls must be determined based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement
The Companys assessment of the significance of particular input to the fair value measurement in its entirety

requires judgment and considers factors specific to the asset or liability
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The following tables set forth by level within the fair value hierarchy the Companys financial assets and

liabilities that were accounted for at fair value on recurring basis as of December 31 2008 by category and

tenor respectively At December 31 2008 the Companys only financial assets and liabilities measured at fair

value on recurring basis are derivative financial instruments

The following table presents
financial assets and liabilities net accounted for at fair value on recurring

basis as of December 31 2008 by category in millions

Quoted Prices in Significant

Active Markets Other Significant

for Identical Observable Unobservable

Instruments Inputs Inputs

Level Level Level Total

Total assets
545 2575 $47 3167

Total liabilities 561 1950 2512

Total $l6 625 $46 655

The following table presents financial assets and liabilities net accounted for at fair value on recurring

basis as of December 31 2008 by tenor in millions

Quoted Prices in Significant

Active Markets Other Significant

for Identical Observable Unobservable

Instruments Inputs Inputs

Level Level Level Total

2009 $l6 $286 $45 $315

2010
81 82

2011

2012

2013
86 86

Thereafter
10

Total
$16 $625 $46 $655

The volumetric weighted average maturity or weighted average tenor of the derivative contract portfolio at

December 31 2008 and December 31 2007 was approximately 23 months and 12 months respectively The net

notional amount or net short position
of the derivative contract assets and liabilities at December 31 2008 and

December 31 2007 was approximately
42 million equivalent MWh and 26 million equivalent MWh

respectively

Level Disclosures

The following tables present
roll forward of fair values of assets and liabilities net categorized in Level

and the amount included in earnings for the year ended December 31 2008 in millions

Fair value of assets and liabilities categorized in Level at January 2008 $12

Total gains or losses realized/unrealized

Included in earnings of existing contracts or changes in net assets or 1iabilities1

Purchases issuances and settlements2
21

Transfers in and for out of Level 33 17

Fair value of assets and liabilities categorized in Level at December 31 2008 $46

Reflects the total gains or losses on contracts included in Level at the beginning of each quarterly reporting period and

at the end of each quarterly reporting period and contracts entered into during each quarterly reporting period that remain

at the end of each quarterly reporting period
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Represents the total cash settlements of contracts during each quarterly reporting period that existed at the beginning of

each quarterly reporting period

Denotes the total contracts that existed at the beginning of each quarterly reporting period and were still held at the end
of each quarterly reporting period that were either previously categorized as higher level for which the inputs to the

model became unobservable or assets and liabilities that were previously classified as Level for which the lowest

significant input became observable during each quarterly reporting period Amounts reflect fair value as of the end of

each quarterly reporting period

Year Ended December 31 2008

Operating Cost of

Revenues Fuel Total

Gains losses included in earnings $46 12 $34
Gains losses included in earnings or changes in net assets attributable to the

change in unrealized gains or losses relating to assets still held at December 31
2008 $52 $45

Fair Values of Other Financial Instruments

Other financial instruments recorded at fair value include cash and interest-bearing cash equivalents The

following methods are used by Mirant to estimate the fair value of financial instruments that are not otherwise

carried at fair value on the accompanying consolidated balance sheets

Notes and Other Receivables The fair value of Mirants notes receivable are estimated using interest rates

it would receive currently for similar types of arrangements

Long- and Short-Term Debt The fair value of Mirants long- and short-term debt is estimated using

quoted market prices when available

The carrying amounts and fair values of Mirants financial instruments at December 31 2008 and 2007 are

as follows in millions

December 31

2008 2007

Carrying Carrying
Amount Fair Value Amount Fair Value

Liabilities

Long- and short-term debt $2676 $2345 $3095 $3009

Other

Notes and other receivables
13 12 20 24

Long-Lived Assets

Property plant and equipment net consisted of the following at December 31 2008 and 2007 dollars
in millions

At December 31
Depreciable

2008 2007 Lives years

Production $2412 $2234 14 to 46
Leasehold improvements on leased generating facilities 405 214 to 34
Construction work in progress 997 645
Other

236 219 2to 12
Less accumulated depreciation amortization and provision for impairment 835 722
Total property plant and equipment net $3215 $2590

F-20



Depreciation of the recorded cost of property plant and equipment is recognized on straight-line basis

over the estimated useful lives of the assets Acquired emissions allowances related to owned facilities are

included in production assets above and are depreciated on straight-line basis over the average life of the

related generating facilities Depreciation expense was approximately $135 million $121 million and $129

million for the years ended December 31 2008 2007 and 2006 respectively

Intangible Assets net

Following is summary of intangible assets at December 31 2008 and 2007 dollars in millions

At December 31 2008 At December 312007

Weighted Average Gross Gross

Amortization Carrying Accumulated Carrying Accumulated

Lives Amount Amortization Amount Amortization

Trading rights
26 years 27 27

Development rights
38 years 62 12 62 11

Emissions allowances 31 years 150 34 151 29

Other intangibles
27 years

14 14

Total intangible assets $253 $57 $254 $48

Trading rights are intangible assets recognized in connection with asset purchases that represent the

Companys ability to generate
additional cash flows by incorporating Mirants trading activities with the

acquired generating facilities

Development rights represent the right to expand capacity at certain acquired generating facilities The

existing infrastructure including storage facilities transmission interconnections and fuel delivery systems and

contractual rights acquired by Mirant provide the opportunity to expand or repower certain generating facilities

Emissions allowances represent allowances granted for the leasehold baseload units at the Dickerson and

Morgantown facilities

Amortization expense was approximately $9 million for the year
ended December 31 2008 and $8 million

for each of the years ended December 31 2007 and 2006 Assuming no future acquisitions dispositions or

impairments of intangible assets amortization expense is estimated to be approximately $9 million for each of

the next five years

Impairments on Assets Held and Used

In accordance with SFAS 144 an asset classified as held and used shall be tested for recoverability

whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of the asset may not be

recoverable An asset impairment charge must be recognized if the sum of the undiscounted expected future cash

flows from long-lived asset is less than the carrying value of that asset The amount of any impairment charge

is calculated as the excess of the carrying value of the asset over its fair value Fair value is estimated based on

the discounted future cash flows from that asset or determined by other valuation techniques

In 2000 the State of New York issued an NOV to the previous owner of the Companys Lovett facility

alleging NSR violations associated with the operation of that facility prior to its acquisition by the Company On

June 11 2003 Mirant New York Mirant Lovett and the State of New York entered into consent decree the

2003 Consent Decree The 2003 Consent Decree was approved by the Bankruptcy Court on October 15 2003

Under the 2003 Consent Decree Mirant Lovett had three options install emissions controls on the Lovett

facilitys two coal-fired units units and shut down unit and convert unit to natural gas or shut

down unit in 2007 and unit in 2008 The Company concluded that the installation of the required emissions

controls was uneconomic The Company also concluded that operating unit on natural gas was uneconomic
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On October 19 2006 Mirant Lovett notified the New York Public Service Commission the NYISO
Orange and Rockland and certain other affected transmission and distribution companies in New York of its

intent to discontinue operation of units and of the Lovett facility in April 2007

On May 10 2007 Mirant Lovett entered into an amendment to the 2003 Consent Decree with the State of

New York that switched the deadlines for shutting down units and so that the deadline for compliance by
unit was extended until April 30 2008 and the deadline for unit was shortened The Company discontinued

operation of unit as of May 2007 In addition the Company discontinued operation of unit because it was

uneconomic to run the unit

In the second quarter of 2007 the Company performed an impairment analysis of the Lovett facility and as

result of this analysis recorded an impairment loss of $175 million to reduce the carrying value of the Lovett

facility to its estimated fair value The carrying value of the Lovett facility prior to the impairment was

approximately $185 million The remaining depreciable life for the Lovett facility was also adjusted to April 30
2008 based on the high likelihood of shutdown of unit on that date

On October 20 2007 Mirant Lovett submitted notices of its intent to discontinue operations of unit of the

Lovett generating facility as of midnight on April 19 2008 to the New York Public Service Commission the

NYISO Orange and Rockland and several other potentially affected transmission and distribution companies in

New York The Company ceased operation of unit on April 19 2008 and has substantially completed the

demolition of the Lovett facility

In 2006 the Companys assessment of the Bowline unit suspended construction project resulted in the

conclusion that the Bowline unit project as configured and permitted was not economically viable As result

of this conclusion the Company determined the estimated value of the equipment and project termination

liabilities At December 31 2006 the carrying value of the development and construction costs for Bowline

unit exceeded the estimated undiscounted cash flows from the abandonment of the project The Company
recorded an impairment of $120 million which is reflected in impairment losses on the consolidated statement of

operations for the year ended December 31 2006

Long-term Debt

Long-term debt at December 31 2008 and 2007 was as follows in millions

Secured
At December 31 Interest Rate Unsecured

2008 2007

Long-term debt

Mirant Americas Generation

Senior notes

Due2Oll 535 811 8.30% Unsecured

Due 2021 450 450 8.50% Unsecured

Due 2031 400 400 9.125% Unsecured

Unamortized debt premium/discount

Mirant North America

Senior secured term loan due 2009 to 2013 415 555 LIBOR 1.75% Secured

Senior notes due 2013 850 850 7.375% Unsecured

Capital leases due 2009 to 2015 29 32 7.375% -8.19%

Total 2676 3095
Less current portion of long-term debt 46 142

Total long-term debt excluding current portion $2630 $2953
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Mirant Americas Generation Senior Notes

The senior notes are senior unsecured obligations of Mirant Americas Generation having no recourse to any

subsidiary or affiliate of Mirant Americas Generation In the years
ended December 31 2008 and 2007 the

Company purchased and retired $276 million and $39 million respectively of Mirant Americas Generation

senior notes due in 2011

Mirant North America Senior Secured Credit Facilities

Mirant North America wholly-owned subsidiary of Mirant Americas Generation entered into senior

secured credit facilities in January 2006 which are comprised of senior secured term loan and senior secured

revolving credit facility The senior secured term loan had an initial principal balance of $700 million which has

amortized to $415 million as of December 31 2008 At the closing $200 million drawn under the senior secured

term loan was deposited into cash collateral account to support the issuance of up to $200 million of letters of

credit Although the senior secured revolving credit facility has lender commitments of $800 million availability

thereunder reflects $45 million reduction as result of the expectation that Lehman Commercial Paper Inc

which filed for bankruptcy in October 2008 will not honor its $45 million commitment under the facility During

the year ended December 31 2008 Mirant North America transferred to the senior secured revolving credit

facility approximately $78 million of letters of credit previously supported by the cash collateral account and

withdrew approximately $78 million from the cash collateral account thereby reducing the cash collateral

account to approximately $122 million At December 31 2008 there were approximately $172 million of letters

of credit outstanding under the senior secured revolving credit facility At December 31 2008 total of $583

million was available under the senior secured revolving credit facility and the senior secured term loan for cash

draws or for the issuance of letters of credit

In addition to quarterly principal installments of $1.32 million Mirant North America is required to make

annual principal prepayments under the senior secured term loan equal to specified percentage of its excess free

cash flow which is based on adjusted EBITDA less capital expenditures and as further defined in the loan

agreement On March 19 2008 Mirant North America made mandatory principal prepayment of approximately

$135 million on the term loan At December 31 2008 the current estimate of the mandatory principal

prepayment of the term loan in March 2009 is approximately $37 million This amount has been reclassified

from long-term
debt to current portion of long-term

debt at December 31 2008 The primary causes of the

difference between the March 2008 prepayment and the expected March 2009 prepayment are lower adjusted

EBITDA and higher capital expenditures in 2008 compared to 2007

The senior secured credit facilities are senior secured obligations of Mirant North America In addition

certain subsidiaries of Mirant North America not including Mirant Mid-Atlantic or Mirant Energy Trading have

jointly and severally guaranteed as senior secured obligations the senior secured credit facilities The senior

secured credit facilities have no recourse to any other Mirant entities

Mirant North America Senior Notes

In December 2005 Mirant North America issued senior notes in an aggregate principal amount of

$850 million that bear interest at 7.375% and mature on December 31 2013 The original senior notes were

issued in private placement and were not registered with the SEC The proceeds of the original senior notes

offering initially were placed in escrow pending the emergence of Mirant North America from bankruptcy The

proceeds were released from escrow in connection with Mirant North Americas emergence from bankruptcy and

the closing of the senior secured credit facilities

In connection with the issuance of the original senior notes Mirant North America entered into

registration rights agreement under which it agreed to complete an exchange offer for the original senior notes

On June 29 2006 Mirant North America completed its registration under the Securities Act of $850 million of
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the senior notes and initiated the exchange offer The exchange offer was completed on August 2006 with

$849.965 million of the outstanding original senior notes being tendered for the senior notes The terms of the

senior notes are identical in all material respects to the terms of the original senior notes except that the senior

notes are registered under the Securities Act and generally are not subject to transfer restrici ions or registration

rights

Interest on the notes is payable on each June 30 and December 31 The senior notes are senior unsecured

obligations of Mirant North America In addition certain subsidiaries of Mirant North America not including
Mirant Mid-Atlantic or Mirant Energy Trading have jointly and severally guaranteed as senior unsecured

obligations the senior notes The Mirant North America senior notes have no recourse to any other Mirant

entities The notes are redeemable at the option of Mirant North America in whole or in
part at any time prior to

December 31 2009 at price equal to 100% of the principal amount plus accrued and unpaid interest plus
make-whole premium At

any time on or after December 31 2009 Mirarit North America may redeem the notes

at specified redemption prices together with accrued and unpaid interest if any to the date of redemption Under

the terms of the notes the occurrence of change of control will be triggering event requiring Mirant North

America to offer to purchase all or portion of the notes at price equal to 101% of their principal amount

together with accrued and unpaid interest if any to the date of purchase In addition certain asset dispositions or

casualty events will be triggering events which may require Mirant North America to use the proceeds from

those asset dispositions or casualty events to make an offer to purchase the notes at 100% of their principal

amount together with accrued and unpaid interest if any to the date of purchase if such proceeds are not

otherwise used or committed to be used within certain time periods to repay senior secured indebtedness to

repay indebtedness under the senior secured credit facilities with corresponding reduction in commitments or

to invest in capital assets related to its business

Capital Leases

Long-term debt includes capital lease by Mirant Chalk Point At December 31 2008 and 2007 the current

portion of the long-term debt under this capital lease was $3 million The amount outstanding under the capital

lease which matures in 2015 is $28 million with an 8.19% annual interest rate This lease is of an 84MW
peaking electric power generating facility Depreciation expense related to this lease was approximately $2
millionfor each of the years ended December 31 2008 2007 and 2006 The annual principal payments under

this lease are approximately $3 million in 2009 and 2010 $4 million in 2011 and 2012 $5 million in 2013 and

$9 million thereafter The gross amount of assets under the capital lease recorded in property plant and

equipment net was $24 million at December 31 2008 and 2007 The related accumulated depreciation was $13
million and $12 million at December 31 2008 and 2007 respectively

Debt Maturities

At December 31 2008 the annual scheduled maturities of debt during the next five years and thereafter

were as follows in millions

2009
46

2010

2011

2012

2013
1213

Thereafter
856

Total $2676

With the exception of 2009 the annual scheduled maturities above do not include estimates of Mirant North

Americas required principal prepayments of its senior secured term loan based on its excess free cash flow
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Sources of Funds and Capital Structure

The principal sources of liquidity for the Companys future operations and capital expenditures are expected

to be existing cash on hand and cash flows from the operations of the Companys subsidiaries letters of

credit issued or borrowings made under Mirant North Americas senior secured revolving credit facility and

letters of credit issued under Mirant North Americas senior secured term loan

The Company and certain of its subsidiaries including Mirant Americas Generation and Mirant North

America are holding companies and as result the Company and such subsidiaries are dependent upon

dividends distributions and other payments from their respective subsidiaries to generate the funds necessary to

meet their obligations The ability of certain of the Companys subsidiaries to pay dividends and make

distributions is restricted under the terms of their debt or other agreements In particular substantial portion of

the cash from the Companys operations is generated by Mirant Mid-Atlantic The Mirant Mid-Atlantic

leveraged leases contain number of covenants including limitations on dividends distributions and other

restricted payments Under its leveraged leases Mirant Mid-Atlantic is not permitted to make any dividends

distributions and other restricted payments unless it satisfies the fixed charge coverage
ratio on historical

basis for the last period of four fiscal quarters it is projected to satisfy the fixed charge coverage ratio for the

next two periods of four fiscal quarters
and no significant lease default or event of default has occurred and is

continuing In the event of default under the leveraged leases or if the restricted payment tests are not satisfied

Mirant Mid-Atlantic would not be able to distribute cash Based on the Companys calculation of the fixed

charge coverage
ratios under the leveraged leases as of December 31 2008 Mirant Mid-Atlantic meets the

required 1.7 to 1.0 ratio for restricted payments both on historical and projected basis

Mirant North America is an intermediate holding company that is subsidiary of Mirant Americas

Generation and the parent of its indirect subsidiaries including Mirant Mid-Atlantic Mirant North America

incurred certain indebtedness pursuant to its senior notes and senior secured credit facilities secured by the assets

of Mirant North America and its subsidiaries other than Mirant Mid-Atlantic and Mirant Energy Trading The

indebtedness of Mirant North America includes certain covenants typical in such notes and credit facilities

including restrictions on dividends distributions and other restricted payments Further the notes and senior

secured credit facilities include financial covenants that will exclude from the calculation the financial results of

any subsidiary that is unable to make distributions or pay
dividends at the time of such calculation Thus the

inability of Mirant Mid-Atlantic to make distributions to Mirant North America under the leveraged lease

transaction would have material adverse effect on the calculation of the financial covenants under the senior

notes and senior secured credit facilities of Mirant North America including the leverage and interest coverage

maintenance covenants under its senior credit facility

The ability of Mirant Americas Generation to pay its obligations is dependent on the receipt of dividends

from Mirant North America capital contributions from Mirant and its ability to refinance all or portion of those

obligations as they become due

As described above Mirant North America and Mirant Mid-Atlantic have restrictions on their ability to pay

dividends or make intercompany loans and advances under their financing arrangements or other third party

agreements At December 31 2008 Mirant North America had distributed to its parent Mirant Americas

Generation all available cash that was permitted to be distributed under the terms of its debt agreements leaving

$354 million at Mirant North America and its subsidiaries Of this amount $125 million was held by Mirant

Mid-Atlantic which as of December 31 2008 met the tests under the leveraged lease documentation permitting

it to make distributions to Mirant North America While Mirant North America is in compliance with its financial

covenants as of December 31 2008 it is restricted from making distributions because of the free cash flow

requirements under the restricted payment test of its senior credit facility The primary factor lowering the free

cash flow calculation in the restricted payment test is the significant capital expenditure program of Mirant

Mid-Atlantic to install emissions controls at its Chalk Point Dickerson and Morgantown coal-fired units to

comply with the Maryland Healthy Air Act Except for permitted distributions to cover interest payable on

Mirant Americas Generations senior notes the $3.883 billion of net assets of Mirant North America and its
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subsidiaries were restricted from distribution from Mirant North America to its
parent Mirant Americas

Generation as of December 31 2008 Notwithstanding such restriction Mirant thinks that it will have sufficient

liquidity for its future operations capital expenditures and debt service obligations from existing cash on hand
expected cash flows from the operations of its subsidiaries and the ability to issue letters of credit or make

borrowings under the Mirant North America senior credit facilities

Income Taxes

Income from continuing operations before income taxes for the
years ended December 31 2008 2007 and

2006 was $1.217 billion $442 million and 1.202 billion respectively

The income tax provision benefit from continuing operations consisted of the following in millions

Years Ended December 31

2008 2007 2006

Current income tax provision

Deferred income tax provision benefit 552
Provision benefit for income taxes $2 $9 $550

reconciliation of the Companys federal statutory income tax provision to the effective income tax

provision adjusted for permanent and other items for the
years ended December 31 2008 2007 and 2006 is as

follows in millions

Years Ended December 31

2008 2007 2006

Provision benefit for income taxes based on United States federal

statutory income tax rate 426 $154 419

State and local income tax benefit net of federal income taxes 119 95 79

Discontinued operations 18 21 64
Return to provision adjustments

Professional fees during bankruptcy 65

Previously deferred intercompany gain 22

Foreign reorganization gain 83

Other 86 50

Effect of Internal Revenue Code Section 382l6 and 382l5 321 297

Effect of implementing FIN 48 44

Effect of other comprehensive income transactions 35
Reorganization adjustments 170
Taxes accrued on foreign earnings 16

Excess tax deductions related to bankruptcy transactions 212 22
Change in deferred tax asset valuation allowance 528 671 1513
Other differences net 18

Tax provision benefit $9 550
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The tax effects of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the

consolidated financial statements and their respective tax bases which give rise to deferred tax assets and

liabilities for continuing operations are as follows in millions

December 31

2008 2007

Deferred Tax Assets

Employee benefits
96 64

Reserves
17 16

Loss carry
forwards

1355 1464

Property and intangible assets
17 141

Derivative contracts
52

Other
77 88

Subtotal
1562 1825

Valuation allowance
1258 1786

Net deferred tax assets
304 39

Deferred Tax Liabilities

Derivative contracts
267

Other
37 39

Net deferred tax liabilities
304 39

Net deferred taxes

NOLs

As required by applicable accounting principles an enterprise that anticipates the realization of pre-tax

gain must recognize the benefit or detriment of the deferred tax assets and liabilities associated with the

transaction in the year in which it becomes more likely than not that the gain will be realized In accordance with

EITF 93-17 Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for Parent Companys Excess Tax Basis in the Stock of

Subsidiary that Is Accounted for as Discontinued Operation the Company recognized tax benefit in 2006

arising from and related solely to the sale of the Philippine business Conversely in 2007 the Company

recognized an income tax provision
of $721 million that arose from and was specifically

related to the sale of the

Philippine business The entire amount of this provision was recorded in income from discontinued operations in

the consolidated statement of operations for the year
ended December 31 2007

As result of changes in the Companys stock ownership including the Companys repurchases of shares of

its common stock since July 11 2006 and the exercise of significant number of warrants for Mirant common

stock during 2008 in the third quarter the Company experienced an ownership change within the meaning of

Internal Revenue Code Section 382 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 as amended The Companys

annual limitation on the amount of taxable income that can be offset by the Companys then existing NOLs has

been redetermined as of the date of the ownership change The Company does not expect that the ability to offset

future taxable income with existing NOLs under the redetermined annual limitation will be significantly different

from the Companys ability to do so under the annual limitation prior to the ownership change that occurred in the

third quarter of 2008 However if the Company experiences another ownership change after December 31 2008 at

or near the Companys recent stock price levels the redetermined annual limitation could be significantly lower and

could result in the payment of cash taxes above the amount currently estimated for 2009 Beginning in 2010 tax

planning strategies including the election to amortize over five years the cost of the Companys pollution
control

equipment installed pursuant to the Maryland Healthy Air Act would be available to reduce additional cash taxes

The December 31 2008 federal NOL carry forward for financial reporting was $3.1 billion with expiration

dates from 2022 to 2026 Similarly there is an aggregate amount of $5.3 billion of state NOL carry forwards

with various expiration dates based on the companys review of the application
of apportionment

factors and

other state tax limitations
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SFAS 109 requires that valuation allowance be established when it is more-likely-than-not that all or

portion of deferred tax asset will not be realized The ultimate realization of deferred tax assets is dependent

upon the generation of future taxable income during the periods in which those temporary differences are

deductible in making this determination management considers all available positive and negative evidence

affecting specific deferred tax assets including the Companys past and anticipated future performance the

reversal of deferred tax liabilities and the implementation of tax planning strategies

Objective positive evidence is
necessary to support conclusion that valuation allowance is not needed for

all or portion of deferred tax assets when significant negative evidence exists The Company evaluates this

position quarterly and makes its judgment based on the facts and circumstances at that time The Company thinks

that future sources of taxable income reversing temporary differences and implemented tax planning strategies

will be sufficient to realize deferred tax assets for which no valuation allowance has been established

As of December 31 2008 the Companys deferred tax assets reduced by the valuation allowance are

completely offset by its deferred tax liabilities portion of the Companys NOLs approximately $341 million
is attributable to tax deductions primarily related to transactions arising during the period that the Company was
in bankruptcy The recognition of the tax benefit of these bankruptcy period tax deductions either through
realization or reductions of the valuation allowance will be an increase to additional paid-in-capital in

stockholders equity These NOLs will be the last utilized for financial
reporting purposes Additionally the

Companys valuation allowance includes $35 million relating to the tax effects of other comprehensive income
items primarily related to employee benefits These other comprehensive income items will he reduced in the

event that the valuation allowance is no longer required

Tax Uncertainties

The Company adopted the provisions of FIN 48 on January 2007 Prior to adoption of FIN 48 Mirant

recognized contingent liabilities related to tax uncertainties when it was probable that loss had occurred and the
loss or range of loss could be reasonably estimated The recognition of contingent losses for tax uncertainties

required management tO make significant assumptions about the expected outcomes of certain tax contingencies
Under FIN 48 the Company must reflect in its income tax provision the full benefit of all positions that will be

taken in the Companys income tax returns except to the extent that such positions are uncertain and fall below
the recognition requirements of FIN 48 In the event that the Company determines that tax position meets the

uncertainty criteria of FIN 48 an additional liability or an adjustment to the Companys NOLs determined under
the measurement criteria of FIN 48 will result The Company periodically reassesses the tax positions in its tax

returns for open years based on the latest information available and determines whether any portion of the tax

benefits reflected should be treated as unrecognized As result of applying the criteria under FIN 48 for

continuing operations the Company recognized at adoption decrease in accrued liabilities of $61 million and
an increase of $26 million in taxes receivable For discontinued operations the adoption of FIN 48 resulted in

decrease in liabilities hed for sale and accumulated deficit of $30 million The total effect of adopting FIN 48
was an increase in stockholders equity of $117 million reconciliation of the beginning and ending amount of

unrecognized tax benefits for continuing operations is as follows in millions

For the Years Ended

December 31

2008 2007

Unrecognized tax benefjts January $15 $13
Increases based on tax positions related to the current year
Increases for tax positions for prior years

Settlements

Lapse of statute of limitations

Unrecognized tax benefits December 31 $13 $15

The unrecognized tax benefits included the review of tax positions relating to open tax years beginning in

1999 and continuing to the present The Companys major tax jurisdictions are the United States at the federal

F-28



level and multiple state jurisdictions For United States federal income taxes all tax years subsequent to 2004

remain open and for state income taxes the earliest open year is 1999 However both the federal and state NOL

carry
forwards from any

closed year are subject to examination until the year that such NOL carry forwards are

utilized and that year is closed for audit The Company does not anticipate any significant changes in its

unrecognized tax benefits over the next 12 months Included in the balance at December 31 2008 and 2007 the

Company had $2 million and $4 million respectively of unrecognized tax benefits that would affect the effective

tax rate if they were recognized The Companys tax provision includes an immaterial amount related to the

accrual for any penalties and interest subsequent to its adoption of FIN 48

Employee Benefit Plans

Pension and Other Postretirement Benefit Plans

Mirant provides pension benefits to its non-union and union employees through various defined benefit and

defined contribution pension plans These benefits are based on pay service history and age at retirement

Defined benefit pensions are not provided for non-union employees hired after April 2000 who participate in

profit sharing arrangement Most pension benefits are provided through tax-qualified plans that are funded in

accordance with ERISA and Internal Revenue Service requirements Certain executive pension
benefits that

cannot be provided by the tax-qualified plans are provided through unfunded non-tax-qualified plans The

measurement dates for the defined benefit plans were December 31 for 2008 and September 30 for 2007 and

2006

Mirant also provides certain medical care and life insurance benefits for eligible retired employees which

are accounted for on an accrual basis using an actuarial method that recognizes the net periodic costs as

employees render service to earn the postretirement
benefits The measurement dates for these postretirement

benefit plans were December 31 for 2008 and September 30 for 2007 and 2006

During the fourth quarter of 2006 Mirant amended the postretirement benefit plan covering non-union

employees to eliminate all employer provided subsidies through gradual phase-out by 2011 As result Mirant

recognized reduction in other postretirement
liabilities of $32 million Since the amendment occurred after the

2006 measurement date the plan curtailment was recognized during the first quarter of 2007 as reduction in

operations
and maintenance expense for the year

ended December 31 2007

During the second quarter of 2008 Mirant severed certain employees as result of the shutdown of the

Lovett facility As result the Company recognized curtailment gain of approximately $5 million for its

pension and postretirement
benefits plans

which was reflected as reduction of operations and maintenance

expense for the year ended December 31 2008

SFAS 158 is designed to improve financial reporting by requiring an employer to recognize the overfunded

or underfunded status of pension retiree medical and other postretirement
benefit plans on its balance sheets

rather than only disclosing the funded status in the financial statement footnotes The Company adopted SFAS

158 on December 31 2006 and recognized an increase in other noncurrent liabilities of $21 million related to its

underfunded defined benefit pension plans and recognized decrease in other noncurrent liabilities of $5 million

related to its other postretirement
benefit plans Effective December 31 2008 SFAS 158 also requires that

companies measure the funded status of plans as of the year-end
balance sheet date Mirant historically used

September 30 as the date to measure the funded status of its plans SFAS 158 offered two transition methods for

companies that did not use year-end measurement date to transition to December 31 2008 measurement date

Mirant elected to use the alternative transition method under SFAS 158 for changing its measurement date

which resulted in an increase to the accumulated deficit of $2 million and accumulated other comprehensive

income loss of $1 million as of January 2008 Effective December 31 2008 Mirant transitioned to

year-end measurement date for the funded status of its plans
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The following table shows the projected benefit obligations and funded status for the defined benefit

pension and other postretirement benefit plans of Mirants continuing operations in millions

Other
Tax Qualified Non-Tax Qualified Postretirement

Pension Plans Pension Plans Benefit Plans

2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007

Change in benefit obligation

Benefit obligation beginning of year $243 $244 57 $107
Service cost 10

Interest cost 18 14

Amendments

Benefits paid 11
Curtailments 32
Actuarial gain loss 27 15 12
Benefit obligation end of year $286 $243 62 57

Change in plan assets

Fair value of plan assets beginning of year $205 $151

Return on plan assets 52 21

Employer contributions 64 41

Benefits paid 11
Fair value of plan assets end of

year $206 $205

Funded Status

Underfunded at measurement date 80 38 $62 57

The accumulated benefit obligation exceeded the fair value of plan assets at December 31 2008 and 2007
for the tax qualified pension plans The total accumulated benefit obligation as of December 31 2008 was $260
million The total accumulated benefit obligation as of September 30 2007 was $213 million

The discount rates used as of December 31 2008 and September 30 2007 were determined based on
individual bond-matching models comprised of portfolios of high quality corporate bonds with projected cash

flows and maturity dates reflecting the expected time horizon during which that benefit will be paid Bonds
included in the model portfolios are from cross-section of different issuers are AA-rated or better and are

non-callable so that the yield to maturity can actually be attained without intervening calls

The weighted average assumptions used for measuring year-end pension and other postretirement benefit

plan obligations as of their respective measurement dates were as follows

Other

Postretirement

Pension Plans Benefit Plans

2008 2007 2008 2007

Discount rate 5.40% 6.12% 5.37% 6.06%
Rate of compensation increases 3.37% 3.64% 3.00% 3.00%

Mirant assumed healthcare cost trend rates used for measuring year-end other postretirement benefit plan

obligations as of their respective measurement dates were as follows

2008 2007

Assumed medical inflation for next year
Before

age 65 8.50% 8.00%

Age 65 and after 8.50% 9.50%
Assumed ultimate medical inflation rate 5.00% 5.00%
Year in which ultimate rate is reached 2018 2015
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An annual increase or decrease in the assumed medical care cost trend rate of 1% would correspondingly

increase or decrease the total accumulated benefit obligation of other postretirement
benefit plans at

December 31 2008 by an inconsequential amount

Amounts recognized in the consolidated balance sheets for pensions
and other postretirement

benefit plan

obligations are shown below at December 31 2008 and 2007 in millions

Other

Tax-Qualified Non-Tax Qualified Postretirement

Pension Plans Pension Plans Benefit Plans

2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007

Current liabilities

Noncurrent liabilities 80 38 60 54

Total liability
80 38 $62 $57

Amounts recognized in accumulated other comprehensive income at December 31 2008 and 2007 for

pensions and other postretirement benefit plan obligations are as follows in millions

Other

Tax-Qualified Non- Tax Qualified Postretirement

Pension Plans Pension Plans Benefit Plans

2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007

Netgainloss $93 $7 $2 $1 $16 $15

Prior service credit cost
26 38

Total amounts included in accumulated other

comprehensive income loss $95 $4 $4 $3 $10 $23

Expected amortization payments The estimated net gain loss and prior service credit cost for the

defined benefit pension plans that will be amortized from accumulated other comprehensive income into net

periodic benefit cost in 2009 are 1.3 million and $0.5 million respectively Additionally as of January

2008 Mirant recognized $0 and $0 million of net gain loss and prior service cost respectively to

accumulated other comprehensive income for defined benefit pension plans as part of the transition adjustment

related to the change in measurement date under SFAS 158

The estimated net gain loss and prior service credit cost for other postretirement benefit plans that will be

amortized from accumulated other comprehensive income into net periodic benefit cost over the next fiscal year

are $0.8 million and $5.8 million respectively Additionally as of January 2008 Mirant recognized $0.2

million of net loss and $1.7 million of prior service credit to accumulated other comprehensive income for other

postretirement benefit plans as part
of the transition adjustment related to the change in measurement date under

SFAS 158
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The components of the net periodic benefit cost credit of Mirants continuing operations pension and other

postretirement benefit plans for the years ended December 31 2008 2007 and 2006 are shown below in
millions

Other Postretirement

Pension Plans Benefit Plans

Years Ended December 31 Years Ended December 31

2008 2007 2006 2008 2007 2006

Service cost 10

Interest cost IS 14 14

Expected return of plan assets 17 13 10
Net amortizatjon

Curtailments 32
Net periodic benefit cost credit 11 16 29 10

Net amortization tmount includes prior service cost and actuarial gains or losses

Other changes in plan assets and benefit obligation recognized in other comprehensive income for Mirants

continuing operations pension and other postretirement benefit plans excluding $6 million for the year ended
December 31 2007 related to plans disposed of in 2007 as part of the various asset sales for the years ended
December 31 2008 and 2007 were as follows in millions

Other Postretirement

Pension Plans Benefit Plans

December 31 December 31

2008 2007 2008 2007

Net loss gain $100 $24 $l2
Prior service cost credit

Amortization of

Net loss 15
Prior service cost credit 12 19

Total loss income recognized in other comprehensive income $99 $25 $12 $l7

The resulting total amount recognized in net periodic benefit cost and other comprehensive income for the

pension plans for the yebrs ended December 31 2008 and 2007 was $105 million and $14 million

respectively The resulting total amount recognized in net periodic benefit cost and other comprehensive income
for the other postretirenent benefit plans for the years ended December 31 2008 and 2007 was $7 million and

$46 million respectively

The weighted average assumptions used for Mirants pension benefit cost and other postretirement benefit
costs during each year were as follows

Other Postretirement

Pension Plans Benefit Plans

Years Ended Years Ended
December 31 December 31

2008 2007 2006 2008 2007 2006

Discount rate 6.12% 5.66% 5.36% 6.06% 5.66% 5.36%
Rate of compensation increases 3.64% 3.70% 3.82% 3.00% 3.00% 3.00%

Expected long-term rate of return on plan assets 8.50% 8.50% 8.50%
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Mirants assumed health care cost trend rates used to measure the expected cost of benefits covered by its

other postretirement plan were as follows

2008 2007 2006

Assumed medical inflation for next year

Before age
65

8.00% 9.00% 10.00%

Age 65 and after
9.50% 11.00% 12.50%

Assumed ultimate medical inflation rate
5.00% 5.00% 5.00%

Year in which ultimate rate is reached
2015 2011 2011

An annual increase or decrease in the assumed medical care cost trend rate of would correspondingly

increase or decrease the aggregate of the service and interest cost components of the annual other postretirement

benefit cost in 2008 by an inconsequential amount

In determining the long-term rate of return for plan assets the Company evaluates historic and current

market factors such as inflation and interest rates before determining long-term capital market assumptions The

Company also considers the effects of diversification and portfolio rebalancing To check for reasonableness and

appropriateness the Company reviews data about other companies including their historic returns

For purposes
of expense recognition the Company uses market-related value of assets that recognizes the

difference between the expected return and the actual return on plan assets over five-year period Unrecognized

asset gains or losses associated with its plan assets will be recognized in the calculation of the market-related

value of assets and subject to amortization in future periods

The following table shows the target
allocation and percentage of fair value of plan assets by asset category

for Mirant qualified pension plans as of December 31 2008 and 2007

Percent of Fair

Value of Plan Assets at

Target

December 31

Allocation 2008 2007

U.S Stocks
50% 34% 55%

Non-U.S Stocks
20 13 15

Fixed income
30 28 30

Cash

Total

For the qualified pension plans Mirant uses mix of equities and fixed income investments with the

objective of maximizing the long-term return of pension plan assets at prudent level of risk The Companys

risk tolerance is established through consideration of plan liabilities plan funded status and corporate financial

condition Equity investments are diversified across U.S and non-U.S stocks For U.S stocks Mirant employs

both passive and active approach by investing in an index that mirrors the Russell 1000 Index and an actively

managed small cap fund For non-U.S stocks Mirant is invested in both developed and emerging market

international equity funds that are benchmarked against the Europe Australia and Far East Index Fixed income

investments are in long U.S government/credit index fund Investment risk is monitored on an ongoing basis

through quarterly portfolio reviews and annual pension liability measurements

Primarily as result of declines in the overall market of equity securities during 2008 the fair value of Mirant

pension plan assets declined considerably in 2008 As result the Company contributed $60 million to its pension plans

in December of 2008 and total of $64 million for the year
ended December 31 2008 Approximately $51 million of

the $60 millionthe Company contributed in the fourth quarter
of 2008 is included in the cash amount in the table above

at December 31 2008 This amount will be invested according to the Companys target allocation in 2009
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Mirant currently expects to contribute
approximately $23 million to the tax-qualified pensions for the 2009

plan year Of this amount approximately $8 million is expected to be contributed during 2009 with the
remainder contributed in 2010 based on the 2009 plan valuations In addition the Company expects to contribute

approximately $1 million to the non-tax-qualified pension plans during 2009

Mirant expects the following benefits to be paid from the pension and other postretirement benefit plans
in millions

Other Postretirement

Pension Plans Benefits Plans

Before
Projected Benefit Payments to Tax- Non-Tax Medicare Medicare
Plan Participants

Qualified Qualified Subsidy Subsidy

2009
9.1 $0.8 2.5

2010
9.8 0.9 2.5

2011
10.3 0.9 2.1

2012
11.3 0.9 2.5

2013
12.6 0.9 2.9 0.1

2014 through 2018 86.1 4.8 20.8 0.8

Employee Savings and Profit Sharing Plan

The Company maintains defined contribution employee savings plan with profit sharing arrangement
whereby employees may contribute

portion of their base compensation to the employee savings plan subject to

limits under the Internal Revenue Code The Company provides matching contribution each payroll period
equal to 75% of the employees contributions up to 6% of the employees pay for that period For unionized

employees matching levels vary by bargaining unit

Under the profit sharing arrangement the Company contributes quarterly fixed contribution of 3% of

eligible pay and may make an annual discretionary contribution for non-union employees not accruing benefit
under the defined benefit pension plan Certain unionized employees are also eligible for the annual discretionary
profit sharing contribution

Expenses recognized for the matching fixed profit sharing and discretionary profit sharing contributions

were as follows in millions

Fixed Discretionary

Profit Profit

Matching Sharing Sharing

2008
$5 $2 $2

2007

2006

Stock-based Compensation

The Mirant Corporation 2005 Omnibus Incentive Plan for certain employees and directors of Mirant became
effective on January 2006 The Omnibus Incentive Plan provides for the granting of nonqualified stock

options incentive stock options stock appreciation rights restricted stock restricted stock units performance
shares performance units cash-based awards other stock-based awards covered employee annual incentive
awards and non-employee director awards Under the Omnibus Incentive Plan 18575851 shares of Mirant

common stock are available for issuance to participants Shares covered by an award are counted as used only to

the extent that they are actually issued Any shares related to awards that terminate by expiration forfeiture
cancellation or otherwise without the issuance of such shares will be available again for grant under the Omnibus
Incentive Plan The Company utilizes both service condition and performance condition forms of stock-based

compensation
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On October 2006 the Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors approved the implementation of

special bonus plan to reward participants for successful completion of the Companys planned business and asset

sales as well as to provide certain participants with an incentive to remain with the Company The grants consisted

of cash and restricted stock units On November 13 2006 the Companys Compensation Committee pursuant to

the Companys 2005 Omnibus Incentive Plan awarded certain equity grants to five executive management

members The grants consisted of options to acquire the Companys common stock and restricted stock units These

grants were considered performance condition awards as the payout under the November 13 2006 awards was

based on achieving certain target amounts related to the sales of the Companys Philippine and Caribbean

businesses and six natural gas-fired facilities in the United States The performance conditions were met at

December 312007 and the awards became fully vested and non-forfeitable on June 30 2008

SFAS 23R was adopted by the Company during the first quarter
of 2006 using the modified prospective

transition method The Company recognizes compensation expense
related to service condition and performance

condition stock-based compensation Compensation expense
for the years ended December 31 2008 2007 and

2006 was as follows in millions

Years Ended December 31

2008 2007 2006

Service condition stock-based compensation 21 21 16

Performance condition stock-based compensation

Total compensation expense
26 29 17

The amounts in the table above are included in operations and maintenance expense in the consolidated

statements of operations with the exception of approximately $4 million for the year ended December 31 2007

which is included in income from discontinued operations net As of December 31 2008 there was

approximately $22 million of total unrecognized compensation cost excluding estimated forfeitures related to

non-vested share-based compensation granted through service condition awards which is expected to be

recognized on straight-line basis over weighted average period of approximately 1.4 years

Stock Options

The fair value of stock options is estimated on the date of grant using Black-Scholes option-pricing model

based on the assumptions noted in the following table As result of the Companys bankruptcy and other factors

historical information concerning the Companys stock price volatility for purposes of valuing stock option grants is

not sufficient Therefore the implied volatility derived from peer group companies was used as the basis for valuing

the stock options granted through September 30 2006 Beginning in the fourth quarter of 2006 the Company

re-evaluated the use of implied volatility derived from peer group companies and determined that sufficient

evidence existed to place exclusive reliance on Mirant own implied volatility of its traded options in accordance

with SAB 107 As result of the lack of exercise history for the Company the simplified method for estimating

expected term has been used in accordance with SAB 107 and SAB 110 to the extent applicable For performance

condition awards the Company utilized the contractual term as the expected term The risk-free rate for periods

within the contractual term of the stock option is based on the U.S Treasury yield curve in effect at the time of the

grant
The table below includes significant assumptions used in valuing the Companys stock options

Years Ended December 31

2008 2007 2006

Weighted Weighted Weighted

Range Average Range Average Range Average

Expected volatility 31 43% 1.2% 15 28% 19.9% 21 37% 1.6%

Expected dividends

Expected term

Service condition awards 3.5 years 3.5 years 2.7 3.5 years
3.48 years 5.2 years

5.9 years

Performance condition

awards years years

Risk-free rate 2.1 2.9% 2.1% 4.7% 4% 4.3 5.1% 4.5%
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Service Condition Awards

During 2006 Mirant made awards of nonqualified stock options to purchase approximately million shares

These stock options were granted with 10-year term Options to purchase approximately 1.8 million shares vest

25% six months from the grant date and 25% on each of the first second and third anniversaries of the grant

date Options to purchase approximately 1.1 million shares vest in three equal installments on each of the first

second and third anniversaries of the grant date Options to purchase approximately 41000 shares were granted

to non-management members of the Board of Directors and vest one year from the grant date

During 2007 the Company granted options to purchase total of approximately 605000 shares These

stock options were granted with five-year term and vest in three equal installments on each of the first second

and third anniversaries of the grant date Options to purchase approximately 15000 shares were granted to

lion-management members of the Board of Directors and vest one year from the grant date

During 2008 the Company granted options to purchase total of approximately 752000 shares These

stock options were granted with five-year term and vest in three equal installments on each of the first second

and third anniversaries of the grant date There were no stock options granted to non-management members of

the Board of Directors during 2008

The granted options provide for accelerated vesting if there is change of control as defined in the

Omnibus Incentive Plan or in certain circumstances as result of termination of employment Options to

purchase approximately 808000 1.1 million and 525000 shares vested during 2008 2007 and 2006

respectively of which approximately 37000 177000 and 87000 shares for 2008 2007 and 2006 respectively

became exercisable as result of accelerated vesting resulting from the termination of an employee The

weighted average grant-date fair value of stock options granted during the
years ended December 31 2008 2007

and 2006 was $9.49 $8.44 and $10.42 per share respectively

summary of the Companys option activity under the Omnibus Incentive Plan is presented below

Weighted

Average

Remaining Aggregate

Weighted Contractual Intrinsic

Number Average Term Value
Stock Options of Shares Exercise Price years in thousands

Outstanding at January 2006

Granted 2987936 $24.89

Exercised or converted 23287 $25.05

Forfeited 162930 $24.96

Expired
________

outstanding at December 31 2006 2801719 $24.89 9.2 $18720

Granted 605386 $37.91

Exercised or converted 371306 $25.98

Forfeited 131755 $29.64

Expired

Outstanding at December 31 2007 2904044 $27.25 7.4 $34069

Granted 751511 $36.87

Exercised or converted 659804 $25.63

Forfeited 69540 $36.12

Expired 55215 $31.95

Outstanding at December 31 2008 2870996 $29.83 5.8

Exercisable or convertible at December 31 2008 1244568 $26.44 6.7
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The range of exercise prices for stock options granted is presented below

High Low

2008 $37.02 $26.20

2007 $45.77 $37.71

2006 $28.89 $23.70

Cash received from the exercise of stock options under the Omnibus Incentive Plan for the years ended

December 31 2008 2007 and 2006 was approximately $17 million $10 million and $583000 respectively and

no related tax benefit was recognized during the years then ended

Performance Condition Awards

On November 13 2006 Mirant made awards of nonqualified stock options to purchase approximately

830000 shares to five members of executive management These options were granted with three-year term

and vested on June 30 2008 as the Company achieved the required performance target amounts by

December 31 2007 The options provided for accelerated vesting if there was change of control as defined in

the Omnibus Incentive Plan or in certain circumstances as result of termination of employment At

December 31 2007 options to purchase approximately 100000 shares became exercisable as result of

accelerated vesting resulting from the termination of an employee The weighted average grant date fair value of

performance condition stock options granted during the year ended December 31 2006 was $6.08 per share

There were no performance condition stock options granted during 2008 or 2007

summary of option activity for performance condition awards under the Omnibus Incentive Plan is

presented below

Weighted

Average
Remaining Aggregate

Weighted Contractual Intrinsic

Number Average Term Value

Stock Options
of Shares Exercise Price years in thousands

Outstanding at January 2006

Granted 830000 $28.89

Exercised or converted

Forfeited

Expired

Outstanding at December 31 2006 830000 $28.89 2.9 $2224

Granted

Exercised or converted

Forfeited

Expired ______

Outstanding at December 31 2007 830000 $28.89 1.9 $8375

Granted

Exercised or converted 44507 $28.89

Forfeited

Expired 55493 $28.89

Outstanding at December 31 2008 730000 $28.89 .9

Exercisable or convertible at December 31 2008 730000 $28.89 .9
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Restricted Stock Shares and Restricted Stock Units

Service Condition Awards

During 2006 the Company issued approximately 392000 restricted stock units and 205000 restricted stock

shares under the Omnibus Incentive Plan Approximately 350000 restricted stock units vest 25% six months from

the grant date and 25% on each of the first second and third anniversaries of the grant date Approximately 34000

of the restricted stock units and 205000 of the restricted stock shares vest in three equal installments on each of the

first second and third anniversaries of the grant date Approximately 8000 of the restricted stock units were granted

to non-management members of the Board of Directors and vest one year from the grant date The granted restricted

stock units and restricted stock shares provide for accelerated vesting if there is change of control as defined in

the Omnibus Incentive Plan or in certain circumstances as result of termination of employment

During 2007 the Company issued approximately 428000 restricted stock units under the Omnibus

Incentive Plan Approximately 419000 of the restricted stock units vest on each of the first second and third

anniversaries of the grant date Approximately 9000 of the restricted stock units were granted to

non-management members of the Board of Directors and vest one year from the grant date The granted

restricted stock units and restricted stock shares provide for accelerated vesting if there is change of control as
defined in the Omnibus Incentive Plan or in certain circumstances as result of termination of employment

During 2008 the Company issued approximately 403000 of restricted stock units under the Omnibus

Incentive Plan Approximately 388000 of the restricted stock units vest on each of the first second and third

anniversaries of the grant date Approximately 15000 of the restricted stock units were granted to

non-management members of the Board of Directors and vest one year from the grant date The granted

restricted stock units and restricted stock shares provide for accelerated vesting if there is change of control as

defined in the Omnibus Incentive Plan or in certain circumstances as result of termination of employment

Approximately 269000 213000 and 105000 restricted stock units vested during the years ended

December 31 2008 2007 and 2006 respectively of which approximately 13000 54000 and 17000

respectively became fully vested as result of the termination of employees

The grant date fair value of the restricted stock shares and restricted stock units is equal to the Companys
closing stock price on the grant date As restricted stock shares and restricted stock units vest the outstanding

balance of restricted stock shares and restricted stock units decreases and the number of outstanding shares of

common stock increases by an equal amount summary of the Companys restricted stock shares and restricted

stock units for service condition award is presented below

Weighted

Average Grant

Number Date Fair

Restricted Stock Shares and Restricted Stock Units of Shares Value

Outstanding at January 2006

Granted 597596 $24.89

Vested 104991 $24.84

Forfeited 32586 $24.96

Outstanding at December 31 2006 460019 $24.90

Granted 428035 $37.89

Vested 212700 $26.65

Forfeited 45381 $33.16

Outstanding at December 31 2007 629973 $32.54

Granted 403300 $36.90

Vested 269337 $31.63

Forfeited 68117 $37.01

Outstanding at December 31 2008 695819 $34.98

F-38



Performance Condition Awards

During 2006 the Company issued 283554 restricted stock units under the Omnibus Incentive Plan

Approximately 140000 were awarded on October 31 2006 to certain key employees and approximately 143000

on November 13 2006 to five members of executive management The restricted stock units vested on June 30

2008 based on the Company achieving the performance target amounts by December 31 2007 The granted

restricted stock units provided for accelerated vesting if there is change of control as defined in the Omnibus

Incentive Plan or in certain circumstances as result of termination of employment Approximately 3000

and 37000 restricted stock units and shares vested during the year ended December 31 2008 and 2007 as

result of the termination of employees The grant
date fair value of the restricted stock and restricted stock units

for performance condition awards is equal to the Companys closing stock price on the grant date

summary of the Companys restricted stock units awarded is as follows

Weighted

Average Grant

Number Date Fair

Restricted Stock Units of Shares Value

Outstanding at December 31 2006

Granted 283554 $29.23

Vested

Forfeited

Outstanding at December 31 2006 283554 $29.23

Granted

Vested 36564 $29.25

Forfeited

Outstanding at the December 31 2007 246990 $29.22

Granted

Vested 246990 $29.22

Forfeited

Outstanding at December 31 2008

Asset Retirement Obligations

Effective January 2003 the Company adopted SFAS 143 which requires an entity to recognize the fair

value of liability for an asset retirement obligation in the period in which it is incurred Additionally effective

December 31 2005 the Company adopted FIN 47 which expands the scope
of asset retirement obligations to be

recognized to include asset retirement obligations that may be uncertain as to the nature or timing of settlement

Upon initial recognition of liability for an asset retirement obligation or conditional asset retirement

obligation an entity shall capitalize an asset retirement cost by increasing the carrying amount of the related

long-lived asset by the same amount as the liability Over time the liability is accreted to its present value each

period and the capitalized cost is depreciated over the useful life of the related asset Retirement obligations

associated with long-lived assets included within the scope of SFAS 143 and FIN 47 are those for which legal

obligation exists under enacted laws statutes and written or oral contracts including obligations arising under the

doctrine of promissory estoppel

The Company identified certain asset retirement obligations within its power generating facilities These

asset retirement obligations are primarily related to asbestos abatement in facilities on owned or leased property

and other environmental obligations related to fuel storage facilities wastewater treatment facilities ash disposal

sites and pipelines

Asbestos abatement is the most significant type of asset retirement obligation identified for recognition in

connection with the Companys adoption of FIN 47 The EPA has regulations in place governing the removal of
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asbestos Because of the nature of asbestos it can be difficult to ascertain the extent of contamination in older

facilities unless substantial renovation or demolition takes place Therefore the Company incorporated certain

assumptions based on the relative age and size of its facilities to estimate the current cost for asbestos abatement

The actual abatement cost could differ from the estimates used to measure the asset retirement obligation As

result these amounts will be subject to revision when actual abatement activities are undertaken In the third

quarter of 2008 the Company increased its current cost estimates for asset retirement obligations associated with

asbestos abatement at its generating facilities as result of the cost of the asbestos abatement at the Lovett

facility The increase in the current cost estimates resulted in an increase to the asset retirement obligations of

approximately $2 million

The following table sets forth the balances of the asset retirement obligations as of January 2007 and the

additions and accretion of the asset retirement obligations for the years ended December 31 2008 and 2007 The

asset retirement obligations are included in noncurrent liabilities in the consolidated balance sheets in millions

For the Years Ended

December 31

2008 2007

Beginning balance January 44 40

Liabilities recorded in the period

Liabilities settled during the period

Accretion expense

Ending balance December 31 $40 $44

10 Commitments and Contingencies

Mirant has made firm commitments to buy materials and services in connection with its ongoing operations

and has made financial guarantees relative to some of its investments

Cash Collateral

In order to sell power and purchase fuel in the forward markets and perform other
energy trading and

marketing activities the Company often is required to provide trade credit support to its counterparties or make

deposits with brokers In addition the Company often is required to provide cash collateral for access to the

transmission grid to participate in power pools and for other operating activities In the event of default by the

Company the counterparty can apply cash collateral held to satisfy the existing amounts outstanding under an

open contract

The following is summary of cash collateral posted with counterparties as of December 31 2008 and 2007

in millions

At December 31

2008 2007

Cash collateral postedenergy trading and marketing 67 96

Cash collateral postedother operating activities 44 14

Total $111 $110
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Commitments

In addition to debt and other obligations in the consolidated balance sheets Mirant has the following annual

commitments under various agreements at December 31 2008 related to its operations in millions

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements and

Contractual Obligations by Year

Total 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 Years

Mirant Mid-Atlantic operating leases $2013 142 $140 $134 $132 $138 $1327

Other operating leases
57

21

Fuel commitments 1254 374 335 314 196 35

Maryland Healthy Air Act 677 490 187

Other
336 186 41 32 22 15 40

Total payments
$4337 $1201 $712 $487 $355 $194 $1388

The Companys contractual obligations table does not include the derivative obligations which are discussed

in Note and the asset retirement obligations which are discussed in Note

Operating Leases

Mirant Mid-Atlantic leases the Dickerson and Morgantown baseload units and associated property through

2029 and 2034 respectively Mirant Mid-Atlantic has an option to extend the leases Any extensions of the

respective leases would be for less than 75% of the economic useful life of the facility as measured from the

beginning of the original lease term through the end of the proposed remaining lease term The Company is

accounting for these leases as operating leases and recognizes rent expense on straight-line basis Rent expense

totaled $96 million for the years ended December 31 2008 2007 and 2006 and is included in operations and

maintenance expense
in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations As of December 31 2008 and

2007 the Company has paid approximately $354 million and $330 million respectively of lease payments in

excess of rent expense recognized which is recorded in prepaid rent and prepaid expenses on the consolidated

balance sheets Of these amounts $96 million is included in prepaid expenses on the Companys consolidated

balance sheets as of December 31 2008 and 2007

As of December 31 2008 the total notional minimum lease payments for the remaining terms of the leases

aggregated approximately $2.0 billion and the aggregate termination value for the leases was approximately

$1.4 billion which generally
decreases over time Mirant Mid-Atlantic leases the Dickerson and the Morgantown

baseload units from third party owner lessors These owner lessors each own the undivided interests in these

baseload generating
facilities The subsidiaries of the institutional investors who hold the membership interests in

the owner lessors are called owner participants Equity funding by the owner participants plus transaction

expenses paid by the owner participants totaled $299 million The issuance and sale of pass through certificates

raised the remaining $1.2 billion needed for the owner lessors to acquire the undivided interests

The pass through certificates are not direct obligations of Mirant Mid-Atlantic Each pass through certificate

represents
fractional undivided interest in one of three pass through trusts formed pursuant to three separate

pass through trust agreements between Mirant Mid-Atlantic and U.S Bank National Association as successor in

interest to State Street Bank and Trust Company of Connecticut National Association as pass through trustee

The property of the pass through trusts consists of lessor notes The lessor notes issued by an owner lessor are

secured by that owner lessors undivided interest in the lease facilities and its rights under the related lease and

other financing documents

Mirant has commitments under other operating leases with various terms and expiration dates

Fuel Commitments

Fuel commitments primarily relate to long-term coal agreements and related transportation agreements
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Maryland Healthy Air Act

Maryland Healthy Air Act commitments reflect the remaining capital expenditures that the Company
expects to incur to comply with the limitations for S02 NOx and mercury emissions under the Maryland
Healthy Air Act

Other

Other represents the open purchase orders less invoices received related to open purchase orders for

procurement of products and services purchased in the ordinary course of business These include construction
maintenance and labor activities at the Companys generating facilities Other also includes the Companys
LTSA associated with the maintenance of turbines at the Kendall facility limestone supply and transportation

agreements estimated pension and other postretirement benefit funding obligations deferred compensation
plans FIN 48 liabilities and miscellaneous long-term liabilities which are included in other noncurrent liabilities

on the consolidated balance sheet

Guarantees

Mirant generally conducts its business through various operating subsidiaries which enter into contracts as

routine part of their business activities In certain instances the contractual obligations of such subsidiaries are

guaranteed by or otherwise supported by Mirant or another of its subsidiaries including expressed guarantees or
letters of credit issued under the credit facilities of Mirant North America

In addition Mirant and its subsidiaries enter into various contracts that include indemnification and

guarantee provisions lxamples of these contracts include financing and lease arrangements purchase and sale

agreements commodity purchase and sale agreements construction
agreements and agreements with vendors

Although the primary 9bligation of Mirant or subsidiary under such contracts is to pay money or render

performance such contracts may include obligations to indemnify the counterparty for damages arising from the

breach thereof and in certain instances other
existing or potential liabilities In many cases the Companys

maximum potential liability cannot be estimated because some of the underlying agreements contain no limits

on potential liability

Upon issuance or modification of guarantee the Company determines if the obligation is subject to initial

recognition and measurement of liability and/or disclosure of the nature and terms of the guarantee under FIN
45 Generally guarantees of the performance of third party are subject to the recognition and measurement as

well as the disclosure provisions of FIN 45 Such
guarantees must initially be recorded at fair value as

determined in accordance with the interpretation The Company did not have any guarantees at December 31
2008 that met the recognition requirements under FIN 45

Alternatively guarantees between and on behalf of entities under common control are subject only to the

disclosure provisions of FIN 45 The Company must disclose information as to the term of the guarantee and the

maximum potential amount of future gross payments undiscounted under the guarantee even if the likelihood
of claim is remote

Letters of Credit and Surety Bonds

As of December 31 2008 Mirant and its subsidiaries were contingently obligated for $301 million under

letters of credit issued under the credit facilities of Mirant North America which includes $122 million of letters

of credit issued pursuant to its senior secured term loan and $172 million of letters of credit issued pursuant to its

revolving credit facility Most of these letters of credit are issued in
support of the obligations of Mirant North

America and its subsidiaries to perform under commodity agreements financing or lease
agreements or other

commercial arrangements In the event of default by the Company the counterparty can draw on letter of credit
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to satisfy the existing amounts outstanding under an open contract majority of these letters of credit expire

within one year of issuance and it is typical for them to be renewed on similar terms In addition the Company

has entered into cash-collateralized letter of credit facility pursuant to which it posted letters of credit in support

of the Companys response
to request

for proposals for new power generation

The Company has obligations under surety bonds that were posted as credit support for the RGGI auction

that was held in December 2008 These surety bonds expire
within one year and it is typical for them to be

renewed on similar terms As of December 31 2008 Mirant and its subsidiaries posted $25 million surety

bond as credit support for the RGGI auction

Following is summary of letters of credit issued and surety bonds as of December 31 2008 and 2007 in

millions

At December 31

2008 2007

Letters of creditenergy trading and marketing
76 $100

Letters of creditdebt service and rent reserves
101 78

Letters of creditother operating activities
124 112

Surety bondsenergy trading and marketing
25

Total

Purchase and Sale Guarantees and Indemnifications

In connection with the purchase or sale of an asset or business by Mirant through subsidiary Mirant is

typically required to provide certain assurances to the counterparties for the performance of the obligations of

such subsidiary under the purchase or sale agreements Such assurances may take the form of guarantee

issued by Mirant or subsidiary on behalf of the obligor subsidiary The scope
of such guarantees

would

typically include any indemnity obligations owed to such counterparty While the terms thereof vary in the scope

exclusions thresholds and applicable limits the indemnity obligations of seller typically include liabilities

incurred as result of breach of purchase and sale agreement including the indemnifying partys

representations or warranties unpaid and unreserved tax liabilities and specified retained liabilities if any These

obligations generally
have term of 12 months from the closing date and are intended to protect the

non-indemnifying parties against breaches of the agreement or risks that are difficult to predict or estimate at the

time of the transaction In most cases the contract limits the liability of the indemnifying party While the

primary indemnity periods under the agreements
for the sales of the Philippine and Caribbean businesses and six

U.S natural gas-fired facilities have elapsed without any claims being made Mirant continues to have indefinite

indemnity obligations in respect
of certain representations and covenants that are typically not subject to lapse

No claims have been made in respect thereof and the Company does not expect that it will be required to make

any material payments under these guarantee
and indemnity provisions

Commercial Purchase and Sales Arrangements

In connection with the purchase and sale of fuel emissions allowances and energy
to and from third parties

with respect to the operation of Mirant generating facilities the Company may be required to guarantee

portion of the obligations of certain of its subsidiaries These obligations may include liquidated damages

payments or other unscheduled payments The majority of the current guarantees are set to expire before the end

of 2010 although the obligations of the issuer will remain in effect until all the liabilities created under the

guarantee have been satisfied or no longer exist As of December 31 2008 Mirant and its subsidiaries were

contingently obligated for total of $101 million under such arrangements The Company does not expect that it

will be required to make any
material payments under these guarantees
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Other Guarantees and Indemnifications

As of December 31 2008 Mirant has issued $67 million of guarantees of obligations that its subsidiaries

may incur in connection with construction agreements equipment leases and on-going litigation The Company
does not expect that it will be required to make any material payments under these guarantees

The Company through its subsidiaries participates in several power pools with RTOs The rules of these

RTOs require that each participant indemnify the pool for defaults by other members Usually the amount
indemnified is based upon the activity of the participant relative to the total activity of the pooi and the amount of

the default Consequently the amount of such indemnification by the Company cannot be quantified

On routine basis in the ordinary course of business Mirant and its subsidiaries indemnify financing parties

and consultants or other vendors who provide services to the Company The Company does not expect that it will

be required to make any material payments under these indemnity provisions

Because some of the guarantees and indemnities Mirant issues to third parties do not limit the amount or
duration of its obligations to perform under them there exists risk that the Company may have obligations in

excess of the amounts described above For those guarantees and indemnities that do not limit the Companys
liability exposure the Company may not be able to estimate its potential liability until claim is made for

payment or performance because of the contingent nature of these contracts

11 Dispositions

Overview

The Company had no assets or liabilities held for sale at December 31 2008 or 2007 The Company
disposed of certain discontinued operations and other assets in 2007 In the third quarter of 2006 Mirant

commenced separate auction processes to sell its Philippine 2203 MW and Caribbean 1050 MW businesses

and six U.S natural gas-fired facilities totaling 3619 MW consisting of the Zeeland 903 MW West Georgia
613 MW Shady Hills 469 MW Sugar Creek 561 MW Bosque 546 MW and Apex 527 MW facilities

The sale of the six U.S natural gas-fired facilities was completed on May 2007 In the third quarter of

2006 the Company recorded an impairment loss of $396 million to reduce the carrying value of the six facilities

held for sale to estimated fair value In subsequent periods the Company recorded reductions to the impairment
loss of approximately $51 million resulting from the sale process As result the Company recognized
cumulative loss of $345 million related to the sale of the six facilities The net proceeds to Mirant after

transaction costs and retiring $83 million of project-related debt were $1 .306 billion

The Company completed the sale of Mirant NY-Gen on May 2007 The Company recognized gain of

$8 million related to the sale The proceeds related to the sale were immaterial as result of the transfer of the net
liabilities of Mirant NY-Gen

The sale of the Philippine business was completed on June 22 2007 The Company recognized gain of

$2003 billion related to the sale The net proceeds to Mirant after transaction costs and the repayment of

$642 million of debt were $3.21 billion

The sale of the Caribbean business was completed on August 2007 The Company recognized gain of

approximately $63 million in the third quarter of 2007 related to the sale The net proceeds to Mirant after

transaction costs and final working capital adjustments were $555 million

During the second quarter of 2007 the Company recognized $9 million of other comprehensive income net
of tax related to the sale of the Philippine business Of this amount $5 million was related to pension liability
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that was settled as part of the sale and $4 million was related to cumulative translation adjustment During the

third quarter of 2007 the Company recognized $11 million of other comprehensive loss net of tax related to

pension and other postretirement benefits as part of the sale of the Caribbean business

Discontinued Operations

The Company has reclassified amounts for prior periods in the financial statements to report separately as

discontinued operations the revenues and expenses of components of the Company that have been disposed of as of

December 31 2008

The Company sold its Wrightsville power generating facility in 2005 but retained transmission credits that

arose from transmission system upgrades associated with the construction of the Wrightsville facility During the

third quarter of 2007 Mirant entered into an agreement that established the amount of the outstanding

transmission credits As result of the agreement Mirant recognized gain of $24 million in income from

discontinued operations in the third quarter of 2007

For the year ended December 31 2007 income from discontinued operations included the results of

operations of the Caribbean business the Philippine business the six U.S natural gas-fired facilities and Mirant

NY-Gen through their respective dates of sale and the gain related to Wrightsville described above For the year

ended December 31 2006 income from discontinued operations included the results of operations of all the

discontinued businesses and assets for the entire year as well as the Wichita Falls facility in Texas through its

May 2006 date of sale

As part of the sale of Mirant NY-Gen Mirant retained the rights to future insurance recoveries related to

repairs of the dam at the Swinging Bridge facility In the fourth quarter of 2007 the Company reached an insurance

settlement and recognized gain of $10 million which is included in income from discontinued operations

summary of the operating results for these discontinued operations for the years
ended December 31

2007 and 2006 is as follows in millions

Year Ended December 31 2007

U.S Philippines Caribbean Total

Operating revenues
82 200 $514 796

Operating expenses income
Gain on sales of assets 38 2003 63 2104
Other operating expenses

56 67 433 556

Total operating expenses income 18 1936 370 1548

Operating income 64 2136 144 2344

Provision benefit for income taxes
704 13 717

Other expense income net
33 32 65

Net income $64 1399 $99 1562

Year Ended December 31 2006

U.S Philippines Caribbean Total

Operating revenues
303 469 $825 $1597

Operating expenses

Loss on sales of assets
375 375

Other operating expenses
221 187 686 1094

Total operating expenses
596 187 686 1469

Operating income loss 293 282 139 128

Provision benefit for income taxes 104 26 77
Other expense income net

30 54 93

Net income loss $303 356 $59 112
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On July 12 2006 the Companys Sual generating facility in the Philippines had an unplanned outage of

unit as result of failure of the generator The repairs on unit were completed on March 2007 and the

unit returned to operation On October 23 2006 unit at the Sual generating facility had an unplanned outage as

result of failure of the generator The repairs on unit were completed on June 12 2007 and the unit returned

to operation

As part of the sale of the Philippine business Mirant retained the rights to future insurance recoveries

related to outages of the Sual generating facility that occurred prior to the sale In 2007 the Company received

total of $23 million related to these recoveries In the second quarter of 2008 the Company entered into

settlement and received approximately $50 million in additional insurance recoveries For the year ended

December 31 2008 income from discontinued operations includes gain of $50 million related to this

settlement Of this amount $41 million related to business interruption recoveries and is included in cost of fuel

electricity and other products and $9 million related to property insurance recoveries and is included in total

operating expenses

12 Bankruptcy Related Disclosures

Mirant Plan was confirmed by the Bankruptcy Court on December 2005 and the Company emerged

from bankruptcy on January 2006 For financial statement presentation purposes Mirant recorded the effects

of the Plan at December 31 2005

At December 31 2008 and 2007 amounts related to allowed claims estimated unresolved claims and

professional fees associated with the bankruptcy that are to be settled in cash were $14 million and $27 million

respectively and these amounts were recorded in accounts payable and accrued liabilities on the accompanying

consolidated balance sheets These amounts do not include unresolved claims that will be settled in common
stock or the stock portion of claims that are expected to be settled with cash and stock For the

years ended

December 31 2008 2007 and 2006 the Company paid approximately $16 million $53 million and $814 million

respectively in cash related to bankruptcy claims which is reflected in cash flows from operating activities from

continuing operations In addition for 2006 approximately $990 million is reflected in cash flows from

financing activities from continuing operations and $45 million from discontinued operations and together

represent the principal amount of debt claims As of December 31 2008 approximately 850000 of the shares of

Mirant common stock to be distributed under the Plan have not yet been distributed and have been reserved for

distribution with respect to claims that are disputed by the Mirant Debtors and have yet to be resolved See Note

16 for further discussion of the Chapter 11 proceedings

Reorganization Items net

Reorganization items net represents expense income and gain or loss amounts that were recorded in the

financial statements as result of the bankruptcy proceedings In 2006 reorganization items net relate to refunds

received from various New York tax jurisdictions for the settlement of the property tax dispute related to the

New York subsidiaries Reorganization items net for the
years ended December 31 2008 2007 and 2006 are

comprised of the following in millions

Years Ended December 31

2008 2007 2006

Gain on New York property tax settlement 163
Professional fees and administrative expense

Interest income net

Total $2
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13 Stockholders Equity and Earnings Per Share

Stockholders Equity

On January 2006 all shares of Mirants old common stock were cancelled and 300 million shares of

Mirant new common stock were issued At December 31 2008 approximately 850000 shares of common

stock are reserved for unresolved claims pursuant to Mirant emergence from bankruptcy

Mirant also issued two series of warrants that will expire on January 2011 The Series Warrants and

Series Warrants entitled the holders as of the date of issuance to purchase an aggregate of approximately

35 million and 18 million shares of New Mirant common stock respectively The exercise price and number of

common shares issuable are subject to adjustments based on the occurrence of certain events including

dividends or distributions rights offerings or other distributions Mirants common stock is currently

traded on the NYSE under the ticker symbol MIR For the years ended December 31 2008 and 2007 there were

approximately 8.2 million and 0.2 million of Series Warrants respectively and 10.1 million and 0.5 million of

Series Warrants respectively that were exercised Substantially all of these exercises were made by net share

settlement resulting in the issuance of approximately 8.2 million and 0.4 million net shares of common stock for

the years ended December 31 2008 and 2007 respectively At December 31 2008 there were approximately

26.9 million Series Warrants and 7.1 million Series Warrants outstanding The warrants are recorded as

component of additional paid-in capital in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets

On January 2006 the Omnibus Incentive Plan for certain employees and directors of Mirant became

effective Under the Omnibus Incentive Plan 18575851 shares of Mirant common stock are available for

issuance to participants See Note for further discussion of the Omnibus Incentive Plan

Share Repurchases

During the third quarter
of 2006 the Company repurchased 43 million shares of Mirant common stock for

an aggregate purchase price of approximately $1 .228 billion On September 28 2006 the Company announced

that its Board of Directors had authorized $100 million share repurchase program which expired in September

2007 As of September 30 2007 the Company had repurchased 1.18 million shares under this program for an

aggregate purchase price of approximately $32 million

In January 2007 the Company began program of repurchasing shares at market prices from stockholders

holding less than 100 shares of Mirant stock For the year
ended December 31 2007 the Company repurchased

approximately 245000 shares for approximately $9 million The Company did not make any purchases under

this program in 2008

On November 2007 Mirant announced that it planned to return total of $4.6 billion of excess cash to its

stockholders based on four factors the outlook for the business preserving the Companys credit profile

maintaining adequate liquidity including for capital expenditures and maintaining sufficient working

capital On September 22 2008 Mirant announced that it had returned $3.856 billion of cash to its stockholders

and suspended its program to return excess cash to its stockholders based on its evaluation of the four factors that

were set out upon commencement of the share repurchase program On November 2008 Mirant announced

that it was resuming its program of returning excess cash to its stockholders and would purchase an additional

$200 million of shares through open market purchases This $200 million of purchases was completed in the

fourth quarter of 2008 and was in addition to the previous $3.856 billion of cash returned to its stockholders

detailed timeline of the program is as follows

On November 2007 Mirant announced that the first stage of the cash distribution would be

accomplished through an accelerated share repurchase program for $1 billion plus open market

purchases for up to an additional $1 billion In the fourth quarter of 2007 the Company repurchased

26.66 million shares of common stock for $1 billion through the accelerated share repurchase program
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On February 29 2008 the Company announced that it had decided to return the remaining $2.6 billion

of cash through open market purchases of common stock but that it would continue to evaluate the

most efficient method to return the cash to stockholders

On May 15 2008 the accelerated share repurchase program was completed and Mirant received an

additional 682387 shares resulting in total of 27.34 million shares purchased The final price of

shares repurchased under the accelerated share repurchase program was $36.57 per share which was

determined based on discount to the volume weighted average trading price of Mirant common
stock over the period of the accelerated share repurchase program

Between November 2007 and December 2008 Mirant returned approximately $4.056 billion of cash to its

stockholders through purchases of 122 million shares of its common stock including 86 million shares that were

purchased through open market purchases in 2008 for approximately $2.74 billion The Company has

repurchased approximately 48% of the 256 million basic shares that it had outstanding when the program began
in November 2007

Earnings per Share

Mirant calculates basic EPS by dividing income available to stockholders by the weighted average number

of common shares outstanding Diluted EPS gives effect to dilutive potential common shares including unvested

restricted shares and restricted stock units stock options and warrants The Company excluded 0.6 million

0.5 million and 3.4 million of potential common shares representing antidilutive stock options from the earnings

per
share calculations for the years ended December 31 2008 2007 and 2006 respectively

The following table shows the computation of basic and diluted EPS for the years ended December 31
2008 2007 and 2006 in millions except per share data

2008 2007 2006

Net income from continuing operations $1215 433 $1752
Net income from discontinued operations 50 1562 112

Net income as reported $1265 $1995 $1864

Basic and diluted

Weighted average shares outstandingbasic 186 252 285

Shares from assumed exercise of warrants and options 13 25 Il

Shares from assumed vesting of restricted stock and restricted stock units

Weighted average shares outstandingdiluted 199 277 297

Basic EPS

EPS from continuing operations 6.53 1.72 6.15

EPS from discontinued operations 0.27 6.20 0.39

Basic EPS 6.80 7.92 6.54

Diluted EPS

EPS from continuing operations 6.11 1.56 5.90

EPS from discontinued operations 0.25 5.64 0.38

Diluted EPS 6.36 7.20 6.28
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14 Segment Reporting

The Company has four operating segments Mid-Atlantic Northeast California and Other Operations The

Mid-Atlantic segment consists of four generating facilities located in Maryland and Virginia with total net

generating capacity of 5230 MW The Northeast segment consists of three generating facilities located in

Massachusetts and one generating facility located in New York with total net generating capacity of 2535 MW
The California segment consists of three generating facilities located in or near the City of San Francisco with

total net generating capacity of 2347 MW Other Operations includes proprietary trading and fuel oil

management activities For the years ended December 31 2007 and 2006 Other Operations also included gains

and losses related to the Back-to-Back Agreement which was terminated pursuant to settlement that became

effective in the third quarter of 2007 See Note 17 for further discussion of the Back-to-Back Agreement Other

Operations also includes unallocated corporate overhead interest on debt at Mirant Americas Generation and

Mirant North America and interest income on the Companys invested cash balances In the following tables

eliminations are primarily related to intercompany sales of emissions allowances and interest on intercompany

notes receivable and notes payable

Operating Segments

Mid- Other

Atlantic Northeast California Operations Eliminations Total

in millions

2008

Operating revenues $2279 $617 $186 102 3188

Cost of fuel electricity and

other products2 565 438 59 1059

Gross margin 1714 179 127 103 2129

Operating Expenses

Operations and maintenance 412 167 76 28 683

Depreciation and amortization 92 19 23 10 144

Loss gain on sales of assets net 30 39

Total operating expenses
496 156 92 36 788

Operating income loss 1218 23 35 67 1341

Total other expense income net
123 124

Income loss from continuing operations

before income taxes 1217 24 34 56 1217

Provision for income taxes

Income loss from continuing operations $1217 $24 $34 58 1215

Total assets $5620 $722 $181 $7253 $3088 $10688

Gross property additions 641 25 59 731

Includes unrealized gains of $685 million $35 million and $120 million for Mid-Atlantic Northeast and Other

Operations respectively

Includes unrealized losses of $9 million and $45 million for Mid-Atlantic and Northeast respectively
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Operating Segments

Mid- Other
Atlantic Northeast California Operations Eliminations Total

in millions

2007

Operating revenues1 $1133 $664 $177 45 2019
Cost of fuel electricity and other

products2 528 427 42 67 18 912

Gross margin 605 237 135 112 18 1107

Operating Expenses

Operations and maintenance 360 179 74 94 707

Depreciation and amortization 81 25 13 10 129

Impairment losses 175 175

Loss gain on sales of assets net 49 11 45
Total operating expenses 441 330 85 99 11 966

Operating income loss 164 93 50 13 141

Total other income net 282 299
Income loss from continuing operations

before reorganization items and income

taxes 169 86 55 295 440

Reorganization items net

Provision for income taxes

Income loss from continuing operations 169 $84 $55 286 433

Total assets $4008 $696 $195 $7327 $1688 $10538

Gross property additions 531 17 37 588

Includes unrealized losses of $474 million $76 million and $14 million for Mid-Atlantic Northeast and Other

Operations respectively

Includes unrealized losses of $5 million for Mid-Atlantic and unrealized gains of $33 million for Northeast
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Operating Segments

Mid- Other

Atlantic Northeast California Operations Eliminations Total

in millions

2006

Operating
revenues $1901 811 $171 204 $3087

Cost of fuel electricity and

other products2
583 464 56 86 38 1151

Gross margin 1318 347 115 118 38 1936

Operating Expenses

Operations and maintenance 333 116 63 80 592

Depreciation and amortization 74 25 13 25 137

Impairment losses
118 119

Loss gain on sales of assets net 46 40 44 49

Total operating expenses
400 213 76 66 44 799

Operating income 918 134 39 52 1137

Total other expense income net 34 128 99

Income loss from continuing operations

before reorganization items and iIcome

taxes
922 125 73 76 1038

Reorganization items net 164 164

Provision benefit for income taxes 552 550

Income from continuing operations
922 287 $73 476 $1752

Total assets $3947 $1264 $449 $5276 $3078 $7858

Gross property
additions 112 12 14 139

Includes unrealized gains of $519 million $119 million $3 million and $116 million for Mid-Atlantic Northeast

California and Other Operations respectively

Includes unrealized losses of $35 million $58 million and $9 million for Mid-Atlantic Northeast and Other Operations

respectively

Geographic Areas

Property Plant and Equipment and Other tntangible Assets

Mid- Other

Atlantic Northeast California Operations Eliminations Total

in millions

AtDecember3l2008 $3565 $396 $138 $111 $799 $3411

AtDecember3l2007 $2999 $381 $153 62 $799 $2796
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15 Quarterly Financial Data Unaudited

Summarized
quarterly financial data for 2008 and 2007 is as follows in millions

except per share data

Quarters Ended

March 31 June 30 September 30 December 31
2008 2008 2008 2008

Operating revenue 302 3932 $2l72 $ll07
Cost of fuel electricity and other products 240 1662 360 293
Operating income loss 133 790 1638 626
Income loss from continuing operations 154 832 1607 594
Income loss from discontinued operations 49

Consolidated net income loss 152 783 1607 593

Weighted average shares outstandingbasic 216 201 175 151
Income loss from continuing operations per weighted

average shares outstandingbasic 0.71 4.14 9.18 3.94
Net income loss per weighted average shares

outstandingbasic 0.70 3.90 9.18 3.93

Weighted average shares outstandingdiluted 216 201 185 151
Income loss from continuing operations per weighted

average shares outstandingdiluted 0.71 4.14 8.69 3.94
Net income loss per weighted average shares

outstandingdiluted $0.70 $3.90 8.69 3.93

Quarters Ended

March 31 June 30 September 30 December 31
2007 2007 2007 2007

Operating revenue 351 542 717 409
Cost of fuel electricity and other products 275 229 195 213

Operating income loss 103 71 318
Income loss from continuing operations 133 83 642
Income from discontinued operations 81 1339 133

Consolidated net income loss 52 12566 7757 16

Weighted average shares outstandingbasic 256 256 256 238
Income loss from continuing operations per weighted

average shares outstandingbasic 0.52 0.32 2.51 0.03
Net income loss per weighted average shares

outstandingbasic 0.20 4.91 3.03 0.07

Weighted average shares outstandingdiluted 256 256 283 264
Income loss from continuing operations per weighted

average shares outstandingdiluted 0.52 0.32 2.27 0.03
Net income loss per weighted average shares

outstandingdiluted $0.20 4.91 2.74 0.06

Includes unrealized losses of $302 million in operating revenues and $1 million of unrealized losses in cost of fuel

electricity and other products primarily as result of significant increases in energy prices in the
quarter

Includes unrealized losses of $911 million in operating revenues and $37 million of unrealized gains in cost of fuel

electricity and other products primarily as result of significant increases in energy prices in the quarter

Includes unrealized gains of $1 .438 billion in operating revenues and $43 million of unrealized losses in cost of fuel

electricity and other products primarily as result of significant decreases in energy prices in the quarter

Includes unrealized gains of $615 million in revenues and $47 million in unrealized losses in cost of fuel electricity and
other products primarily as result of significant decreases in

energy prices in the quarter
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Includes curtailment gain on postretirement
benefits of $32 million and an income tax benefit of $27 million related to

adjustments in the estimated value of the NOLs used to offset the taxable gain in 2007 related to the sale of the

Philippine business

Includes gain of $8 million on the sale of Mirant NY-Gen an impairment of $175 million to reduce the carrying value

of the Lovett facility to its estimated fair value and an after tax gain of $1.3 billion related to the sale of the Philippine

business

Includes gain of $379 million related to the Pepco Settlement Agreement gain of $62 million on the sale of the

Caribbean business and gain of $24 million related to the agreement regarding Wrightsville transmission credits

In the third quarter of 2006 the Company commenced separate auction processes
to sell its Philippine and

Caribbean businesses and six of its U.S natural gas-fired facilities On May 2007 the Company completed the

sale of the six U.S natural gas-fired facilities On June 22 2007 the Company completed the sale of its

Philippine business and on August 2007 the Company completed the sale of its Caribbean business In

addition on May 2007 the Company completed the sale of Mirant NY-Gen The Company reclassified the

related revenues and expenses
of these businesses and assets to discontinued operations in the consolidated

statement of operations

16 Litigation and Other Contingencies

The Company is involved in number of significant legal proceedings In certain cases plaintiffs seek to

recover large and sometimes unspecified damages and some matters may be unresolved for several years The

Company cannot currently determine the outcome of the proceedings
described below or the ultimate amount of

potential losses and therefore has not made any provision for such matters unless specifically noted below

Pursuant to SFAS management provides for estimated losses to the extent information becomes available

indicating that losses are probable and that the amounts are reasonably estimable Additional losses could have

material adverse effect on the Companys consolidated financial position results of operations or cash flows

Environmental Matters

EPA Information Request In January 2001 the EPA issued request for information to Mirant concerning

the implications under the EPAs NSR regulations promulgated under the Clean Air Act of past repair and

maintenance activities at the Potomac River facility in Virginia and the Chalk Point Dickerson and Morgantown

facilities in Maryland The requested
information concerned the period of operations that predates the ownership

and lease of those facilities by Mirant Potomac River Mirant Chalk Point and Mirant Mid-Atlantic Mirant

responded fully to this request Under the APSA Pepco is responsible for fines and penalties arising from any

violation associated with operations prior to the acquisition or lease of the facilities by Mirant Potomac River

Mirant Chalk Point and Mirant Mid-Atlantic If violation is determined to have occurred at any of the facilities

Mirant Potomac River Mirant Chalk Point and Mirant Mid-Atlantic as the owner or lessee of the facility may

be responsible for the cost of purchasing and installing emissions control equipment the cost of which may be

material Mirant Chalk Point and Mirant Mid-Atlantic have installed and are installing variety of emissions

control equipment on the Chalk Point Dickerson and Morgantown facilities in Maryland to comply with the

Maryland Healthy Air Act but that equipment may not include all of the emissions control equipment that could

be required if violation of the EPAs NSR regulations
is determined to have occurred at one or more of those

facilities If such violation is determined to have occurred after the acquisition or lease of the facilities by

Mirant Potomac River Mirant Chalk Point and Mirant Mid-Atlantic or if occurring prior to the acquisition or

lease is determined to constitute continuing violation Mirant Potomac River Mirant Chalk Point or Mirant

Mid-Atlantic could also be subject to fines and penalties by the state or federal government for the period after its

acquisition or lease of the facility at issue the cost of which may be material although applicable bankruptcy law

may bar such liability for periods prior to January 2006 when the Plan became effective for Mirant Potomac

River Mirant Chalk Point and Mirant Mid-Atlantic
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Faulkner Fly Ash Facility By letter dated April 2008 the Environmental Integrity Project and the
Potomac Riverkeeper notified Mirant and various of its subsidiaries that they and certain individuals intend to

file suit alleging that violations of the Clean Water Act are occurring at the Faulkner Fly Ash Facility owned by
Mirant MD Ash Management The April 2008 letter alleges that the Faulkner facility discharges certain

pollutants at levels that exceed Marylands water quality criteria that it discharged certain pollutants without

obtaining an appropriate National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System NPDES permit and that Mirant
MD Ash Management failed to perform monthly monitoring required under an applicable NPDES permit The
letter indicated that the organizations intend to file suit to enjoin the violations alleged to obtain civil penalties
for past violations occurring after January 2006 and to recover attorneys fees Mirant disputes the allegations
of violations of the Clean Water Act made by the two organizations in the April 2008 letter

In late May 2008 the MDE filed complaint in the Circuit Court for Charles County Maryland against
Mirant MD Ash Management and Mirant Mid-Atlantic The complaint alleges violations of Marylands water

pollution laws similar to those asserted in the April 2008 letter from the Environmental Integrity Project and
the Potomac Riverkeeper The MDE complaint requests that the court prohibit continuation of the alleged

unpermitted discharges require Mirant MD Ash Management and Mirant Mid-Atlantic to cease from

disposing of
any further coal combustion byproducts at the Faulkner Fly Ash Facility and close and

cap the

existing disposal cells within one year and assess civil penalties of up to $10000 per day for each violation
The discharges that are the subject of the MDEs complaint result from leachate treatment system installed by
Mirant MD Ash Management in accordance with December 18 2000 Complaint and Consent Order the
December 2000 Consent Order entered by the Maryland Secretary of the Environment Water Management
Administration

pursuant to an agreement between the MDE and Pepco the previous owner of the Faulkner Fly
Ash Facility Mirant MD Ash Management and Mirant Mid-Atlantic on July 23 2008 filed motion seeking
dismissal of the MDE complaint arguing that the discharges are permitted by the December 2000 Consent Order

Mirant Potomac River Wind Screen NOV On December 18 2008 the Virginia DEQ issued an NOV to

Mirant Potomac River asserting that on November 21 2008 and December 10 2008 observations of the
windscreens installed on fencing surrounding the coal pile at the Potomac River facility indicated that the

screening was not properly fastened resulting in potential violation of Virginias Air Pollution Control Law
and regulations The NOV did not seek specific penalty amount but noted that the violations identified could

subject Mirant Potomac River to civil penalties of varying amounts under different provisions of the Virginia
Code including potential civil fine of up to $100000

Notice of Intent to Sue Regarding Chalk Point Emissions Mirant Mirant Mid-Atlantic and Mirant Chalk
Point received letter dated January 22 2009 from the Environmental Integrity Project the Chesapeake Climate
Action Network and an individual

providing notice that they intend to file suit alleging that Mirant Chalk Point
has failed to install controls to limit emissions of particulate matter on two units of the Chalk Point generating
facility that burn residual fuel oil The January 22 2009 letter alleges that the failure to install such controls
violates the Clean Air Act and Maryland environmental regulations The letter states that the organizations intend
to file suit to enjoin the violations alleged to obtain civil penalties for past noncompliance and to recover

attorneys fees Mirant disputes the allegations of violations of the Clean Air Act and Maryland environmental

regulations made by the two organizations in the January 22 2009 letter

New York State Administrative Claims On January 24 2006 the State of New York and the NYSDEC
filed notice of administrative claims in the Companys Chapter 11 proceedings asserting claim seeking to

require the Company to provide funding to its subsidiaries owning generating facilities in New York to satisfy
certain specified environmental compliance obligations citing various then outstanding matters between the
State and the Companys subsidiaries owning generating facilities in New York related to compliance with

environmental laws and regulations On April 12 2008 the State of New York and the NYSDEC filed separate
notice of administrative claims in the bankruptcy proceedings of Mirant New York Mirant Bowline and Mirant
Lovett all of which emerged from bankruptcy in 2007 alleging various potential violations of New York
environmental laws and regulations related to the operation of the Bowline and Lovett generating facilities
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during the period those entities were in bankruptcy Except for the alleged violations described below in Lovett

Coal Ash Management Facility Notice of Hearing and Complaint all of the matters or alleged violations set out

in the January 24 2006 and April 12 2008 administrative claims have now been resolved

Riverkeeper Suit Against Mirant Lovert On March 11 2005 Riverkeeper Inc filed suit against Mirant

Lovett in the United States District Court for the Southern District of New York under the Clean Water Act The

suit alleges that Mirant Lovett failed to implement marine life exclusion system at its Lovett generating facility

and to perform monitoring for the exclusion of certain aquatic organisms from the facilitys cooling water intake

structures in violation of Mirant Lovett water discharge permit issued by the State of New York The plaintiff

requested the court to enjoin Mirant Lovett from continuing to operate the Lovett generating facility in manner

that allegedly violates the Clean Water Act to impose civil penalties of $32500 per day of violation and to

award the plaintiff attorneys fees Mirant Lovetts view is that it has complied with the terms of its water

discharge permit as amended by Consent Order entered June 29 2004 On April 20 2005 the district court

approved stipulation agreed to by the plaintiff and Mirant Lovett that stayed the suit until 60 days after the

entry of the order by the Bankruptcy Court confirming the plan of reorganization for Mirant Lovett became final

and non-appealable which stay expired in late 2007 Mirant Lovett has filed motion seeking dismissal of the

suit on the grounds that it complied with the terms of its water discharge permit the closure of the Lovett

generating facility in April 2008 moots the plaintiffs request for injunctive relief and the discharge in

bankruptcy received by Mirant Lovett in 2007 bars any
claim for penalties

Lovett Coal Ash Management Facility Notice of Hearing and Complaint On April 16 2008 the staff of

the NYSDEC filed complaint with the NYSDEC against Mirant Lovett alleging various violations of New

Yorks Environmental Conservation Law arising from the coal ash management facility CAMF located at the

Lovett generating facility including the alleged discharge of pollutants into the groundwater in excess of allowed

levels The complaint also contends that Mirant Lovett failed to provide an adequate Leachate Assessment

Report related to the CAMF that the NYSDEC staff asserts was required under the terms of Consent Order

dated June 2006 The complaint requests that Mirant Lovett be required to perform various assessments related

to groundwater quality and causes of leachate from the CAMF and seeks assessment of civil penalty of

$200000 and the recovery of $15000 for the portion of penalty imposed under the June 2006 Consent

Order that had been suspended Mirant Lovett disputes the allegations made by the NYSDEC staff in its

complaint and thinks that it has complied with the June 2006 Consent Order

Notices of Intent to Sue for Alleged Violations of the Endangered Species Act Mirant and Mirant Delta

have received two letters one dated September 27 2007 sent on behalf of the Coalition for Sustainable Delta

four water districts and an individual and the second dated October 16 2007 sent on behalf of San Francisco

Baykeeper collectively with the parties sending the September 27 2007 letter the Noticing Parties

providing notice that the Noticing Parties intend to file suit alleging that Mirant Delta has violated and continues

to violate the Federal Endangered Species Act through the operation of its Contra Costa and Pittsburg generating

facilities The Noticing Parties contend that the facilities use of water drawn from the Sacramento-San Joaquin

Delta for cooling purposes
results in harm to four species

of fish listed as endangered species The Noticing

Parties assert that Mirant Deltas authorizations to take i.e cause harm to those species biological opinion

and incidental take statement issued by the National Marine Fisheries Service on October 17 2002 for three of

the fish species and biological opinion and incidental take statement issued by the United States Fish and

Wildlife Service on November 2002 for the fourth fish species have been violated by Mirant Delta and no

longer apply to permit the effects on the four fish species caused by the operation of the Contra Costa and

Pittsburg generating facilities Following receipt of these letters in late October 2007 Mirant Delta received

correspondence
from the United States Fish and Wildlife Service the National Marine Fisheries Service and the

Army Corps of Engineers clarifying that Mirant Delta continued to be authorized to take the four species of fish

protected under the Federal Endangered Species Act The agencies have initiated process that will review the

environmental effects of Mirant Deltas water usage including effects on the protected species of fish That

process
could lead to changes in the manner in which Mirant Delta can use river water for the operation

of the

Contra Costa and Pittsburg generating facilities In subsequent letter the Coalition for Sustainable Delta also
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alleged violations of the National Environmental Policy Act and the California Endangered Species Act

associated with the operation of Mirant Deltas facilities Mirant Delta disputes the allegations made by the

Noticing Parties No lawsuits have been filed to date and San Francisco Baykeeper on February 2008
withdrew its notice of intent to sue

Chapter 11 Proceedings

On July 14 2003 and various dates thereafter Mirant Corporation and certain of its subsidiaries

collectively the Mirant Debtors filed voluntary petitions for relief under Chapter II of the Bankruptcy Code
in the Bankruptcy Court Mirant and most of the Mirant Debtors emerged from bankruptcy on January 2006
when the Plan became effective The remaining Mirant Debtors Mirant New York Mirant Bowline Mirant
Lovett Mirant NY-Gen and Hudson Valley Gas emerged from

bankruptcy on various dates in 2007 As of
December 31 2008 approximately 850000 of the shares of Mirant common stock to be distributed under the

Plan had not yet been distributed and have been reserved for distribution with respect to claims disputed by the

Mirant Debtors that have not been resolved Under the terms of the Plan upon the resolution of such disputed
claim the claimant will receive the same pro rata distributions of Mirant common stock cash or both common
stock and cash as previously allowed claims regardless of the price at which Mirant common stock is trading at

the time the claim is resolved

To the extent the
aggregate amount of the payouts determined to be due with respect to disputed claims

ultimately exceeds the amount of the funded claim reserve Mirant would have to issue additional shares of
common stock to address the shortfall which would dilute existing Mirant stockholders and Mirant and Mirant
Americas Generation would have to pay additional cash amounts as necessary under the terms of the Plan to

satisfy such pre-petition claims If Mirant is required to issue additional shares of common stock to satisfy

unresolved claims certain parties who received approximately 21 million of the 300 million shares of common
stock distributed under the Plan are entitled to receive additional shares of common stock to avoid dilution of
their distributions under the Plan

Actions Pursued by MC Asset Recovery

Under the Plan the rights to certain actions filed by Mirant and various of its subsidiaries against third

parties were transferred to MC Asset Recovery MC Asset Recovery although wholly-owned by Mirant is

governed by managers who are independent of Mirant and its other subsidiaries Under the Plan any cash
recoveries obtained by MC Asset Recovery from the actions transferred to it net of fees and costs incurred in

prosecuting the actions are to be paid to the unsecured creditors of Mirant Corporation in the Chapter 11

proceedings and the holders of the equity interests in Mirant
immediately prior to the effective date of the Plan

except where such
recovery results in an allowed claim in the bankruptcy proceedings as described below

Mirant may not reduce such payments for the taxes owed on any net recoveries up to $175 million If the

aggregate recoveries exceed $175 million net of costs then Mirant may reduce the payments to be made to such
unsecured creditors and former holders of equity interests under the Plan by the amount of any taxes it will owe
on the amount in excess of $175 million Mirant also is obligated to make contributions to MC Asset Recovery as

necessary to pay professional fees and certain other costs reasonably incurred by MC Asset Recovery including
expert witness fees and other costs of the actions transferred to MC Asset Recovery In June 2008 Mirant and
MC Asset Recovery with the approval of the Bankruptcy Court agreed to limit the total amount of funding to be

provided by Mirant to MC Asset Recovery to $67.8 million and the amount of such funding obligation not yet
incurred by Mirant has been fully accrued Mirant is entitled to be repaid the amounts it funds from any
recoveries obtained by MC Asset Recovery before any distribution is made from such recoveries to the

unsecured creditors of Mirant Corporation or the holders of the equity interests in Mirant immediately prior to

the effective date of the Plan Most of the actions transferred to MC Asset Recovery remain pending and through
December 31 2008 those actions had not resulted in recoveries in excess of the fees and costs incurred by MC
Asset Recovery
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Certain of the actions transferred to MC Asset Recovery seek to recover damages for fraudulent transfers

that occurred prior to the filing of Mirants bankruptcy proceedings
Each of those actions alleges that the

defendants engaged in transactions with Mirant or its subsidiaries at time when they were insolvent or were

rendered insolvent by the resulting transfers and that they did not receive fair value for those transfers If MC

Asset Recovery succeeds in obtaining any
recoveries on these avoidance claims transferred to it the party or

parties from which such recoveries are obtained could seek to file claims in Mirants bankruptcy proceedings

Mirant would vigorously contest any such claims on the grounds that among other things the avoidance claims

being pursued by MC Asset Recovery seek to recover only amounts received by third parties in excess of fair

value and that the recovery
of such amounts does not reinstate any

enforceable pre-petition obligation that could

give rise to claim If such claim were to be allowed by the Bankruptcy Court as result of recovery by MC

Asset Recovery then the party receiving the claim would be entitled to either Mirant common stock or such

stock and cash as provided under the Plan Under such circumstances the order entered by the Bankruptcy Court

on December 2005 confirming the Plan provides
that Mirant would retain from the net amount recovered an

amount equal to the dollar amount of the resulting allowed claim rather than distribute such amount to the

creditors and former equity holders as described above

California and Western Power Markets

FERC Refund Proceedings Arising Out of California Energy Crisis High prices experienced in California

and western wholesale electricity markets in 2000 and 2001 caused various purchasers of electricity in those

markets to initiate proceedings seeking refunds Several of those proceedings
remain pending either before the

FERC or on appeal to the United States Court of Appeals for the Ninth Circuit the Ninth Circuit The

proceedings that remain pending include proceedings ordered by the FERC on July 25 2001 the FERC

Refund Proceedings to determine the amount of any refunds and amounts owed for sales made by market

participants including Mirant Americas Energy Marketing in the CAISO or the Cal PX markets from October

2000 through June 20 2001 the Refund Period ordered by the FERC to determine whether there had

been unjust and unreasonable charges for spot market bilateral sales in the Pacific Northwest from December 25

2000 through June 20 2001 the Pacific Northwest Proceeding and arising from complaint filed in 2002

by the California Attorney General that sought refunds for transactions conducted in markets administered by the

CAISO and the Cal PX outside the Refund Period set by the FERC and for transactions between the DWR and

various owners of generation and power marketers including Mirant Americas Energy Marketing and

subsidiaries of Mirant Americas Generation Various parties appealed the FERC orders related to these

proceedings to the Ninth Circuit seeking review of number of issues including changing the Refund Period to

include periods prior to October 2000 and expanding the sales of electricity subject to potential refund to

include bilateral sales made to the DWR and other parties While various of these appeals remain pending the

Ninth Circuit ruled in orders issued on August 2006 and September 2004 that the FERC should consider

further whether to grant relief for sales of electricity made in the CAISO and Cal PX markets prior to October

2000 at rates found to be unjust and in the proceeding initiated by the California Attorney General what

remedies including potential refunds are appropriate where entities including Mirant Americas Energy

Marketing purportedly did not comply with certain filing requirements for transactions conducted under market-

based rate tariffs

On January 14 2005 Mirant and certain of its subsidiaries the Mirant Settling Parties entered into

Settlement and Release of Claims Agreement the California Settlement with PGE Southern California

Edison Company San Diego Gas and Electric Company the CPUC the DWR the EOB and the Attorney

General of the State of California collectively the California Parties The California Settlement was approved

by the FERC on April 13 2005 and became effective on April 15 2005 upon its approval by the Bankruptcy

Court The California Settlement resulted in the release of most of Mirant Americas Energy Marketings

potential liability in the FERC Refund Proceedings for sales made in the CAISO or the Cal PX markets in

the Pacific Northwest Proceeding and in any proceedings
at the FERC resulting from the complaint filed in

2002 by the California Attorney General Based on the California Settlement on April 15 2008 the FERC

dismissed Mirant Americas Energy Marketing and the other subsidiaries of the Company from the proceeding

initiated by the complaint filed in 2002 by the California Attorney General
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Under the California Settlement the California Parties and those other market participants who have opted
into the settlement have released the Mirant Settling Parties including Mirant Americas Energy Marketing from

any liability for refunds related to sales of electricity and natural gas in the western markets from January
1998 through July 14 2003 Also the California Parties have assumed the obligation of Mirant Americas
Energy Marketing to pay any refunds determined by the FERC to be owed by Mirant Americas Energy
Marketing to other parties that do not opt into the settlement for transactions in the CAISO and Cal PX markets

during the Refund Period with the liability of the California Parties for such refund obligation limited to the

amount of certain receivables assigned by Mirant Americas Energy Marketing to the California Parties under the

California Settlement The settlement did not relieve Mirant Americas Energy Marketing of liability for any
refunds that the FERC determines it to owe to participants in the Cal PX and CAISO markets that are not
California Parties or that did not elect to opt into the settlement for periods outside the Refund Period and to

participants in bilateral transactions with Mirant Americas Energy Marketing that are not California Parties or
that did not elect to opt into the settlement

Resolution of the refund proceedings that remain pending before the FERC or that currently are on appeal to

the Ninth Circuit could ultimately result in the FERC concluding that the prices received by Mirant Americas
Energy Marketing in some transactions occurring in 2000 and 2001 should be reduced The Companys view is

that the bulk of any obligations of Mirant Americas Energy Marketing to make refunds as result of sales

completed prior to July 14 2003 in the CAISO or Cal PX markets or in bilateral transactions either have been
addressed by the California Settlement or have been resolved as part of Mirant Americas Energy Marketings
bankruptcy proceedings To the extent that Mirant Americas Energy Marketings potential refund liability arises

from contracts that were transferred to Mirant Energy Trading as part of the transfer of the trading and marketing
business under the Plan Mirant Energy Trading may have exposure to any refund liability related to transactions
under those contracts

FERC Show Cause Proceeding Relating to Trading Practices On June 25 2003 the FERC issued show
cause order the Trading Practices Order to more than 50 parties including Mirant Americas Energy
Marketing and subsidiaries of Mirant Americas Generation The Trading Practices Order identified certain

specific trading practices that the FERC indicated could constitute gaming or anomalous market behavior in

violation of the CAISO and Cal PX tariffs and required sellers previously involved in transactions of those types
to demonstrate why such transactions were not violations of the CAISO and Cal PX tariffs On September 30
2003 and December 19 2003 the Mirant entities filed with the FERC for approval of settlement agreement
the Trading Settlement Agreement entered into between certain Mirant entities and the FERC Trial Staff and
an amendment to that agreement under which Mirant Americas Energy Marketing would pay $332411 and the
FERC would have an allowed unsecured claim in Mirant Americas Energy Marketings bankruptcy proceeding
for $3.67 million to settle the show cause proceeding The FERC approved the Trading Settlement Agreement as

amended on June 27 2005 and the Bankruptcy Court approved it on August 24 2005 Certain parties filed

motions for rehearing with the FERC which it denied on October 11 2006 party to the proceeding appealed
the FERCs June 27 2005 order to the Ninth Circuit In December 2008 the Ninth Circuit entered an order

granting that partys request to voluntarily dismiss its appeal which dismissal caused the Trading Settlement

Agreement to become effective

Mirant Americas Energy Marketing Contract Dispute with Southern California Water On December 21
2001 Southern California Water Company filed complaint at the FERC seeking reformation of the purchase
price of

energy under long-term contract it had entered with Mirant Americas Energy Marketing claiming that

the prices under that contract were unjust and unreasonable because when it entered the contract western power
markets were dysfunctional and non-competitive The contract was for the purchase of 15 MWs during the period
April 2001 through December 31 2006 On June 25 2003 the FERC dismissed this proceeding Southern
California Water appealed that dismissal to the United States Court of Appeals for the Ninth Circuit which on
December 19 2006 reversed the dismissal of the complaint and number of other similarcomplaints and
remanded the proceedings to the FERC On June 26 2008 the United States Supreme Court affirmed the remand
of the Southern California Water

proceeding and the other similarproceedings to the FERC concluding that the
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FERC should analyze further whether the contracts at issue imposed an excessive burden on consumers in the

later periods covered by the contracts not just at their outset and whether any of the sellers engaged in

unlawful market manipulation which the Court concluded would remove the premise underlying the FERC

dismissal of the complaints that the rates agreed to in the contracts were based on fair arms length negotiations

On December 18 2008 the FERC issued an order on remand providing for the record to be supplemented

through further written filings by the parties regarding the specific issues raised by the ruling entered by the

United States Supreme Court Upon the transfer of the assets of the trading and marketing business to Mirant

Energy Trading under the Plan Mirant Energy Trading assumed Mirant Americas Energy Marketings contract

obligations to Southern California Water Company including any potential
refund obligations

Maryland Public Service Commission Complaint to the FERC re PJM Offer Capping Rules

In certain market conditions such as where congestion requires the dispatch of generating facility that bid

higher price for electricity than other available generating facilities PJM market rules the Offer Capping

Rules limit the amount that the owner of generating facility may bid to sell electricity from that facility to its

incremental cost to produce that electricity As approved by the FERC the Offer Capping Rules contain

exemptions for generating
facilities entering service during certain years none of which are owned by the

Company and for generating
facilities some of which are owned by the Company that can relieve congestion

arising at certain defined transmission interfaces On January 15 2008 the Maryland Public Service Commission

the MD PSC filed complaint with the FERC requesting that the FERC remove all exemptions to the Offer

Capping Rules during hours when the PJM market reflects potentially non-competitive conditions as determined

by the PJM Market Monitor

The complaint alleges that these exemptions to the Offer Capping Rules likely result in higher market clearing

prices for electricity in PJM and higher revenues to the Company and other owners of generation
that are selling

electricity during the periods when the exemptions prevent the application of the Offer Capping Rules to one or more

generating
facilities The MD PSC requested that the FERC require recalculation of prices in the PJM energy

markets

without application of the exemptions to the Offer Capping Rules for each day from January 15 2008 through the date

that the Commission grants the requested relief and that it require owners of generation to refund any revenues

received in excess of the amounts that would have been received had the exemptions not been applied

In addition the MD PSC alleged that PJM violated its tariff by not publicly disclosing since mid 2006

quarterly analyses performed by the PJM Market Monitor of the potential for the exercise of market power by

owners of generation during periods when market conditions caused the exemptions to the Offer Capping Rules

to apply The MD PSC requested the FERC to initiate an investigation of whether owners of generation
exercised

market power during such periods and if so to order refunds beginning as of September 2006 or the first date

that the FERC determines that PJM violated its tariff

On May 16 2008 the FERC issued an order eliminating the exemptions to the Offer Capping Rules

challenged by the MD PSC in its complaint denying the MD PSCs request for refunds and establishing

proceeding to examine what test should be applied to determine whether generator should be exempted from

the Offer Capping Rules because of lack of market power in circumstances where transmission constraints

require the dispatch of higher priced generating facility in lieu of available lower priced generation
coalition

of electricity generators
of which the Company is member filed request for rehearing On December 18

2008 the FERC issued an order denying all requests for rehearing

Complaint Challenging Capacity Rates Under the RPM Provisions of PJMs Tariff

On May 30 2008 variety of parties including the state public utility commissions of Maryland

Pennsylvania New Jersey and Delaware ratepayer advocates certain electric cooperatives various groups

representing industrial electricity users and federal agencies the RPM Buyers filed complaint with the

FERC asserting that capacity auctions held to determine capacity payments under PJMs reliability pricing model
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RPM tariff had produced rates that were unjust and unreasonable PJM conducted the capacity auctions that

are the subject of the complaint to set the capacity payments in effect under the RPM provisions of PJMs tariff

for twelve month periods beginning June 2008 June 2009 and June 2010 The RPM Buyers allege that

the time between when the auctions were held and the periods that the resulting capacity rates would be in

effect were too short to allow competition from new resources in the auctions ii the administrative process
established under the RPM provisions of PJMs tariff was inadequate to restrain the exercise of market power
through the withholding of capacity to increase prices and iiithe locational pricing established under the RPM
provisions of PJMs tariff created opportunities for sellers to raise prices while serving no legitimate function

The RPM Buyers asked the FERC to reduce significantly the capacity rates established by the capacity auctions

and to set June 2008 as the date beginning on which any rates found by the FERC to be excessive would be

subject to refund If the FERC were to reduce the capacity payments set through the capacity auctions to the rates

proposed by the RPM Buyers the capacity revenue the Company expects to receive for the periods June 2008

through May 31 2011 would be reduced by approximately $600 million On September 19 2008 the FERC
issued an order dismissing the complaint The FERC found that no party had violated the RPM provisions of
PJMs tariff and that the prices determined during the auctions were in accordance with the tariffs provisions
The RPM Buyers have filed request for rehearing

Stockholder-Bondholder Litigation

Mirant Securities Consolidated Action Twenty lawsuits filed in 2002 against Mirant and four of its

officers have been consolidated into single action In re Mirant Corporation Securities Litigation before the

United States District Court for the Northern District of Georgia In their original complaints the plaintiffs

alleged among other things that the defendants violated federal securities laws by making material

misrepresentations and omissions to the investing public regarding Mirants business operations and future

prospects during the period from January 19 2001 through May 2002 because of potential liabilities
arising

out of its activities in California during 2000 and 2001 The plaintiffs sought unspecified damages including

compensatory damages and the recovery of reasonable attorneys fees and costs

In November 2002 the plaintiffs filed an amended complaint that added as defendants the Southern

Company Southern the directors of Mirant immediately prior to its initial public offering of stock and
various firms that were underwriters for the initial public offering by the Company In addition to the claims set

out in the original complaint the amended complaint asserted claims under the Securities Act alleging that the

registration statement and prospectus for the initial public offering in 2000 of Mirants old common stock
cancelled under the Plan misrepresented and omitted material facts On December 11 2003 the plaintiffs filed

proof of claim against Mirant in the Chapter 11 proceedings but they subsequently withdrew their claim in

October 2004 On August 29 2005 the district court at the request of the plaintiffs dismissed Mirant as

defendant in this action On August 2008 the district court addressed various pending motions to dismiss filed

by the remaining defendants by requiring the plaintiffs to submit an amended complaint within thirty days after

which the defendants could refile their motions to dismiss The plaintiffs filed second amended complaint on

September 2008 and the defendants filed motions seeking dismissal of that amended complaint On January
2009 the district court dismissed the complaint with prejudice and that dismissal was not appealed and has
become final

Other Legal Matters

The Company is involved in various other claims and legal actions arising in the ordinary course of
business In the opinion of management the ultimate disposition of these matters will not have material adverse
effect on the Companys financial position results of operations or cash flows
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17 Settlements and Other Charges

Pepco Litigation

In 2000 Mirant purchased power generating facilities and other assets from Pepco including certain PPAs

between Pepco and third parties Under the terms of the APSA Mirant and Pepco entered into the Back-to-Back

Agreement with respect to certain PPAs including Pepcos long-term
PPA with Panda-Brandywine LP under

which Pepco agreed to resell to Mirant all capacity energy ancillary services and other benefits to which it

was entitled under those agreements and Mirant agreed to pay Pepco each month all amounts due from Pepco

to the sellers under those agreements for the immediately preceding month associated with such capacity energy

ancillary services and other benefits The Back-to-Back Agreement which did not expire until 2021 obligated

Mirant to purchase power from Pepco at prices that typically were higher than the market prices for power

In the bankruptcy proceedings the Mirant Debtors sought to reject the Back-to-Back Agreement or to

recharacterize it as pre-petition debt which efforts if successful would have resulted in the Mirant Debtors

having no further obligation to perform and in Pepco receiving claim in the bankruptcy proceedings
for its

resulting damages Pending final determination of the Mirant Debtors ability to reject or recharacterize the

Back-to-Back Agreement and certain other agreements
with Pepco the Plan provided that the Mirant Debtors

obligations under the APSA and the Back-to-Back Agreement were interim obligations of Mirant Power

Purchase and were unconditionally guaranteed by Mirant

On May 30 2006 Mirant and various of its subsidiaries collectively the Mirant Settling Parties entered

into the Settlement Agreement the Pepco Settlement Agreement with Pepco and various of its affiliates

collectively the Pepco Settling Parties The Pepco Settlement Agreement could not become effective until it

had been approved by the Bankruptcy Court and that approval
order had become final order no longer subject

to appeal The Bankruptcy Court entered an order approving the Pepco Settlement Agreement on August 2006

That order was appealed but the appeal was dismissed by agreement of the parties in August 2007 and the

Pepco Settlement Agreement became effective August 10 2007 The Pepco Settlement Agreement fully resolved

the contract rejection motions that remained pending in the bankruptcy proceedings as well as other matters

disputed between Pepco and Mirant and its subsidiaries Under the Pepco Settlement Agreement Mirant Power

Purchase assumed the remaining obligations under the APSA and Mirant has guaranteed its performance The

Back-to-Back Agreement was rejected and terminated effective as of May 31 2006

The Pepco Settlement Agreement granted Pepco claim against Old Mirant in Old Mirants bankruptcy

proceedings that was to result in Pepco receiving common stock of Mirant and cash having value after

liquidation of the stock by Pepco equal to $520 million Shortly after the Pepco Settlement Agreement became

effective Mirant distributed approximately 14 million shares of Mirant common stock from the shares reserved

for disputed claims under the Plan to Pepco to satisfy its claim The Mirant shares in the share reserve including

the shares distributed to Pepco have been treated as issued and outstanding since Mirant emerged from

bankruptcy Pepco liquidation of those shares resulted in net proceeds
of approximately

$522 million and

Pepco paid Mirant the amount in excess of $520 million Pepco also refunded to Mirant Power Purchase

approximately $36 million Pepco had received under the Back-to-Back Agreement for energy capacity or other

services delivered after May 31 2006 through the date the Pepco Settlement Agreement became effective The

appeal of the Bankruptcy Courts August 2006 approval order had resulted in Mirant paying Pepco $70

million under the terms of the Pepco Settlement Agreement shortly after the appeal was filed Pepco repaid the

$70 million once the Pepco Settlement Agreement became fully effective

Upon the distribution of the shares to Pepco Mirant recognized gain of $379 million in the third quarter
of

2007 The gain included $341 million representing the fair value of the derivative contract liability that was

reversed as result of the rejection of the Back-to-Back Agreement $36 million refunded by Pepco for

payments made under the Back-to-Back Agreement for periods after May 31 2006 and $2 million for the
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excess payment Pepco received from liquidation of the shares that were distributed to it The $341 million and $2
million were included in other income net and the $36 million was included in gross margin in the consolidated
statement of operations for the year ended December 31 2007

New York Tax Proceedings

Mirant New York Mirant Bowline Mirant Lovett and Hudson Valley Gas collectively the New York
Companies were the petitioners in various proceedings the Tax Certiorari Proceedings initially brought in

the New York state courts challenging the assessed values determined by local taxing authorities for the Bowline
and Lovett generating facilities and natural gas pipeline the HVG Property owned by Hudson Valley Gas
Mirant Bowline had challenged the assessed value of the Bowline generating facility and the resulting local tax
assessments for tax years 1995 through 2006 Mirant Bowline succeeded to rights held by Orange and Rockland
for the tax years prior to its acquisition of the Bowline facility in 1999 under its agreement with Orange and
Rockland for the purchase of that facility Mirant Lovett had challenged the assessed value of the Lovett facility
for each of the years 2000 through 2006 Hudson Valley Gas had challenged the assessed value of the HVG
Property for each of the years 2004 through 2006 As of December 31 2006 Mirant Bowline and Mirant Lovett
had not paid property taxes on the Bowline and Lovett generating facilities that fell due in the period from

September 30 2003 through December 31 2006 in order to preserve their respective rights to offset the

overpayments of taxes made in earlier years against the sums payable on account of current taxes Hudson Valley
Gas had not paid property taxes that fell due in the period from September 30 2004 through December 31 2006

On December 13 2006 Mirant and the New York Companies entered into settlement agreement the Tax
Settlement Agreement with the Town of Haverstraw Haverstraw the Town of Stony Point Stony Point
the Haverstraw-Stony Point Central School District the School District the County of Rockland the
County the Village of Haverstraw Haverstraw Village and the Village of West Haverstraw West
Haverstraw Village and collectively with Haverstraw Stony Point the School District the County and
Haverstraw Village the Tax Jurisdictions The Tax Settlement Agreement was approved by the Bankruptcy
Court on December 14 2006 and resolved all pending disputes regarding real

property taxes between the New
York Companies and the Tax Jurisdictions Under the agreement the New York Companies received total

refunds of $163 million from the Tax Jurisdictions and paid unpaid but accrued taxes to the Tax Jurisdictions of
$1 15 million resulting in the New York Companies receiving net cash payment in the amount of $48 million
The refunds and unpaid taxes were paid in February 2007 The $163 million of total refunds received by the New
York Companies was recognized as gain in the financial statements in the fourth

quarter of 2006 In addition
the New York Companies had previously accrued liability based upon the unpaid taxes as billed by the Tax
Jurisdictions As result of the reductions of the unpaid taxes that occurred pursuant to the terms of the Tax
Settlement Agreement the New York Companies also recognized in the fourth quarter of 2006 reduction of

operating expenses of approximately $23 million related to 2006 and gain of
approximately $71 million related

to prior periods

California Settlement

The California Settlement described in Note 16 in California and Western Power MarketsFERC Refund
Proceedings Arising Out of California Energy Crisis included provision that either the partially constructed
Contra Costa project which was planned 530 MW combined cycle generating facility and related equipment
collectively the CC8 Assets were to be transferred to PGE or PGE would receive additional
alternative consideration of $70 million the CC8 Alternative Consideration To fund the CC8 Alternative

Consideration PGE received an allowed unsecured claim in the bankruptcy proceedings against Mirant Delta
that resulted in distribution to PGE of cash and Mirant common stock with an aggregate value of

approximately $70 million PGE was required to liquidate the common stock received as part of that

distribution and place the net resulting amount plus any cash received into an escrow account
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The California Settlement provided that if the transfer of the CC8 Assets to PGE did not occur on or

before June 30 2008 then the CC8 Alternative Consideration was to be paid to PGE and the Mirant Settling

Parties would retain the CC8 Assets If PGE closed on its acquisition of the CC8 Assets the funds in the

escrow account were to be paid to Mirant Delta The transfer of the CC8 Assets to PGE was completed on

November 28 2006 and the $70 million escrow account was paid to Mirant Delta The Company recognized in

the fourth quarter
of 2006 gain of $27 million for the amount by which the escrow account exceeded the

carrying amount of the CC8 Assets The gain was included in other income in the Companys consolidated

statements of operations

Potomac River Settlement

On June 2007 the Virginia DEQ at the direction of the Virginia State Air Pollution Control Board

issued state operating permit for the Potomac River generating facility that significantly restricted the facilitys

operations by imposing stringent limits on its S02 emissions and constraining unit operations so that no more

than three of the facilitys five units could operate at one time On November 30 2007 the Virginia State Air

Pollution Control Board directed the Virginia DEQ to develop an altemative and more comprehensive state

operating permit that would allow completion of proposed project to merge the stacks of certain of the units at

the Potomac River facility set SO2 emissions limits for the facility and allow for greater operating flexibility In

July 2008 the City of Alexandria Virginia in which the Potomac River generating facility is located and

Mirant Potomac River entered into an agreement containing certain terms that were included in proposed

comprehensive state operating permit for the Potomac River generating facility issued by the Virginia DEQ that

month Under that agreement Mirant Potomac River committed to spend $34 million over several years to

reduce particulate
emissions The $34 million was placed in escrow and is included in funds on deposit and other

noncurrent assets in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets and in the Companys estimated capital

expenditures On July 30 2008 the Virginia State Air Pollution Control Board approved the comprehensive

permit with terms consistent with the agreement between Mirant Potomac and the City of Alexandria and the

Virginia DEQ issued the permit on July 31 2008

Prior to the issuance of the comprehensive state operating permit in July 2008 the Potomac River

generating facility operated under state operating permit issued June 2007 that significantly restricted the

facilitys operations by imposing stringent limits on its S02 emissions and constraining unit operations so that no

more than three of the facilitys five units could operate at one time In compliance with the comprehensive

permit in 2008 the Company merged the stacks for units and into one stack at the Potomac River

generating facility and in January 2009 the Company merged the stacks for units and into one stack With

the completion of the stack combinations the permit issued in July 2008 will not constrain operations of the

Potomac River generating facility below historical operations and will allow operation of all five units at one

time Certain provisions
of Virginias air emissions regulations adopted to implement the CAIR however could

constrain the facilitys operations Mirant Potomac River has challenged those regulations in court
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Item Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure

None

Item 9A Controls and Procedures

Inherent Limitations in Control Systems

control system no matter how well conceived and operated can provide only reasonable not absolute

assurance that the objectives of the control system are met Further the design of control system must reflect

the fact that there are resource constraints and the benefits of controls must be considered relative to their costs

Because of the inherent limitations in all control systems no evaluation of controls can provide absolute

assurance that all control issues and instances of fraud if any within the Company have been detected These

inherent limitations include the realities that judgments in decision-making can be faulty and that breakdowns

can occur because of simple error or mistake Additionally controls can be circumvented by the individual acts

of some persons by collusion of two or more people or by management override of the control The design of

any system
of controls also is based in part upon certain assumptions about the likelihood of future events and

there can be no assurance that any design will succeed in achieving its stated goals under all potential future

conditions Over time controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions or the degree of

compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate Because of the inherent limitations in cost-

effective control system misstatements resulting from error or fraud may occur and not be detected As result

our management including the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer does not expect that our

disclosure controls and procedures or our internal control over financial reporting will prevent
all error and all

fraud

Effectiveness of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

As required by Exchange Act Rule 13a-15b our management including our Chief Executive Officer and

our Chief Financial Officer conducted an assessment of the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and

procedures as defined by Rules 3a- 15e and 15d- 15e under the Exchange Act as of December 31 2008

Based upon this assessment our management concluded that as of December 31 2008 these disclosure controls

and procedures were effective

Appearing as exhibits to this annual report are the certifications of the Chief Executive Officer and the Chief

Financial Officer required in accordance with Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

Managements Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

Our management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial

reporting as defined by Rules 13a-l5f under the Exchange Act The Companys internal control framework

and processes
have been designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting

and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with United States generally

accepted accounting principles Internal control over financial reporting includes those processes
and procedures

that

pertain to the maintenance of records that in reasonable detail accurately and fairly reflect the

transactions and dispositions
of the assets of the Company

provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded properly to allow for the preparation of

financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and that receipts and

expenditures of the Company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management

and directors of the Company
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provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition use
or disposition of the Companys assets that could have material effect on the consolidated financial

statements and

provide reasonable assurance as to the detection of fraud

Under the supervision and with the participation of our management including our Chief Executive Officer

and our Chief Financial Officer we carried out an assessment of the effectiveness of our internal control over

financial reporting as of December 31 2008 In conducting our assessment management utilized the criteria set

forth by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission in Internal Control
Inte grated Framework Based on this assessment management concluded that our internal control over financial

reporting was effective as of December 31 2008

Our independent registered public accounting firm KPMG LLP has issued reports on their assessment of

internal control over financial reporting and our consolidated financial statements KPMG LLPs reports can be

found on pages F-i and F-2 Our audit committee appoints retains oversees evaluates compensates and

terminates on its sole authority our independent auditors and approves all audit engagements including the

scope fees and terms of each engagement The audit committees oversight process is intended to ensure that we
will continue to have high-quality cost-efficient independent auditing services

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting

During the quarter ended December 31 2008 there were no changes in Mirant internal control over

financial reporting or in other factors that could materially affect or is reasonably likely to affect such internal

controls over financial reporting

Item 9B Other Information

None
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PART III

Item 10 Directors and Executive Officers of the Registrant

The information required by this Item will be set forth in our definitive Proxy Statement for our 2009

Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be filed on or before March 27 2009 and is incorporated herein by

reference

Item 11 Executive Compensation

The information required by this Item will be set forth in our definitive Proxy Statement for our 2009

Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be filed on or before March 27 2009 and is incorporated herein by

reference

Item 12 Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder

Matters

The information required by this Item will be set forth in our definitive Proxy Statement for our 2009

Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be filed on or before March 27 2009 and is incorporated herein by

reference

Item 13 Certain Relationships and Related Transactions

The information required by this Item will be set forth in our definitive Proxy Statement for our 2009

Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be filed on or before March 27 2009 and is incorporated herein by

reference

Item 14 Principal Accountant Fees and Services

The information required by this Item will be set forth in our definitive Proxy Statement for our 2009

Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be filed on or before March 27 2009 and is incorporated herein by

reference
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PART IV

Item 15 Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules

Financial Statements

Our consolidated financial statements including the notes thereto and independent auditors report thereon

are set forth on pages F-I through F-63 of the Annual Report on Form 10-K and are incorporated herein by
reference

Financial Statement Schedules

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors and Stockholders

Mirant Corporation and subsidiaries

We have audited and reported separately herein on the consolidated financial statements of Mirant

Corporation and subsidiaries the Company as of December 31 2008 and 2007 and the related consolidated

statements of operations stockholders equity deficit comprehensive income and cash flows for each of the

years in the three-year period ended December 31 2008 In connection with our audits of the aforementioned

consolidated financial statements we also audited the related financial statement schedules as listed within

Item 15 These financial statement schedules are the responsibility of the Companys management Our

responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statement schedules based on our audits

In our opinion such financial statement schedules when considered in relation to the basic consolidated

financial statements taken as whole present fairly in all material
respects the information set forth therein

As discussed in Note to the consolidated financial statements the Company adopted Statement of

Financial Accounting Standards No 157 Fair Value Measurements the measurement provisions of Statement of

Financial Accounting Standards No 158 Employers Accounting for Defined Benefit and Other Postretirement

Plans and FASB Staff Position FIN 39-1 Amendment of FASB Interpretation No 39 in 2008 As discussed in

Note to the consolidated financial statements the Company adopted FASB Interpretation No 48 Accounting

for Uncertainty in Income Taxes in 2007

Is KPMG LLP

Atlanta Georgia

February 26 2009
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Schedule

MIRANT CORPORATION PARENT
CONDENSED FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF REGISTRANT

CONDENSED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

For the Years Ended December 31

2008 2007 2006

in millions

Operating income loss 18

Other Expense Income net

Equity earnings of subsidiaries 1161 2636 1145

Interest expense-affiliate
24 48

Interest income-nonaffiliate 53 142 28

Interest income-affiliate
14

Other net

Total other expense income net 1215 2759 1143

Income from continuing operations before income taxes 1233 2756 1140

Provision benefit for income taxes
554

Income from continuing operations
1230 2751 1694

Income loss from discontinued operations net 35 756 170

Net income 1265 $1995 1864
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Schedule

MIRANT CORPORATION PARENT
CONDENSED FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF REGISTRANT

CONDENSED BALANCE SHEETS

At December 31

2008 2007

in millions

ASSETS

Current Assets

Cash and cash equivalents 1461 4231
Notes receivables-affiliate

81 41

Other
12

Total current assets 1554 4275

Noncurrent Assets

Investments in affiliates 2199 1198
Other 24

Total noncurrent assets 2223 1199

Total Assets 3777 5474

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS EQUITY
Current Liabilities

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 13 43

Payable to affiliates
121

Total current liabilities
15 164

Commitments and Contingencies

Stockholders Equity

Preferred stock par value $.01 per share authorized 100000000 shares no shares issued at

December 31 2008 and 2007

Common stock par value $.01 per share authorized 1.5 billion shares issued 310666240
and 301196073 at December 31 2008 and 2007 respectively and outstanding

144629446 shares and 221811972 at December 31 2008 and 2007 respectively

Treasury stock at cost 166036794 shares and 79384101 shares at December 31 2008

and 2007 respectively 5330 2586
Additional paid-in capital 11401 11357
Accumulated deficit 2222 3486
Accumulated other comprehensive income loss 90 22

Total stockholders equity 3762 5310

Total Liabilities and Stockholders Equity 3777 5474
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Schedule

MIRANT CORPORATION PARENT
CONDENSED FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF REGISTRANT

CONDENSED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

For the Years Ended

December 31

2008 2007 2006

in millions

Cash Flows from Operating Activities

Net income 1265 1995 1864

Income loss from discontinued operations
35 756 170

Income from continuing operations 1230 2751 1694

Adjustments to reconcile net income from continuing operations to net cash

provided by operating activities

Equity earnings of subsidiaries 1161 2636 1145

Cash dividends received from subsidiaries 301 5147 542

Deferred income taxes 551

Other net
20 81

Total adjustments
869 2531 1073

Net cash provided by operating activities 361 5282 621

Cash Flows from Investing Activities

Repayments issuance of notes receivables-affiliate 40 36

Net cash used in investing activities 40 36
Cash Flows from Financing Activities

Share repurchases
2761 1308 1261

Capital contributions to subsidiaries 317 93 68

Issuance repayment of debt-affiliate 31 715

Other
18 12

Net cash used in financing activities 3091 1381 612

Net Increase Decrease in Cash and Cash Equivalents 2770 3865 16

Cash and Cash Equivalents beginning of period 4231 366 350

Cash and Cash Equivalents end of period $1461 4231 366
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Schedule

MIRANT CORPORATION PARENT
CONDENSED FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF REGISTRANT

NOTES TO REGISTRANTS CONDENSED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Background and Basis of Presentation

The condensed parent company financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Rule 12-04

Schedule of Regulation S-X as the restricted net assets of Mirant Corporations subsidiaries exceed 25 percent

of the consolidated net assets of Mirant Corporation These statements should be read in conjunction with the

consolidated statements and notes thereto of Mirant Corporation

Mirant Corporation is holding company that was incorporated in Delaware on September 23 2005
Pursuant to the Plan for Mirant and certain of its subsidiaries on January 2006 New Mirant emerged from

bankruptcy and acquired substantially all of the assets of Old Mirant corporation that was formed in Delaware

on April 1993 and that had been named Mirant Corporation prior to January 2006 The Plan provides that

New Mirant has no successor liability for any unassumed obligations of Old Mirant Old Mirant was then

renamed and transferred to trust which is not affiliated with New Mirant

Equity earnings of subsidiaries consists of earnings of direct subsidiaries of Mirant Corporation parent
which includes earnings of subsidiaries whose operations were classified as discontinued operations in the

consolidated financial statements of Mirant Corporation

Income loss from discontinued operations net includes discontinued operations activity for only Mirant

Corporation parent which is primarily related to deferred taxes stemming from discontinued operations and

parent level consolidation entries related to intercompany transactions

Commitments and Contingencies

As of December 31 2008 the parent company had $11 million of guarantees which are included in Note

0Commitments and ContingenciesGuarantees

See Note 16Litigation and Other Contingencies for detailed discussion of Mirant Corporations

contingencies
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Schedule II

MIRANT CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS

As of December 31 2008 2007 and 2006

Additions

Balance at Charged Charged to Balance at

Beginning to Other End of

Description
of Period Income Accounts Deductions Period

in millions

Provision for uncollectible accounts current

2008 $12 $13

2007 75 11 77 12

2006 84 15 24 75

Provision for uncollectible accounts noncurrent

2008 $41 $42

2007 24 15
2006 72 14 24 86 24
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Exhibit 4.14a hereto Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4.6b to the Mirant Mid
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Form S-4 Registration No 333-61668
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4.17b Schedule identifying substantially identical agreements to Indenture of Trust Mortgage and
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Director
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EXHIBIT 31.1

Edward Muller certify that

have reviewed this Form 10-K for the year ended December 31 2008 of Mirant Corporation

Based on my knowledge this report does not contain any untrue statement of material fact or omit to state

material fact necessary to make the statements made in light of the circumstances under which such

statements were made not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report

Based on my knowledge the financial statements and other financial information included in this report

fairly present in all material respects the financial condition results of operations and cash flows of the

registrant as of and for the periods presented in this report

The registrants other certifying officers and are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure

controls and procedures as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15e and 15d-15e and internal control

over financial reporting as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15f and 15d-15f for the registrant and

have

Designed such disclosure controls and procedures or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to

be designed under our supervision to ensure that material information relating to the registrant

including its consolidated subsidiaries is made known to us by others within those entities particularly

during the period in which this report is being prepared

Designed such internal control over financial reporting or caused such internal control over financial

reporting to be designed under our supervision to provide reasonable assurance regarding the

reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes
in

accordance with generally accepted accounting principles

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrants disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this

report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures as of the end

of the period covered by this report
based on such evaluation and

Disclosed in this report any change in the registrants internal control over financial reporting that

occurred during the registrants most recent fiscal quarter the registrants fourth quarter in the case of

an annual report that has materially affected or is reasonably likely to materially affect the

registrants internal control over financial reporting and

The registrants other certifying officers and have disclosed based on our most recent evaluation of

internal control over financial reporting to the registrants auditors and the audit committee of the

registrants board of directors or persons performing the equivalent functions

All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over

financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrants ability to record

process summarize and report financial information and

Any fraud whether or not material that involves management or other employees who have

significant role in the registrants internal control over financial reporting

Date February 26 2009

By Is EDWARD MULLER

Chairman of the Board President and Chief Executive Officer

Principal Executive Officer



EXHIBIT 31.2

James laco certify that

have reviewed this Form 10-K for the year ended December 31 2008 of Mirant Corporation

Based on my knowledge this report does not contain any untrue statement of material fact or omit to state

material fact necessary to make the statements made in light of the circumstances under which such

statements were made not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report

Based on my knowledge the financial statements and other financial information included in this report

fairly present in all material respects the financial condition results of operations and cash flows of the

registrant as of and for the periods presented in this report

The registrants other certifying officers and are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure

controls and procedures as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15e and 15d-15e and internal control

over financial reporting as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15f and 15d-15f for the registrant and

have

Designed such disclosure controls and procedures or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to

be designed under our supervision to ensure that material information relating to the registrant

including its consolidated subsidiaries is made known to us by others within those entities particularly

during the period in which this report is being prepared

Designed such internal control over financial reporting or caused such internal control over financial

reporting to be designed under our supervision to provide reasonable assurance regarding the

reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in

accordance with generally accepted accounting principles

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrants disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this

report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures as of the end

of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation and

Disclosed in this report any change in the registrants internal control over financial reporting that

occurred during the registrants most recent fiscal quarter the registrants fourth quarter in the case of

an annual report that has materially affected or is reasonably likely to materially affect the

registrants internal control over financial reporting and

The registrants other certifying officers and have disclosed based on our most recent evaluation of

internal control over financial reporting to the registrants auditors and the audit committee of the

registrants board of directors or persons performing the equivalent functions

All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over

financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrants ability to record

process summarize and report financial information and

Any fraud whether or not material that involves management or other employees who have

significant role in the registrants internal control over financial reporting

Date February 26 2009

By Is JAMES IACO

Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer



EXHIBIT 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C SECTION 1350

AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

February 26 2009

Securities and Exchange Commission

100 Street

Washington D.C 20549

Ladies and Gentlemen

The certification set forth below is being submitted to the Securities and Exchange Commission solely for

the purpose of complying with Section 1350 of Chapter 63 of Title 18 of the United States Code This

certification is not to be deemed to be filed pursuant to the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and does not

constitute part of the Annual Report on Form 10-K the Report accompanying this letter and is not to be

incorporated by reference into any filing whether made before or after the date hereof regardless of any general

incorporation language in such filing

Edward Muller Chairman of the Board President and Chief Executive Officer of Mirant Corporation

certify that subject to the qualifications noted below to the best of my knowledge

the Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13a or 15d of the Securities Exchange

Act of 1934 and

the information contained in the Report fairly presents in all material respects the financial condition

and results of operations of Mirant Corporation

Name Is EDWARD MULLER

Chairman of the Board President and Chief Executive Officer

signed original of this written statement required by Section 906 has been provided to Mirant Corporation

and will be retained by Mirant Corporation and furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission or its staff

upon request



EXHIBIT 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C SECTION 1350

AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

February 26 2009

Securities and Exchange Commission

100 Street

Washington D.C 20549

Ladies and Gentlemen

The certification set forth below is being submitted to the Securities and Exchange Commission solely for

the purpose of complying with Section 1350 of Chapter 63 of Title 18 of the United States Code This

certification is not to be deemed to be filed pursuant to the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and does not

constitute part of the Annual Report on Form 10-K the Report accompanying this letter and is not to be

incorporated by reference into any filing whether made before or after the date hereof regardless of any general

incorporation language in such filing

James laco Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of Mirant Corporation certify that

subject to the qualifications noted below to the best of my knowledge

the Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13a or 15d of the Securities Exchange

Act of 1934 and

the information contained in the Report fairly presents in all material respects the financial condition

and results of operations of Mirant Corporation

Name Is JAMES IACO

Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

signed original of this written statement required by Section 906 has been provided to Mirant Corporation

and will be retained by Mirant Corporation and furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission or its staff

upon request
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